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2020 Letter to Shareholders
Last spring, life changed dramatically for everyone across our nation, and
indeed the world. The COVID-19 pandemic has altered the way we live
and interact with one another. It has also changed the way we think about
our business. From the very beginning, OGE Energy Corp. has taken the
necessary steps to help limit, as much as possible, the effects of the pandemic
on our customers, our communities, our employees and our business, and we
continue to work toward that end.

Excelling for our customers through challenging times
While the COVID-19 pandemic was unprecedented in its own right, the
weather also played a crucial role in how we energized life for our customers
– and continues to do so. From unusually mild weather last summer, to the
most destructive ice storm in company history in late October, to a New
Year’s Eve ice storm that closed out the year, the effects of weather on our
business are unmistakable. We have not missed a beat, however, as our
employees continue to excel through every challenge. In February of this
year, unprecedented cold winter weather impacted our region, bringing
a prolonged cold spell that disrupted natural gas supplies, resulting in
extreme natural gas prices and a record winter peak demand for electricity.
Even as our service territory experienced record snowfall and temperatures,
our customers experienced minimal disruptions, as our employees and
generation ﬂeet performed admirably throughout.
We were recognized again by the Edison Electric Institute (EEI) in 2020 as we
received our 18th Emergency Response Award since 1999 for our restoration
efforts following a severe storm in July and the historic ice storm of October.
OGE was also named a Winning “W” Company by 2020 Women on Boards
and we were awarded the Arbor Foundation’s Tree Line USA Award for the
23rd year in a row. We accomplished all of this while maintaining rates that
are among the lowest in the nation. And we’ve done all of this safely. 2020
was our second safest year in history, and our last ﬁve years have been our
safest years ever.
We kicked off our grid enhancement projects in Oklahoma last year, including
securing a modernized mechanism for recovery of our investments. These grid
enhancements are expected to provide our Oklahoma customers the same
positive results we’ve seen in Arkansas, improving resiliency and reliability
across our system. Speaking of Arkansas, we ﬁled our third formula rate plan
ﬁling there in 2020 and successfully negotiated a constructive settlement in
that case, which the Commision has approved.
In 2020 we added two solar farms in southeast Oklahoma and we’re continuing
our solar expansion with our ﬁrst solar farm in Arkansas. It is currently in the
construction phase and we expect it to be operational later this summer.
We also have a number of additional projects in the works, including the
continuation of our Oklahoma and Arkansas grid enhancement projects and
the ﬁling of an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) in both Oklahoma and Arkansas
later this year which will lay out our future generation plans. We also expect to
ﬁle our fourth Formula Rate plan in Arkansas this year.
During the previous ﬁve years, we have invested more than $3.3 billion in
our system while maintaining some of the lowest rates in the nation, yet our
operating and maintenance (O&M) cost per customer is lower now than it was
at the end of 2015.
We will continue to invest in our communities to improve the reliability and
resiliency of our system while also working toward a cleaner enviroment. We’ve
cut our CO2 emissions by greater than 40% since 2005 and are committed to
signiﬁcantly reducing emissions going forward.

directly beneﬁt schools in our
service area. Our communities are
strong. Ft. Smith, Arkansas had
an unemployment rate of 4.4% in
December. Oklahoma City had the
seventh lowest unemployment rate
amongst large metropolitan areas at
5.8%, and the state of Oklahoma’s
unemployment rate was 5.3%. Each
of these falls well under the national
average.

Enable Midstream
Earlier this year, we announced our
support of the proposed merger
between Enable and Energy Transfer,
which we view as an important step
in repositioning ourselves as a pure
play electric utility. Enable has been
very successful for our shareholders
as we have received more than $1 billion in distributions since its creation
in 2013. Upon closing of the merger, Energy Transfer will acquire the general
partner interest from us and CenterPoint for $10 million in aggregate cash
consideration and CenterPoint will pay us $30 million. At that time, OGE
Energy will own approximately 3% of the signiﬁcantly more liquid units of
Energy Transfer. We intend to exit our midstream investment over time,
improving the business mix of our company.

A compelling investment thesis
I’m proud of what we’ve accomplished over the past ﬁve years and what
lies ahead for our company. We’ve returned $1.4 billion of cash to our
shareholders in the form of dividends and delivered a 5% compound annual
earnings growth at the utility. Those are real, consistent results, delivering on
our promises, year-in and year-out.
We have a solid and compelling investment thesis, backed by a track record
of performance. Whether you look over the last 5, 10, or 15-year period, we
have delivered compound earnings growth between 5% and 6%. And we
expect to keep true to our commitment to deliver on our earnings growth
target of 5% by investing in lower risk investments that improve our customer
experience. We have worked hard to create one of the strongest balance
sheets in the industry, which protects our dividend. We have delivered
increasingly supportive regulatory outcomes and we operate in jurisdictions
that are experiencing solid load and customer growth. All of this is backed by
a workforce dedicated to energizing life for our customers by providing them
with the life-sustaining and life-enhancing products and services they depend
on each day.
As a shareholder, you should be conﬁdent in your decision to invest in OGE.
Your company is strong, and while COVID has impacted all of us, I want our
shareholders to be conﬁdent that we are not focused simply on managing the
downturn, but on excelling through the recovery.
Thank you for your interest and investment in OGE Energy Corp.

Serving Our Communities
We invest in the future of our communities by partnering with community
leaders in the areas of economic and community development. Since 2016,
these partnerships helped contribute more than 100 new projects, nearly
20,000 additional jobs and more than $10 billion in capital investment by new
and existing businesses in our service territory.
We support our communities in other ways as well, such as giving back
through philanthropic activities. Our 5-year giving totals more than $11 million.
In addition, we remain the largest Oklahoma ad valorem tax payor, which

Sean Trauschke
Chairman, President and CEO
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
The following is a glossary of frequently used abbreviations that are found throughout this Form 10-K.
Abbreviation
2019 Form 10-K.........................................
401(k) Plan.................................................
APSC..........................................................
ArcLight group...........................................
ASC............................................................
ASU............................................................
CenterPoint.................................................
CO2.............................................................
Code............................................................
COVID-19..................................................
Dry Scrubber...............................................

Definition
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019
Qualified defined contribution retirement plan
Arkansas Public Service Commission
Bronco Midstream Holdings, LLC and Bronco Midstream Holdings II, LLC, collectively
FASB Accounting Standards Codification
FASB Accounting Standards Update
CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., wholly-owned subsidiary of CenterPoint Energy, Inc.
Carbon dioxide
Internal Revenue Code of 1986
Novel Coronavirus disease
Dry flue gas desulfurization unit with spray dryer absorber
Enable Gas Transmission, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enable that operates an
approximately 5,900-mile interstate pipeline that provides natural gas transportation and storage
services to customers principally in the Anadarko, Arkoma and Ark-La-Tex Basins in
EGT............................................................ Oklahoma, Texas, Arkansas, Louisiana, Missouri and Kansas
Enable Midstream Partners, LP, partnership between OGE Energy, the ArcLight group and
CenterPoint Energy, Inc. formed to own and operate the midstream businesses of OGE Energy
Enable......................................................... and CenterPoint
Energy Transfer.......................................... Energy Transfer LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Enogex Holdings LLC, the parent company of Enogex LLC and a majority-owned subsidiary of
Enogex Holdings........................................ OGE Holdings, LLC (prior to May 1, 2013)
Enogex LLC, collectively with its subsidiaries (effective June 30, 2013, the name was changed
Enogex LLC............................................... to Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC)
Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC, formerly Enogex LLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Enable that operates an approximately 2,200-mile intrastate pipeline that provides
EOIT........................................................... natural gas transportation and storage services to customers in Oklahoma
EPA.............................................................
FASB..........................................................
Federal Clean Air Act.................................
Federal Clean Water Act............................
FERC..........................................................
FIP..............................................................
GAAP.........................................................
kV...............................................................

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Financial Accounting Standards Board
Federal Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended
Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Federal Implementation Plan
Accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.
Kilovolt
Local distribution company involved in the delivery of natural gas to consumers within a
LDC............................................................ specific geographic area
MATS......................................................... Mercury and Air Toxics Standards
MBbl/d........................................................ Thousand barrels per day
MMBtu....................................................... Million British thermal unit
Enable Mississippi River Transmission, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enable that
operates an approximately 1,600-mile interstate pipeline that provides natural gas transportation
MRT............................................................ and storage services principally in Texas, Arkansas, Louisiana, Missouri and Illinois
MW............................................................. Megawatt
MWh........................................................... Megawatt-hour
NAAQS...................................................... National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NERC.......................................................... North American Electric Reliability Corporation
NGLs.......................................................... Natural gas liquids, which are the hydrocarbon liquids contained within the natural gas stream
including condensate
NOX.............................................................
OCC............................................................
ODEQ.........................................................
OG&E.........................................................

Nitrogen oxide
Oklahoma Corporation Commission
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality
Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company, wholly-owned subsidiary of OGE Energy
OGE Energy Corp., collectively with its subsidiaries, holding company and parent company of
OGE Energy............................................... OG&E
OGE Enogex Holdings LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary of OGE Energy, parent company of
OGE Holdings............................................ Enogex Holdings (prior to May 1, 2013) and 25.5 percent owner of Enable
OSHA......................................................... Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970
Pension Plan............................................... Qualified defined benefit retirement plan
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QF contract................................................. Contract with qualified cogeneration facilities and small power production producers
Regional Haze Rule.................................... The EPA's Regional Haze Rule
Registrants.................................................. OGE Energy and OG&E
Restoration of Retirement Income Plan...... Supplemental retirement plan to the Pension Plan
Southeast Supply Header, LLC, in which Enable owns a 50 percent interest as of December 31,
2020, that operates an approximately 290-mile interstate natural gas pipeline from Perryville,
SESH.......................................................... Louisiana to southwestern Alabama near the Gulf Coast
SIP..............................................................
SO2..............................................................
SPP.............................................................
Stock Incentive Plan...................................
System sales................................................
TBtu/d.........................................................
U.S..............................................................
Wells Fargo.................................................

State Implementation Plan
Sulfur dioxide
Southwest Power Pool
2013 Stock Incentive Plan
Sales to OG&E's customers
Trillion British thermal units per day
United States of America
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
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FILING FORMAT
This combined Form 10-K is separately filed by OGE Energy and OG&E. Information in this combined Form 10-K
relating to each individual Registrant is filed by such Registrant on its own behalf. OG&E makes no representation regarding
information relating to any other companies affiliated with OGE Energy. Neither OGE Energy, nor any of OGE Energy's
subsidiaries, other than OG&E, has any obligation in respect of OG&E's debt securities, and holders of such debt securities
should not consider the financial resources or results of operations of OGE Energy nor any of OGE Energy's subsidiaries, other
than OG&E (in relevant circumstances), in making a decision with respect to OG&E's debt securities. Similarly, none of OG&E
nor any other subsidiary of OGE Energy has any obligation with respect to debt securities of OGE Energy. This combined
Form 10-K should be read in its entirety. No one section of this combined Form 10-K deals with all aspects of the subject
matter of this combined Form 10-K.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Except for the historical statements contained herein, the matters discussed within this Form 10-K, including those
matters discussed within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"
are forward-looking statements that are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Such forward-looking statements
are intended to be identified in this document by the words "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "objective,"
"plan," "possible," "potential," "project," "target" and similar expressions. Actual results may vary materially from those
expressed in forward-looking statements. In addition to the specific risk factors discussed within "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and
"Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" herein, factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

general economic conditions, including the availability of credit, access to existing lines of credit, access to the
commercial paper markets, actions of rating agencies and their impact on capital expenditures;
the ability of OGE Energy and its subsidiaries to access the capital markets and obtain financing on favorable
terms as well as inflation rates and monetary fluctuations;
the ability to obtain timely and sufficient rate relief to allow for recovery of items such as capital expenditures,
fuel costs, operating costs, transmission costs and deferred expenditures;
prices and availability of electricity, coal, natural gas and NGLs;
for OGE Energy, the timing and extent of changes in commodity prices, particularly natural gas and NGLs, the
competitive effects of the available pipeline capacity in the regions Enable serves and the effects of geographic
and seasonal commodity price differentials, including the effects of these circumstances on re-contracting
available capacity on Enable's interstate pipelines;
for OGE Energy, the timing and extent of changes in the supply of natural gas, particularly supplies available for
gathering by Enable's gathering and processing business and transporting by Enable's interstate and intrastate
pipelines, including the impact of natural gas and NGLs prices on the level of drilling and production activities in
the regions Enable serves;
for OGE Energy, business conditions in the energy and natural gas midstream industries, including the demand for
natural gas, NGLs, crude oil and midstream services;
competitive factors, including the extent and timing of the entry of additional competition in the markets served by
the Registrants;
the impact on demand for services resulting from cost-competitive advances in technology, such as distributed
electricity generation and customer energy efficiency programs;
technological developments, changing markets and other factors that result in competitive disadvantages and
create the potential for impairment of existing assets;
factors affecting utility operations such as unusual weather conditions; catastrophic weather-related damage;
unscheduled generation outages, unusual maintenance or repairs; unanticipated changes to fossil fuel, natural gas
or coal supply costs or availability due to higher demand, shortages, transportation problems or other
developments; environmental incidents; or electric transmission or gas pipeline system constraints;
availability and prices of raw materials for current and future construction projects;
the effect of retroactive pricing of transactions in the SPP markets or adjustments in market pricing mechanisms
by the SPP;
federal or state legislation and regulatory decisions and initiatives that affect cost and investment recovery, have
an impact on rate structures or affect the speed and degree to which competition enters the Registrants' markets;
environmental laws, safety laws or other regulations that may impact the cost of operations or restrict or change
the way the Registrants' facilities are operated;
changes in accounting standards, rules or guidelines;
the discontinuance of accounting principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities;
1

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the cost of protecting assets against, or damage due to, terrorism or cyberattacks and other catastrophic events;
creditworthiness of suppliers, customers and other contractual parties;
social attitudes regarding the utility, natural gas and power industries;
identification of suitable investment opportunities to enhance shareholder returns and achieve long-term financial
objectives through business acquisitions and divestitures;
increased pension and healthcare costs;
the impact of extraordinary external events, such as the current pandemic health event resulting from COVID-19,
and their collateral consequences, including extended disruption of economic activity in the Registrants' markets;
costs and other effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, investigations, claims and matters,
including, but not limited to, those described in this Form 10-K;
difficulty in making accurate assumptions and projections regarding future revenues and costs associated with
OGE Energy's equity investment in Enable that OGE Energy does not control;
Enable's pending merger with Energy Transfer and the expected timing of the consummation of the merger; and
other risk factors listed in the reports filed by the Registrants with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including those listed within "Item 1A. Risk Factors" herein.

The Registrants undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.
SUMMARY OF RISK FACTORS
The Registrants are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties, including regulatory risks, operational risks,
financial risks and certain general risks. Risks of OG&E are also risks of OGE Energy. OGE Energy also is subject to risks
associated with its investment in Enable. These risks could have a material adverse effect on the Registrants' business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Risks that the Registrants deem material are described under "Risk Factors"
within "Item 1A. Risk Factors" herein. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following.
Pg.
Regulatory Risks
• Profitability depends on the ability to recover costs from OG&E's customers in a timely manner.
• OG&E's rates are subject to various regulatory agencies whose regulatory paradigms and goals may differ.
• Costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations are significant and may increase with the new
Biden administration.
•
•
•

Costs of the Registrants' investments in capital improvements and additions may not be recoverable.
The regional power market in which OG&E operates has changing transmission regulatory structures.
The Registrants may face increased competition resulting from changes to the utility and energy markets.

• The Registrants are subject to compliance with substantial utility and energy regulation.
Operational Risks
Results of operations may be impacted by disruptions to the Registrants' fuel supply or the electric grid that are
beyond the Registrants' control.
OG&E's electric assets are subject to various operational risks, including outages and accidents.
• Changes in technology, regulatory policies and customer electricity consumption may cause the Registrants'
assets to be less competitive.
• The Registrants may be impacted by severe weather conditions, as well as seasonal temperature variations.
Financial Risks
• The Registrants may be impacted by changes related to their Pension Plan and health care plans, including
market performance, increased retirements, change in regulations and increasing costs.
• OGE Energy is a holding company with its primary assets being investments in other companies.
Risks Associated with OGE Energy's Investment in Enable
• OGE Energy does not control Enable and therefore cannot cause or prevent certain actions by Enable.
• OGE Energy's operating cash flow is derived partially from cash distributions received from Enable.
• Enable's contracts are subject to renewal risks.
• Enable's businesses are dependent, in part, on the drilling and production decisions of others, which are impacted
by demand and commodity prices.
• Enable's industry is highly competitive.
•
•
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16
16
16
17
17

17
17
18
18

18
19
19
20
20
21
22

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Natural gas, NGLs and crude prices are volatile.
A pandemic, epidemic or outbreak of an infectious disease may materially adversely affect Enable's business.
Enable has contracts that provide services under fixed prices, which could result in costs exceeding revenues.
If third-party facilities that interconnect with Enable's facilities are unavailable, Enable may be impacted.
Enable does not own all of the land on which its facilities are located, which could disrupt its operations.
An impairment of long-lived assets could reduce Enable's earnings.
Enable's business involves hazards and operational risks, some of which may not be fully covered by insurance.
The use of derivative contracts could result in financial losses.
Failure to attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce could adversely impact Enable.
Cybersecurity attacks or other disruptions to Enable's systems and networks could have adverse impacts.
Terrorist attacks or other physical threats could adversely affect Enable's business.
If Enable fails to maintain effective internal controls, reported financial results could be affected.
Enable is dependent on a small number of customers for a significant portion of its revenues.
Enable is exposed to the credit risk of its customers.
Enable's debt levels may limit its flexibility in obtaining additional financing or pursuing business opportunities.
Enable's credit facilities contain restrictions that may be affected by events beyond its control.
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26
26
26
26
26
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Any reductions in Enable's credit ratings could increase financing costs.
Enable may not be able to recover the costs of substantial planned investment in capital improvements.
Enable's ability to grow is dependent in part on its access to external financing sources on acceptable terms.
Enable's merger and acquisition activities may not be successful.
Enable may be unable to obtain or renew permits necessary for its operations.
Enable's operations may be impacted by certain indigenous rights protections.
Costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations are significant.
Increased regulation of hydraulic fracturing could result in reductions or delays in natural gas production by
Enable's customers.
Enable and its customers' operations are subject to risks related to the threat of climate change.
Enable's operations are subject to extensive federal regulations.
Enable's operations are subject to state and local regulations.
A change in jurisdictional characterization of Enable's assets by regulators could result in increased regulation.
Enable may incur significant costs related to compliance with pipeline safety laws and regulations.
The Dodd-Frank Act regulations could affect Enable's ability to hedge risks associated with its business.

27
28
28
29
29
29
30

Enable derives a substantial portion of its gross margin from subsidiaries.
Enable conducts a portion of its operations through joint ventures, which subjects them to additional risks.
Under certain circumstances, Enbridge Inc. could have the right to purchase an ownership interest in SESH.
The amount of cash Enable has available for distribution depends on cash flow rather than profitability.
Affiliates of Enable's general partner may compete with Enable.
Enable may issue additional units without unitholder approval, which could dilute existing ownership.
Affiliates of Enable's general partner may sell common units, which could impact the trading price of units.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units have rights and privileges that are preferential to those of common units.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units contain covenants that may limit business flexibility.
Enable's Series A Preferred units are required to be redeemed in certain circumstances.
Enable's unitholders cannot be certain of the precise value of any Energy Transfer merger consideration they may
receive.
The Energy Transfer merger may not be completed and the merger agreement may be terminated.
The Energy Transfer merger agreement limits Enable's ability to pursue alternatives to the merger.
Failure to complete the Energy Transfer merger could negatively impact Enable's future financial results.
Enable will be subject to business uncertainties while the merger is pending.
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The common units representing limited partner interests in Energy Transfer will have different rights than
Enable's common units.
Completion
of the Energy Transfer merger may trigger change in control or other provisions in certain Enable
•
agreements.
• Enable will incur significant transaction and merger-related costs in connection with the Energy Transfer merger.
• Enable may be a target of securities class action and derivative lawsuits as a result of the Energy Transfer merger.
General Risks
• Events that are beyond the Registrants' control have increased public and regulatory scrutiny of their industry.
• Economic conditions could negatively impact the Registrants' business.
• The Registrants are subject to financial risks associated with climate change.
• The Registrants are subject to cybersecurity risks and increased reliance on processes automated by technology.
• Terrorist attacks, and the threat of terrorist attacks, have increased costs to the Registrants' business.
• The Registrants face risks related to health epidemics and other outbreaks.
• The Registrants face risks related to the availability of trained and qualified labor to meet their staffing
requirements.
• Certain provisions in the Registrants' charter documents have anti-takeover effects.
• The Registrants may be able to incur substantially more indebtedness, which can increase the associated risks.
•

•
•
•
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Changes to the Registrants' credit ratings or benchmark interest rates could impact their financing costs.
The Registrants' debt levels may limit their flexibility in obtaining additional financing or pursuing business
opportunities.
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The Registrants are exposed to the credit risk of their key customers and counterparties.
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PART I
Item 1. Business.
Introduction
OGE Energy, incorporated in August 1995 in the State of Oklahoma, is a holding company with investments in energy
and energy services providers offering physical delivery and related services for both electricity and natural gas primarily in the
south central U.S. OGE Energy conducts these activities through two business segments: (i) electric utility and (ii) natural gas
midstream operations.
OG&E. OGE Energy's electric utility operations are conducted through OG&E, which generates, transmits, distributes
and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. OG&E's rates are subject to regulation by the OCC, the APSC and
the FERC. OG&E was incorporated in 1902 under the laws of the Oklahoma Territory and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OGE Energy. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma, and its franchised service territory includes Fort Smith,
Arkansas and the surrounding communities. OG&E sold its retail natural gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the
natural gas distribution business.
Enable. OGE Energy's natural gas midstream operations segment represents OGE Energy's investment in Enable. The
investment in Enable is held through wholly-owned subsidiaries and ultimately OGE Holdings. Enable is primarily engaged in
the business of gathering, processing, transporting and storing natural gas. Enable's natural gas gathering and processing assets
are strategically located in four states and serve natural gas production in the Anadarko, Arkoma and Ark-La-Tex Basins.
Enable also owns crude oil gathering assets in the Anadarko and Williston Basins. Enable has intrastate natural gas
transportation and storage assets that are located in Oklahoma as well as interstate assets that extend from western Oklahoma
and the Texas Panhandle to Louisiana, from Louisiana to Illinois and from Louisiana to Alabama. At December 31, 2020, OGE
Energy owned 111.0 million common units, or 25.5 percent, of Enable's outstanding common units.
On February 16, 2021, Enable entered into a definitive merger agreement with Energy Transfer, pursuant to which,
and subject to the conditions of the merger agreement, all outstanding common units of Enable will be acquired by Energy
Transfer in an all-equity transaction. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Enable's common unitholders, including OGE
Energy, will receive 0.8595 of one common unit representing limited partner interests in Energy Transfer for each common unit
of Enable. The transaction is anticipated to close in 2021. The transaction is subject to the receipt of the required approvals from
the holders of a majority of Enable's common units, anti-trust approvals and other customary closing conditions. Assuming the
transaction closes, OGE Energy will own approximately three percent of Energy Transfer's outstanding limited partner units in
lieu of the 25.5 percent interest in Enable that it currently owns. Energy Transfer owns and operates one of the largest and most
diversified portfolios of energy assets in the U.S., with a strategic footprint in all of the major domestic production basins.
Energy Transfer is a publicly traded limited partnership with core operations that include complementary natural gas
midstream, intrastate and interstate transportation and storage assets; crude oil, NGL and refined product transportation and
terminalling assets; NGL fractionation; and various acquisition and marketing assets.
See "Enable's Pending Merger with Energy Transfer" within "Item 1A. Risk Factors" for a discussion of risks related
to the Enable and Energy Transfer merger.
The Registrants' principal executive offices are located at 321 North Harvey, P.O. Box 321, Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma, 73101-0321 (telephone 405-553-3000). OGE Energy's website address is www.ogeenergy.com. Through OGE
Energy's website under the heading "Investors," "SEC Filings," OGE Energy makes available, free of charge, the Registrants'
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable
after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. OGE Energy's website
and the information contained therein or connected thereto are not intended to be incorporated into this Form 10-K and should
not be considered a part of this Form 10-K. Reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission are also made available
on its website at www.sec.gov.
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Strategy
OGE Energy's purpose is to energize life, providing life-sustaining and life-enhancing products and services, while
honoring its commitment to strengthen communities. Its business model is centered around growth and sustainability for
employees (internally referred to as "members"), communities and customers and the owners of OGE Energy, its shareholders.
OGE Energy is focused on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

continuing to deliver top-quartile safety results, while enabling members to deliver improved value to their
communities, customers and shareholders;
transforming the customer experience with the right balance of personalized interaction and technology that
allows our customers to self-serve;
providing safe, reliable energy to the communities and customers it serves, with a particular focus on enhancing
the value of the grid by improving reliability and resiliency;
leading economic development and job growth by attracting new and diverse businesses to improve the
infrastructure of the communities in Oklahoma and Arkansas;
ensuring the necessary mix of generation resources to meet the long-term capacity needs of our customers, with a
progressively cleaner generation portfolio;
continuing focus on innovation, intellectual curiosity and executing with excellence in order to maintain customer
rates that are some of the most affordable in the country;
delivering on earnings commitments to shareholders to enhance access to lower-cost debt and equity capital that is
needed to deploy infrastructure for the long-term economic health of its communities;
having strong regulatory and legislative relationships, built on integrity, for the long-term benefit of our
customers, communities, shareholders and members; and
developing and growing our members to be able to provide a greater contribution to the company's success, while
also improving their own lives.

OGE Energy is focused on creating long-term shareholder value by targeting the consistent growth of earnings per
share of five percent at the electric utility, underscored by a strategy of investing in lower risk infrastructure projects that
improve the economic vitality of the communities it serves in Oklahoma and Arkansas. OGE Energy utilizes cash distributions
from its natural gas midstream operations segment to help fund its electric utility capital investments. OGE Energy's financial
objectives also include maintaining investment grade credit ratings and providing a strong and reliable dividend for
shareholders.
OGE Energy's long-term sustainability is predicated on providing exceptional customer experiences, investing in grid
improvements and increasingly cleaner generation resources, environmental stewardship, strong governance practices and
caring for and supporting its members and communities.
Electric Operations - OG&E
General
OG&E furnishes retail electric service in 267 communities and their contiguous rural and suburban areas. The service
area covers 30,000 square miles in Oklahoma and western Arkansas, including Oklahoma City, the largest city in Oklahoma,
and Fort Smith, Arkansas, the second largest city in that state. Of the 267 communities that OG&E serves, 241 are located in
Oklahoma, and 26 are in Arkansas. OG&E derived 92 percent of its total electric operating revenues in 2020 from sales in
Oklahoma and the remainder from sales in Arkansas. OG&E does not currently serve wholesale customers in either state.
OG&E's system control area peak demand in 2020 was 6,437 MWs on August 28, 2020. OG&E's load responsibility
peak demand was 5,711 MWs on August 28, 2020. The following table presents system sales and variations in system sales for
2020, 2019 and 2018.
Year Ended December 31
System sales (Millions of MWh).......................................

2020
27.0

2020 vs. 2019
(4.9)%

2019
28.4

2019 vs. 2018
1.1%

2018
28.1

OG&E is subject to competition in various degrees from government-owned electric systems, municipally-owned
electric systems, rural electric cooperatives and, in certain respects, from other private utilities, power marketers and
cogenerators. Oklahoma law forbids the granting of an exclusive franchise to a utility for providing electricity.
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Besides competition from other suppliers or marketers of electricity, OG&E competes with suppliers of other forms of
energy. The degree of competition between suppliers may vary depending on relative costs and supplies of other forms of
energy. It is possible that changes in regulatory policies or advances in technologies such as fuel cells, microturbines, windmills
and photovoltaic solar cells will reduce costs of new technology to levels that are equal to or below that of most central station
electricity production. OG&E's ability to maintain relatively low cost, efficient and reliable operations is a significant
determinant of its competitiveness.
OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
CERTAIN OPERATING STATISTICS
Year Ended December 31
2020
2019
ELECTRIC ENERGY (Millions of MWh)
Generation (exclusive of station use).................................................................................
17.5
17.0
Purchased...........................................................................................................................
12.9
14.0
Total generated and purchased.........................................................................................
30.4
31.0
OG&E use, free service and losses....................................................................................
(1.4)
(1.4)
Electric energy sold..........................................................................................................
29.0
29.6
ELECTRIC ENERGY SOLD (Millions of MWh)
Residential..........................................................................................................................
9.5
9.7
Commercial........................................................................................................................
6.3
6.5
Industrial............................................................................................................................
4.2
4.5
Oilfield...............................................................................................................................
4.2
4.6
Public authorities and street light.......................................................................................
2.8
3.1
System sales.....................................................................................................................
27.0
28.4
Integrated market...............................................................................................................
2.0
1.2
Total sales.........................................................................................................................
29.0
29.6
ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES (In millions)
Residential.......................................................................................................................... $
869.0 $
891.1 $
Commercial........................................................................................................................
479.4
503.1
Industrial............................................................................................................................
197.3
223.0
Oilfield...............................................................................................................................
172.3
204.0
Public authorities and street light.......................................................................................
176.8
195.7
Sales for resale...................................................................................................................
0.1
0.1
System sales revenues......................................................................................................
1,894.9
2,017.0
Provision for rate refund....................................................................................................
3.8
(0.9)
Integrated market...............................................................................................................
49.6
38.4
Transmission......................................................................................................................
143.3
148.0
Other..................................................................................................................................
30.7
29.1
Total operating revenues.................................................................................................. $ 2,122.3 $ 2,231.6 $
ACTUAL NUMBER OF ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS (At end of period)
Residential..........................................................................................................................
740,174
731,797
Commercial........................................................................................................................
100,200
98,565
Industrial............................................................................................................................
2,710
2,965
Oilfield...............................................................................................................................
6,822
7,071
Public authorities and street light.......................................................................................
17,483
17,356
Total customers................................................................................................................
867,389
857,754
AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER SALES
Average annual revenue..................................................................................................... $ 1,180.82 $ 1,223.05 $
Average annual use (kilowatt-hour)...................................................................................
12,848
13,344
Average price per kilowatt-hour (cents)............................................................................
9.19
9.17
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2018
18.2
12.6
30.8
(1.3)
29.5
9.7
6.6
4.5
4.2
3.1
28.1
1.4
29.5
901.0
519.9
234.5
193.5
204.0
0.2
2,053.1
(6.0)
48.7
147.4
27.1
2,270.3
725,440
96,660
3,072
7,110
17,090
849,372
1,247.22
13,466
9.26

Regulation and Rates
OG&E's retail electric tariffs are regulated by the OCC in Oklahoma and by the APSC in Arkansas. The issuance of
certain securities by OG&E is also regulated by the OCC and the APSC. OG&E's transmission activities, short-term borrowing
authorization and accounting practices are subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC. The Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Energy has jurisdiction over some of OG&E's facilities and operations. In 2020, 86 percent of OG&E's electric revenue was
subject to the jurisdiction of the OCC, eight percent to the APSC and six percent to the FERC.
The OCC and the APSC require that, among other things, (i) OGE Energy permits the OCC and the APSC access to
the books and records of OGE Energy and its affiliates relating to transactions with OG&E; (ii) OGE Energy employ
accounting and other procedures and controls to protect against subsidization of non-utility activities by OG&E's customers;
and (iii) OGE Energy refrain from pledging OG&E assets or income for affiliate transactions. In addition, the FERC has access
to the books and records of OGE Energy and its affiliates as the FERC deems relevant to costs incurred by OG&E or necessary
or appropriate for the protection of utility customers with respect to the FERC jurisdictional rates.
For information concerning OG&E's recently completed and currently pending regulatory proceedings, see Note 16
within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to accounting principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities, which
provide that certain incurred costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as regulatory assets, based on the
expected recovery from customers in future rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce
expense can be deferred as regulatory liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management's
expected recovery of deferred costs and flowback of deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators
granting such ratemaking treatment.
OG&E records certain incurred costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, it is probable that the costs or obligations will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund
in future rates. Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory assets. When in management's
judgment future recovery becomes impaired, the amount of the regulatory asset is adjusted, as appropriate. If OG&E were
required to discontinue the application of accounting principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities for some or all of its
operations, it could result in writing off the related regulatory assets or liabilities, which could have significant financial effects.
See Note 1 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion of OG&E's regulatory assets
and liabilities.
Rate Structures
Oklahoma
OG&E's standard tariff rates include a cost of service component (including an authorized return on capital) plus a fuel
adjustment clause mechanism that allows OG&E to pass through to customers the actual cost of fuel and purchased power.
OG&E offers several alternative customer programs and rate options, as described below.
•
•
•

•

Under OG&E's Smart Grid-enabled SmartHours programs, "time-of-use" and "variable peak pricing" rates offer
customers the ability to save on their electricity bills by shifting some of the electricity consumption to off-peak
times when demand for electricity is lowest.
The guaranteed flat bill option for residential and small general service accounts allows qualifying customers the
opportunity to purchase their electricity needs at a set monthly price for an entire year.
The Renewable Energy Credit purchase program, a rate option that provides a "renewable energy" resource, is
available as a voluntary option to all of OG&E's Oklahoma retail customers. OG&E's ownership and access to
wind and solar resources makes the renewable option a possible choice in meeting the renewable energy needs of
OG&E's conservation-minded customers.
Load Reduction is a voluntary load curtailment program that provides OG&E's commercial and industrial
customers with the opportunity to curtail usage on a voluntary basis when OG&E's system conditions merit
curtailment action. Customers that curtail their usage will receive payment for their curtailment response. This
voluntary curtailment program seeks customers that can curtail on most curtailment event days but may not be
able to curtail every time that a curtailment event is required.
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•

OG&E offers certain qualifying customers "day-ahead price" and "flex price" rate options which allow
participating customers to adjust their electricity consumption based on price signals received from OG&E. The
prices for the "day-ahead price" and "flex price" rate options are based on OG&E's projected next day hourly
operating costs.

OG&E has Public Schools-Demand and Public Schools Non-Demand rate classes that provide OG&E with flexibility
to provide targeted programs for load management to public schools and their unique usage patterns. OG&E also provides
service level, seasonal and time period fuel charge differentiation that allows customers to pay fuel costs that better reflect the
underlying costs of providing electric service. Lastly, OG&E has a military base rider that demonstrates Oklahoma's continued
commitment to our military partners.
The previously discussed rate options, coupled with OG&E's other rate choices, provide many tariff options for
OG&E's Oklahoma retail customers. The revenue impacts associated with these options are not determinable in future years
because customers may choose to remain on existing rate options instead of volunteering for the alternative rate option choices.
Revenue variations may occur in the future based upon changes in customers' usage characteristics if they choose alternative
rate options.
Arkansas
OG&E's standard tariff rates include a cost of service component (including an authorized return on capital) plus an
energy cost recovery mechanism that allows OG&E to pass through to customers the actual cost of fuel and purchased power.
OG&E's current rate order from the APSC includes a formula rate rider that provides for an annual adjustment to rates if the
earned rate of return falls outside of a plus or minus 50 basis point dead-band around the allowed return on equity. Adjustments
are limited to plus or minus four percent of revenue for each rate class for the 12 months preceding the test period. The initial
term for the formula rate rider is not to exceed five years from the date of the APSC final order in the last general rate review,
May 18, 2017, unless additional approval is obtained from the APSC.
OG&E offers several alternative customer programs and rate options, as described below.
•
•

•
•

The "time-of-use" and "variable peak pricing" tariffs allow participating customers to save on their electricity bills
by shifting some of the electricity consumption to off-peak times when demand for electricity is lowest.
The Renewable Energy Credit purchase program, a tariff rate option that provides a "renewable energy" resource,
is available as a voluntary option to all of OG&E's Arkansas retail customers. OG&E's ownership and access to
wind resources makes the renewable option a possible choice in meeting the renewable energy needs of our
conservation-minded customers.
Load Reduction is a voluntary load curtailment program that provides OG&E's commercial and industrial
customers with the opportunity to curtail usage on a voluntary basis and receive a billing credit when OG&E's
system conditions merit curtailment action.
OG&E offers certain qualifying customers a "day-ahead price" rate option which allows participating customers to
adjust their electricity consumption based on a price signal received from OG&E. The "day-ahead price" is based
on OG&E's projected next day hourly operating costs.

Fuel Supply and Generation
The following table presents the OG&E-generated energy produced and the weighted average cost of fuel used, by
type, for the last three years.

Natural gas...............................................................
Coal..........................................................................
Renewable...............................................................
Total fuel...............................................................

Fuel Mix (A)
2020
2019
66%
64%
26%
28%
8%
8%
100%
100%

2018
48%
45%
7%
100%

Fuel Cost
(In cents/Kilowatt-Hour)
2020
2019
2018
2.077
2.188
2.517
1.821
2.029
2.025
—
—
—
1.863
1.970
2.119

(A) Fuel mix calculated as a percent of net MWhs generated.
The decreases in the weighted average cost of fuel in 2020 compared to 2019 and 2019 compared to 2018 were
primarily due to lower fuel prices year over year. These fuel costs are recovered through OG&E's fuel adjustment clauses that
are approved by the OCC and the APSC.
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OG&E participates in the SPP Integrated Marketplace. As part of the Integrated Marketplace, the SPP has balancing
authority responsibilities for its market participants. The SPP Integrated Marketplace functions as a centralized dispatch, where
market participants, including OG&E, submit offers to sell power to the SPP from their resources and bid to purchase power
from the SPP for their customers. The SPP Integrated Marketplace is intended to allow the SPP to optimize supply offers and
demand bids based upon reliability and economic considerations and to determine which generating units will run at any given
time for maximum cost-effectiveness within the SPP area. As a result, OG&E's generating units produce output that is different
from OG&E's customer load requirements. Net fuel and purchased power costs are recovered through fuel adjustment clauses.
Of OG&E's 7,120 total MWs of generation capability reflected in the table within "Item 2. Properties," 4,795 MWs, or
67.4 percent, are from natural gas generation, 1,534 MWs, or 21.5 percent, are from coal generation, 320 MWs, or 4.5 percent,
are from dual-fuel generation (coal/gas), 449 MWs, or 6.3 percent, are from wind generation and 22 MWs, or 0.3 percent, are
from solar generation.
Natural Gas
As a participant in the SPP Integrated Marketplace, OG&E purchases its natural gas supply through short-term
agreements. OG&E relies on a combination of natural gas base load agreements and call agreements, whereby OG&E has the
right but not the obligation to purchase a defined quantity of natural gas, combined with day and intra-day purchases to meet the
demands of the SPP Integrated Marketplace.
Coal
OG&E's coal-fired units are designed to burn primarily low sulfur western sub-bituminous coal. The combination of
all 2020 coal purchased had a weighted average sulfur content of 0.2 percent. Based on the average sulfur content and EPAcertified data, OG&E's coal units have an approximate emission rate of 0.1 lbs. of SO2 per MMBtu.
For the first two quarters of 2021, OG&E has coal supply agreements for 100 percent of its coal requirements for the
Sooner, Muskogee and River Valley facilities. OG&E plans to fill the remainder of its 2021 coal needs through additional term
agreements, spot purchases and the use of existing inventory. OG&E has no coal agreements beyond June 2021. In 2020,
OG&E purchased 2.518 million tons of coal from its Wyoming supplier and 0.027 million tons from its Oklahoma supplier. See
"Environmental Laws and Regulations" within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" for a discussion of environmental matters which may affect OG&E in the future, including its utilization
of coal.
Wind
OG&E owns the 120 MW Centennial, 101 MW OU Spirit and 228 MW Crossroads wind farms. OG&E's current wind
power portfolio also includes purchased power contracts as presented in the following table.
Company
CPV Keenan
Edison Mission Energy
NextEra Energy

Location
Woodward County, OK
Dewey County, OK
Blackwell, OK

Original Term of
Contract
Expiration of Contract
20 years
2030
20 years
2031
20 years
2032

MWs
152.0
130.0
60.0

Solar
OG&E currently owns and operates, or will operate, the solar farms presented in the following table.
Name

Location

Year Completed

Photovoltaic Panels

MWs

Mustang

Oklahoma City, OK

2015

9,867

2.5

Covington

Covington, OK

2018

38,000

9.7

Choctaw Nation

Durant, OK

2020

15,344

5.0

Chickasaw Nation

Davis, OK

2020

15,344

5.0

Branch

Branch, AR

In progress

15,444

5.0
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OG&E will continue to evaluate the need to add additional solar sites to its generation portfolio based on customer
demand, cost and reliability.
Safety and Health Regulation
OG&E is subject to a number of federal and state laws and regulations, including OSHA, the EPA and comparable
state statutes, whose purpose is to protect the safety and health of workers.
In addition, the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard, the EPA Emergency Planning and Community Right-toKnow regulations under Title III of the Federal Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act and comparable state statutes
require that information be maintained concerning hazardous materials stored, used or produced in OG&E's operations and that
this information be provided or made available to employees, state and local government authorities and citizens. OG&E
believes that it is in material compliance with all applicable laws and regulations relating to worker safety and health.
Natural Gas Midstream Operations - Enable
Overview
Enable is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership that owns, operates and develops strategically located natural
gas and crude oil infrastructure assets. Enable serves current and emerging production areas in the U.S., including several
unconventional shale resource plays and local and regional end-user markets in the U.S. Enable's assets and operations are
organized into two reportable segments: (i) gathering and processing and (ii) transportation and storage. Enable's gathering and
processing segment primarily provides natural gas gathering and processing to its producer customers and crude oil, condensate
and produced water gathering services to its producer and refiner customers. Enable's transportation and storage segment
provides interstate and intrastate natural gas pipeline transportation and storage services primarily to its producer, power plant,
LDC and industrial end-user customers.
Gathering and Processing
Enable owns and operates substantial natural gas gathering and processing and crude oil, condensate and produced
water gathering assets primarily in five states. Enable's gathering and processing operations consist primarily of natural gas
gathering and processing assets serving the Anadarko, Arkoma and Ark-La-Tex Basins, crude oil and condensate gathering
assets serving the Anadarko Basin and crude oil and produced water gathering assets serving the Williston Basin. Enable
provides a variety of services to the active producers in its operating areas, including gathering, compressing, treating and
processing natural gas, fractionating NGLs and gathering crude oil, condensate and produced water. Enable serves shale and
other unconventional plays in the basins in which it operates.
Enable generates revenues from producers in the basins in which it operates. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
Enable's top ten natural gas producer customers accounted for approximately 70 percent of its natural gas gathered volumes.
Enable's Anadarko Basin crude oil gathering system gathers crude oil and condensate from producers, which are primarily
delivered to one customer. The rates and terms of service on Enable's Anadarko Basin crude oil and condensate gathering
systems are regulated by the OCC. Enable's Williston Basin crude oil and produced water gathering systems serve one
customer. The rates and terms of service on Enable's Williston Basin crude oil gathering systems, but not its produced water
gathering systems, are regulated by the FERC. Enable's contracts typically provide for crude oil, condensate and produced
water gathering services that are fee-based, for natural gas gathering services that are fee-based and for natural gas processing
arrangements that are fee-based, or percent-of-liquids, percent-of-proceeds or keep-whole based.
Competition for Enable's gathering and processing systems is primarily a function of gathering rate, processing value,
system reliability, fuel rate, system run time, construction cycle time and prices at the wellhead. Enable's gathering and
processing systems compete with gatherers and processors of all types and sizes, including those affiliated with various
producers, other major pipeline companies and various independent midstream entities. In the process of selling NGLs, Enable
competes against other natural gas processors extracting and selling NGLs. Enable's primary competitors are other midstream
companies who are active in the regions where Enable operates.
While the results of Enable's gathering and processing segment are not materially affected by seasonality, from time to
time, its operations and construction of assets can be impacted by inclement weather.
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Transportation and Storage
Enable owns and operates interstate and intrastate natural gas transportation and storage systems primarily across nine
states. Enable's transportation and storage systems consist primarily of its interstate systems, EGT and MRT, its intrastate
system, EOIT, and its investment in SESH. Enable's transportation and storage assets transport natural gas from areas of
production and interconnected pipelines to power plants, LDCs and industrial end users as well as interconnected pipelines for
delivery to additional markets. Enable's transportation and storage assets also provide facilities where natural gas can be stored
by customers.
Enable's interstate and intrastate natural gas transportation and storage systems generate revenue primarily by serving
large natural gas and electric utilities, as well as natural gas producers, industrial end-users and natural gas marketers. For the
year ended December 31, 2020, approximately 28 percent of EGT's service revenue was attributable to contracts with one
customer, CenterPoint. As of December 31, 2020, EGT's transportation contracts representing three percent, eight percent and
89 percent of CenterPoint's firm transportation capacity are scheduled to expire in 2021, 2024 and 2030, respectively. EGT's
firm storage contracts representing 33 percent and 67 percent of CenterPoint's firm storage capacity are scheduled to expire in
2021 and 2030, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately 63 percent of MRT's service revenue was attributable to
contracts with one customer, Spire Inc. MRT's firm transportation contracts representing 63 percent, 24 percent and 12 percent
of Spire Inc.'s firm transportation capacity are scheduled to expire in 2024, 2025 and 2026, respectively. All of Spire Inc.'s firm
storage contracts are scheduled to expire in 2024.
Enable's EGT, MRT and SESH transportation and storage services are typically provided under firm, fee-based
transportation and storage agreements, with rates and terms of service regulated by the FERC. EOIT provides fee-based firm
and interruptible transportation and storage services on both an intrastate and interstate basis.
Enable's interstate and intrastate pipelines compete with a variety of other interstate and intrastate pipelines in
providing transportation and storage services within its operating areas. Enable's management views the principal elements of
competition for their natural gas transportation and storage systems primarily as a function of rates, terms of services, flexibility
and reliability.
Customer demand for natural gas transportation and storage services on EGT and MRT is usually higher during the
winter, primarily due to LDC demand to serve residential and commercial natural gas requirements. Customer demand for
natural gas transportation and storage services on EOIT and SESH is usually higher during the summer, primarily due to
electric utility demand for natural gas.
Environmental Matters
General
The activities of the Registrants are subject to numerous stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and
regulations governing environmental protection. These laws and regulations can change, restrict or otherwise impact the
Registrants' business activities in many ways, including the handling or disposal of waste material, planning for future
construction activities to avoid or mitigate harm to threatened or endangered species and requiring the installation and operation
of emissions or pollution control equipment. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result in the assessment of
administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining future
operations. Management believes that all of the Registrants' operations are in substantial compliance with current federal, state
and local environmental standards.
In the past, environmental regulation caused the Registrants to incur significant costs because the trend was to place
more and more restrictions and limitations on the Registrants' activities. Under the Trump administration, the trend in
environmental regulation was to delay, reverse or repeal some of these restrictions and generally not to adopt new, more
stringent regulations. The Biden administration has announced that it plans to reverse many of the Trump administration's
environmental policies, including issuance of an executive order that instructs the EPA and other executive agencies to review
certain rules that affect the Registrants. The Registrants are monitoring these actions in an effort to understand the likely
stringency of future rules. In the meantime, the Registrants continue to have obligations to take or complete action under current
environmental rules.
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Management continues to evaluate the Registrants' compliance with existing and proposed environmental legislation
and regulations and implement appropriate environmental programs in a competitive market but at the current time, based on
existing rules, does not expect capital expenditures for environmental control facilities to be material for 2021 or 2022. For
further discussion of environmental matters and capital expenditures related to environmental factors that may affect the
Registrants, see "2020 Capital Requirements, Sources of Financing and Financing Activities," "Future Capital Requirements"
and "Environmental Laws and Regulations" within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations."
Human Capital Management
Our company fulfills a critical role in the nation's electric utility and, through our equity investment in Enable, natural
gas midstream pipeline infrastructure. In order to do so, we believe we need to attract, retain and develop a high quality, diverse
workforce and create a safe, inclusive and productive work environment for everyone. We believe that our company's core
values and beliefs, including those of respect, diversity and inclusion, and safety, serve as a foundation for our relationships
with our employees, who we refer to internally as "members" of the Registrants. These core values and beliefs are reinforced to
all employees at the time of hire, annually through a review of our Code of Ethics and periodically through small and large
group meetings. At December 31, 2020, OGE Energy had 2,360 employees, of which 1,872 are OG&E employees.
To help us attract and retain the most qualified individuals for our businesses, we provide a combination of strong
compensation and health and welfare benefit offerings, growth and development opportunities and various retirement plan
options. Our employees are also offered paid volunteer leave every year, which is intended to further enrich both their lives and
the lives in the communities we serve. Many of the positions in our companies are highly specialized, so having appropriate
training and succession planning is critical to business continuity and competitiveness. We provide leadership and career
development opportunities, including internal and external training as well as tuition reimbursement, to invest in the next
generation of leaders for our company. We target an average of 30-35 hours of training per employee annually, which aligns
with the benchmark published annually by the American Society of Training and Development. This comprehensive investment
in our employees contributes to an average tenure of 15 years and a voluntary turnover rate of 5.7 percent for 2020, which is 0.5
percent lower than the average voluntary turnover rate compared to our industry benchmark (the PwC Saratoga Benchmarking
Service).
Employee safety is paramount in the work we perform. One of our company core beliefs is to "Live Safely," which to
us means that we protect ourselves and others from injury by constant engagement, "always living safely." Our goal is to have
zero safety incidents every year, and we educate all of our employees on our incident and injury free workplace vision. We
report and analyze all near misses and incidents to understand the causal factors and associated corrective actions necessary to
reduce the likelihood of reoccurrence. We share what we have learned company-wide to provide real-time learning
opportunities for all employees. We track our safety performance and benchmark ourselves to our peer group, the Southeast
Electric Exchange. For 2020, our Southeast Electric Exchange incident rate was 0.47, which represented a 40 percent
improvement from our 2019 performance. The incident rate is calculated by counting the actual number of injuries and illnesses
per 100 employees' standard base labor hours divided by the actual number of hours employees worked. In comparison to our
peer group, our five year average safety performance placed us in the top quartile. We continue to analyze trends and engage in
discussions with our employees, creating a dialogue to enhance safety performance and work towards our incident and injuryfree workplace. Further discussion of the steps we are taking to help ensure employee safety during the COVID-19 pandemic
can be found in "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis – Recent Developments – COVID-19."
We also strive to reinforce the belief that our employees are one of our greatest assets by creating a culture of respect
throughout the company. We do this by, among other things, encouraging employees to treat others justly and considering their
views in the decisions we make. We believe diversity and inclusion means embracing the uniqueness of each individual to
make us a stronger and more resourceful organization while serving and supporting the diverse communities where we live and
work. We are focused on creating a more diverse and inclusive workforce, particularly related to minority hiring. We have
formed relationships with diverse high schools in our service territory to introduce their students to potential jobs in the energy
industry and career paths to OGE Energy and have worked with technical schools to recruit diverse students to their programs,
which can lead to potential employment for our operational positions. We have also formed relationships with universities to
provide scholarships to students with diverse backgrounds. Additionally, we have focused on hiring individuals transitioning
out of the military. We are also focused on the inclusion of women in leadership positions. For example, female representation
among our officers and management-level directors is currently at 27 percent, which is up eight percent compared to five years
ago. As some of our more tenured employees retire (we average approximately 85 to 90 retirements, or four percent of our
workforce, per year), opportunities are created to promote or attract and hire additional individuals with diverse backgrounds.
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Another initiative intended to promote inclusion and member development is the establishment of Employee Resource Groups
at the company, and our newly appointed Director of Ethics, Equity, and Inclusion is leading this effort.
Information About the Registrants' Executive Officers
The following table presents the names, titles and business experience for the most recent five years for those persons
serving as Executive Officers of the Registrants as of February 24, 2021:
Name
Sean Trauschke

Age
Current Title and Business Experience
53 2016 - Present: Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of OGE Energy
Corp.
W. Bryan Buckler
48 2021:
Chief Financial Officer of OGE Energy Corp.
2019 - 2020:
Vice President of Investor Relations - Duke Energy Corporation
2016 - 2019:
Director of Financial Planning and Analysis - Duke Energy Corporation
Sarah R. Stafford
39 2018 - Present: Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of OGE Energy Corp.
2016 - 2018:
Accounting Research Officer of OGE Energy Corp.
2016:
Senior Manager - Ernst & Young, LLP
Scott A. Briggs
49 2020 - Present: Vice President - Human Resources of OG&E
2019 - 2020:
Managing Director Human Resources of OG&E
2016 - 2018:
Chief Operating Officer of The Oklahoma Publishing Co., d/b/a The
Oklahoma Media Company
Robert J. Burch
58 2020 - Present: Vice President - Utility Technical Services of OG&E
2018 - 2020:
Managing Director Utility Technical Services of OG&E
2016 - 2018:
Director Power Supply Services of OG&E
Andrea M. Dennis
44 2019 - Present: Vice President - Transmission and Distribution Operations of OG&E
2019:
Managing Director Transmission and Distribution Operations of OG&E
2016 - 2019:
Director System Operations of OG&E
Patricia D. Horn
62 2016 - Present: Vice President - Governance and Corporate Secretary of OGE Energy Corp.
Donnie O. Jones
54 2019 - Present: Vice President - Utility Operations of OG&E
2016 - 2019:
Vice President - Power Supply Operations of OG&E
Cristina F. McQuistion 56 2020 - Present: Vice President - Corporate Responsibility and Stewardship of OGE Energy
Corp.
2017 - 2020:
Vice President - Chief Information Officer of OG&E
2016 - 2017:
Vice President - Chief Information Officer and Utility Strategy of OG&E
Kenneth A. Miller
54 2019 - Present: Vice President - Regulatory and Legislative Affairs of OG&E
2016 - 2018:
State Treasurer of Oklahoma
David A. Parker
44 2020 - Present: Vice President - Technology, Data and Security of OG&E
2019 - 2020:
Director Enterprise Security & Risk of OGE Energy Corp.
2016 - 2019:
Director of Internal Audit of OGE Energy Corp.
Matthew J. Schuermann 41 2020 - Present: Vice President - Power Supply Operations of OG&E
2019 - 2020:
Managing Director Power Plant Operations of OG&E
2016 - 2019:
Special Projects Director of OG&E
William H. Sultemeier
53 2017 - Present: General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer of OGE Energy Corp.
2016:
Partner - Jones Day
Charles B. Walworth
46 2016 - Present: Treasurer of OGE Energy Corp.
No family relationship exists between any of the Executive Officers of the Registrants. Messrs. Trauschke, Buckler,
Sultemeier, Walworth and Mses. Horn, McQuistion and Stafford are also officers of OG&E. Each Executive Officer is to hold
office until the Board of Directors meeting following the next Annual Meeting of Shareholders, currently scheduled for
May 20, 2021.

14

Mr. Trauschke is a member of the Board of Directors of Enable GP, LLC, the general partner of Enable. In October
2020, Ms. Stafford and Mr. Walworth were appointed as alternate directors of the Board of Enable GP, LLC.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
In the discussion of risk factors set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms "we," "our" and "us"
refer to the Registrants. In addition to the other information in this Form 10-K and other documents filed by us and/or our
subsidiaries with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time, the following factors should be carefully
considered in evaluating OGE Energy and its subsidiaries. Such factors could affect actual results and cause results to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of us or our subsidiaries. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently view as immaterial may also impair our business
operations.
The Registrants are subject to a variety of risks which can be classified as regulatory, operational, financial and
general. Risk factors of OG&E are also risk factors of OGE Energy. OGE Energy also is subject to risks associated with its
investment in Enable.
REGULATORY RISKS
The Registrants' profitability depends to a large extent on the ability of OG&E to fully recover its costs, including its cost of
capital, from its customers in a timely manner, and there may be changes in the regulatory environment that impair its
ability to recover costs from its customers.
OG&E is subject to comprehensive regulation by several federal and state utility regulatory agencies, which
significantly influences its operating environment and its ability to fully recover its costs, including its cost of capital, from
utility customers. Recoverability of any under recovered amounts from OG&E's customers due to a rise in fuel costs is a
significant risk, such as experienced in February 2021 due to the unprecedented, prolonged, cold spell that resulted in winter
record winter peak demand for electricity in OG&E's service territory and extreme natural gas and purchased power prices. The
utility commissions in the states where OG&E operates regulate many aspects of its utility operations including siting and
construction of facilities, customer service and the rates that OG&E can charge customers. The profitability of the utility
operations is dependent on OG&E's ability to fully recover costs related to providing energy and utility services to its customers
in a timely manner. Any failure to obtain utility commission approval to increase rates to fully recover costs, or a delay in the
receipt of such approval, could have an adverse impact on OG&E's results of operations. In addition, OG&E's jurisdictions have
fuel adjustment clauses that permit OG&E to recover fuel costs through rates without a general rate review, subject to a later
determination that such fuel costs were prudently incurred. If the state regulatory commissions determine that the fuel costs
were not prudently incurred, recovery could be disallowed. See Note 16 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" for further discussion of the significant fuel and purchased power costs incurred during the February 2021
weather event and the related regulatory filing with the OCC.
In recent years, the regulatory environments in which OG&E operates have received an increased amount of
attention. It is possible that there could be changes in the regulatory environment that would impair OG&E's ability to fully
recover costs historically paid by OG&E's customers. State utility commissions generally possess broad powers to ensure that
the needs of the utility customers are being met. OG&E cannot assure that the OCC, APSC and the FERC will grant rate
increases in the future or in the amounts requested, and they could instead lower OG&E's rates.
The Registrants are unable to predict the impact on their operating results from future regulatory activities of any of
the agencies that regulate OG&E. Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could have an adverse
impact on the Registrants' results of operations.
OG&E's rates are subject to rate regulation by the states of Oklahoma and Arkansas, as well as by a federal agency, whose
regulatory paradigms and goals may not be consistent.
OG&E is a vertically integrated electric utility. Most of its revenue results from the sale of electricity to retail
customers subject to bundled rates that are approved by the applicable state utility commission.
OG&E operates in Oklahoma and western Arkansas and is subject to rate regulation by the OCC and the APSC, in
addition to FERC regulation of its transmission activities and any wholesale sales. Exposure to inconsistent state and federal
regulatory standards may limit our ability to operate profitably. Further alteration of the regulatory landscape in which we
operate, including a change in our authorized return on equity, may harm our financial position and results of operations.
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Costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations are significant, and the cost of compliance with future
environmental laws and regulations may adversely affect our results of operations, financial position or liquidity.
We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules and regulations relating to air quality,
water quality, waste management, wildlife conservation, natural resources and health and safety that could, among other things,
restrict or limit the output of certain facilities or the use of certain fuels required for the production of electricity and/or require
additional pollution control equipment and otherwise increase costs. There are significant capital, operating and other costs
associated with compliance with these environmental statutes, rules and regulations and those costs may be even more
significant in the future.
In response to recent regulatory and judicial decisions and international accords, emissions of greenhouse gases
including, most significantly, CO2, could be restricted in the future as a result of federal or state legal requirements or litigation
relating to greenhouse gas emissions. No rules are currently in effect that require us to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions, but
if such rules were to become effective, they could result in significant additional compliance costs that would affect our future
financial position, results of operations and cash flows if such costs are not recovered through regulated rates.
There is inherent risk of the incurrence of environmental costs and liabilities in our operations and historical industry
practices. These activities are subject to stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and regulations that can restrict or
impact OG&E's business activities in many ways, such as restricting the way OG&E can handle or dispose of its wastes or
requiring remedial action to mitigate pollution conditions that may be caused by its operations or that are attributable to former
operators. OG&E may be unable to recover these costs from insurance or other regulatory mechanisms. We expect that the
Biden administration will enact stricter laws, regulations and enforcement policies that could significantly increase compliance
costs and the cost of any remediation that may become necessary. If regulations are enacted regarding any of our generating
units, it could potentially result in stranded assets.
For further discussion of environmental matters that may affect the Registrants, see "Environmental Laws and
Regulations" within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."
We may not be able to recover the costs of our substantial investments in capital improvements and additions.
Our business plan calls for extensive investments in capital improvements and additions in OG&E, including
modernizing existing infrastructure as well as other initiatives. Significant portions of OG&E's facilities were constructed many
years ago. Older generation equipment, even if maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may require
significant capital expenditures to maintain efficiency, to comply with environmental requirements or to provide reliable
operations. OG&E currently provides service at rates approved by one or more regulatory commissions. If these regulatory
commissions do not approve adjustments to the rates OG&E charges, it would not be able to recover the costs associated with
its planned extensive investment. This could adversely affect the Registrants' financial position and results of operations. While
OG&E may seek to limit the impact of any denied recovery by attempting to reduce the scope of its capital investment, there
can be no assurance as to the effectiveness of any such mitigation efforts, particularly with respect to previously incurred costs
and commitments.
The regional power market in which OG&E operates has changing transmission regulatory structures, which may affect the
transmission assets and related revenues and expenses.
OG&E currently owns and operates transmission and generation facilities as part of a vertically integrated utility.
OG&E is a member of the SPP regional transmission organization and has transferred operational authority (but not ownership)
of OG&E's transmission facilities to the SPP. The SPP has implemented regional day ahead and real-time markets for energy
and operating reserves, as well as associated transmission congestion rights. Collectively, the three markets operate together
under the global name, SPP Integrated Marketplace. OG&E represents owned and contracted generation assets and customer
load in the SPP Integrated Marketplace for the sole benefit of its customers. OG&E has not participated in the SPP Integrated
Marketplace for any speculative trading activities. We record the SPP Integrated Marketplace transactions as sales or purchases
with results reported as Revenues from Contracts with Customers or Cost of Sales in its financial statements. Our revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities may be adversely affected by changes in the organization, operation and regulation of the SPP
Integrated Marketplace by the FERC or the SPP.
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Increased competition resulting from efforts to restructure utility and energy markets could have a significant financial
impact on us and consequently impact our revenue.
We have been and will continue to be affected by competitive changes to the utility and energy industries. Significant
changes have occurred and additional changes have been proposed to the wholesale electric market. Although retail
restructuring efforts in Oklahoma and Arkansas have been postponed for the time being, if such efforts were renewed, retail
competition and the unbundling of regulated energy service could have a significant financial impact on us due to possible
impairments of assets, a loss of retail customers, impact profit margins and/or increased costs of capital. Any such restructuring
could have a significant impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We cannot predict when we will
be subject to changes in legislation or regulation, nor can we predict the impact of these changes on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
We are subject to substantial utility and energy regulation by governmental agencies. Compliance with current and future
utility and energy regulatory requirements and procurement of necessary approvals, permits and certifications may result in
significant costs to us.
We are subject to substantial regulation from federal, state and local regulatory agencies. We are required to comply
with numerous laws and regulations and to obtain permits, approvals and certifications from the governmental agencies that
regulate various aspects of our businesses, including customer rates, service regulations, retail service territories, sales of
securities, asset acquisitions and sales, accounting policies and practices and the operation of generating facilities. We believe
the necessary permits, approvals and certificates have been obtained for our existing operations and that our business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, we are unable to predict the impact on our operating results from
future regulatory activities of these agencies.
The NERC is responsible for the development and enforcement of mandatory reliability and cyber security standards
for the wholesale electric power system. OG&E's plan is to comply with all applicable standards and to expediently correct a
violation should it occur. As one of OG&E's regulators, the NERC has comprehensive regulations and standards related to the
reliability and security of our operating systems and is continuously developing additional mandatory compliance requirements
for the utility industry. The increasing development of NERC rules and standards will increase compliance costs and our
exposure for potential violations of these standards.
OPERATIONAL RISKS
Our results of operations may be impacted by disruptions to fuel supply or the electric grid that are beyond our control.
We are exposed to risks related to performance of contractual obligations by our suppliers. We are dependent on coal
and natural gas for much of our electric generating capacity. We rely on suppliers to deliver coal and natural gas in accordance
with short- and long-term contracts. We have certain supply contracts in place; however, there can be no assurance that the
counterparties to these agreements will fulfill their obligations to supply coal and natural gas to us. The suppliers under these
agreements may experience financial or technical problems that inhibit their ability to fulfill their obligations to us. In addition,
the suppliers under these agreements may not be required to supply coal and natural gas to us under certain circumstances, such
as in the event of a natural disaster. Deliveries may be subject to short-term interruptions or reductions due to various factors,
including transportation problems, weather and availability of equipment. Failure or delay by our suppliers of coal and natural
gas deliveries could disrupt our ability to deliver electricity and require us to incur additional expenses to meet the needs of our
customers.
Also, because our generation and transmission systems are part of an interconnected regional grid, we face the risk of
possible loss of business due to a disruption or black-out caused by an event such as a severe storm, generator or transmission
facility outage on a neighboring system or the actions of a neighboring utility. Any such disruption could result in a significant
decrease in revenues and significant additional costs to repair assets, which could have a material adverse impact on our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
OG&E's electric generation, transmission and distribution assets are subject to operational risks that could result in
unscheduled plant outages, unanticipated operation and maintenance expenses, increased purchase power costs, accidents
and third-party liability.
OG&E owns and operates coal-fired, natural gas-fired, wind-powered and solar-powered generating assets. Operation
of electric generation, transmission and distribution assets involves risks that can adversely affect energy output and efficiency
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levels or that could result in loss of human life, significant damage to property, environmental pollution and impairment of
OG&E's operations. Included among these risks are:
•
•
•
•
•

increased prices for fuel and fuel transportation as existing contracts expire;
facility shutdowns due to a breakdown or failure of equipment or processes or interruptions in fuel supply;
operator error or safety related stoppages;
disruptions in the delivery of electricity; and
catastrophic events such as fires, explosions, tornadoes, floods, earthquakes or other similar occurrences.

The occurrence of any of these events, if not fully covered by insurance, could have a material effect on our financial
position and results of operations. Further, when unplanned maintenance work is required on power plants or other equipment,
OG&E will not only incur unexpected maintenance expenses, but it may also have to make spot market purchases of
replacement electricity that could exceed OG&E's costs of generation or be forced to retire a generation unit if the cost or
timing of the maintenance is not reasonable and prudent. If OG&E is unable to recover any of these increased costs in rates, it
could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.
Changes in technology, regulatory policies and customer electricity consumption may cause our assets to be less competitive
and impact our results of operations.
OG&E primarily generates electricity at large central facilities. This method typically results in economies of scale and
lower costs than newer technologies such as fuel cells, microturbines, windmills and photovoltaic solar cells. It is possible that
advances in technologies or changes in regulatory policies will reduce costs of new technology to levels that are equal to or
below that of most central station electricity production, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
OG&E's widespread use of Smart Grid technology allowing for two-way communications between the utility and its customers
could enable the entry of technology companies into the interface between OG&E and its customers, resulting in unpredictable
effects on our current business.
Reductions in customer electricity consumption, thereby reducing utility electric sales, could result from increased
deployment of renewable energy technologies as well as increased efficiency of household appliances, among other general
efficiency gains in technology. However, this potential reduction in load would not reduce our need for ongoing investments in
our infrastructure to reliably serve our customers. Continued utility infrastructure investment without increased electricity sales
could cause increased rates for customers, potentially resulting in further reductions in electricity sales and reduced
profitability.
Weather conditions such as tornadoes, thunderstorms, ice storms, wind storms, flooding, earthquakes, prolonged droughts
and the occurrence of wildfires, as well as seasonal temperature variations may adversely affect our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows.
Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electric power. In OG&E's service area, demand for power peaks
during the hot summer months, with market prices also typically peaking at that time. As a result, overall operating results may
fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly basis. In addition, we have historically sold less power, and consequently received less
revenue, when weather conditions are milder. Unusually mild weather in the future could reduce our revenues, net income,
available cash and borrowing ability. Severe weather, such as tornadoes, thunderstorms, ice storms, wind storms, flooding,
earthquakes, prolonged droughts and the occurrence of wildfires, may cause outages and property damage which may require
us to incur additional costs that are generally not insured and that may not be recoverable from customers. The effect of the
failure of our facilities to operate as planned, as described above, would be particularly burdensome during a peak demand
period. In addition, prolonged droughts could cause a lack of sufficient water for use in cooling during the electricity generating
process. Additionally, if climate change exacerbates physical changes in weather, operations may be impacted as discussed
above. OG&E can incur significant restoration costs as a result of these weather events. If OG&E is unable to recover any of
these increased costs in rates, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.
FINANCIAL RISKS
Market performance, increased retirements, changes in retirement plan regulations and increasing costs associated with our
Pension Plan, health care plans and other employee-related benefits may adversely affect our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
We have a Pension Plan that covers a significant amount of our employees hired before December 1, 2009. We also
have defined benefit postretirement plans that cover a significant amount of our employees hired prior to February 1,
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2000. Assumptions related to future costs, returns on investments, interest rates and other actuarial assumptions with respect to
the defined benefit retirement and postretirement plans have a significant impact on our results of operations and funding
requirements. Based on our assumptions at December 31, 2020, we expect to make future contributions to maintain required
funding levels. It has been our practice to also make voluntary contributions to maintain more prudent funding levels than
minimally required. We may continue to make voluntary contributions in the future. These amounts are estimates and may
change based on actual stock market performance, changes in interest rates and any changes in governmental regulations.
If the employees who participate in the Pension Plan retire when they become eligible for retirement over the next
several years, or if our plan experiences adverse market returns on its investments, or if interest rates materially fall, our pension
expense and contributions to the plans could rise substantially over historical levels. The timing and number of employees
retiring and selecting the lump-sum payment option could result in pension settlement charges that could materially affect our
results of operations if we are unable to recover these costs through our electric rates. In addition, assumptions related to future
costs, returns on investments, interest rates and other actuarial assumptions, including projected retirements, have a significant
impact on our financial position and results of operations. Those factors are outside of our control.
In addition to the costs of our Pension Plan, the costs of providing health care benefits to our employees and retirees
have increased in recent years. We believe that our employee benefit costs, including costs related to health care plans for our
employees, will continue to rise. The increasing costs and funding requirements with our Pension Plan, health care plans and
other employee benefits may adversely affect our financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
Finally, OGE Energy provides retirement benefits and retiree health care benefits to 76 employees seconded to Enable.
If the seconding agreement was terminated, and those employees were no longer employed by OGE Energy, and lump sum
payments were made to those employees, OGE Energy would recognize a settlement or curtailment of the pension/retiree health
care charges, which would increase expense at OGE Energy by $19.0 million. Settlement and curtailment charges associated
with the Enable seconded employees are not reimbursable to OGE Energy by Enable. The seconding agreement can be
terminated by mutual agreement of OGE Energy and Enable or solely by OGE Energy upon 120 days' notice. Assuming the
pending merger between Enable and Energy Transfer is completed, the seconding agreement will be terminated.
OGE Energy is a holding company with its primary assets being investments in its subsidiary and equity investments.
OGE Energy is a holding company and thus its investments in its subsidiary and unconsolidated affiliate, accounted
for under the equity method, are its primary assets. Substantially all of OGE Energy's operations are conducted by its subsidiary
and unconsolidated affiliate. Consequently, OGE Energy's operating cash flow and its ability to pay dividends and service its
indebtedness utilizes the operating cash flow of its subsidiary and unconsolidated affiliate and the payment of funds by them to
OGE Energy in the form of dividends or distributions. At December 31, 2020, OGE Energy and OG&E had outstanding
indebtedness and other liabilities of $7.1 billion. OGE Energy's subsidiary, OG&E, and unconsolidated affiliate, Enable, are
separate legal entities that have no obligation to pay any amounts due on OGE Energy's indebtedness or to make any funds
available for that purpose, whether by dividends or otherwise. In addition, their ability to pay dividends to OGE Energy
depends on any statutory and contractual restrictions that may be applicable to such subsidiary, which may include
requirements to maintain minimum levels of working capital and other assets. Claims of creditors, including general creditors,
of OGE Energy's subsidiary or unconsolidated affiliate on their respective assets will generally have priority over OGE Energy
claims (except to the extent that OGE Energy may be a creditor of the subsidiaries and its claims are recognized) and claims by
OGE Energy shareholders.
In addition, as discussed above, OG&E is regulated by state utility commissions in Oklahoma and Arkansas as well as
a federal regulatory agency which generally possess broad powers to ensure that the needs of the utility customers are being
met. To the extent that the state commissions or federal regulatory agency attempt to impose restrictions on the ability of
OG&E to pay dividends to OGE Energy, it could adversely affect its ability to continue to pay dividends.
RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH OGE ENERGY'S INVESTMENT IN ENABLE
OGE Energy does not control Enable and therefore is not able to cause or prevent certain actions by Enable. The general
partnership of Enable is equally controlled by OGE Energy and CenterPoint.
Enable has its own governing board; therefore, OGE Energy is not able to exercise control over Enable. Accordingly,
OGE Energy is unable to cause or prevent certain actions by Enable. Further, OGE Energy cannot control the actions of the
other general partner, CenterPoint. OGE Energy's interests may not align with those of CenterPoint, and this lack of control
could adversely impact its investment in Enable.
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As discussed in "Item 1. Business," in February 2021, Enable entered into a definitive merger agreement with Energy
Transfer. Assuming the transaction closes, OGE Energy will own approximately three percent of Energy Transfer's outstanding
limited partner units in lieu of the 25.5 percent interest in Enable that it currently owns, which would result in OGE Energy
having less control over the activities of its expected investment in Energy Transfer. Further, although OGE Energy does not
control Enable, OGE Energy has a 50 percent interest in Enable's general partner and is able to designate two directors for the
Enable board. Following completion of the merger, OGE Energy will not have any interest in the general partner and will not
have any designees on the Energy Transfer board. Accordingly, OGE Energy will be unable to cause, prevent or influence
actions by Energy Transfer.
A portion of OGE Energy's earnings and operating cash flows are based on the performance of Enable. If any of the
following risks were to occur, OGE Energy's business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.
OGE Energy's operating cash flow is derived partially from cash distributions it receives from Enable.
OGE Energy's operating cash flow is derived partially from cash distributions it receives from Enable. The amount of
cash Enable can distribute on its units principally depends upon the amount of cash generated from its operations, which will
fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on, among other things:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the fees and gross margins it realizes with respect to the volume of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil that it handles;
the prices of, levels of production of, and demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil;
the volume of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil it gathers, compresses, treats, dehydrates, processes, fractionates,
transports and stores;
the relationship among prices for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil;
cash calls and settlements of hedging positions;
margin requirements on open price risk management assets and liabilities;
the level of competition from other companies offering midstream services;
adverse effects of governmental and environmental regulation;
the level of its operation and maintenance expenses and general and administrative costs; and
prevailing economic conditions.

In addition, the actual amount of cash Enable will have available for distribution will depend on other factors,
including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the level and timing of capital expenditures it makes;
the cost of acquisitions;
its debt service requirements and other liabilities;
fluctuations in working capital needs;
its ability to borrow funds and access capital markets;
restrictions contained in its debt agreements;
the amount of cash reserves established by its general partner;
distributions paid on its Series A Preferred Units; and
other business risks affecting its cash levels.

Enable's contracts are subject to renewal risks.
As contracts with Enable's existing suppliers and customers expire, Enable generally seeks to negotiate extensions or
renewals of those contracts or enters into new contracts with other suppliers and customers. Enable may be unable to extend or
renew existing contracts or enter into new contracts on favorable commercial terms, if at all. Depending on prevailing market
conditions at the time of an extension or renewal, gathering and processing customers with fee-based contracts may desire to
enter into contracts under different fee arrangements, and gathering and processing customers with contracts that contain
minimum volume commitments may desire to enter into contracts without minimum volume commitments. Likewise, Enable's
transportation and storage customers may choose not to extend or renew expiring contracts based on the economics of the
related areas of production. To the extent Enable is unable to renew or replace its expiring contracts on terms that are favorable
to Enable, if at all, or successfully manage its overall contract mix over time, its financial position, results of operations and
ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected.
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The businesses of Enable are dependent, in part, on the drilling and production decisions of others. In response to sharp
declines in demand for oil and gas as well as commodity prices resulting from the economic impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, many producers have significantly reduced previously anticipated drilling and production activities and may
make additional reductions in the future.
The businesses of Enable are dependent on the drilling and production of natural gas and crude oil. Enable has no
control over the level of drilling activity in its areas of operation, or the amount of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil reserves
associated with wells connected to its systems, or the amount of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil produced from the wells
connected to its systems. In addition, as the rate at which production from wells currently connected to its system naturally
declines over time, its gross margin associated with those wells will also decline. To maintain or increase throughput levels on
its gathering and transportation systems and the asset utilization rates at its natural gas processing plants, its customers must
continually obtain new natural gas, NGLs and crude oil supplies. Drilling activity in the areas served by our systems
significantly impacts Enable's ability to obtain new volumes of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil on its systems. If Enable is not
able to obtain new volumes of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil to replace the natural decline in volumes from existing wells,
throughput on its gathering, processing, transportation and storage facilities would decline, which could adversely affect its
financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy. Enable has
no control over producers or their drilling and production decisions, which are affected by, among other things:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the availability and cost of capital;
prevailing and projected commodity prices, including the prices of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil;
demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil;
levels of reserves;
geological considerations;
global or national health events, including epidemics and pandemics such as the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic;
environmental or other governmental regulations, including the availability of drilling permits, the regulation of
hydraulic fracturing and the regulation of air emissions; and
the availability of drilling rigs and other costs of production and equipment.

Fluctuations in energy prices can also greatly affect the development of new natural gas, NGLs and crude oil reserves.
Drilling and production activity generally decreases as commodity prices decrease. In general terms, the prices of natural gas,
NGLs, crude oil and other hydrocarbon products fluctuate in response to changes in supply and demand, market uncertainty and
a variety of additional factors that are beyond its control. Because of these and other factors, even if new reserves are known to
exist in areas served by Enable's assets, producers may choose not to develop those reserves. Declines in natural gas, NGLs or
crude oil prices can have a negative impact on exploration, development and production activity and, if sustained, could lead to
decreases in such activity. For instance, the recent COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected Enable's business by (i)
reducing the demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil due to reduced global and national economic activity, leading to
significantly lower prices for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil, (ii) impairing the supply chain of certain Enable customers for
which it provides gathering and processing services, which could lead to further reduction of the utilization of Enable's systems,
and (iii) reducing producer activity across Enable's footprint, which is expected to continue to result in reduced utilization of its
services. Enable currently cannot predict the duration or magnitude of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on supply and
demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil or the exploration, development and production activity of the producers across its
areas of operation. In addition, concerns about global economic growth, as well as uncertainty regarding the timing, pace and
extent of an economic recovery in the U.S. and abroad, have had a significant adverse impact on global financial markets and
commodity prices, and sustained low natural gas, NGLs or crude oil prices could also lead producers to shut in production from
their existing wells. Sustained reductions in exploration or production activity in its areas of operation could lead to further
reductions in the utilization of its systems, which could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to
make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy, and result in the impairment of its assets.
In addition, it may be more difficult to maintain or increase the current volumes on its gathering systems and in its
processing plants, as several of the formations in the unconventional resource plays in which Enable operates generally have
higher initial production rates and steeper production decline curves than wells in more conventional basins. Should Enable
determine that the economics of its gathering assets do not justify the capital expenditures needed to grow or maintain volumes
associated therewith, it may reduce such capital expenditures, which could cause revenues associated with these assets to
decline over time.
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Enable's industry is highly competitive and increased competitive pressure could adversely affect its financial position,
results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable competes with other midstream service providers in its areas of operation. The principal elements of
competition for both gathering and processing services and transportation and storage services are rates, terms of service,
flexibility and reliability. Competitors include other midstream service providers, including those affiliated with producers, that
may have greater financial resources or greater access to new volumes of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil than Enable does.
Some of these competitors may create additional competition by expanding existing or constructing new gathering, processing,
transportation and storage systems. Enable's producer customers may become competitors by developing their own midstream
systems. Excess gathering, processing, transportation or storage capacity in the areas Enable serves may increase competitive
pressure by decreasing rates and adversely impact the ability to renew existing or enter into new contracts. Natural gas, NGLs
and crude oil used as or to produce fuel compete with other forms of energy, including electricity and coal. Increased demand
for one form of energy over another could lead to a reduction in demand for associated midstream services. All of these
competitive pressures could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to
unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Natural gas, NGLs and crude oil prices are volatile, and changes in these prices could adversely affect Enable's financial
position, results of operations and its ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy. Prices for all
three of these commodities have been adversely affected by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, with crude oil prices
reaching historic lows in April 2020.
Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to OGE Energy could be
negatively affected by adverse changes in the prices of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil depending on factors that are beyond its
control. These factors include demand for these commodities, which fluctuates with changes in market and economic conditions
and other factors, including the impact of seasonality and weather, general economic conditions, the level of domestic and
offshore natural gas production and consumption, the availability of imported natural gas, liquefied natural gas, NGLs and
crude oil, actions taken by foreign natural gas and oil producing nations, the availability of local, intrastate and interstate
transportation systems, the availability and marketing of competitive fuels, the impact of energy conservation efforts,
technological advances affecting energy consumption, global or national health concerns and the extent of governmental
regulation and taxation. For example, the price of, and demand for, natural gas, NGLs and crude oil declined significantly in
response to the ongoing spread and economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, including significant governmental measures
being implemented to control the spread of the virus, including quarantines, travel restrictions and business shutdowns and
Russia's March 2020 rejection of a plan backed by Saudi Arabia and other members of OPEC to reduce production of crude oil
in response to declining global demand. Following the rejection of the plan, Saudi Arabia significantly reduced the prices at
which it sells crude oil, and both Saudi Arabia and Russia announced plans to increase production. While a coalition of 23
nations led by Saudi Arabia and Russia subsequently agreed to reduce production of crude oil by 9.7 million barrels per day in
May and June of 2020, NGLs and crude oil prices have remained depressed. These events, combined with the continuing
COVID-19 pandemic and uncertainty regarding the length of time it will take for the U.S. and the rest of the world to slow the
spread of COVID-19 to the point where applicable authorities are comfortable easing current restrictions on various commercial
and economic activities, contributed to a sharp drop in prices for crude oil in the first and second quarters of 2020.
Enable's natural gas processing arrangements expose Enable to commodity price fluctuations. In 2020, 6 percent, 33
percent and 61 percent of Enable's processing plant inlet volumes consisted of keep-whole arrangements, percent-of-proceeds
or percent-of-liquids and fee-based, respectively. If the price at which Enable sells natural gas or NGLs is less than the cost at
which it purchases natural gas or NGLs under these arrangements, then its financial position, results of operations and ability to
make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected. Enable uses certain derivative
instruments to manage its commodity price risk exposures.
At any given time, Enable's overall portfolio of processing contracts may reflect a net short position in natural gas
(meaning that it is a net buyer of natural gas) and a net long position in NGLs (meaning that it is a net seller of NGLs). As a
result, Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE
Energy, could be adversely affected to the extent the price of NGLs decreases in relation to the price of natural gas.
A pandemic, epidemic or outbreak of an infectious disease, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, may materially adversely
affect Enable's business.
A global or national pandemic, such as COVID-19, may cause disruptions to Enable's business and operational plans,
which may include (i) shortages of employees, (ii) unavailability of contractors and subcontractors, (iii) interruption of supplies
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from third parties upon which Enable relies, (iv) recommendations of, or restrictions imposed by, government and health
authorities, including quarantines, travel restrictions and business shutdowns, to address the COVID-19 pandemic and (v)
restrictions that Enable and its contractors and subcontractors impose, including facility shutdowns, to ensure the safety of
employees and others. For example, many of Enable's employees have been temporarily required to work remotely which may
disrupt Enable's operations or increase the risk of a cybersecurity incident. While it is not possible to predict their extent or
duration, these disruptions may have a material adverse effect on Enable's business, financial condition and results of
operations.
The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and concerns regarding its continued global spread have negatively impacted
domestic and international demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil, which has and could continue to contribute to price
volatility and materially and adversely affect Enable's customers' operations and future production, resulting in less demand for
Enable's services and/or the reduction of commercial opportunities that might otherwise be available to Enable. The effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic have also negatively impacted domestic and international economic conditions, which has and could
continue to contribute to price declines and volatility in the financial markets. While it is not possible to predict their extent or
duration, these economic conditions could materially and adversely affect the availability of debt or equity financing to Enable,
which may result in a significant reduction of Enable's liquidity.
Enable provides certain transportation and storage services under fixed-price "negotiated rate" contracts that are not
subject to adjustment, even if the cost to perform such services exceeds the revenues received from such contracts, and, as a
result, costs could exceed revenues received under such contracts.
Enable has been authorized by the FERC to provide transportation and storage services at its facilities at negotiated
rates. As of December 31, 2020, approximately 37 percent of Enable's aggregate contracted firm transportation capacity on
EGT and MRT and 52 percent of its aggregate contracted firm storage capacity on EGT and MRT was subscribed under such
"negotiated rate" contracts. These contracts generally do not include provisions allowing for adjustment for increased costs due
to inflation, pipeline safety activities or other factors that are not tied to an applicable tracking mechanism authorized by the
FERC. Successful recovery of any shortfall of revenue, representing the difference between "recourse rates" (if higher) and
negotiated rates, is not assured under current FERC policies. If Enable's costs increase and it is not able to recover any shortfall
of revenue associated with its negotiated rate contracts, the cash flow realized by its systems could decrease and, therefore, the
cash Enable has available for distribution to its unitholders, including OGE Energy, could also decrease.
If third-party pipelines and other facilities interconnected to Enable's gathering, processing or transportation facilities
become partially or fully unavailable to Enable for any reason, Enable's financial position, results of operations and its
ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected.
Enable depends upon (i) third-party pipelines to deliver natural gas to, and take natural gas from, its natural gas
transportation systems, (ii) third-party pipelines and other facilities to take crude oil, condensate and produced water from its
crude oil, condensate and produced water gathering systems, and, in some cases, (iii) third-party facilities to process natural gas
from its gathering systems. It also depends on third-party facilities to transport and fractionate NGLs that are delivered to the
third party at the tailgates of its processing plants. Fractionation is the separation of the heterogeneous mixture of extracted
NGLs into individual components for end-use sale. An outage or disruption on certain pipelines or fractionators operated by a
third party could result in the shutdown of certain of Enable's processing plants and gathering systems, and a prolonged outage
or disruption could ultimately result in a reduction in the volume of natural gas Enable gathers and NGLs it is able to produce.
For example, substantially all of the crude oil gathered by Enable's Williston Basin systems is delivered indirectly for transport
to the Dakota Access Pipeline. Although the crude oil gathered by Enable's Williston Basin crude oil systems may also be
delivered for transport to other pipelines, such as BakkenLink Pipeline and Enbridge North Dakota Pipeline, a shutdown of
Dakota Access Pipeline, or any other significant pipeline providing transportation services from the Williston Basin, could
result in the shut-in of wells connected to Enable's Williston Basin crude oil systems if its customers are unable to obtain
sufficient capacity on those pipelines at an effective cost. In July 2020, the federal district court for the District of Columbia
vacated the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers' grant of an easement to Dakota Access Pipeline and issued an order requiring
Dakota Access Pipeline to be shut down and emptied of crude oil by August 5, 2020, pending the completion of an
environmental impact analysis for the pipeline. In January 2021, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the DC Circuit affirmed the
district court's decision that the Corps of Engineers did not follow proper procedures to grant the easement but reversed the
district court's order requiring the pipeline to shut down. It can continue operating while the Corp of Engineers attempts to cure
the defects identified by the district court. Additionally, Enable depends on third parties to provide electricity for compression,
pumping and other operational activities at many of its facilities. Since it does not own or operate any of these third-party
pipelines or other facilities, continuing operation of those facilities is not within its control. If any of these third-party pipelines
or other facilities become partially or fully unavailable to Enable for any reason, its financial position, results of operations and
ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected.
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Enable does not own all of the land on which its pipelines and facilities are located, which could disrupt its operations.
Enable does not own all of the land on which its pipelines and facilities have been constructed, and it is therefore
subject to the possibility of more onerous terms and/or increased costs to retain necessary land use if it does not have valid
rights-of-way or if such rights-of-way lapse or terminate. Enable may obtain the rights to construct and operate its pipelines for
a specific period of time on lands owned by governmental agencies, American Indian tribes or other third parties, including on
American Indian allotments, title to which is held in trust by the U.S. A loss of these rights, through its inability to renew rightof-way contracts or otherwise, could cause a cease in operations temporarily or permanently on the affected land, increase costs
related to the construction and continuing operations elsewhere, and adversely affect its financial position, results of operations
and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
An impairment of long-lived assets, including intangible assets or equity method investments could reduce Enable's
earnings.
Long-lived assets, including intangible assets with finite useful lives and property, plant and equipment, are evaluated
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment of long-lived assets is recognized if the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value. Due to decreases
in natural gas and NGL market prices during 2020 as a result of the economic effects of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic,
together with the dispute over crude oil production levels between Russia and members of OPEC led by Saudi Arabia, as of
March 31, 2020, Enable reassessed the carrying value of the Atoka assets, in which it owns a 50 percent interest in the
consolidated joint venture, which is a component of Enable's gathering and processing segment. Based on forecasted future
undiscounted cash flows, Enable determined that the carrying value of the Atoka assets were not fully recoverable and
recognized a $16 million impairment for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Equity method investments are evaluated for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of the investment might not be recoverable. An impairment of an equity method investment is recognized if the fair value of the
investment as a whole, and not the underlying assets, has declined and the decline is other than temporary. An example of an
investment that Enable accounts for under the equity method is its investment in SESH. If Enable enters into additional joint
ventures, it could have additional equity method investments. At September 30, 2020, Enable estimated the fair value of its
investment in SESH was below the carrying value and concluded the decline in value was other than temporary due to the
expiration of a transportation contract and then current status of renewal negotiations. As a result, Enable recorded a $225
million impairment on its investment in SESH for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Enable could experience future events or circumstances that result in an impairment of long-lived assets, including
intangible assets, equity method investments, or goodwill. If Enable recognizes an impairment, it would take an immediate noncash charge to earnings with a correlative effect on equity and balance sheet leverage as measured by debt to total
capitalization. As a result, an impairment could have an adverse effect on Enable's results of operations and its ability to satisfy
the financial ratios or other covenants under its existing or future debt agreements.
Enable's business involves many hazards and operational risks, some of which may not be fully covered by insurance.
Insufficient insurance coverage and increased insurance costs could adversely affect its financial position, results of
operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable's operations are subject to all of the risks and hazards inherent in the gathering, processing, transportation and
storage of natural gas and crude oil, including:
•
•
•
•
•

damage to pipelines and plants, related equipment and surrounding properties caused by hurricanes, tornadoes,
floods, fires, earthquakes and other natural disasters, acts of terrorism and actions by third parties;
inadvertent damage from construction, vehicles and farm and utility equipment;
leaks of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil and other hydrocarbons or losses of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil as a
result of the malfunction of equipment or facilities;
ruptures, fires and explosions; and
other hazards that could also result in personal injury and loss of life, pollution and suspension of operations.

These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of
property, plant and equipment and pollution or other environmental damage. These risks may also result in curtailment or
suspension of its operations. A natural disaster or other hazard affecting the areas in which it operates could adversely affect
Enable's results of operations. Enable is not fully insured against all risks inherent in its business. Enable currently has general
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liability and property insurance in place to cover certain of its facilities in amounts that it considers appropriate. Such policies
are subject to certain limits and deductibles. Enable has business interruption insurance coverage for some but not all of its
operations. Insurance coverage may not be available in the future at current costs or on commercially reasonable terms, and the
insurance proceeds received for any loss of, or any damage to, any of Enable's facilities may not be sufficient to restore the loss
or damage without adversely affecting its financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to its
unitholders, including OGE Energy.
The use of derivative contracts by Enable and its subsidiaries in the normal course of business could result in financial
losses that could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and its ability to make cash distributions to
unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable and its subsidiaries periodically use derivative instruments, such as swaps, options, futures and forwards, to
manage its commodity and financial market risks. Enable and its subsidiaries could recognize financial losses as a result of
volatility in the market values of these contracts, or should a counterparty fail to perform. In the absence of actively quoted
market prices and pricing information from external sources, the valuation of these financial instruments can involve
management's judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use of alternative valuation
methods could affect the reported fair value of these contracts.
Failure to attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce could adversely impact Enable's results of operations.
Enable's business is dependent on its ability to recruit, retain and motivate employees. Certain circumstances, such as
an aging workforce without appropriate replacements, a mismatch of existing skill sets to future needs, competition for skilled
labor or the unavailability of contract resources may lead to operating challenges such as a lack of resources, loss of knowledge
or a lengthy time period associated with skill development. Enable's costs, including costs for contractors to replace employees,
productivity costs and safety costs, may rise. Failure to hire and adequately train replacement employees, including the transfer
of significant internal historical knowledge and expertise to the new employees, or the future availability and cost of contract
labor may adversely affect Enable's ability to manage and operate its business. If Enable is unable to successfully attract and
retain an appropriately qualified workforce, its results of operations could be negatively affected.
As of December 31, 2020, Enable has 76 employees who are participants under OGE Energy defined benefit and
retiree medical plans, who are seconded to the Partnership, subject to certain termination rights of the Partnership and OGE
Energy. If seconding is terminated, employees of OGE Energy. that Enable determines to hire are under no obligation to accept
Enable's offer of employment on the terms Enable provides, or at all.
Cybersecurity attacks or other disruptions of Enable's systems, networks and technology could adversely impact Enable's
financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable has become increasingly dependent on the systems, networks and technology that it uses to conduct almost all
aspects of its business, including the operation of its gathering, processing, transportation and storage assets, the recording of
commercial transactions and the reporting of financial information. Enable depends on both its own systems, networks and
technology as well as the systems, networks and technology of its vendors, customers and other business partners. Any
disruption of these systems, networks and technology could disrupt the operation of Enable's business. Disruptions can result
from a variety of causes, including natural disasters, the failure of software or equipment and manmade events, such as
cybersecurity attacks or information security breaches. Cybersecurity attacks and information security breaches could result in
the unauthorized use of confidential, proprietary or other information and in the disruption of Enable's critical business
functions and operations, adversely affecting its reputation and subjecting it to possible legal claims and liability. In addition,
Enable is not fully insured against all cybersecurity risks.
As cybersecurity attacks continue to evolve, Enable may be required to expend significant additional resources to
continue to modify or enhance its protective measures or to investigate and remediate any vulnerabilities to cybersecurity
attacks. In particular, Enable's implementation of various procedures and controls to monitor and mitigate security threats and
to increase security for its personnel, information, facilities and infrastructure may result in increased capital and operating
costs. To date Enable has not experienced any material losses relating to cybersecurity attacks; however, there can be no
assurance that it will not suffer such losses in the future. Consequently, it is possible that any of these occurrences, or a
combination of them, could adversely affect Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash
distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
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Terrorist attacks or other physical security threats could adversely affect Enable's business.
Enable's gathering, processing, transportation and storage assets may be targets of terrorist activities or other physical
security threats that could disrupt its ability to conduct its business. It is possible that any of these occurrences, or a combination
of them, could adversely affect Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to
unitholders, including OGE Energy. In addition, any physical damage to Enable's assets resulting from acts of terrorism may
not be fully covered by Enable's insurance.
If Enable fails to maintain an effective system of internal controls, then it may not be able to accurately report financial
results or prevent fraud. As a result, current and potential unitholders could lose confidence in its financial reporting,
which would harm Enable's business and the trading price of its common units.
Effective internal controls are necessary for Enable to provide reliable financial reports, prevent fraud and operate
successfully as a public company. If its efforts to maintain an effective system of internal controls are not successful, it is
unable to maintain adequate controls over its financial processes and reporting in the future or it is unable to comply with its
obligations under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, its operating results could be harmed or fail to meet its
reporting obligations. Ineffective internal controls also could cause investors to lose confidence in its reported financial
information, which would likely have a negative effect on the trading price of Enable's common units.
Enable depends on a small number of customers for a significant portion of its gathering and processing revenues and its
transportation and storage revenues. The loss of, or reduction in volumes from, these customers could result in a decline in
sales of its gathering and processing or transportation and storage services and adversely affect its financial position, results
of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, 61 percent of Enable's natural gas gathered volumes were attributable to the
affiliates of Continental Resources, Inc., Vine Oil and Gas, GeoSouthern Energy Corporation, XTO Energy Inc. and Marathon
Oil Corporation and 46 percent of its transportation and storage service revenues were attributable to affiliates of CenterPoint,
Spire Inc., Continental Resources, Inc., American Electric Power Co. and OGE Energy. The loss of any portion of the
gathering, processing, transportation and storage systems serving any of these customers, the failure to extend existing contracts
at their expiration or the extension or replacement of these contracts on less favorable terms could adversely affect Enable's
financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable's exposure to credit risks of its customers, and any material nonpayment or nonperformance by its customers could
adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including
OGE Energy.
Some of Enable's customers may experience financial problems that could have a significant effect on its customers'
creditworthiness. Severe financial problems encountered by its customers could limit Enable's ability to collect amounts owed
to it, or to enforce performance of obligations under contractual arrangements. In addition, many of Enable's customers finance
their activities through cash flow from operations, the incurrence of debt or the issuance of equity. The combination of
reduction of cash flow resulting from declines in commodity prices, a reduction in borrowing bases under reserve-based credit
facilities and the lack of availability of debt or equity financing may result in a significant reduction of its customers' liquidity
and limit its customers' ability to make payments or perform on obligations to Enable. For example, some of Enable's customers
have experienced significantly reduced liquidity as a result of the economic effects caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Furthermore, some of Enable's customers may be highly leveraged and subject to their own operating and regulatory risks,
which increases the risk that they may default on their obligations to Enable. Financial problems experienced by its customers
could result in the impairment of its assets, reduction of its operating cash flows and may also reduce or curtail its customers'
future use of its products and services, which could reduce revenues.
Enable and its operating subsidiaries' debt levels may limit their flexibility in obtaining additional financing and in
pursuing other business opportunities.
As of December 31, 2020, Enable had approximately $4.0 billion of long-term debt outstanding, excluding the
premiums, discounts and unamortized debt expense on senior notes. In addition, as of December 31, 2020, Enable had $250
million outstanding under its commercial paper program. Enable also has a $1.75 billion revolving credit facility for working
capital, capital expenditures and other partnership purposes, including acquisitions, with no borrowings outstanding, of which
approximately $1.50 billion in borrowing capacity was undrawn as of December 31, 2020. As of January 29, 2021, Enable had
$204 million outstanding under its commercial paper program and $1.54 billion of undrawn borrowing capacity under its
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revolving credit facility. Enable has the ability to incur additional debt, subject to limitations in its credit facilities. The levels of
debt could have important consequences, including the following:
•
•
•
•

the ability to obtain additional financing, if necessary, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or
other purposes may be impaired or the financing may not be available on favorable terms, if at all;
a portion of cash flows will be required to make interest payments on the debt, reducing the funds that would
otherwise be available for operations, future business opportunities and distributions;
the debt level will make Enable more vulnerable to competitive pressures or a downturn in the business or the
economy generally; and
the debt level may limit flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions.

Enable's and its operating subsidiaries' ability to service their debt will depend upon, among other things, their future
financial and operating performance, which will be affected by prevailing economic conditions, commodity prices and
financial, business, regulatory and other factors, some of which are beyond their control. If operating results are not sufficient to
service Enable's and its operating subsidiaries' current or future indebtedness, Enable and its subsidiaries may be forced to take
actions such as reducing distributions, reducing or delaying business activities, acquisitions, investments or capital
expenditures, selling assets, restructuring or refinancing debt, or seeking additional equity capital. These actions may not be
effected on satisfactory terms, or at all.
Enable's credit facilities contain operating and financial restrictions, including covenants and restrictions that may be
affected by events beyond its control, which could adversely affect its financial condition, results of operations and ability to
make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable's credit facilities contain customary covenants that, among other things, limit the ability to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

permit its subsidiaries to incur or guarantee additional debt;
incur or permit to exist certain liens on assets;
dispose of assets;
merge or consolidate with another company or engage in a change of control;
enter into transactions with affiliates on non-arm's length terms; and
change the nature of its business.

Enable's credit facilities also require it to maintain certain financial ratios. Its ability to meet those financial ratios can
be affected by events beyond its control, Enable cannot assure it will meet those ratios. In addition, its credit facilities contain
events of default customary for agreements of this nature.
Enable's ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in its credit facilities may be affected by
events beyond its control, including prevailing economic, financial and industry conditions. If market or other economic
conditions deteriorate, its ability to comply with these covenants may be impaired. If any of the restrictions, covenants, ratios or
tests in its credit facilities are violated, a significant portion of its indebtedness may become immediately due and payable. In
addition, its lenders' commitments to make further loans to Enable under the revolving credit facility may be suspended or
terminated. Enable might not have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these accelerated payments.
Any reductions in Enable's credit ratings could increase its financing costs and the cost of maintaining certain contractual
relationships.
Enable cannot provide assurance that its credit ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time or that a rating
will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances warrant. If any of Enable's credit
ratings are below investment grade, it may have higher future borrowing costs and it or its subsidiaries may be required to post
cash collateral or letters of credit under certain contractual agreements. If cash collateral requirements were to occur at a time
when Enable was experiencing significant working capital requirements or otherwise lacked liquidity, its financial position,
results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected.
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Enable may not be able to recover the costs of its substantial planned investment in capital improvements and additions, and
the actual cost of such improvements and additions may be significantly higher than it anticipates.
Enable's business plan calls for investment in capital improvements and additions. The construction of additions or
modifications to Enable's existing systems, and the construction of new midstream assets, involves numerous regulatory,
environmental, political and legal uncertainties, many of which are beyond its control and may require the expenditure of
significant amounts of capital, which may exceed estimates. These projects may not be completed at the planned cost, on
schedule or at all. The construction of new pipeline, gathering, treating, processing, compression or other facilities is subject to
construction cost overruns due to labor costs, costs and availability of equipment and materials such as steel, labor shortages or
weather or other delays, inflation or other factors, which could be material. In addition, the construction of these facilities is
typically subject to the receipt of approvals and permits from various regulatory agencies. Those agencies may not approve the
projects in a timely manner, if at all, or may impose restrictions or conditions on the projects that could potentially prevent a
project from proceeding, lengthen its expected completion schedule and/or increase its anticipated cost. Moreover, revenues and
cash flows may not increase immediately upon the expenditure of funds on a particular project. For instance, if Enable expands
an existing pipeline or a constructs a new pipeline, the construction may occur over an extended period of time, and Enable may
not receive any material increases in revenues or cash flows until the project is completed. In addition, Enable may construct
facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in a region in which such growth does not materialize. As a result,
the new facilities may not be able to achieve an expected investment return, which could adversely affect its financial position,
results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy.
In connection with its capital investments, Enable may estimate, or engage a third party to estimate, potential reserves
in areas to be developed prior to constructing facilities in those areas. To the extent Enable relies on estimates of future
production in deciding to construct additions to its systems, those estimates may prove to be inaccurate either in volume or
timing due to numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating future production. In addition, the construction of additions to
existing gathering and transportation assets may require new rights-of-way prior to construction. Those rights-of-way to
connect new natural gas supplies to existing gathering lines may be unavailable, and it may not be able to capitalize on
attractive expansion opportunities. Additionally, it may become more expensive to obtain new rights-of-way or to renew
existing rights-of-way. If the cost of renewing or obtaining new rights-of-way increases, its financial position, results of
operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy, could be adversely affected.
Enable's ability to grow is dependent in part on its ability to access external financing sources on acceptable terms.
Enable expects its operating subsidiaries will distribute all of their available cash to Enable and that it will distribute all
of its available cash to its unitholders. As a result, Enable and its operating subsidiaries rely significantly upon external
financing sources, including commercial bank borrowings and the issuance of debt and equity securities, to fund acquisitions
and expansion capital expenditures. To the extent Enable or its operating subsidiaries are unable to finance growth externally or
through internally generated cash flows, Enable's and its operating subsidiaries' cash distribution policy may significantly
impair Enable's and its operating subsidiaries' ability to grow. In addition, because Enable and its operating subsidiaries
distribute all available cash, Enable's and its operating subsidiaries' growth may not be as fast as businesses that reinvest their
available cash to expand ongoing operations.
To the extent Enable issues additional units in connection with any acquisitions or expansion capital expenditures, the
payment of distributions on those additional units may increase the risk that it will be unable to maintain or increase its per unit
distribution level, which in turn may impact the available cash that Enable has to distribute on each unit. There are no
limitations in the partnership agreement on its ability to issue additional units, including units ranking senior to the common
units. The incurrence of additional commercial borrowings or other debt by Enable or its operating subsidiaries to finance its
growth strategy would result in increased interest expense, which in turn may negatively impact the available cash that its
operating subsidiaries have to distribute to it, and thus that it has to distribute to its unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable depends in part on access to the capital markets and other external financing sources to fund its expansion
capital expenditures, although Enable has also increasingly relied on cash flow generated from its operations to fund its
expansion capital expenditures. Historically, unit prices of midstream master limited partnerships have experienced periods of
volatility. In addition, because Enable's common units are yield-based securities, rising market interest rates could impact the
relative attractiveness of its common units to investors. As a result of capital market volatility, Enable may be unable to issue
equity or debt on satisfactory terms, or at all, which may limit its ability to expand its operations or make future acquisitions.
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Enable's merger and acquisition activities may not be successful or may result in completed acquisitions that do not
perform as anticipated, which could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations or future growth.
From time to time, Enable has made, and it intends to continue to make, acquisitions of businesses and assets. Such
acquisitions involve substantial risks, including the following:
•
•
•
•
•

acquired businesses or assets may not produce revenues, earnings or cash flow at anticipated levels;
acquired businesses or assets could have environmental, permitting or other problems for which contractual
protections prove inadequate;
it may assume liabilities that were not disclosed to it, that exceed its estimates, or for which its rights to
indemnification from the seller are limited;
it may be unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully and realize anticipated economic, operational and
other benefits in a timely manner, which could result in substantial costs and delays or other operational, technical
or financial problems; and
acquisitions, or the pursuit of acquisitions, could disrupt its ongoing businesses, distract management, divert
resources and make it difficult to maintain its current business standards, controls and procedures.

In addition, Enable's growth strategy includes, in part, the ability to make acquisitions on economically acceptable
terms. If Enable is unable to make acquisitions or if its acquisitions do not perform as anticipated, Enable's future growth may
be adversely affected.
Enable may be unable to obtain or renew permits necessary for its operations, which could inhibit its ability to do business.
Performance of its operations require it obtain and maintain a number of federal and state permits, licenses and
approvals with terms and conditions containing a significant number of prescriptive limits and performance standards in order
to operate. All of these permits, licenses, approval limits and standards require a significant amount of monitoring, record
keeping and reporting in order to demonstrate compliance with the underlying permit, license, approval limit or standard.
Noncompliance or incomplete documentation of Enable's compliance status may result in the imposition of fines, penalties and
injunctive relief. A decision by a government agency to deny or delay the issuance of a new or existing material permit or other
approval, or to revoke or substantially modify an existing permit or other approval, could adversely affect its ability to initiate
or continue operations at the affected location or facility and on its financial condition, results of operations and ability to make
cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy. For example, in April 2020, the federal district court for the District of
Montana issued an order vacating the Corps Clean Water Act Section 4040 Nationwide Permit 12, which authorizes pipeline
crossings of streams and wetlands. Subsequent proceedings limited this order to the Keystone XL pipeline, which is not related
to Enable's operations. Pending appeal of the court's decision, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers has published a proposal to
reissue its existing Nationwide Permits and associated general conditions and definitions, with certain modifications, including
to the Corps Clean Water Act Section 4040 Nationwide Permit 12. While the full extent and impact of the court's action, as well
as the proposed Corps Clean Water Act Section 4040 Nationwide Permit 12 re-issuance, is unclear at this time, a disruption in
Enable's ability to obtain coverage under the Corps Clean Water Act Section 4040 Nationwide Permit 12 or other general
permits may result in increased costs and project delays if Enable is required to seek individual permits from the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers.
Additionally, in order to obtain permits and renewals of permits and other approvals in the future, Enable may be
required to prepare and present data to governmental authorities pertaining to the potential adverse impact that any proposed
pipeline or processing-related activities may have on the environment, individually or in the aggregate, including on public and
American Indian tribal lands. Certain approval procedures may require preparation of archaeological surveys, wetland
delineations, endangered species surveys and other studies to assess the environmental impact of new sites or the expansion of
existing sites. Compliance with these regulatory requirements may be expensive and may significantly lengthen the time
required to prepare applications and to receive authorizations and consequently could disrupt Enable's project construction
schedules.
Enable's operations may be impacted by certain indigenous rights protections.
Parts of Enable's operations cross land that has historically been apportioned to various Native American tribes, who
may exercise significant jurisdiction and sovereignty over their lands. Enable's operations may be impacted to the extent these
tribal governments are found to have and choose to act upon such jurisdiction over lands where it operates. For example, a U.S.
Supreme Court ruling in 2020 found that the Muscogee (Creek) Nation reservation in Eastern Oklahoma has not been
disestablished, and subsequent court rulings applying this precedent have found similarly for other reservations. This ruling
could lead to some confusion as to which agencies have authority to regulate activities in this area of Oklahoma.
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Costs of compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations are significant, and the cost of compliance with
future environmental laws and regulations may adversely affect Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability
to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules and regulations relating to air
quality, water quality, waste management, wildlife conservation, natural resources and health and safety that could, among
other things, delay or increase costs of construction, restrict or limit the output of certain facilities and/or require additional
pollution control equipment and otherwise increase costs. For instance, in May 2016, the EPA issued final standards governing
methane emissions imposing more stringent controls on methane and volatile organic compounds emissions at new and
modified oil and natural gas production, processing, storage and transmission facilities. These rules have required changes to
Enable's operations, including the installation of new equipment to control emissions. In September 2020, the EPA finalized
amendments to the 2016 standards that removed Enable's transmission and storage segments from the oil and natural gas source
category and rescinded the methane-specific requirements for production and processing facilities. However, several lawsuits
have been filed challenging these amendments, and on January 20, 2021, President Biden signed an executive order calling for
the suspension, revision or recission of the September 2020 rule and the reinstatement or issuance of standards for new,
modified and existing oil and gas operations, including Enable's transmission and storage segments. As a result, Enable cannot
predict the scope of any final methane regulatory requirements or the cost to comply with such requirements. However, several
states are pursuing similar measures to regulate emissions of methane from new and existing sources. There are significant
capital, operating and other costs associated with compliance with these environmental statutes, rules and regulations. Future
federal and state regulations relating to Enable's gathering and processing, transmission and storage operations remain a
possibility and could result in increased compliance costs on Enable's operations. Furthermore, if new or more stringent federal,
state or local legal restrictions are adopted in areas where Enable's crude oil and natural gas exploration and production
customers operate, they could incur potentially significant added costs to comply with such requirements, experience delays or
curtailment in the pursuit of exploration, development, or production activities, and perhaps even be precluded from drilling
wells, some or all of which could adversely affect demand for Enable's services to those customers.
There is inherent risk of the incurrence of environmental costs and liabilities in Enable's operations due to the handling
of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil and produced water as well as air emissions related to its operations and historical industry
operations and waste disposal practices. These matters are subject to stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and
regulations governing environmental protection, including the discharge of materials into the environment and the protection of
plants, wildlife, and natural and cultural resources. These laws and regulations can restrict or impact business activities in many
ways, such as restricting the handling or disposing of wastes or requiring remedial action to mitigate pollution conditions that
may be caused by its operations or that are attributable to former operators. Joint and several strict liability may be incurred,
without regard to fault, under certain of these environmental laws and regulations in connection with discharges or releases of
wastes on, under or from its properties and facilities, many of which have been used for midstream activities for a number of
years, oftentimes by third parties not under its control. Private parties, including the owners of the properties through which its
gathering and transportation systems pass and facilities where its wastes are taken for reclamation or disposal, may also have
the right to pursue legal actions to enforce compliance, as well as to seek damages for non- compliance, with environmental
laws and regulations or for personal injury or property damage. For example, an accidental release from one of its pipelines
could subject them to substantial liabilities arising from environmental cleanup and restoration costs, claims made by
neighboring landowners and other third parties for personal injury and property damage and fines or penalties for related
violations of environmental laws or regulations. Enable may be unable to recover these costs from insurance. Moreover, the
possibility exists that stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could significantly increase compliance costs and the
cost of any remediation that may become necessary. Further, stricter requirements could negatively impact its customers'
production and operations, resulting in less demand for its services.
Increased regulation of hydraulic fracturing and wastewater injection wells could result in reductions or delays in natural
gas and crude oil production by Enable's customers, which could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations
and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Hydraulic fracturing is a common practice that is used by many of Enable's customers to stimulate production of
natural gas and crude oil from dense subsurface rock formations. The hydraulic fracturing process involves the injection of
water, sand, and chemicals under pressure into targeted subsurface formations to fracture the surrounding rock and stimulate
production. Hydraulic fracturing typically is regulated by state oil and natural gas commissions. In addition, certain federal
agencies have proposed additional laws and regulations to more closely regulate the hydraulic fracturing process. The EPA has
also issued regulations and guidance for hydraulic fracturing operations under several statutes.

30

Some states have adopted, and other states have considered adopting, legal requirements that could impose more
stringent permitting, public disclosure or well construction requirements on hydraulic fracturing activities. Local government
also may seek to adopt ordinances within their jurisdictions regulating the time, place and manner of drilling activities in
general or hydraulic fracturing activities in particular, in some cases banning hydraulic fracturing entirely. If new or more
stringent federal, state or local legal restrictions relating to the hydraulic fracturing process are adopted in areas where Enable's
oil and natural gas exploration and production customers operate, they could incur potentially significant added costs to comply
with such requirements, experience delays or curtailment in the pursuit of exploration, development, or production activities,
and perhaps even be precluded from drilling wells, some or all of which activities could adversely affect demand for Enable's
services to those customers.
State and federal regulatory agencies have also focused on a possible connection between the operation of injection
wells used for oil and gas waste disposal and seismic activity. Similar concerns have been raised that hydraulic fracturing may
also contribute to seismic activity. When caused by human activity, such events are called induced seismicity. Some state
regulatory agencies have adopted their regulations or issued orders to address induced seismicity. For example, the OCC has
implemented volume reduction plans, and at times required shut-ins, for disposal wells injecting wastewater from oil and gas
operations into the Arbuckle formation. Certain environmental and other groups have also suggested that additional federal,
state and local laws and regulations may be needed to more closely regulate the hydraulic fracturing process. Enable cannot
predict whether additional federal, state or local laws or regulations applicable to hydraulic fracturing will be enacted in the
future and, if so, what actions any such laws or regulations would require or prohibit. Increased regulation and attention given
to induced seismicity could lead to greater opposition to, and litigation concerning, oil and gas activities utilizing hydraulic
fracturing or injection wells for waste disposal. Additional legislation or regulation could also lead to operational delays or
increased operating costs for Enable's customers, which in turn could reduce the demand for Enable's services.
Other governmental agencies, including the U.S. Department of Energy, have evaluated or are evaluating various other
aspects of hydraulic fracturing. These ongoing or proposed studies, depending on their degree of pursuit and any meaningful
results obtained, could spur initiatives to further regulate hydraulic fracturing or other regulatory mechanisms.
Enable and its customers' operations are subject to a series of risks arising out of the threat of climate change that could
result in increased operating costs, adversely impact Enable's results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to
unitholders, including OGE Energy, limit the areas in which oil and natural gas production may occur and reduce demand
for the products and services Enable provides.
The threat of possible global climate change continues to attract considerable attention in the U.S. and in foreign
countries. Numerous proposals have been made and could continue to be made at the international, national, regional and state
levels of government to monitor and limit existing emissions of greenhouse gases as well as to restrict or eliminate such future
emissions. As a result, Enable's operations as well as the operations of its crude oil and natural gas exploration and production
customers are subject to a series of regulatory, political, litigation and financial risks associated with the production and
processing of fossil fuels and emission of greenhouse gases.
In the U.S., no comprehensive climate change legislation has been implemented at the federal level. However,
following the U.S. Supreme Court finding that greenhouse gas emissions constitute a pollutant under the Clean Air Act, the
EPA has adopted regulations that, among other things, establish construction and operating permit reviews for greenhouse gas
emissions from certain large stationary sources, require the monitoring and annual reporting of greenhouse gas emissions from
certain petroleum and natural gas system sources in the U.S., and together with the Department of Transportation, implement
greenhouse gas emissions limits on vehicles manufactured for operation in the U.S. The regulation of methane from oil and gas
facilities has been subject to uncertainty in recent years. For more information, see the risk factor, "Costs of compliance with
existing environmental laws and regulations are significant, and the cost of compliance with future environmental laws and
regulations may adversely affect Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to
unitholders, including OGE Energy," above. Additionally, various states and groups of states have adopted or are considering
adopting legislation, regulations or other regulatory initiatives that are focused on such areas as greenhouse gas cap and trade
programs, carbon taxes, reporting and tracking programs and restriction of emissions. Internationally, the United Nations
sponsored Paris Agreement requires member states to individually determine and submit non-binding emissions reduction
targets every five years after 2020. The U.S. had officially withdrawn from the "Paris Agreement" on November 4, 2020.
However, newly elected President Biden announced on January 20, 2021 that the U.S. would rejoin the agreement and called on
the federal government to begin formulating the U.S.'s nationally determined emissions reduction targets under the agreement.
Governmental, scientific and public concern over the threat of climate change arising from greenhouse gas emissions
has resulted in increasing political risks in the U.S., including climate change related pledges, made by certain candidates
recently elected to public office. These have included promises to limit emissions and curtail the production of oil and gas, such
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as through the cessation of leasing public land for hydrocarbon development. For example, on January 27, 2021, President
Biden issued an executive order that commits to substantial action on climate change, calling for, among other things, the
increased use of zero-emissions vehicles by the federal government, the elimination of subsidies provided to the fossil fuel
industry and increased emphasis on climate-related risk across governmental agencies and economic sectors. Separately, on
January 20, 2021, the Acting Secretary of the U.S. Department of the Interior issued an order that, among other things, imposed
a temporary suspension on the issuance of fossil fuel authorizations, including leases and permits, on federal lands. Although
the order says it does not limit existing operations under valid leases, on January 27, 2021, President Biden signed an executive
order suspending new oil and gas leasing on federal lands, pending completion of a review of the federal government's oil and
gas permitting and leasing practices. Other actions that could be pursued by the Biden Administration may include the
imposition of more restrictive requirements for the establishment of pipeline infrastructure or the permitting of liquefied natural
gas export facilities. Litigation risks are also increasing, as a number of cities and other local governments have sought to bring
suit against the largest oil and natural gas companies in state or federal court, alleging, among other things, that such companies
created public nuisances by producing fuels that contributed to climate change. Suits have also been brought against such
companies under shareholder and consumer production laws, alleging that the companies have been aware of the adverse
effects of climate change but failed to adequately disclose those impacts.
There are also increasing financial risks for fossil fuel producers as shareholders currently invested in fossil-fuel
energy companies may elect in the future to shift some or all of their investments into other related sectors. Institutional lenders
who provide financing to fossil-fuel energy companies also have become more attentive to sustainable lending practices and
some of them may elect not to provide funding for fossil fuel energy companies. There is also a risk that financial institutions
will be required to adopt policies that have the effect of reducing the funding provided to the fossil fuel sector. Recently, the
Federal Reserve announced that it has applied to join the Network for Greening the Financial System, a consortium of financial
regulators focused on addressing climate-related risks in the financial sector. A material reduction in the capital available to the
fossil fuel industry could make it more difficult to secure funding for exploration, development, production, transportation and
processing activities, which could result in decreased demand for Enable's services.
The adoption and implementation of new or more stringent international, federal or state legislation, regulations or
other regulatory initiatives that impose more stringent standards for greenhouse gas emissions from the oil and natural gas
sector or otherwise restrict the areas in which this sector may produce oil and natural gas or generate greenhouse gas emissions
could result in increased costs of compliance or costs of consuming, and thereby reduce demand for, oil and natural gas, which
could reduce demand for Enable's services and products. Additionally, political, litigation and financial risks may result in
Enable's oil and natural gas customers restricting or canceling production activities, incurring liability for infrastructure
damages as a result of climatic changes or impairing their ability to continue to operate in an economic manner, which also
could reduce demand for Enable's services and products. One or more of these developments could have a material adverse
effect on Enable's business, financial condition, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders,
including OGE Energy.
Finally, many scientists have concluded that increasing concentrations of greenhouse gases in the earth's atmosphere
may produce climate changes that have significant physical effects, such as increased frequency and severity of storms, floods
and other climatic events. If any such effects were to occur, they could adversely affect Enable's results of operations and ability
to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy. In addition, while Enable's consideration of changing weather
conditions and inclusion of safety factors in design covers the uncertainties that climate change and other events may
potentially introduce, its ability to mitigate the adverse impacts of these events depends in part on the effectiveness of its
facilities and disaster preparedness and response and business continuity planning, which may not have considered or be
prepared for every eventuality.
Enable's operations are subject to extensive regulation by federal regulatory authorities. Changes or additional regulatory
measures adopted by such authorities could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to make
cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy.
The rates charged by several of Enable's pipeline systems, including for interstate gas transportation service provided
by its intrastate pipelines, are regulated by the FERC. The FERC and state regulatory agencies also regulate other terms and
conditions of the services it may offer. If one of these regulatory agencies, on its own initiative or due to challenges by third
parties, were to lower its tariff rates or deny any rate increase or other material changes to the types or terms and conditions of
service it might propose or offer, the profitability of its pipeline businesses could suffer. If it were permitted to raise its tariff
rates for a particular pipeline, there might be significant delay between the time the tariff rate increase is approved and the time
that the rate increase actually goes into effect, which could also limit profitability. Furthermore, competition from other
transportation and storage systems may prevent them from raising its tariff rates even if permitted by regulatory agencies. The
regulatory agencies that regulate its systems periodically implement new rules, regulations and terms and conditions of services
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subject to its jurisdiction. New initiatives or orders may adversely affect the rates charged for services or otherwise adversely
affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE
Energy.
Enable's natural gas interstate pipelines are regulated by the FERC under the Natural Gas Act of 1938, the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978 and the Energy Policy Act of 2005. Generally, the FERC's authority over interstate natural gas
transportation extends to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

rates, operating terms, conditions of service and service contracts;
certification and construction of new facilities;
extension or abandonment of services and facilities or expansion of existing facilities;
maintenance of accounts and records;
acquisition and disposition of facilities;
initiation and discontinuation of services;
depreciation and amortization policies;
conduct and relationship with certain affiliates;
market manipulation in connection with interstate sales, purchases or natural gas transportation; and
various other matters.

Should Enable fail to comply with all applicable FERC-administered statutes, rules, regulations and orders, it could be
subject to substantial penalties and fines. Under the Energy Policy Act of 2005, the FERC has civil penalty authority under the
Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 to impose penalties for current violations of up to
approximately $1.3 million per day for each violation as well as possible criminal penalties.
The FERC's jurisdiction extends to the certification and construction of interstate transportation and storage facilities,
including, but not limited to expansions, lateral and other facilities and abandonment of facilities and services. Prior to
commencing construction of significant new interstate transportation and storage facilities, an interstate pipeline must obtain a
certificate authorizing the construction, or an order amending its existing certificate, from the FERC. Certain minor expansions
are authorized by blanket certificates that the FERC has issued by rule. Typically, a significant expansion project requires
review by a number of governmental agencies, including state and local agencies, whose cooperation is important in completing
the regulatory process on schedule. Any failure by an agency to issue sufficient authorizations or permits in a timely manner for
one or more of these projects may mean that Enable will not be able to pursue these projects or that they will be constructed in a
manner or with capital requirements that Enable did not anticipate. Enable's inability to obtain sufficient permits and
authorizations in a timely manner could materially and negatively impact the additional revenues expected from these projects.
The FERC conducts audits to verify compliance with the FERC's regulations and the terms of its orders, including
whether the websites of interstate pipelines accurately provide information on the operations and availability of services. The
FERC's regulations require uniform terms and conditions for service, as set forth in agreements for transportation and storage
services executed between interstate pipelines and their customers. These service agreements are required to conform, in all
material respects, with the standard form of service agreements set forth in the pipeline's FERC-approved tariff. Nonconforming agreements must be filed with, and accepted by, the FERC. In the event that the FERC finds that an agreement, in
whole or part, is materially non-conforming, it could reject the agreement or require Enable to seek modification, or
alternatively require Enable to modify its tariff so that the non-conforming provisions are generally available to all customers.
The rates, terms and conditions for transporting natural gas in interstate commerce on certain of Enable's intrastate
pipelines and for services offered at certain of Enable's storage facilities are subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC under
Section 311 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978. Rates to provide such interstate transportation service must be "fair and
equitable" under the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 and are subject to review, refund with interest if found not to be fair and
equitable, and approval by the FERC at least once every five years.
Enable's crude oil gathering systems in the Williston Basin are subject to common carrier regulation by the FERC
under the Interstate Commerce Act. The Interstate Commerce Act requires that Enable maintain tariffs on file with the FERC
setting forth the rates Enable charges for providing transportation services, as well as the rules and regulations governing such
services. The Interstate Commerce Act also requires, among other things, that Enable's rates must be "just and reasonable" and
that Enable provide service in a manner that is nondiscriminatory. Shippers on Enable's FERC-regulated crude oil gathering
systems may protest its tariff filings, file complaints against its existing rates, or the FERC can investigate Enable's rates on its
own initiative. If FERC finds that Enable's existing or proposed rates are unjust and unreasonable, it could deny requested rate
increases or could order Enable to reduce its rates and could require the payment of reparations to complaining shippers for up
to two years prior to the complaint.
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Enable's operations may also be subject to regulation by state and local regulatory authorities. Changes or additional
regulatory measures adopted by such authorities could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and
ability to make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy.
The pipeline operations of Enable that are not regulated by the FERC may be subject to state and local regulation
applicable to intrastate natural gas and transportation services. State and local regulations generally focus on safety,
environmental and, in some circumstances, prohibition of undue discrimination among shippers. Additional rules and
legislation pertaining to these matters are considered and, in some instances, adopted from time to time. Enable cannot predict
what effect, if any, such changes might have on operations, but it could be required to incur additional capital expenditures and
increased costs depending on future legislative and regulatory changes. Other state and local regulations also may affect the
business. Any such state or local regulation could have an adverse effect on the business and the financial position, results of
operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
A change in the jurisdictional characterization of some of Enable's assets by federal, state or local regulatory agencies or a
change in policy by those agencies may result in increased regulation of its assets, which may cause its revenues to decline
and operating expenses to increase.
Enable's natural gas gathering and intrastate transportation systems are generally exempt from the jurisdiction of the
FERC under the Natural Gas Act of 1938, and its crude oil gathering system in the Anadarko Basin is generally exempt from
the jurisdiction of FERC under the Interstate Commerce Act. Nevertheless, FERC regulation may indirectly impact these
businesses and the markets for products derived from these businesses. The FERC's policies and practices across the range of its
oil and natural gas regulatory activities, including, for example, its policies on interstate open access transportation, ratemaking,
capacity release, and market center promotion may indirectly affect intrastate markets. In recent years, the FERC has pursued
pro-competitive policies in its regulation of interstate oil and natural gas pipelines. However, it cannot be assured that the FERC
will continue to pursue this approach as it considers matters such as pipeline rates and rules and policies that may indirectly
affect the intrastate natural gas transportation business. Although the FERC has not made a formal determination with respect to
all of Enable's facilities it considers to be engaged in natural gas gathering or a formal determination with respect to its facilities
that it considers to be engaged in intrastate crude oil gathering, Enable believes that its natural gas gathering facilities meet the
traditional tests that the FERC has used to determine that a pipeline is a natural gas gathering pipeline and Enable's intrastate
crude oil gathering facilities meet the traditional tests that the FERC has used to determine that a pipeline is not engaged in
interstate crude oil transportation. The distinction between FERC-regulated facilities, however, has been the subject of
substantial litigation, and the FERC determines whether facilities are subject to regulation under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 or
the Interstate Commerce Act on a case-by-case basis, so the classification and regulation of its facilities is subject to change
based on future determinations by the FERC, the courts or Congress. If the FERC were to consider the status of an individual
facility and determine that the facility and/or services provided by it are not exempt from FERC regulation, the rates for, and
terms and conditions of, services provided by such facility would be subject to regulation by the FERC. Such regulation could
decrease revenue, increase operating costs and, depending upon the facility in question, could adversely affect Enable's
financial condition, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to its unitholders, including OGE Energy. In
addition, if any of Enable's facilities were found to have provided services or otherwise operated in violation of the Natural Gas
Act of 1938, Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 or Interstate Commerce Act regulations, this could result in the imposition of
substantial civil penalties, as well as a requirement to disgorge revenues collected for such services in excess of the maximum
rates established by the FERC.
Natural gas gathering and intrastate crude oil gathering may receive greater regulatory scrutiny at the state level;
therefore, these operations could be adversely affected should it become subject to the application of state regulation of rates
and services. Enable's gathering operations could also be subject to safety and operational regulations relating to the design,
construction, testing, operation, replacement and maintenance of gathering facilities. Enable cannot predict what effect, if any,
such changes might have on its operations, but it could be required to incur additional capital expenditures and increased costs
depending on future legislative and regulatory changes.
Enable may incur significant costs and liabilities resulting from compliance with pipeline safety laws and regulations,
pipeline integrity and other similar programs and related repairs.
Certain of Enable's pipeline operations are subject to pipeline safety laws and regulations. The U.S. Department of
Transportation's Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration regulates safety requirements for the design,
construction, maintenance and operation of its jurisdictional natural gas and hazardous liquids pipeline facilities. All of Enable's
interstate and intrastate natural gas transportation pipeline facilities are Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration
jurisdictional and certain of Enable's natural gas gathering, NGLs and crude oil pipeline facilities are Pipeline and Hazardous
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Materials Safety Administration jurisdictional. Among other things, these laws and regulations require pipeline operators to
develop integrity management programs, including more frequent inspections and other measures, for pipelines located in "high
consequence areas." The regulations require operators, including Enable, to, among other things:
•
•
•
•
•
•

perform ongoing assessments of pipeline integrity;
develop a baseline plan to prioritize the assessment of a covered pipeline segment;
identify and characterize applicable threats that could impact a high consequence area;
improve data collection, integration, and analysis;
repair and remediate pipelines as necessary; and
implement preventive and mitigating action.

Failure to comply with the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration or comparable state pipeline safety
regulations could result in a number of consequences which may have an adverse effect on Enable's operations. Enable incurs
significant costs associated with its compliance with existing Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration and
comparable state pipeline regulations. Enable incurred maintenance capital expenditures and operation and maintenance
expenses of $66 million in 2020 and currently estimates that it will incur maintenance capital expenditures and operation and
maintenance expenses of up to $68 million in 2021 under its pipeline safety program, including costs related to integrity
assessments and repairs, threat and risk analyses, implementing preventative and mitigative measures, and conducting activities
to support the maximum allowable operating pressure for gas pipelines or the maximum operating pressure for hazardous liquid
pipelines. Enable may incur significant cost associated with repair, remediation, preventive and mitigation measures associated
with its integrity management programs for pipelines that are not currently subject to regulation by the Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety Administration.
Changes to existing pipeline safety regulations may result in increased operating and compliance costs. For example,
in October 2019, the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration published three final rules on pipeline safety that
create or expand reporting, inspection, maintenance and other pipeline safety obligations. While Enable has estimated the
impact of these rules on its future costs of operations, actual costs to comply may be significantly higher.
The Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration is working on two additional rules related to gas pipeline
safety, though Enable cannot predict when they will be finalized. The rule entitled "Pipeline Safety: Safety of Gas Transmission
Pipelines, Repair Criteria, Integrity Management Improvements, Cathodic Protection, Management of Change, and Other
Related Amendments" is expected to adjust the repair criteria for pipelines in high consequence areas, create new criteria for
pipelines in non-high consequence areas, and strengthen integrity management assessment requirements. The rule entitled
"Safety of Gas Gathering Pipelines" is expected to require all gas gathering pipeline operators to report incidents and annual
pipeline data and to extend regulatory safety requirements to certain gas gathering pipelines in rural areas. The adoption of
these or other regulations requiring more comprehensive or stringent safety standards could require Enable to install new or
modified safety controls, pursue new capital projects or conduct maintenance programs on an accelerated basis, all of which
could require Enable to incur increased and potentially significant operational costs.
Financial reform regulations under the Dodd-Frank Act could adversely affect Enable's ability to use derivative
instruments to hedge risks associated with its business.
At times, Enable may hedge all or a portion of its commodity risk and its interest rate risk. The federal government
regulates the derivatives markets and entities, including businesses like Enable, that participate in those markets through the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, which requires the Commodity Futures
Trading Commission and the Securities and Exchange Commission to promulgate rules and regulations implementing the
legislation. Under the Commodity Futures Trading Commission's regulations, Enable is subject to reporting and recordkeeping
obligations for transactions involving non-financial swap transactions. The Commodity Futures Trading Commissions initially
adopted regulations to set position limits for certain futures and option contracts in the major energy markets and for swaps that
are their economic equivalents, but these rules were successfully challenged in federal district court by the Securities Industry
Financial Markets Association and the International Swaps and Derivatives Association and largely vacated by the court. In
December 2013, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission published a notice of proposed rulemaking designed to
implement new position limits regulation and in December 2016, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission's re-proposal
position limits regulations. The ultimate form and timing of the implementation of the regulatory regime affecting commodity
derivatives remains uncertain.
The Commodity Futures Trading Commission has imposed mandatory clearing requirements on certain categories of
swaps, including certain interest rate swaps, but has exempted derivatives intended to hedge or mitigate commercial risk from
the mandatory swap clearing requirement, where a counterparty such as Enable has a required identification number, is not a
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financial entity as defined by the regulations, and meets a minimum asset test. Enable's management believes its hedging
transactions qualify for this "commercial end-user" exception. The Dodd-Frank Act may also require Enable to comply with
margin requirements in connection with its hedging activities, although the application of those provisions to Enable is
uncertain at this time. The Dodd-Frank Act may also require the counterparties to its derivative instruments to spin off some of
their hedging activities to a separate entity, which may not be as creditworthy as the current counterparty.
The Dodd-Frank Act and related regulations could significantly increase the cost of derivatives contracts for Enable's
industry (including requirements to post collateral which could adversely affect Enable's available liquidity), materially alter the
terms of derivatives contracts, reduce the availability of derivatives to protect against risks Enable encounters, reduce its ability
to monetize or restructure its existing derivatives contracts, and increase its exposure to less creditworthy counterparties,
particularly if Enable is unable to utilize the commercial end user exception with respect to certain of its hedging transactions. If
Enable reduces its use of hedging as a result of the legislation and regulations, its results of operations may become more
volatile and its cash flows may be less predictable, which could adversely affect its ability to plan for and fund capital
expenditures and fund unitholder distributions. Finally, the legislation was intended, in part, to reduce the volatility of crude oil
and natural gas prices, which some legislators attributed to speculative trading in derivatives and commodity instruments related
to crude oil and natural gas. Enable's revenues could therefore be adversely affected if a consequence of the legislation and
regulations is to lower commodity prices. Any of these consequences could adversely affect its financial position, results of
operations and its ability to make cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable derives a substantial portion of its gross margin from subsidiaries through which it holds a substantial portion of its
assets.
Enable derives a substantial portion of its gross margin from, and holds a substantial portion of its assets through, its
subsidiaries. As a result, it depends on distributions from its subsidiaries in order to meet its payment obligations. In general,
these subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation to provide Enable with funds for its payment
obligations, whether by dividends, distributions, loans or otherwise. In addition, provisions of applicable law, such as those
limiting the legal sources of dividends, limit its subsidiaries' ability to make payments or other distributions, and its subsidiaries
could agree to contractual restrictions on its ability to make distributions.
The right by Enable to receive any assets of any subsidiary, and therefore the right of its creditors to participate in
those assets, will be effectively subordinated to the claims of that subsidiary's creditors, including trade creditors. In addition,
even if Enable were a creditor of any subsidiary, its rights as a creditor would be subordinated to any security interest in the
assets of that subsidiary and any indebtedness of the subsidiary senior to that held by them.
Enable conducts a portion of its operations through joint ventures, which subjects them to additional risks that could
adversely affect the success of these operations and Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make
cash distributions to unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Enable conducts a portion of its operations through joint ventures with third parties, including Enbridge Inc., DCP
Midstream Partners, LP, CVR Energy, Inc., Trans Louisiana Gas Pipeline, Inc. and Pablo Gathering, LLC. It may also enter
into other joint venture arrangements in the future. These third parties may have obligations that are important to the success of
the joint venture, such as the obligation to pay their share of capital and other costs of the joint venture. The performance of
these third-party obligations, including the ability of the third parties to satisfy their obligations under these arrangements, is
outside the control of Enable. If these parties do not satisfy their obligations under these arrangements, Enable's business may
be adversely affected.
The joint venture arrangements of Enable may involve risks not otherwise present when operating assets directly,
including, for example:
•
•
•
•
•
•

joint venture partners may share certain approval rights over major decisions;
joint venture partners may not pay their share of the obligations, leaving Enable liable for their shares of joint
venture liabilities;
possible inability to control the amount of cash it will receive from the joint venture;
it may incur liabilities as a result of an action taken by its joint venture partners;
it may be required to devote significant management time to the requirements of and matters relating to the joint
ventures;
its insurance policies may not fully cover loss or damage incurred by both them and its joint venture partners in
certain circumstances;
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•
•

its joint venture partners may be in a position to take actions contrary to its instructions or requests or contrary to
its policies or objectives; and
disputes between them and its joint venture partners may result in delays, litigation or operational impasses.

The risks described above or the failure to continue joint ventures or to resolve disagreements with joint venture
partners could adversely affect Enable's ability to transact the business that is the subject of such joint venture, which would in
turn adversely affect Enable's financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to unitholders,
including OGE Energy. The agreements under which certain joint ventures were formed may subject them to various risks,
limit the actions it may take with respect to the assets subject to the joint venture and require Enable to grant rights to its joint
venture partners that could limit its ability to benefit fully from future positive developments. Some joint ventures require
Enable to make significant capital expenditures. If it does not timely meet its financial commitments or otherwise do not
comply with its joint venture agreements, its rights to participate, exercise operator rights or otherwise influence or benefit from
the joint venture may be adversely affected. Certain of its joint venture partners may have substantially greater financial
resources than Enable has and it may not be able to secure the funding necessary to participate in operations its joint venture
partners propose, thereby reducing its ability to benefit from the joint venture.
Under certain circumstances, Enbridge Inc. could have the right to purchase an ownership interest in SESH at fair market
value.
Enable owns a 50 percent ownership interest in SESH. The remaining 50 percent ownership interests are held by
Enbridge Inc. As of December 31, 2020, CenterPoint owns 53.7 percent of Enable's common units, 100.0 percent of its Series
A Preferred Units and a 40 percent economic interest in Enable GP, LLC. Pursuant to the terms of the limited liability company
agreement of SESH, as amended, if, at any time, CenterPoint has a right to receive less than 50 percent of Enable's distributions
through its interests in Enable and in the general partner, or does not have the ability to exercise certain control rights, Enbridge
Inc. could have the right to purchase Enable's interest in SESH at fair market value, subject to certain exceptions.
The amount of cash Enable has available for distribution to its limited partners depends primarily on its cash flow rather
than on its profitability, which may prevent Enable from making distributions, even during periods in which it records net
income.
The amount of cash Enable has available for distribution depends primarily upon its cash flow rather than on
profitability. Profitability is affected by non-cash items but cash flow is not. As a result, Enable may make cash distributions
during periods when it records losses for financial accounting purposes and may not make cash distributions during periods
when it records net earnings for financial accounting purposes.
Affiliates of Enable's general partner, including CenterPoint and OGE Energy, may compete with Enable, and neither the
general partner nor its affiliates have any obligation to present business opportunities to Enable.
Under Enable's omnibus agreement, both CenterPoint and OGE Energy are prohibited from, directly or indirectly,
owning, operating, acquiring or investing in any business engaged in midstream operations located within the U.S., other than
through Enable. This requirement applies to both CenterPoint and OGE Energy for so long as either CenterPoint or OGE
Energy holds any interest in Enable's general partner or at least 20 percent of its common units. However, if CenterPoint or
OGE Energy acquires any business with midstream operations assets that have a value in excess of $50.0 million (or
$100.0 million in the aggregate with such party's other acquired midstream operations assets that have not been offered to
Enable), the acquiring party will be required to offer to Enable such assets for such value. If Enable does not purchase such
assets, the acquiring party will be free to retain and operate such midstream assets, so long as the value of the assets does not
reach certain thresholds.
As a result, under the circumstances described above, CenterPoint and OGE Energy have the ability to construct or
acquire assets that directly compete with Enable's assets. Pursuant to the terms of Enable's partnership agreement, the doctrine
of corporate opportunity, or any analogous doctrine, does not apply to Enable's general partner or any of its affiliates, including
its executive officers and directors and CenterPoint and OGE Energy. Any such person or entity that becomes aware of a
potential transaction, agreement, arrangement or other matter that may be an opportunity for Enable will not have any duty to
communicate or offer such opportunity to Enable. Any such person or entity will not be liable to Enable or to any limited
partner for breach of any fiduciary duty or other duty by reason of the fact that such person or entity pursues or acquires such
opportunity for itself, directs such opportunity to another person or entity or does not communicate such opportunity or
information to Enable. This may create actual and potential conflicts of interest between Enable and affiliates of its general
partner and result in less than favorable treatment of Enable and its common unitholders.
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Enable may issue additional units without unitholder approval, which would dilute existing unitholder ownership interests.
Enable's partnership agreement does not limit the number of additional limited partner interests, including limited
partner interests that rank senior to the common units, that it may issue at any time without the approval of its unitholders. The
issuance by Enable of additional common units or other equity securities of equal or senior rank will have the following effects:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Enable's existing unitholders' proportionate ownership interest in Enable will decrease;
the amount of distributable cash flow on each unit may decrease;
because the amount payable to holders of incentive distribution rights is based on a percentage of the total
distributable cash flow, the distributions to holders of incentive distribution rights will increase even if the per unit
distribution on common units remains the same;
the ratio of taxable income to distributions may increase;
the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding unit may be diminished; and
the market price of the common units may decline.

In addition, upon a change of control or certain fundamental transactions, Enable's Series A Preferred Units are
convertible into common units at the option of the holders of such units. If a substantial portion of the Series A Preferred Units
were converted into common units, common unitholders could experience significant dilution. In addition, if holders of such
converted Series A Preferred Units were to dispose of a substantial portion of these common units in the public market, whether
in a single transaction or series of transactions, it could adversely affect the market price for Enable's common units. In
addition, these sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, could make it more difficult for Enable to sell its common
units in the future.
Affiliates of Enable's general partner may sell common units in the public or private markets, which could have an adverse
impact on the trading price of the common units and may sell their interest in its general partner, which may impact its
strategic direction.
As of January 29, 2021, CenterPoint held 233,856,623 of Enable's common units and 14,520,000 Series A Preferred
Units, and OGE Energy held 110,982,805 of Enable's common units. Enable's Series A Preferred Units are convertible into
common units upon a change of control or certain fundamental transactions at the option of the holders of such units. Both
Enable's common units held by CenterPoint and OGE Energy, as well as Enable's Series A Preferred Units held by CenterPoint,
are subject to certain registration rights. The sale of these units in the public or private markets could have an adverse impact on
the price of the common units or on any trading market that may develop. In addition, any sale of Enable's general partner by
CenterPoint or OGE Energy may impact Enable's strategic direction, business or results of operations.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units have rights, preferences and privileges that are not held by, and are preferential to the
rights of, holders of its common units.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units rank senior to all of its other classes or series of equity securities with respect to
distribution rights and rights upon liquidation. Enable cannot declare or pay a distribution to its common unitholders for any
quarter unless full distributions have been or contemporaneously are being paid on all outstanding Series A Preferred Units for
such quarter. These preferences could adversely affect the market price for Enable's common units or could make it more
difficult for Enable to sell its common units in the future.
Holders of the Series A Preferred Units will receive, on a non-cumulative basis and if and when declared by Enable's
general partner, a quarterly cash distribution, subject to certain adjustments, equal to an annual rate of 10 percent on the stated
liquidation preference from the date of original issue to, but not including, the five year anniversary of the original issue date,
and an annual rate of the London interbank offered rate, or LIBOR, plus a spread of 850 basis points on the stated liquidation
preference thereafter. In connection with certain transfers of the Series A Preferred Units, the Series A Preferred Units will
automatically convert into one or more new series of preferred units (the "other preferred units") on the later of the date of
transfer or the second anniversary of the date of issue. The other preferred units will have the same terms as Enable's Series A
Preferred Units except that unpaid distributions on the other preferred units will accrue from the date of their issuance on a
cumulative basis until paid. Enable's Series A Preferred Units are convertible into common units by the holders of such units in
certain circumstances. Payment of distributions on Enable's Series A Preferred Units, or on the common units issued following
the conversion of such Series A Preferred Units, could impact its liquidity and reduce the amount of cash flow available for
working capital, capital expenditures, growth opportunities, acquisitions, and other general partnership purposes. Enable's
obligations to the holders of Series A Preferred Units could also limit its ability to obtain additional financing or increase its
borrowing costs, which could have an adverse effect on its financial condition.
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Enable's Series A Preferred Units contain covenants that may limit its business flexibility.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units contain covenants preventing it from taking certain actions without the approval of
the holders of 66 2/3 percent of the Series A Preferred Units. The need to obtain the approval of holders of the Series A
Preferred Units before taking these actions could impede Enable's ability to take certain actions that its management or its board
of directors may consider to be in the best interests of its unitholders. The affirmative vote of 66 2/3 percent of the outstanding
Series A Preferred Units, voting as a single class, is necessary to amend Enable's Partnership Agreement in any manner that
would or could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the rights, preferences, obligations or privileges of
the Series A Preferred Units. The affirmative vote of 66 2/3 percent of the outstanding Series A Preferred Units and any
outstanding series of other preferred units, voting as a single class, is necessary to (A) create or issue certain party securities
with proceeds in an aggregate amount in excess of $700.0 million or create or issue any senior securities or (B) subject to
Enable's right to redeem the Series A Preferred Units, approve certain fundamental transactions.
Enable's Series A Preferred Units are required to be redeemed in certain circumstances if they are not eligible for trading
on the New York Stock Exchange, and Enable may not have sufficient funds to redeem its Series A Preferred Units if it is
required to do so.
The holders of Enable's Series A Preferred Units may request that Enable list those units for trading on the New York
Stock Exchange. If Enable is unable to list the Series A Preferred Units in certain circumstances, it will be required to redeem
the Series A Preferred Units. There can be no assurance that Enable would have sufficient financial resources available to
satisfy its obligation to redeem the Series A Preferred Units. In addition, mandatory redemption of Enable's Series A Preferred
Units could adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and ability to make cash distributions to its unitholders,
including OGE Energy.
Enable's Pending Merger with Energy Transfer
Because the exchange ratio is fixed and because the market price of Energy Transfer’s common units may fluctuate,
Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, cannot be certain of the precise value of any merger consideration they may
receive in the Energy Transfer merger.
At the time the Energy Transfer merger is completed, each issued and outstanding common unit of Enable will be
converted into the right to receive the merger consideration of 0.8595 of one common unit representing limited partner interests
in Energy Transfer. The exchange ratio for the merger consideration is fixed, and there will be no adjustment to the merger
consideration for changes in the market price of Energy Transfer common units or Enable's common units prior to the
completion of the merger. If the merger is completed, there will be a time lapse between the date of signing the merger
agreement and the date on which Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, who are entitled to receive the merger
consideration actually receive the merger consideration. The market value of Energy Transfer's common units may fluctuate
during this period as a result of a variety of factors, including general market and economic conditions, changes in Energy
Transfer's businesses, operations and prospects and regulatory considerations. Such factors are difficult to predict and in many
cases may be beyond Enable's and Energy Transfer's control. The actual value of any merger consideration received by Enable's
unitholders, including OGE Energy, upon the completion of the merger will depend on the market value of the common units of
Energy Transfer at that time. This market value may differ, possibly materially, from the market value of Energy Transfer's
common units at the time the merger agreement was entered into or at any other time. Enable's unitholders, including OGE
Energy, should obtain current quotations for Energy Transfer's common units and for Enable's common units.
The merger may not be completed and the merger agreement may be terminated in accordance with its terms.
The merger is subject to a number of conditions that must be satisfied or waived prior to the completion of the merger,
including (i) the receipt of the required approvals from Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, (ii) the expiration or
termination of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act, (iii) the absence of any governmental order or law that
prohibits or makes illegal the consummation of the merger, (iv) Energy Transfer common units issuable in connection with the
merger having been authorized for listing on the New York Stock Exchange, subject to official notice of issuance and (v)
Energy Transfer's registration statement on Form S-4 having been declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Act of 1933. The obligation of each party to consummate the merger is also conditioned upon
the other party's representations and warranties being true and correct (subject to certain materiality exceptions) and the other
party having performed in all material respects its obligations under the merger agreement. The obligation of Enable to
consummate the merger is further conditioned upon the receipt of a customary tax opinion of counsel to Enable that for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, subject to certain exceptions, (i) Enable should not recognize any income or gain as a result of the
merger and (ii) no gain or loss should be recognized by holders of Enable's common units or Series A Preferred Units as a result
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of the merger. These conditions to the completion of the merger may not be satisfied or waived in a timely manner or at all, and,
accordingly, the merger may be delayed or may not be completed.
Moreover, if the merger is not completed by November 30, 2021, either Energy Transfer or Enable may choose not to
proceed with the Energy Transfer merger, and the parties can mutually decide to terminate the merger agreement at any time,
before or after approval by Enable's common unitholders, including OGE Energy. In addition, Energy Transfer and Enable may
elect to terminate the merger agreement in certain other circumstances as further detailed in the merger agreement.
The merger agreement limits Enable's ability to pursue alternatives to the merger.
The merger agreement contains provisions that may discourage a third party from submitting a competing proposal
that might result in greater value to Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, than the merger, or may result in a potential
competing acquirer proposing to pay a lower per unit price to acquire Enable than it might otherwise have proposed to pay.
These provisions include covenants not to solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage or facilitate proposals relating to alternative
transactions or, subject to certain exceptions, enter into discussions concerning or provide any non-public information in
connection with alternative transactions.
Failure to complete the merger could negatively impact the price of Enable's common units, as well as Enable's future
businesses and financial results.
The merger agreement contains a number of conditions that must be satisfied or waived prior to the completion of the
merger. There can be no assurance that all of the conditions to the completion of the merger will be so satisfied or waived. If
these conditions are not satisfied or waived, Enable will be unable to complete the merger.
If the merger is not completed for any reason, including the failure to receive the required approval of holders of
Enable's common units, including OGE Energy, Enable's future businesses and financial results may be adversely affected,
including as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Enable may experience negative reactions from the financial markets, including negative impacts on the market price
of Enable's common units;
the manner in which customers, vendors, business partners and other third parties perceive Enable may be negatively
impacted, which in turn could affect its marketing operations or its ability to compete for new business or obtain
renewals in the marketplace more broadly;
Enable will still be required to pay certain significant costs relating to the merger, such as legal, accounting, financial
advisor and printing fees;
Enable may experience negative reactions from employees; and
Enable will have expended time and resources that could otherwise have been spent on its existing businesses and the
pursuit of other opportunities that could have been beneficial to Enable.

In addition to the above risks, if the merger agreement is terminated and Enable's board of directors seeks an
alternative transaction, Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, cannot be certain that Enable will be able to find a party
willing to engage in a transaction on more attractive terms than the merger. If the merger agreement is terminated under
specified circumstances, Enable may be required to pay Energy Transfer a termination fee.
Enable will be subject to business uncertainties while the merger is pending, which could adversely affect its businesses.
Uncertainties about the effect of the merger on employees and customers may have an adverse effect on Enable. These
uncertainties may impair Enable's ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel until the merger is completed and for a
period of time thereafter and could cause customers and others that deal with Enable to seek to change their existing business
relationships with Enable. Employee retention may be particularly challenging during the pendency of the merger, as
employees may experience uncertainty about their roles with Energy Transfer following the merger. In addition, the merger
agreement restricts Enable from entering into certain corporate transactions and taking other specified actions without the
consent of Energy Transfer, and generally requires Enable to continue its operations in the ordinary course, until completion of
the merger. These restrictions may prevent Enable from pursuing attractive business opportunities that may arise prior to the
completion of the merger.
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The common units representing limited partner interests in Energy Transfer to be received by Enable's common
unitholders, including OGE Energy, upon completion of the merger will have different rights than Enable's common units.
Upon completion of the merger, Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy, will no longer be unitholders of Enable.
Instead, Enable's former unitholders, including OGE Energy, will become Energy Transfer unitholders and while their rights as
Energy Transfer unitholders will continue to be governed by the laws of the state of Delaware, their rights will be subject to and
governed by the terms of the Energy Transfer certificate of limited partnership, as amended, and the third amended and restated
agreement of limited partnership of Energy Transfer, as amended. The laws of the state of Delaware and terms of the Energy
Transfer certificate of limited partnership and the Energy Transfer third amended and restated agreement of limited partnership
are in some respects different than the terms of Enable's certificate of limited partnership and Enable's partnership agreement,
which currently govern the rights of Enable's unitholders, including OGE Energy.
Completion of the merger may trigger change in control or other provisions in certain agreements to which Enable is a
party.
The completion of the merger may trigger change in control or other provisions in certain agreements to which Enable
is a party. If Enable is unable to negotiate waivers of those provisions, the counterparties may exercise their rights and remedies
under the agreements, potentially terminating the agreements, or seeking monetary damages. Even if Enable is able to negotiate
waivers, the counterparties may require a fee for such waivers or seek to renegotiate the agreements on terms less favorable to
Enable.
Enable will incur significant transaction and merger-related costs in connection with the merger, which may be in excess of
those anticipated by Enable.
Enable has incurred and expects to continue to incur a number of non-recurring costs associated with negotiating and
completing the merger, combining the operations of the two partnerships and achieving desired synergies. These fees and costs
have been, and will continue to be, substantial. The substantial majority of non-recurring expenses will consist of transaction
costs related to the merger and include, among others, employee retention costs, fees paid to financial, legal and accounting
advisors, severance and benefit costs and filing fees. Many of these costs will be borne by Enable even if the merger is not
completed.
Enable may be a target of securities class action and derivative lawsuits which could result in substantial costs and may
delay or prevent the merger from being completed.
Securities class action lawsuits and derivative lawsuits are often brought against public companies that have entered
into merger agreements. Even if the lawsuits are without merit, defending against these claims can result in substantial costs and
divert management time and resources. An adverse judgment could result in monetary damages, which could have a negative
impact on our liquidity and financial condition. Additionally, if a plaintiff is successful in obtaining an injunction prohibiting
completion of the merger, then that injunction may delay or prevent the merger from being completed, which may adversely
affect Enable's business, financial position and results of operation. Currently, Enable is unaware of any securities class action
lawsuits or derivative lawsuits having been filed in connection with the merger.
GENERAL RISKS
Governmental and market reactions to events involving other public companies or other energy companies that are beyond
our control may have negative impacts on our business, financial position, results of operations, cash flows and access to
capital.
Accounting irregularities at public companies in general, and energy companies in particular, and investigations by
governmental authorities into energy trading activities and political contributions, could lead to public and regulatory scrutiny
and suspicion for public companies, including those in the regulated and unregulated utility business. Accounting irregularities
could cause regulators and legislators to review current accounting practices, financial disclosures and relationships between
companies and their independent auditors. The capital markets and rating agencies also could increase their level of
scrutiny. We believe that we are complying with all applicable laws and accounting standards, but it is difficult or impossible to
predict or control what effect any of these types of events may have on our business, financial position, cash flows or access to
the capital markets. It is unclear what additional laws or regulations may develop, and we cannot predict the ultimate impact of
any future changes in accounting regulations or practices in general with respect to public companies, the energy industry or our
operations specifically. Any new accounting standards could affect the way we are required to record revenues, expenses,
assets, liabilities and equity. These changes in accounting standards could lead to negative impacts on reported earnings or
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decreases in assets or increases in liabilities that could, in turn, affect our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows.
Economic conditions could negatively impact our business and our results of operations.
Our operations are affected by local, national and worldwide economic conditions. The consequences of a recession
could include a lower level of economic activity and uncertainty regarding energy prices and the capital and commodity
markets. A lower level of economic activity could result in a decline in energy consumption, which could adversely affect our
revenues and future growth. Instability in the financial markets, as a result of recession or otherwise, also could affect the cost
of capital and our ability to raise capital. Economic conditions may also impact the valuation of certain long-lived assets,
including our investment in unconsolidated affiliates, that are subject to impairment testing, potentially resulting in impairment
charges, which could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. In March 2020, OGE Energy recognized an
impairment charge related to its investment in Enable, which resulted from decreased demand for commodities as a result of
COVID-19. The impairment charge had a material adverse impact on OGE Energy's results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
Economic conditions may be impacted by insufficient financial sector liquidity leading to potential increased
unemployment, which could impact the ability of our customers to pay timely, increase customer bankruptcies, and could lead
to increased bad debt. If such circumstances occur, we expect that commercial and industrial customers would be impacted first,
with residential customers following.
In addition, economic conditions, particularly budget shortfalls, could increase the pressure on federal, state and local
governments to raise additional funds by increasing corporate tax rates and/or delaying, reducing or eliminating tax credits,
grants or other incentives that could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and cash flows.
We are subject to financial risks associated with climate change.
Climate change creates financial risk. Potential regulation associated with climate change legislation could pose
financial risks to OGE Energy and its affiliates. On November 4, 2020, the U.S. officially withdrew from the United Nations'
"Paris Agreement" on climate change. Newly elected President Biden announced on January 20, 2021 that the U.S would rejoin
the agreement. The "Paris Agreement" or other legal requirements that result in enforceable greenhouse gas emission reduction
requirements could lead to increased compliance costs for OGE Energy and its affiliates. In addition, to the extent that any
climate change adversely affects the national or regional economic health through physical impacts or increased rates caused by
the inclusion of additional regulatory costs, CO2 taxes or imposed costs, OGE Energy and its affiliates may be adversely
impacted. There are also increasing risks for energy companies from shareholders currently invested in fossil-fuel energy
companies concerned about the potential effects of climate change who may elect in the future to shift some or all of their
investments into entities that emit lower levels of greenhouse gases or into non-energy related sectors. Institutional investors
and lenders who provide financing to fossil-fuel energy companies also have become more attentive to sustainable investing
and lending practices and some of them may elect not to provide funding for fossil fuel energy companies. To the extent
financial markets view climate change and emissions of greenhouse gases as a financial risk, this could negatively affect our
ability to access capital markets or cause us to receive less than ideal terms and conditions.
In addition, we may be subject to financial risks from private party litigation relating to greenhouse gas emissions.
Defense costs associated with such litigation can be significant and an adverse outcome could require substantial capital
expenditures and could possibly require payment of substantial penalties or damages. Such payments or expenditures could
affect results of operations, financial condition or cash flows if such costs are not recovered through regulated rates.
We are subject to cybersecurity risks and increased reliance on processes automated by technology.
In the regular course of our business, we handle a range of sensitive security and customer information. We are subject
to laws and rules issued by different agencies concerning safeguarding and maintaining the confidentiality of this information.
A security breach of our information systems such as theft or inappropriate release of certain types of information, including
confidential customer information or system operating information, could have a material adverse impact on our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.
OG&E operates in a highly regulated industry that requires the continued operation of sophisticated information
technology systems and network infrastructure. Despite implementation of security measures, the technology systems are
vulnerable to disability, failures or unauthorized access. Such failures or breaches of the systems could impact the reliability of
OG&E's generation, transmission and distribution systems which may result in a loss of service to customers and also subject
OG&E to financial harm due to the significant expense to respond to security breaches or repair system damage. OG&E's Smart
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Grid program further increases potential risks associated with cybersecurity attacks. Our generation and transmission systems
are part of an interconnected system. Therefore, a disruption caused by the impact of a cybersecurity incident of the regional
electric transmission grid, natural gas pipeline infrastructure or other fuel sources of our third-party service providers'
operations could also negatively impact our business. If the technology systems were to fail or be breached and not recovered in
a timely manner, critical business functions could be impaired and sensitive confidential data could be compromised, which
could have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
Security threats continue to evolve and adapt. We and our third-party vendors have been subject to, and will likely
continue to be subject to, attempts to gain unauthorized access to systems, or confidential data, or to disrupt operations. None of
these attempts has individually or in aggregate resulted in a security incident with a material impact on our financial condition
or results of operations. Despite implementation of security and control measures, there can be no assurance that we will be able
to prevent the unauthorized access of our systems and data, or the disruption of our operations, either of which could have a
material impact. Our security procedures, which include among others, virus protection software, cybersecurity and our
business continuity planning, including disaster recovery policies and back-up systems, may not be adequate or implemented
properly to fully address the adverse effect of cybersecurity attacks on our systems, which could adversely impact our
operations.
We maintain property, casualty and cybersecurity insurance that may cover certain resultant cyber and physical
damage or third-party injuries caused by potential cyber events. However, damage and claims arising from such incidents may
exceed the amount of any insurance available and other damage and claims arising from such incidents may not be covered at
all. For these reasons, a significant cyber incident could reduce future net income and cash flows and impact financial
condition.
Terrorist attacks, and the threat of terrorist attacks, have resulted in increased costs to our business. Continued hostilities or
sustained military campaigns may adversely impact our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
The long-term impact of terrorist attacks and the magnitude of the threat of future terrorist attacks on the electric utility
and natural gas midstream industry in general, and on us in particular, cannot be known. Increased security measures taken by
us as a precaution against possible terrorist attacks have resulted in increased costs to our business. Uncertainty surrounding
continued hostilities or sustained military campaigns may affect our operations in unpredictable ways, including disruptions of
supplies and markets for our products, and the possibility that our infrastructure facilities could be direct targets of, or indirect
casualties of, an act of terror. Changes in the insurance markets attributable to terrorist attacks may make certain types of
insurance more difficult for us to obtain. Moreover, the insurance that may be available to us may be significantly more
expensive than existing insurance coverage.
We face risks related to health epidemics and other outbreaks.
The outbreak of COVID-19 continues to be a developing situation around the globe that has adversely impacted
economic activity and conditions worldwide. In particular, efforts to control the spread of COVID-19 have led to shutdowns of
various facilities as well as disrupted supply chains around the world. Efforts to control the spread of COVID-19 have also
resulted in remote work arrangements, increased unemployment, customer slow payment or non-payment and decreased
commercial and industrial load in the U.S. generally and in our service territory to a lesser extent. We expect these particular
COVID-19 impacts will likely continue in the near future. We are continuing to monitor developments involving our
workforce, customers and suppliers and cannot predict whether COVID-19 will have a material impact on our results of
operations, financial condition and prospects. However, an extended slowdown of the United States' economic growth, demand
for commodities and/or material changes in governmental policy could result in lower economic growth and lower demand for
electricity in our key markets as well as the ability of various customers, contractors, suppliers and other business partners to
fulfill their obligations, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and
prospects. Further, the negative impacts on the economy could also adversely impact the market value of the assets that fund
our pension plans, which could necessitate accelerated funding of the plans to meet minimum federal government requirements.
The effects of COVID-19 and concerns regarding its continued global spread have negatively impacted domestic and
international demand for natural gas, NGLs and crude oil, which has and could continue to contribute to price volatility and
materially and adversely affect Enable's customers' operations and future production, resulting in less demand for Enable's
services and/or the reduction of commercial opportunities that might otherwise be available to Enable. In response to sharp
declines in demand for oil and gas as well as commodity prices resulting from the economic impact of COVID-19, many
producers have significantly reduced previously anticipated drilling and production activities and may make additional
reductions in the future. Decreased demand for commodities as a result of COVID-19 impacted the valuation of OGE Energy's
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investment in Enable, resulting in an impairment charge in March 2020 that had a material adverse impact on OGE Energy's
results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020. Further, OGE Energy's operating cash flow is derived partially
from cash distributions it receives from Enable. In response to current industry conditions, Enable reduced its dividend
distribution by half, effective April 1, 2020. Prolonged decreased demand for commodities and/or further reductions in
distributions from Enable could materially adversely affect OGE Energy's results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.
In addition, we cannot predict the ongoing impact that COVID-19 will have on our customers, suppliers, vendors and
other business partners and each of their financial conditions; however, any material effect on these parties could adversely
impact us. The impact of COVID-19 may also exacerbate the other risks discussed within this Form 10-K, any of which could
have a material effect on us. As this situation continues and can change rapidly, additional impacts may arise that we are not
aware of currently.
We face certain human resource risks associated with the availability of trained and qualified labor to meet our future
staffing requirements.
Workforce demographic issues challenge employers nationwide and are of particular concern to the electric utility
industry. The median age of utility workers is higher than the national average. Over the next three years, 20 percent of our
current employees will meet the eligibility requirements to retire. Failure to hire and adequately train replacement employees,
including the transfer of significant internal historical knowledge and expertise to the new employees, may adversely affect our
ability to manage and operate our business.
Certain provisions in our charter documents have anti-takeover effects.
Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as the Oklahoma corporation statute, may
have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of OGE Energy. Such provisions, including those
regulating the nomination of directors, limiting who may call special stockholders' meetings and eliminating stockholder action
by written consent, together with the possible issuance of preferred stock of OGE Energy without stockholder approval, may
make it more difficult for other persons, without the approval of our Board of Directors, to make a tender offer or otherwise
acquire substantial amounts of our common stock or to launch other takeover attempts that a stockholder might consider to be
in such stockholder's best interest.
We may be able to incur substantially more indebtedness, which may increase the risks created by our indebtedness.
The terms of the indentures governing our debt securities do not fully prohibit OGE Energy or OG&E from incurring
additional indebtedness. If we are in compliance with the financial covenants set forth in our revolving credit agreements and
the indentures governing our debt securities, we may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness. If we incur additional
indebtedness, the related risks that we now face may intensify.
Any reductions in our credit ratings or changes in benchmark interest rates could increase our financing costs and the cost
of maintaining certain contractual relationships or limit our ability to obtain financing on favorable terms.
We cannot assure you that any of the current credit ratings of the Registrants will remain in effect for any given period
of time or that a rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so
warrant. Our ability to access the commercial paper market could be adversely impacted by a credit ratings downgrade or major
market disruptions. Pricing grids associated with our credit facilities could cause annual fees and borrowing rates to increase if
an adverse rating impact occurs. The impact of any future downgrade could include an increase in the costs of our short-term
borrowings, but a reduction in our credit ratings would not result in any defaults or accelerations. Any future downgrade could
also lead to higher long-term borrowing costs and, if below investment grade, would require us to post collateral or letters of
credit.
Further, changes in benchmark interest rates, such as the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority's
announcement that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021, could result in increased financing costs. It is unclear
whether new methods of calculating LIBOR will be established such that it continues to exist after 2021. The U.S. Federal
Reserve, in conjunction with the Alternative Reference Rates Committee, is considering replacing U.S. dollar LIBOR with a
newly created index. If the method for calculation of LIBOR changes, if LIBOR is no longer available or if lenders have
increased costs due to changes in LIBOR, OGE Energy and OG&E may incur increases in interest rates on any borrowings and/
or may need to renegotiate our credit facilities that utilize LIBOR as a factor in determining the interest rate to replace LIBOR
with the new standard that is established.
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Our debt levels may limit our flexibility in obtaining additional financing and in pursuing other business opportunities.
We have revolving credit agreements for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other corporate
purposes. The levels of our debt could have important consequences, including the following:
•
•
•

the ability to obtain additional financing, if necessary, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or
other purposes may be impaired or the financing may not be available on favorable terms;
a portion of cash flows will be required to make interest payments on the debt, reducing the funds that would
otherwise be available for operations and future business opportunities; and
our debt levels may limit our flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions.

We are exposed to the credit risk of our key customers and counterparties, and any material nonpayment or
nonperformance by our key customers and counterparties could adversely affect our financial position, results of operations
and cash flows.
We are exposed to credit risks in our generation and retail distribution operations. Credit risk includes the risk that
counterparties who owe us money or energy will breach their obligations. If the counterparties to these arrangements fail to
perform, we may be forced to enter into alternative arrangements. In that event, our financial results could be adversely
affected, and we could incur losses.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
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Item 2. Properties.
OG&E owns and operates an interconnected electric generation, transmission and distribution system, located in
Oklahoma and western Arkansas, which included 15 generating stations with an aggregate capability of 7,120 MWs at
December 31, 2020. The following table presents information with respect to OG&E's electric generating facilities, all of which
are located in Oklahoma.
2020
Capacity
Unit
Station
Fuel
Factor Capability Capability
Station & Unit
Year Installed
Unit Design Type
Capability
(A)
(MW)
(MW)
Seminole
1
1971
Steam-Turbine
Gas
10.5 %
485
2
1973
Steam-Turbine
Gas
26.4 %
500
3
1975
Steam-Turbine
Gas
21.0 %
498
1,483
Muskogee
4
1977
Steam-Turbine
Gas
14.8 %
423
5
1978
Steam-Turbine
Gas
14.0 %
442
6
1984
Steam-Turbine
Coal
30.8 %
503
1,368
Sooner
1
1979
Steam-Turbine
Coal
28.5 %
516
2
1980
Steam-Turbine
Coal
22.8 %
515
1,031
Gas/Jet
Horseshoe Lake
5A
(B)
1971
Combustion-Turbine
Fuel
1.1 %
33
Gas/Jet
5B
(B)
1971
Combustion-Turbine
Fuel
1.0 %
31
6
1958
Steam-Turbine
Gas
13.2 %
168
7
1963
Steam-Turbine
Gas
15.7 %
211
8
1969
Steam-Turbine
Gas
10.0 %
403
9
2000
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
24.6 %
45
10
2000
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
23.4 %
43
934
Redbud (C)
1
2003
Combined Cycle
Gas
52.3 %
154
2
2003
Combined Cycle
Gas
52.9 %
154
3
2003
Combined Cycle
Gas
53.1 %
153
4
2003
Combined Cycle
Gas
52.7 %
153
614
Mustang
6
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
27.5 %
57
7
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
23.7 %
57
8
2017
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
27.8 %
58
9
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
28.3 %
58
10
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
27.5 %
57
11
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
26.6 %
57
12
2018
Combustion-Turbine
Gas
25.0 %
57
401
McClain (D)
1
2001
Combined Cycle
Gas
67.8 %
378
378
Frontier
1
1989
Combined Cycle
Gas
23.0 %
120
120
River Valley
1
1991
Steam-Turbine
Coal/Gas
28.2 %
160
2
1991
Steam-Turbine
Coal/Gas
31.1 %
160
320
Total Generating Capability (all stations, excluding renewable).................................................................................
6,649
(A) 2020 Capacity Factor = 2020 Net Actual Generation / (2020 Net Maximum Capacity (Nameplate Rating in MWs) x Period
Hours (8,760 Hours)). Capacity Factors are impacted by events that reduce Net Actual Generation such as planned outages.
(B) Represents units located at Tinker Air Force Base that are maintained by Horseshoe Lake.
(C) Represents OG&E's 51 percent ownership interest in the Redbud Plant.
(D) Represents OG&E's 77 percent ownership interest in the McClain Plant.
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Renewable

2020
Capacity
Unit
Station
Number of
Fuel
Factor Capability Capability
Units
Capability
(A)
(MW)
(MW)

Year
Installed

Location

Crossroads

2011

Canton, OK

98

Wind

39.9 %

2.3

228

Centennial

2007

Laverne, OK

80

Wind

22.4 %

1.5

120

OU Spirit

2009

Woodward, OK

44

Wind

33.8 %

2.3

101

Mustang

2015

Oklahoma City, OK

90

Solar

20.3 %

< 0.1

2

Covington

2018

Covington, OK

4

Solar

26.1 %

2.3

10

Choctaw Nation
Chickasaw Nation

2020
2020

Durant, OK
Davis, OK

2
2

Solar
Solar

20.3 %
19.5 %

2.5
2.5

5
5

Total Generating Capability (renewable).....................................................................................................................

471

Station

(A) 2020 Capacity Factor = 2020 Net Actual Generation / (2020 Net Maximum Capacity (Nameplate Rating in MWs) x Period
Hours (8,760 Hours)). Capacity Factors are impacted by events that reduce Net Actual Generation such as planned outages.
At December 31, 2020, OG&E's transmission system included: (i) 402 substations with a total capacity of 24.3 million
kV-amps and 5,122 structure miles of lines in Oklahoma and (ii) 36 substations with a total capacity of 3.8 million kV-amps
and 277 structure miles of lines in Arkansas. At December 31, 2020, OG&E's distribution system included: (i) 349 substations
with a total capacity of 10.4 million kV-amps, 29,443 structure miles of overhead lines, 3,202 miles of underground conduit and
11,038 miles of underground conductors in Oklahoma and (ii) 29 substations with a total capacity of 1.0 million kV-amps,
2,788 structure miles of overhead lines, 338 miles of underground conduit and 669 miles of underground conductors in
Arkansas.
During the three years ended December 31, 2020, both Registrants' gross property, plant and equipment (excluding
construction work in progress) additions were $2.6 billion, and gross retirements were $390.2 million. These additions were
provided by cash generated from operations, short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank borrowings and
commercial paper), long-term borrowings and permanent financings. The additions during this three-year period amounted to
19.9 percent of gross property, plant and equipment (excluding construction work in progress) for both Registrants at
December 31, 2020.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
In the normal course of business, the Registrants are confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent
liability. These generally relate to lawsuits or claims made by third parties, including governmental agencies. When appropriate,
management consults with legal counsel and other experts to assess the claim. If, in management's opinion, the Registrants have
incurred a probable loss as set forth by GAAP, an estimate is made of the loss, and the appropriate accounting entries are
reflected in the Registrants' financial statements. At the present time, based on currently available information, the Registrants
believe that any reasonably possible losses in excess of accrued amounts arising out of pending or threatened lawsuits or claims
would not be quantitatively material to their financial statements and would not have a material adverse effect on the
Registrants' financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not Applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.
OGE Energy's common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "OGE."
At December 31, 2020, there were 13,188 holders of record of OGE Energy's common stock.
Currently, all of OG&E's outstanding common stock is held by OGE Energy. Therefore, there is no public trading
market for OG&E's common stock.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The following combined discussion is separately filed by OGE Energy and OG&E. However, OG&E does not make
any representations as to information related solely to OGE Energy or the subsidiaries of OGE Energy other than itself.
Introduction
OGE Energy is a holding company with investments in energy and energy services providers offering physical
delivery and related services for both electricity and natural gas primarily in the south central U.S. OGE Energy conducts these
activities through two business segments: (i) electric utility and (ii) natural gas midstream operations. The accounts of OGE
Energy and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including OG&E, are included in OGE Energy's consolidated financial statements.
All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in such consolidation. OGE Energy generally uses the equity method
of accounting for investments where its ownership interest is between 20 percent and 50 percent and it lacks the power to direct
activities that most significantly impact economic performance.
OG&E. OGE Energy's electric utility operations are conducted through OG&E, which generates, transmits, distributes
and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. OG&E's rates are subject to regulation by the OCC, the APSC and
the FERC. OG&E was incorporated in 1902 under the laws of the Oklahoma Territory and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OGE Energy. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma, and its franchised service territory includes Fort Smith,
Arkansas and the surrounding communities. OG&E sold its retail natural gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the
natural gas distribution business.
Enable. OGE Energy's natural gas midstream operations segment represents OGE Energy's investment in Enable. The
investment in Enable is held through wholly-owned subsidiaries and ultimately OGE Holdings. Enable is primarily engaged in
the business of gathering, processing, transporting and storing natural gas. Enable's natural gas gathering and processing assets
are strategically located in four states and serve natural gas production in the Anadarko, Arkoma and Ark-La-Tex Basins.
Enable also owns crude oil gathering assets in the Anadarko and Williston Basins. Enable has intrastate natural gas
transportation and storage assets that are located in Oklahoma as well as interstate assets that extend from western Oklahoma
and the Texas Panhandle to Louisiana, from Louisiana to Illinois and from Louisiana to Alabama. At December 31, 2020, OGE
Energy owned 111.0 million common units, or 25.5 percent, of Enable's outstanding units. Enable's general partner is equally
controlled by OGE Energy and CenterPoint, who each have 50 percent management ownership. Based on the 50/50
management ownership, with neither company having control, OGE Energy accounts for its interest in Enable using the equity
method of accounting. For additional information on OGE Energy's equity investment in Enable and related party transactions,
see Notes 5 and 6 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Enable's business is impacted by commodity prices which have declined and otherwise experienced significant
volatility in recent years. Commodity prices impact the drilling and production of natural gas and crude oil in the areas served
by Enable's systems, and the volumes on Enable's systems can be negatively impacted if producers decrease drilling and
production in those areas served. Both Enable's gathering and processing segment and Enable's transportation and storage
segment can be affected by drilling and production. Enable's gathering and processing segment primarily serves producers, and
many producers utilize the services provided by Enable's transportation and storage segment. A decrease in volumes on
Enable's systems due to a decrease in drilling or production by Enable's producer customers could decrease the cash flows from
Enable's systems. In addition, Enable's processing arrangements expose them to commodity price fluctuations. A portion of
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OGE Energy's earnings and operating cash flows depend on the performance of, and distributions from, Enable. As disclosed in
this Form 10-K, Enable is subject to a number of risks, including contract renewal risks, the reliance on the drilling and
production decisions of others and the volatility of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil prices. The effects of COVID-19, including
negative impacts on demand and commodity prices, could exacerbate these risks. If any of those risks were to occur, OGE
Energy's business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
On February 12, 2021, Enable announced a quarterly dividend distribution of $0.16525 per unit on its outstanding
common units, which is unchanged from the previous quarter. If cash distributions to Enable's unitholders exceed $0.330625
per unit in any quarter, the general partner will receive increasing percentages, up to 50 percent, of the cash Enable distributes
in excess of that amount. OGE Energy is entitled to 60 percent of those "incentive distributions."
On February 16, 2021, Enable entered into a definitive merger agreement with Energy Transfer, pursuant to which,
and subject to the conditions of the merger agreement, all outstanding common units of Enable will be acquired by Energy
Transfer in an all-equity transaction. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Enable's common unitholders, including OGE
Energy, will receive 0.8595 of one common unit representing limited partner interests in Energy Transfer for each common unit
of Enable. The transaction is anticipated to close in 2021. The transaction is subject to the receipt of the required approvals from
the holders of a majority of Enable's common units, anti-trust approvals and other customary closing conditions. Assuming the
transaction closes, OGE Energy will own approximately three percent of Energy Transfer's outstanding limited partner units in
lieu of the 25.5 percent interest in Enable that it currently owns.
Overview
Strategy
OGE Energy's purpose is to energize life, providing life-sustaining and life-enhancing products and services, while
honoring its commitment to strengthen communities. Its business model is centered around growth and sustainability for
employees (internally referred to as "members"), communities and customers and the owners of OGE Energy, its shareholders.
OGE Energy is focused on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

continuing to deliver top-quartile safety results, while enabling members to deliver improved value to their
communities, customers and shareholders;
transforming the customer experience with the right balance of personalized interaction and technology that
allows our customers to self-serve;
providing safe, reliable energy to the communities and customers it serves, with a particular focus on enhancing
the value of the grid by improving reliability and resiliency;
leading economic development and job growth by attracting new and diverse businesses to improve the
infrastructure of the communities in Oklahoma and Arkansas;
ensuring the necessary mix of generation resources to meet the long-term capacity needs of our customers, with a
progressively cleaner generation portfolio;
continuing focus on innovation, intellectual curiosity and executing with excellence in order to maintain customer
rates that are some of the most affordable in the country;
delivering on earnings commitments to shareholders to enhance access to lower-cost debt and equity capital that is
needed to deploy infrastructure for the long-term economic health of its communities;
having strong regulatory and legislative relationships, built on integrity, for the long-term benefit of our
customers, communities, shareholders and members; and
developing and growing our members to be able to provide a greater contribution to the company's success, while
also improving their own lives.

OGE Energy is focused on creating long-term shareholder value by targeting the consistent growth of earnings per
share of five percent at the electric utility, underscored by a strategy of investing in lower risk infrastructure projects that
improve the economic vitality of the communities it serves in Oklahoma and Arkansas. OGE Energy utilizes cash distributions
from its natural gas midstream operations segment to help fund its electric utility capital investments. OGE Energy's financial
objectives also include maintaining investment grade credit ratings and providing a strong and reliable dividend for
shareholders.
OGE Energy's long-term sustainability is predicated on providing exceptional customer experiences, investing in grid
improvements and increasingly cleaner generation resources, environmental stewardship, strong governance practices and
caring for and supporting its members and communities.
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Recent Developments
COVID-19 Pandemic
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a pandemic, which continues to
spread throughout the U.S. and world. In an effort to contain COVID-19 or slow its spread, the U.S. federal, state and local
governments enacted various measures, including orders to close or place restrictions on businesses not deemed "essential,"
enact "shelter in place" restrictions on residents and practice social distancing when engaging in essential activities. The
COVID-19 outbreak has adversely impacted global markets and activity, including the energy industry, and it is impossible to
predict the ultimate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as the situation continues to evolve. In Oklahoma City, OG&E's largest
service territory, the mayor's "shelter in place" order required residents to stay home except for certain "essential" activities and
closed down restaurant dining rooms, personal care services and other businesses that posed a high risk for spreading
COVID-19. The order was effective from March 16, 2020 to April 30, 2020. Beginning May 1, 2020, Oklahoma City began its
phased "re-opening," and there are currently no city-wide or state-wide "shelter in place" restrictions.
The Registrants' current and potential future responses to the COVID-19 impacts on their employees, customers and
shareholders are further discussed below.
•

•

•

•

•

The Registrants' top priority is to protect their employees and their families, as well as their customers. The
Registrants are taking all precautionary measures as directed by health authorities and local and national
governments. The Registrants continue to monitor the outbreak of COVID-19 and whether any occupancy
reductions or closures are necessary to help ensure the health and safety of their employees and customers. The
Registrants are also monitoring the status and availability of vaccinations in their service territories. In order to
promote the safety of the Registrants' employees and the continuity of utility service, the Registrants implemented
health-screening processes and increased sanitation efforts at their facilities and secured additional personal
protective equipment, among other additional measures taken. The OCC and the APSC both issued accounting
orders allowing the Registrants to defer these incremental costs incurred for recovery.
As a precautionary measure in order to increase the Registrants' cash positions and preserve financial flexibility in
light of current uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, in April 2020, OGE Energy entered into a
one-year $75.0 million term loan agreement, and OG&E issued $300.0 million in senior notes. The term loan was
fully repaid in September 2020.
In March 2020, President Trump signed into U.S. federal law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act, or the "CARES Act," which is aimed at addressing the economic disruption resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic and providing certain tax relief to businesses in the U.S. The CARES Act, among other things, includes
provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of the employer portion of FICA payroll taxes, net
operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications to the net interest
deduction limitations and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property.
The Registrants concluded that the financial impact of the provisions they adopted are immaterial.
OG&E voluntarily suspended all disconnects for nonpayment, effective March 16, 2020, and on June 25, 2020
announced that it would reinstate disconnects for nonpayment in Oklahoma, effective July 6, 2020. OG&E also
announced that it will provide broad payment options to customers who repay their past due balances, including a
six-month installment plan and the Average Monthly Billing plan which would spread past due balances over a
12-month period. OG&E adjusted its reserve on accounts receivable as of December 31, 2020 in light of the
current expected credit loss model (ASU 2016-13) and the COVID-19 pandemic. The adjustment, which was $1.3
million, incorporated concerns of continued slower customer payment due to unemployment. OG&E deferred this
credit reserve amount to a regulatory asset, as both the OCC and the APSC issued accounting orders allowing
OG&E to seek recovery of incremental bad debt resulting from COVID-19. OG&E will continue to monitor the
reserve as it gains better clarity on the impacts of COVID-19 on its customers and business.
Beginning in March 2020, oil and natural gas commodity prices have experienced extreme volatility, primarily
attributable to decreased demand resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic and the actions of the Organization of
Petroleum Exporting Countries and other oil exporting nations. On April 1, 2020, Enable announced its plan to
reduce its quarterly distributions to its shareholders by 50 percent. This change in distribution, which should help
strengthen Enable's balance sheet and increase its annualized cash flows, is supported by OGE Energy. OGE
Energy does not foresee the need to access equity markets as a result of this reduction in distributions from
Enable.
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OGE Energy's Equity Investment in Enable
Effective March 31, 2020, OGE Energy estimated the fair value of its investment in Enable was below the book value
and concluded the decline in value was not temporary due to the severity of the decline and recent rapid deterioration, as well as
the near term future outlook, of the midstream oil and gas industry. Accordingly, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0 million
impairment on its investment in Enable in March 2020. Further discussion can be found in Notes 5 and 7 within "Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
During the year ended December 31, 2020, Enable recorded goodwill, long-lived asset and equity method investment
impairments and a loss on retirement that impacted OGE Energy's equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, as adjusted
for basis differences. Further discussion of these impacts can be found in "Results of Operations - OGE Holdings (Natural Gas
Midstream Operations)."
February 2021 Extreme Cold Weather Event
In February 2021, OG&E's service territory experienced an unprecedented, prolonged, cold spell that resulted in record
winter peak demand for electricity and extreme natural gas and purchased power prices. Estimates of the total regulatory asset
for OG&E's fuel and purchased power costs that will be recorded are still under development but are expected to be in the range
of $800.0 million to $1.0 billion. On February 24, 2021, OG&E submitted an application to the OCC requesting an intra-year
fuel clause increase to be effective April 1, 2021, as well as requesting regulatory asset treatment at OG&E's weighted average
cost of capital for the remaining fuel and purchased power costs associated with the unprecedented weather event. Further
discussion of the anticipated financial impact can be found in "2021 Outlook" and "Short-term Debt and Credit Facilities"
below and Note 16 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
OG&E's Regulatory Matters
Completed regulatory matters affecting current period results are discussed in Note 16 within "Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."
Summary of OGE Energy 2020 Operating Results Compared to 2019
OGE Energy's net loss was $173.7 million, or $0.87 per diluted share, in 2020 as compared to net income of $433.6
million, or $2.16 per diluted share, in 2019. The decrease in net income of $607.3 million, or $3.03 per diluted share, in 2020 as
compared to 2019 is further discussed below.
•

•

•

A net loss at OGE Holdings of $515.0 million, or $2.58 per diluted share of OGE Energy's common stock, during
the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to net income of $81.4 million, or $0.41 per diluted share of OGE
Energy's common stock, during the year ended December 31, 2019 was primarily due to a decrease in equity in
earnings of Enable related to the impairment of OGE Energy's investment in Enable recorded in March 2020,
partially offset by an income tax benefit related to the impairment charge and lower other expense. The decrease
in equity in earnings of Enable was also impacted by OGE Energy's share of Enable's SESH equity method
investment impairment recorded in September 2020, as adjusted for basis differences, and decreased net income
from Enable's gathering and processing business resulting from lower natural gas gathered and processed volumes
and lower average realized NGL and natural gas sales prices.
A decrease in net income at OG&E of $10.8 million, or $0.04 per diluted share of OGE Energy's common stock,
was primarily due to higher depreciation and amortization expense due to additional assets being placed into
service, gross margin reductions from milder weather and COVID-19 impacts, higher income tax expense and
higher interest expense driven by increased long-term debt outstanding. These decreases to net income were
partially offset by increases to gross margin driven by recovery of additional assets placed into service through the
expiration of the cogeneration credit rider and lower other operation and maintenance expense.
A decrease in net income of other operations (holding company) of $0.1 million was primarily due to lower
income tax benefit, partially offset by lower interest expense and higher other income.

A more detailed discussion regarding the financial performance for the year ended December 31, 2020 as compared to
December 31, 2019 can be found under "Results of Operations" below. A discussion of the financial performance for the year
ended December 31, 2019 compared to December 31, 2018 for OGE Energy and OG&E can be found within "Item
7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of OGE Energy's 2019 Form 10-K
and OG&E's 2019 Form 10-K, respectively.
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2021 Outlook
Key assumptions for 2021 include:
OG&E
Before consideration of the February 2021 storm event as described below, OG&E is projected to earn approximately
$352 million to $373 million, or $1.76 to $1.86 per average diluted share, in 2021 and is based on the following assumptions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

normal weather patterns are experienced for the year;
gross margin on revenues of approximately $1.553 billion to $1.569 billion, based on total retail load growth of
2.4 percent;
operating expenses of approximately $991 million to $997 million, with operation and maintenance expenses
comprising approximately 47.5 percent of the total;
net interest expense of approximately $157 million to $159 million which assumes a $2.2 million allowance for
borrowed funds used during construction reduction to interest expense;
other income of approximately flat including approximately $4.8 million of allowance for equity funds used
during construction; and
an effective tax rate of approximately 11.3 percent.

OG&E has significant seasonality in its earnings. OG&E typically shows minimal earnings in the first and fourth
quarters with a majority of its earnings in the third quarter due to the seasonal nature of air conditioning demand.
In February 2021, the OG&E service territory experienced an unprecedented, prolonged, cold spell that resulted in
record winter peak demand for electricity and extreme natural gas and purchased power prices. In 2021, OG&E expects
increased retail margins of approximately three to four cents per average diluted share related to the increased demand for
electricity associated with the February cold spell.
OG&E's natural gas costs for the month of February 2021 exceeded the total cost for all of 2020. Fuel and purchased
power costs are recovered through OG&E's Oklahoma and Arkansas fuel adjustment clauses. Estimates of the total regulatory
asset for fuel and purchased power costs that will be recorded are still under development but are expected to be in the range of
$800.0 million to $1.0 billion. OGE Energy has secured a commitment for $1.0 billion in additional short-term financing to
provide additional liquidity to help cover these increased fuel and purchased power costs. In 2021, OG&E expects to incur
approximately three to four cents per share related to incremental financing costs.
For approximately 58,000 guaranteed flat bill customers, representing approximately three percent of load, OG&E
may be unable to seek recovery for the incremental fuel and purchased power costs that are included in customers' guaranteed
flat bill agreements. In 2021, OG&E may incur approximately ten cents per average diluted share of potentially unrecoverable
fuel and purchased power costs related to guaranteed flat bill agreements.
The potential impacts associated with the February 2021 cold spell are not reflected in OG&E's 2021 earnings
guidance range of $1.76 to $1.86 per average diluted share.
OGE Holdings
Enable did not issue a 2021 earnings outlook due to the announced merger between Enable and Energy Transfer.
While OGE Energy is not issuing earnings guidance for its ownership interest in Enable for 2021, it does expect to receive
approximately $60 million to $73 million in cash distributions from its midstream investments in 2021.
Consolidated OGE Energy
OGE Energy is not issuing a 2021 consolidated earnings guidance due to Enable not issuing an earnings outlook; other
consolidated assumptions include:
•
•

approximately 200 million average diluted shares outstanding; and
breakeven results projected at the holding company.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures
OGE Energy
"Ongoing earnings" and "ongoing earnings per average diluted share" are defined by OGE Energy as GAAP Net
Income (Loss) and GAAP Earnings (Loss) per Average Diluted Share adjusted to exclude certain non-cash charges and the
associated tax impacts. These financial measures excluded a pre-tax non-cash charge of $780.0 million, or $3.90 per average
diluted share, associated with the impairment of OGE Energy's investment in Enable, which OGE Energy's management
considers an unusual and infrequent event. Management believes that ongoing earnings and ongoing earnings per average
diluted share provide a more meaningful comparison of earnings results and are more representative of OGE Energy's
fundamental core earnings power. OGE Energy's management uses ongoing earnings and ongoing earnings per average diluted
share internally for financial planning and analysis, for reporting of results to the Board of Directors and when communicating
its earnings outlook to analysts and investors.
The following table presents reconciliations of ongoing earnings and ongoing earnings per average diluted share for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

OG&E
(Electric Utility)

OGE Holdings
(Natural Gas
Midstream
Operations)
(B)

Other
Operations

Consolidated
OGE Energy
Total

(In millions)
GAAP net income (loss)............................................ $

339.4 $

(515.0) $

1.9 $

(173.7)

Enable investment impairment charge (A)................

—

780.0

—

780.0

Tax effect...................................................................

—

(190.4)

—

(190.4)

Ongoing earnings..................................................... $

339.4 $

74.6 $

1.9 $

415.9

GAAP net income (loss) per average diluted share... $

1.70 $

(2.58) $

0.01 $

(0.87)

Enable investment impairment charge per share (A).

—

3.90

—

3.90

Tax effect per share....................................................

—

(0.95)

—

(0.95)

0.01 $

2.08

Ongoing earnings per average diluted share............ $

1.70 $

0.37 $

(A) Does not include a $16.9 million pre-tax charge recorded during 2020 for OGE Energy's share of Enable's goodwill, longlived asset and equity method investment impairments and loss on retirements, as adjusted for basis differences.
(B) Tax effect and tax effect per share are calculated utilizing OGE Holdings' statutory tax rate for the year ended December 31,
2020.
OG&E
Gross margin is defined by OG&E as operating revenues less cost of sales. Cost of sales, as reflected on the income
statement, includes fuel, purchased power and certain transmission expenses. Gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measure
because it excludes depreciation and amortization and other operation and maintenance expenses. Expenses for fuel and
purchased power are recovered through fuel adjustment clauses, and as a result, changes in these expenses are offset in
operating revenues with no impact on net income. OG&E believes gross margin provides a more meaningful basis for
evaluating its operations across periods than operating revenues because gross margin excludes the revenue effect of
fluctuations in these expenses. Gross margin is used internally to measure performance against budget and in reports for
management and the Board of Directors. OG&E's definition of gross margin may be different from similar terms used by other
companies. Further, gross margin is not intended to replace operating revenues as determined in accordance with GAAP as an
indicator of operating performance. For a reconciliation of gross margin to revenue, which is the most directly comparable
financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, see
"OG&E (Electric Utility) Results of Operations" below.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of gross margin to revenue included in the 2021 Outlook.
Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2021
(In millions)
(A)
Operating revenues........................................................................................................................... $
2,303
Cost of sales......................................................................................................................................
742
Gross margin.................................................................................................................................. $
1,561
(A) Based on the midpoint of OG&E earnings guidance for 2021.
Enable
Gross margin is defined by Enable as total revenues minus costs of natural gas and NGLs, excluding depreciation and
amortization. Total revenues consist of the fees that Enable charges its customers and the sales price of natural gas and NGLs
that Enable sells. The cost of natural gas and NGLs consists of the purchase price of natural gas and NGLs that Enable
purchases. Enable deducts the cost of natural gas and NGLs from total revenues to arrive at a measure of the core profitability
of their mix of fee-based and commodity-based customer arrangements. Gross margin allows for meaningful comparison of the
operating results between Enable's fee-based revenues and Enable's commodity-based contracts which involve the purchase or
sale of natural gas, NGLs and/or crude oil. In addition, OGE Energy believes gross margin allows for a meaningful comparison
of the results of Enable's commodity-based activities across different commodity price environments because it measures the
spread between the product sales price and cost of products sold. Enable's definition of gross margin may be different from
similar terms used by other companies. Further, gross margin is not intended to replace operating revenues as determined in
accordance with GAAP as an indicator of operating performance. For a reconciliation of gross margin to revenue, which is the
most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, see "OGE Holdings (Natural Gas Midstream Operations) Results of Operations" below.
Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis presents factors that affected the Registrants' results of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the Registrants' financial positions at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The following
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto. Known trends and contingencies of a
material nature are discussed to the extent considered relevant.
OGE Energy
(In millions except per share data)
Net income (loss)......................................................................................................................................
Basic average common shares outstanding..............................................................................................
Diluted average common shares outstanding...........................................................................................
Basic earnings (loss) per average common share.....................................................................................
Diluted earnings (loss) per average common share..................................................................................
Dividends declared per common share.....................................................................................................

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
2019
$ (173.7) $
433.6
200.1
200.1
200.1
200.7
$

(0.87) $

2.17

$
(0.87) $
2.16
$ 1.58000 $ 1.50500

Results by Business Segment

(In millions)
Net income (loss):
OG&E (Electric Utility)......................................................................................................................... $
OGE Holdings (Natural Gas Midstream Operations) (A)......................................................................
Other operations (B)...............................................................................................................................
OGE Energy net income (loss).......................................................................................................... $

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
2019
339.4 $
(515.0)
1.9
(173.7) $

350.2
81.4
2.0
433.6

(A) In March 2020, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0 million impairment on its investment in Enable, as further discussed in
Notes 5 and 7 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
(B) Other operations primarily includes the operations of the holding company and consolidating eliminations.
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The following discussion of results of operations by business segment includes intercompany transactions that are
eliminated in the OGE Energy consolidated financial statements.
OG&E (Electric Utility)
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in millions)
Operating revenues...................................................................................................................................
Cost of sales..............................................................................................................................................
Other operation and maintenance.............................................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization..................................................................................................................
Taxes other than income...........................................................................................................................
Operating income...................................................................................................................................
Allowance for equity funds used during construction..............................................................................
Other net periodic benefit expense...........................................................................................................
Other income.............................................................................................................................................
Other expense...........................................................................................................................................
Interest expense.........................................................................................................................................
Income tax expense...................................................................................................................................
Net income.............................................................................................................................................
Operating revenues by classification:
Residential..............................................................................................................................................
Commercial............................................................................................................................................
Industrial................................................................................................................................................
Oilfield...................................................................................................................................................
Public authorities and street light...........................................................................................................
Sales for resale.......................................................................................................................................
System sales revenues..........................................................................................................................
Provision for rate refund........................................................................................................................
Integrated market...................................................................................................................................
Transmission..........................................................................................................................................
Other.......................................................................................................................................................
Total operating revenues......................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of gross margin to revenue:
Operating revenues.................................................................................................................................
Cost of sales...........................................................................................................................................
Gross margin........................................................................................................................................
MWh sales by classification (In millions)
Residential..............................................................................................................................................
Commercial............................................................................................................................................
Industrial................................................................................................................................................
Oilfield...................................................................................................................................................
Public authorities and street light...........................................................................................................
System sales.........................................................................................................................................
Integrated market...................................................................................................................................
Total sales.............................................................................................................................................
Number of customers................................................................................................................................
Weighted-average cost of energy per kilowatt-hour (In cents)
Natural gas.............................................................................................................................................
Coal........................................................................................................................................................
Total fuel................................................................................................................................................
Total fuel and purchased power.............................................................................................................
Degree days (A)
Heating - Actual...................................................................................................................................
Heating - Normal..................................................................................................................................
Cooling - Actual...................................................................................................................................
Cooling - Normal.................................................................................................................................
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2020
2019
$ 2,122.3 $ 2,231.6
644.6
786.9
464.4
492.5
391.3
355.0
97.2
89.5
524.8
507.7
4.8
4.5
3.1
1.2
5.0
6.7
2.6
6.9
154.8
140.5
34.7
20.1
$
339.4 $
350.2
$

869.0 $
891.1
479.4
503.1
197.3
223.0
172.3
204.0
176.8
195.7
0.1
0.1
1,894.9
2,017.0
3.8
(0.9)
49.6
38.4
143.3
148.0
30.7
29.1
$ 2,122.3 $ 2,231.6
$ 2,122.3 $ 2,231.6
644.6
786.9
$ 1,477.7 $ 1,444.7
9.5
6.3
4.2
4.2
2.8
27.0
2.0
29.0
867,389

9.7
6.5
4.5
4.6
3.1
28.4
1.2
29.6
857,754

2.077
1.821
1.863
2.120

2.188
2.029
1.970
2.534

3,303
3,354
1,804
2,095

3,771
3,354
2,018
2,095

(A) Degree days are calculated as follows: The high and low degrees of a particular day are added together and then averaged. If the
calculated average is above 65 degrees, then the difference between the calculated average and 65 is expressed as cooling degree days,
with each degree of difference equaling one cooling degree day. If the calculated average is below 65 degrees, then the difference
between the calculated average and 65 is expressed as heating degree days, with each degree of difference equaling one heating degree
day. The daily calculations are then totaled for the particular reporting period.

OG&E's net income decreased $10.8 million, or 3.1 percent, in 2020 as compared to 2019. The following section
discusses the primary drivers for the decrease in net income in 2020 as compared to 2019.
Operating revenues decreased $109.3 million, or 4.9 percent, in 2020 as compared to 2019, primarily due to reduced
cost of sales which are recovered from customers.
Gross margin increased $33.0 million, or 2.3 percent, primarily driven by the below factors.
(In millions)

$ Change
Price variance (A)......................................................................................................................................................... $
70.5
New customer growth..................................................................................................................................................
10.8
Quantity impacts (primarily weather) (B)....................................................................................................................
(29.2)
Non-residential demand and related revenues..............................................................................................................
(9.7)
Industrial and oilfield sales...........................................................................................................................................
(9.3)
Other.............................................................................................................................................................................
(0.1)
Change in gross margin (C)..................................................................................................................................... $
33.0
(A) Increased primarily due to the recovery of additional assets placed into service through the expiration of the cogeneration
credit rider in the second half of 2019.
(B) Decreased primarily due to a 10.6 percent decrease in cooling degree days and a 12.4 percent decrease in heating degree
days.
(C) Gross margin was impacted by COVID-19, particularly as seen in the negative impacts within industrial and oilfield sales
and non-residential demand and related revenues.
Cost of sales for OG&E consists of fuel used in electric generation, purchased power and transmission related charges.
The actual cost of fuel used in electric generation and certain purchased power costs are passed through to OG&E's customers
through fuel adjustment clauses. The fuel adjustment clauses are subject to periodic review by the OCC and the APSC. OG&E's
cost of sales decreased $142.3 million, or 18.1 percent, primarily driven by the below factors.
$ Change % Change
(In millions)
Fuel expense (A)..................................................................................................................................... $
(9.0)
(2.7)%
Purchased power costs:
Purchases from SPP (B)..................................................................................................................
(117.5)
(39.6)%
Cogeneration (C).............................................................................................................................
(14.7)
(100.0)%
Wind................................................................................................................................................
(0.3)
(0.6)%
Other................................................................................................................................................
Transmission expense.............................................................................................................................
Change in cost of sales.................................................................................................................... $

(0.3)
(0.5)
(142.3)

(4.0)%
(0.6)%

(A) Decreased primarily due to lower fuel costs related to the generating assets utilized during 2020.
(B) Decreased primarily due to lower market prices as a result of decreased fuel costs for generators along with decreased
MWhs purchased of 7.5 percent in 2020.
(C) Decreased due to the expiration of cogeneration contracts in 2019.
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Other operation and maintenance expense decreased $28.1 million, or 5.7 percent, primarily driven by the below
factors.
(In millions)
$ Change % Change
Capitalized labor..................................................................................................................................... $
(15.6)
(14.6)%
Contract technical and construction services..........................................................................................
(13.8)
(27.6)%
Corporate overheads and allocations......................................................................................................
(7.2)
(5.5)%
Other.......................................................................................................................................................
(5.3)
(3.9)%
Materials and supplies.............................................................................................................................
(4.7)
(18.7)%
Payroll and benefits.................................................................................................................................
10.3
4.2 %
New expenses related to River Valley (A)..............................................................................................
8.2
60.0 %
Change in other operation and maintenance expense (B).................................................................. $
(28.1)
(A) Additional other operation and maintenance expenses related to the purchase of the River Valley plant are primarily
recovered through a rider mechanism, as approved by the OCC in 2019.
(B) OG&E has been focused on reducing other operation and maintenance activities in light of COVID-19. Further, certain
incremental expenses incurred by OG&E related to its COVID-19 response have been deferred and are included in the
regulatory assets and liabilities table in Note 1 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Depreciation and amortization expense increased $36.3 million, or 10.2 percent, primarily due to additional assets
being placed into service and depreciation expense for the Sooner Dry Scrubbers no longer being deferred to a regulatory asset.
Taxes other than income increased $7.7 million, or 8.6 percent, primarily due to increased ad valorem taxes.
Interest on long-term debt increased $14.5 million, or 10.5 percent, primarily due to increased long-term debt
outstanding and interest expense for the Sooner Dry Scrubbers no longer being deferred to a regulatory asset.
Income tax expense increased $14.6 million, or 72.6 percent, primarily due to reduced tax credit generation, reduced
amortization of net unfunded deferred taxes and higher pretax income.
OGE Holdings (Natural Gas Midstream Operations)
Year Ended
December 31,
(In millions)
2020
2019
Operating revenues................................................................................................................................... $
— $
—
Cost of sales..............................................................................................................................................
—
—
Other operation and maintenance.............................................................................................................
1.7
2.8
Depreciation and amortization..................................................................................................................
—
—
Taxes other than income...........................................................................................................................
0.4
0.4
Operating loss........................................................................................................................................
(2.1)
(3.2)
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates (A).....................................................................
(668.0)
113.9
Other expense...........................................................................................................................................
2.9
8.6
Income (loss) before taxes.....................................................................................................................
(673.0)
102.1
Income tax expense (benefit)....................................................................................................................
(158.0)
20.7
Net income (loss) attributable to OGE Holdings................................................................................... $ (515.0) $
81.4
(A) In March 2020, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0 million impairment on its investment in Enable, as further discussed in
Notes 5 and 7 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Reconciliation of Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates
See Note 5 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for the reconciliation of Enable's net
income to OGE Energy's equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates and the reconciliation of the difference between
OGE Energy's investment in Enable and its underlying equity in the net assets of Enable (basis difference).
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Enable Results of Operations and Operating Data
The following section presents summarized financial information of Enable for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019 and related discussion of the primary drivers for the changes in 2020 as compared to 2019.

(In millions)
Reconciliation of gross margin to revenue:
Total revenues........................................................................................................................................
Cost of natural gas and NGLs................................................................................................................
Gross margin........................................................................................................................................
Operating income......................................................................................................................................
Net income................................................................................................................................................

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
2019
$
$
$
$

Natural gas gathered volumes - TBtu/d....................................................................................................
Natural gas processed volumes - TBtu/d (A)............................................................................................
NGLs sold - MBbl/d (B)...........................................................................................................................
Crude oil and condensate gathered volumes - MBbl/d.............................................................................
Transported volumes - TBtu/d..................................................................................................................

2,463
965
1,498
465
52

$
$
$
$

2,960
1,279
1,681
569
360

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
2019
4.26
4.56
2.19
2.53
128.40
131.59
124.84
128.46
5.45
6.18

(A) Includes volumes under third-party processing arrangements.
(B) Excludes condensate. NGLs sold includes volumes of NGLs withdrawn from inventory or purchased for system balancing
purposes.
OGE Holdings' net loss of $515.0 million compared to net income of $81.4 million for 2020 and 2019, respectively,
was primarily due to the impairment recorded in March 2020 on OGE Energy's investment in Enable, which is discussed in
more detail in Notes 5 and 7 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." OGE Holdings' net loss in 2020
was also impacted by a decrease in Enable's net income of $308.0 million in 2020 as compared to 2019.
The following table presents summarized information regarding Enable's income statement changes for the year ended
December 31, 2020, compared to the same period in 2019, and the corresponding impact those changes had on OGE Energy's
equity in earnings of Enable. See Note 5 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion
of OGE Energy's equity investment in Enable. The decrease in Enable's net income was primarily due to the below factors.
(In millions)
Gross margin.........................................................................................................
Impairments of property, plant and equipment and goodwill (A)........................
Depreciation and amortization..............................................................................
Operation and maintenance, general and administrative (B)................................
Equity in earnings (losses) of equity method affiliate (C)....................................

Income Statement
Change at Enable
$
(183.0)
$
(58.0)
$
(13.0)
$
(10.0)
$
(227.0)

Impact to OGE
Energy's Equity in
Earnings
$
(46.7)
$
39.5
$
3.3
$
6.7
$
(12.0)

(A) Included in Enable's impairments of property, plant and equipment and goodwill is a $12.0 million goodwill impairment
and a $16.0 million impairment for certain long-lived assets in their gathering and processing business segment. These
certain long-lived assets are jointly-owned by Enable, which reduces the impairment's impact by 50 percent on OGE
Energy's equity in earnings. OGE Energy recorded a $4.4 million pre-tax charge for its share of Enable's goodwill and
long-lived asset impairments, as adjusted for basis differences.
(B) Included in Enable's operation and maintenance and general and administrative expenses is a $20.0 million loss on
retirement of an Ark-La-Tex gathering system in their gathering and processing business segment. OGE Energy recorded a
$1.0 million pre-tax charge for its share of Enable's loss on retirement, as adjusted for basis differences.
(C) Included Enable's equity in earnings (losses) of equity method affiliate is a $225.0 million impairment that Enable recorded
on its SESH equity method investment. Enable estimated the fair value of this equity method investment was below the
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carrying value at September 30, 2020 and concluded the decline in value was other than temporary due to the expiration of
a transportation contract and the current status of renewal negotiations. OGE Energy recorded a $11.5 million pre-tax
charge for its share of Enable's equity method investment impairment, as adjusted for basis differences.
Enable's gathering and processing business segment reported a decrease of $133.0 million in operating income. The
following table presents summarized information regarding Enable's gathering and processing business segment income
statement changes for 2020 as compared to 2019, and the corresponding impact those changes had on OGE Energy's equity in
earnings of Enable. The decrease in Enable's gathering and processing business segment operating income was primarily due to
the below factors.
(In millions)
Gross margin.........................................................................................................
Impairments of property, plant and equipment and goodwill (A)........................
Depreciation and amortization..............................................................................
Operation and maintenance, general and administrative (B)................................

Income Statement
Change at Enable
$
(185.0)
$
(58.0)
$
(9.0)
$
14.0

Impact to OGE
Energy's Equity in
Earnings
$
(47.2)
$
39.5
$
2.3
$
0.5

(A) Included in Enable's impairments of property, plant and equipment and goodwill is a $12.0 million goodwill impairment
and a $16.0 million impairment for certain long-lived assets in their gathering and processing business segment. These
certain long-lived assets are jointly-owned by Enable, which reduces the impairment's impact by 50 percent on OGE
Energy's equity in earnings. OGE Energy recorded a $4.4 million pre-tax charge for its share of Enable's goodwill and
long-lived asset impairments, as adjusted for basis differences.
(B) Included in Enable's operation and maintenance and general and administrative expenses is a $20.0 million loss on
retirement of an Ark-La-Tex gathering system in their gathering and processing business segment. OGE Energy recorded a
$1.0 million pre-tax charge for its share of Enable's loss on retirement, as adjusted for basis differences.
Gathering and processing gross margin decreased primarily due to the following:
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•

a decrease in natural gas gathering fees due to lower gathered volumes in the Anadarko and Arkoma Basins,
inclusive of producer shut-ins in the Anadarko Basin that occurred during a portion of 2020, lower shortfall fees
associated with the expiration of certain minimum volume commitments contracts in the Ark-La-Tex and Arkoma
Basins and lower revenue associated with a 2019 amendment of certain minimum volume commitment contracts
in the Arkoma Basin;
a decrease in revenues from natural gas sales less the cost of natural gas due to lower average sales prices and
lower sales volumes;
a decrease in revenues from NGL sales less the cost of NGLs due to lower volumes and lower average market
prices for NGL products;
a decrease in processing service fees due to lower processed volumes under fee-based arrangements, partially
offset by higher consideration received from percent-of-proceeds, percent-of-liquids and keep-whole processing
arrangements due to an increase in retained volumes at lower average market prices as well as an increase in the
recognition of certain annual minimum processing fees;
a decrease in realized gains on natural gas, condensate and NGL derivatives;
a decrease in changes in the fair value of natural gas, condensate and NGL derivatives;
a decrease in intercompany management fees; and
crude oil, condensate and produced water gathering revenues remained flat primarily due to a decrease in gathered
crude oil volumes in the Williston Basin, offset by customer project reimbursements.

Enable's transportation and storage business segment reported an increase of $29.0 million in operating income. The
following table presents summarized information regarding Enable's transportation and storage business segment income
statement changes for 2020 as compared to 2019, and the corresponding impact those changes had on OGE Energy's equity in
earnings of Enable. The increase in Enable's transportation and storage business segment operating income was primarily due to
the below factors.
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Income Statement
(In millions)
Change at Enable
Gross margin......................................................................................................... $
2.0
Operation and maintenance, General and administrative..................................... $
(24.0)
Depreciation and amortization.............................................................................. $
(4.0)

Impact to OGE
Energy's Equity in
Earnings
$
0.5
$
6.1
$
1.0

Transportation and storage gross margin increased primarily due to the following:
•
•

•
•
•
•

an increase in system management activities; and
an increase in firm transportation and storage services due to an increase in recognized rates and the recognition of
certain previously reserved revenue upon the settlement of the MRT rate case, partially offset by lower interstate
contracted capacity and lower rates on certain contracts for intrastate service with power generators; partially
offset by
a decrease in volume-dependent transportation revenues due to lower off-system intrastate transportation rates and
lower transported volumes due to decreased production activity in the Anadarko Basin, partially offset by the
recognition of revenue upon the settlement of the MRT rate case;
a decrease in natural gas storage inventory due to write-downs to lower of cost or net realizable value of natural
gas storage inventories;
a decrease in realized gain on natural gas derivatives; and
a decrease in revenues from NGL sales less the cost of NGLs due to a decrease in average NGL prices and lower
volumes.

OGE Holdings' income tax benefit was $158.0 million for 2020, as compared to income tax expense of $20.7 million
in 2019. The change is primarily due to a tax benefit of $190.4 million related to the impairment recorded in March 2020 on
OGE Energy's investment in Enable, partially offset by state deferred tax adjustments related to OGE Energy's investment in
Enable.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement
As of December 31, 2020, OG&E has a noncancellable operating lease with a purchase option, covering 780 rotary
gondola railcars to transport coal from Wyoming to OG&E's coal-fired generation units. Rental payments are charged to fuel
expense and are recovered through OG&E's fuel adjustment clauses. At the end of the lease term, which is February 1, 2024,
OG&E has the option to either purchase the railcars at a stipulated fair market value or renew the lease. If OG&E chooses not to
purchase the railcars or renew the lease agreement and the actual fair value of the railcars is less than the stipulated fair market
value, OG&E would be responsible for the difference in those values up to a maximum of $6.8 million.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
OGE Energy
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
2019
Net cash provided from operating activities (A)....................................................... $ 712.8 $ 681.5
Net cash used in investing activities (B)................................................................... $ (654.9) $ (624.7)
Net cash used in financing activities (C).................................................................. $ (56.8) $ (151.1)

$
%
Change Change
$
31.3
4.6 %
$ (30.2)
4.8 %
$
94.3 (62.4)%

(A) Increased primarily due to a decrease in payments for purchased power at OG&E.
(B) Increased primarily due to increased reliability projects, partially offset by environmental projects at OG&E that were
completed and placed into service in 2019 as well as fewer OG&E plant outages in 2020.
(C) Decreased primarily due to the payment of long-term debt by OG&E in January 2019, partially offset by a decrease in
borrowings of short-term debt.
Working Capital
Working capital is defined as the difference in current assets and current liabilities. OGE Energy's working capital
requirements are driven generally by changes in accounts receivable, accounts payable, commodity prices, credit extended to
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and the timing of collections from OG&E's customers, the level and timing of spending for maintenance and expansion activity,
inventory levels and fuel recoveries. The following discussion addresses changes in OGE Energy's working capital balances at
December 31, 2020 compared to December 31, 2019.
Fuel Inventories decreased $9.8 million, or 21.2 percent, primarily due to decreased coal inventory.
Materials and Supplies increased $25.6 million, or 28.3 percent, primarily due to increased inventory acquired for
upcoming projects.
Fuel Clause Under Recoveries decreased $39.5 million and Fuel Clause Over Recoveries increased $23.8 million,
primarily due to increased collections from OG&E customers and lower fuel costs.
Other Current Assets increased $16.8 million, or 68.9 percent, primarily due to an increase in under-recovered riders
and SPP transmission formula rate.
Short-term Debt decreased $17.0 million, or 15.2 percent, primarily due to funds for operational needs. OGE Energy
borrows on a short-term basis, as necessary, by the issuance of commercial paper and borrowings under its revolving credit
agreements and term credit agreement.
Accounts Payable increased $56.6 million, or 29.0 percent, primarily due to accruals related to storm restoration
activity in the fourth quarter and timing of vendor payments.
Accrued Taxes increased $13.8 million, or 32.9 percent, primarily due to the deferment of the employer portion of
FICA payroll taxes as allowed by the CARES Act and an increase in tax accruals related to ad valorem and income taxes.
Accrued Compensation decreased $9.5 million, or 23.4 percent, primarily due to lower accruals for incentive
compensation in 2020 and labor accrued but not paid due to timing of pay periods.
Other Current Liabilities decreased $31.5 million, or 48.3 percent, primarily due to changes in amounts owed to
OG&E customers which includes an $18.9 million reduction in SPP reserves related to the transmission formula rate and
decreased over-recovered riders.
2020 Capital Requirements, Sources of Financing and Financing Activities
OGE Energy's total capital requirements, consisting of capital expenditures and maturities of long-term debt, were
$650.6 million, and contractual obligations, net of recoveries through fuel adjustment clauses, were $0.9 million, resulting in
total net capital requirements and contractual obligations of $651.5 million in 2020. This compares to net capital requirements
of $885.6 million and net contractual obligations of $12.0 million totaling $897.6 million in 2019.
In 2020, OGE Energy's primary sources of capital were cash generated from operations, proceeds from the issuance of
long- and short-term debt and distributions from Enable. Changes in working capital reflect the seasonal nature of OGE
Energy's business, the revenue lag between billing and collection from customers and fuel inventories. See "Working Capital"
for a discussion of significant changes in net working capital requirements as it pertains to operating cash flow and liquidity.
The Dodd-Frank Act
Derivative instruments have been used at times in managing OG&E's commodity price exposure. The Dodd-Frank
Act, among other things, provides for regulation by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission of certain commodity-related
contracts. Although OG&E qualifies for an end-user exception from mandatory clearing of commodity-related swaps, these
regulations could affect the ability of OG&E to participate in these markets and could add additional regulatory oversight over
its contracting activities.
Future Capital Requirements
OGE Energy's primary needs for capital are related to acquiring or constructing new facilities and replacing or
expanding existing facilities at OG&E. Other working capital requirements are expected to be primarily related to maturing
debt, operating lease obligations, fuel clause under and over recoveries and other general corporate purposes. OGE Energy
generally meets its cash needs through a combination of cash generated from operations, short-term borrowings (through a
combination of bank borrowings and commercial paper) and permanent financings.
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Capital Expenditures
The following table presents OGE Energy's estimates of capital expenditures for the years 2021 through 2025. These
capital expenditures represent the base maintenance capital expenditures (i.e., capital expenditures to maintain and operate OGE
Energy's businesses) plus capital expenditures for known and committed projects. Estimated capital expenditures for Enable are
not included.
(In millions)
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total
Transmission................................................................................ $
80 $
110 $
115 $
105 $
125 $
535
Oklahoma distribution..................................................................
300
290
265
300
300
1,455
Arkansas distribution...................................................................
25
20
20
20
20
105
Generation....................................................................................
100
85
125
125
130
565
Oklahoma Grid Advancement......................................................
170
180
185
185
185
905
Subscription Solar Plan................................................................
10
20
20
20
20
90
Other.............................................................................................
65
80
80
80
80
385
Total........................................................................................ $
750 $
785 $
810 $
835 $
860 $ 4,040
Additional capital expenditures beyond those identified in the table above, including additional incremental growth
opportunities in electric transmission assets, will be evaluated based upon their impact upon achieving OGE Energy's financial
objectives. The continued progression of, and global response to, the COVID-19 outbreak increases the risk of delays in
construction activities and equipment deliveries related to OGE Energy's capital projects, including potential delays in obtaining
permits from government agencies, resulting in potential deferral of capital expenditures.
Contractual Obligations
The following table presents OGE Energy's contractual obligations at December 31, 2020. See the statements of
capitalization and Notes 4 and 15 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information.
(In millions)
2021
2022-2023 2024-2025 After 2025
Total
Maturities of long-term debt............................................... $
— $
— $
— $ 3,529.8 $ 3,529.8
Operating lease obligations:
Railcars.............................................................................
Wind farm land leases......................................................
Other leases......................................................................
Total operating lease obligations.................................
Purchase obligations and commitments:
Minimum purchase commitments....................................
Expected wind purchase commitments............................
Long-term service agreement commitments....................
Total purchase obligations and commitments.............
Total contractual obligations.....................................
Amounts recoverable through fuel adjustment clause (A).
Total OGE Energy contractual obligations, net........ $

2.4
2.9
1.0
6.3

4.5
5.8
0.5
10.8

0.2
6.0
—
6.2

72.5
55.2
2.4
130.1
136.4
(130.1)
6.3 $

100.8
111.6
10.3
222.7
233.5
(216.9)
16.6 $

62.6
113.5
66.3
242.4
248.6
(176.3)
72.3 $

—
31.7
—
31.7

7.1
46.4
1.5
55.0

307.4
543.3
317.0
597.3
83.5
162.5
707.9
1,303.1
4,269.4
4,887.9
(624.4)
(1,147.7)
3,645.0 $ 3,740.2

(A) Includes expected recoveries of costs incurred for OG&E's railcar operating lease obligations, OG&E's minimum fuel
purchase commitments and OG&E's expected wind purchase commitments.
The actual cost of fuel used in electric generation (which includes the operating lease obligations for OG&E's railcar
leases shown above) and certain purchased power costs are passed on to OG&E's customers through fuel adjustment
clauses. Accordingly, while the cost of fuel related to operating leases and the vast majority of minimum fuel purchase
commitments of OG&E noted above may increase capital requirements, such costs are recoverable through fuel adjustment
clauses and have little, if any, impact on net capital requirements and future contractual obligations. The fuel adjustment clauses
are subject to periodic review by the OCC and the APSC.
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Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans
At December 31, 2020, 43.2 percent of the Pension Plan investments were in listed common stocks with the balance
primarily invested in corporate fixed income, other securities and U.S. Treasury notes and bonds as presented in Note 13 within
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." During 2020, actual returns on the Pension Plan were $77.0 million,
compared to expected return on plan assets of $37.6 million. During the same time, corporate bond yields, which are used in
determining the discount rate for future pension obligations, decreased. Funding levels are dependent on returns on plan assets
and future discount rates. OGE Energy made a $20.0 million contribution to its Pension Plan in both 2020 and 2019. In January
2021, OGE Energy made a $40.0 million contribution to its Pension Plan and has not determined whether it will need to make
any additional contributions to the Pension Plan in 2021. OGE Energy could be required to make additional contributions if the
value of its pension trust and postretirement benefit plan trust assets are adversely impacted by a major market disruption in the
future.
The following table presents the status of OGE Energy's Pension Plan, the Restoration of Retirement Income Plan and
the postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2020 and 2019. These amounts have been recorded in Accrued Benefit
Obligations with the offset in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (except OG&E's portion, which is recorded as a
regulatory asset as discussed in Note 1 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data") in the balance
sheets. The amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and those recorded as a regulatory asset represent a net
periodic benefit cost to be recognized in the statements of income in future periods.
Restoration of
Retirement
Postretirement
Pension Plan
Income Plan
Benefit Plans
2020
2020
2020
2019
2019
2019
December 31 (In millions)
654.6 $
7.8 $
144.5 $ 136.5
Benefit obligations...................................................... $
616.1 $
10.3 $
570.3
—
47.6
Fair value of plan assets.............................................
530.3
—
47.0
(84.3) $
(7.8) $
(96.9) $ (89.5)
Funded status at end of year....................................... $
(85.8) $
(10.3) $
Common Stock Dividends
OGE Energy's dividend policy is reviewed by the Board of Directors at least annually and is based on numerous
factors, including management's estimation of the long-term earnings power of its businesses. At OGE Energy's September
2020 board meeting, the Board of Directors approved management's recommendation of a four percent increase in the quarterly
dividend rate to $0.4025 per share from $0.3875 per share effective in October 2020.
Financing Activities and Future Sources of Financing
Management expects that cash generated from operations, proceeds from the issuance of long- and short-term debt,
proceeds from the sales of common stock to the public through OGE Energy's Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan or other offerings and distributions from Enable will be adequate over the next three years to meet anticipated
cash needs and to fund future growth opportunities. OGE Energy utilizes short-term borrowings (through a combination of bank
borrowings and commercial paper) to satisfy temporary working capital needs and as an interim source of financing capital
expenditures until permanent financing is arranged. As indicated above, as a precautionary measure in order to increase OGE
Energy's cash position and preserve financial flexibility in light of uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, OGE
Energy entered into a one-year $75.0 million term loan agreement in April 2020, which was repaid in September 2020. Further,
OG&E issued $300.0 million in senior notes in April 2020. The disruption in the capital markets and the commercial paper
markets caused by the COVID-19 outbreak could make additional financing more challenging, and there can be no assurance
that OGE Energy will be able to obtain such financing on commercially reasonable terms or at all. In February 2021, OGE
Energy entered into a $1.0 billion commitment letter for an unsecured term loan facility to provide additional liquidity to help
cover the increased fuel and purchased power costs incurred by OG&E during the unprecedented cold weather event
experienced in OG&E's service territory.
Short-Term Debt and Credit Facilities
OGE Energy borrows on a short-term basis, as necessary, by issuance of commercial paper and borrowings under its
revolving credit agreements and term credit agreements.
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OGE Energy has unsecured five-year revolving credit facilities totaling $900.0 million ($450.0 million for OGE
Energy and $450.0 million for OG&E), which can also be used as letter of credit facilities. The following table presents
information about OGE Energy's revolving credit agreements as of December 31, 2020.
(Dollars in millions)
December 31, 2020
Balance of outstanding supporting letters of credit.................................................................................... $
0.4
Weighted-average interest rate of outstanding supporting letters of credit................................................
1.00 %
Net available liquidity under revolving credit agreements......................................................................... $
804.6
Balance of cash and cash equivalents......................................................................................................... $
1.1
The following table presents information about OGE Energy's total short-term debt activity for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
Year Ended
(Dollars in millions)
December 31, 2020
Average balance of short-term debt............................................................................................................ $
77.4
Weighted-average interest rate of average balance of short-term debt.......................................................
1.52 %
Maximum month-end balance of short-term debt...................................................................................... $
247.3
See Note 12 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for further discussion of the Registrants'
short-term debt activity. Such activity includes: (i) during 2020, OGE Energy entered into and subsequently repaid a $75.0
million term loan agreement in response to COVID-19; (ii) in January 2021, the Registrants extended their respective revolving
credit facilities' term for an additional year; and (iii) in January 2021, the Registrants entered into amendments for their
respective revolving credit facilities which provides the option of extending their respective commitments for up to two
additional one-year periods as well as addressed the phase out of LIBOR and the establishment of an alternative rate of interest.
On February 24, 2021, OGE Energy entered into a commitment letter with Wells Fargo and certain of its affiliates
whereby Wells Fargo committed to provide an unsecured term loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion.
While borrowing availability still exists within the Registrants' credit facilities, the $1.0 billion commitment in additional shortterm financing is expected to provide additional liquidity to help cover the increased fuel and purchased power costs incurred
by OG&E during the February 2021 unprecedented cold weather event. For further discussion, see "Item 9B. Other
Information." OGE Energy expects to have additional short-term debt outstanding in 2021 which will result in additional
interest expense.
OG&E must obtain regulatory approval from the FERC in order to borrow on a short-term basis. OG&E has the
necessary regulatory approvals to incur up to $800.0 million in short-term borrowings at any one time for a two-year period
beginning January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2022.
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
In April 2020, OG&E issued $300.0 million of 3.25 percent senior notes due April 1, 2030. The proceeds from the
issuance were added to OG&E's general funds to be used for general corporate purposes, including to fund ongoing capital
expenditures and working capital.
Security Ratings

OG&E Senior Notes......................
OG&E Commercial Paper.............
OGE Energy Senior Notes.............
OGE Energy Commercial Paper....

Moody's
Investors Service
A3
P2
Baa1
P2

Outlook
Stable
Stable
Stable
Stable

S&P's Global
Ratings
AA2
BBB+
A2

Outlook
Stable
Stable
Stable
Stable

Fitch Ratings
A
F2
BBB+
F2

Outlook
Stable
Stable
Stable
Stable

Access to reasonably priced capital is dependent in part on credit and security ratings. Generally, lower ratings lead to
higher financing costs. Pricing grids associated with OGE Energy's credit facilities could cause annual fees and borrowing rates
to increase if an adverse rating impact occurs. The impact of any future downgrade could include an increase in the costs of
OGE Energy's short-term borrowings, but a reduction in OGE Energy's credit ratings would not result in any defaults or
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accelerations. Any future downgrade could also lead to higher long-term borrowing costs and, if below investment grade, would
require OGE Energy to post collateral or letters of credit.
A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. Such rating may be subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time by the credit rating agency, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.
Future financing requirements may be dependent, to varying degrees, upon numerous factors such as general economic
conditions, abnormal weather, load growth, commodity prices, acquisitions of other businesses and/or development of projects,
actions by rating agencies, inflation, changes in environmental laws or regulations, rate increases or decreases allowed by
regulatory agencies, new legislation and market entry of competing electric power generators.
Common Stock
OGE Energy does not expect to issue any common stock in 2021 from its Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan. See Note 10 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a discussion of OGE
Energy's common stock activity.
Distributions by Enable
Pursuant to the Enable Limited Partnership Agreement, Enable made distributions of $91.7 million, $144.0 million and
$141.2 million to OGE Energy during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As required by
Enable's Limited Partnership Agreement and General Partner Agreement, respectively, the last permitted distribution date is 60
days after the close of each quarter, and the distribution deadline is five days following distributions by Enable. On April 1,
2020, Enable announced a 50 percent reduction to its quarterly distribution in order to strengthen its balance sheet and increase
its annualized retained cash flow. OGE Energy does not expect any changes to its operations or foresee the need to access the
equity markets as a result of Enable's action.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The financial statements and notes thereto contain information that is pertinent to Management's Discussion and
Analysis. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Changes to these assumptions and estimates could have a material effect on the financial statements. The
Registrants believe they have taken reasonable positions where assumptions and estimates are used in order to minimize the
negative financial impact to the Registrants that could result if actual results vary from the assumptions and estimates.
In management's opinion, the areas where the most significant judgment is exercised for the Registrants include the
determination of Pension Plan assumptions, income taxes, contingency reserves, asset retirement obligations, regulatory assets
and liabilities, unbilled revenues and the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable. For OGE Energy, significant
judgment is also exercised in the determination of any impairment of equity method investments. The selection, application and
disclosure of the following critical accounting estimates have been discussed with the Audit Committee of OGE Energy's Board
of Directors. The Registrants discuss their significant accounting policies, including those that do not require management to
make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates, in Note 1 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans
OGE Energy has a Pension Plan that covers a significant amount of its employees, including OG&E's employees,
hired before December 1, 2009. Effective December 1, 2009, OGE Energy's Pension Plan is no longer being offered to
employees hired on or after December 1, 2009. OGE Energy also has defined benefit postretirement plans that cover a
significant amount of its employees, including OG&E's employees. Pension and other postretirement plan expenses and
liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by the market value of plan assets, estimates of the expected
return on plan assets, assumed discount rates and the level of funding. Actual changes in the fair market value of plan assets and
differences between the actual return on plan assets and the expected return on plan assets could have a material effect on the
amount of pension expense ultimately recognized. The Pension Plan rate assumptions are shown in Note 13 within "Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." The assumed return on plan assets is based on management's expectation of the
long-term return on the plan assets portfolio. The discount rate used to compute the present value of plan liabilities is based
generally on rates of high-grade corporate bonds with maturities similar to the average period over which benefits will be
65

paid. Funding levels are dependent on returns on plan assets and future discount rates. Higher returns on plan assets and an
increase in discount rates will reduce funding requirements to the Pension Plan.
The following table presents the sensitivity of the Pension Plan funded status to these variables.

Actual plan asset returns..........................................................................................
Discount rate............................................................................................................
Contributions...........................................................................................................

Change
+/- 1 percent
+/- 0.25 percent
+/- $10 million

Impact on
Funded Status
+/- $5.7 million
+/- $11.9 million
+/- $10.0 million

Income Taxes
The Registrants use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, a deferred tax
asset or liability is recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities as well as tax credit carry forwards and net operating loss carry
forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period of the change.
The application of income tax law is complex. Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and often ambiguous.
Interpretations and guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations change over time. Accordingly, it is necessary to
make judgments regarding income tax exposure. As a result, changes in these judgments can materially affect amounts the
Registrants recognized in their financial statements. Tax positions taken by the Registrants on their income tax returns that are
recognized in the financial statements must satisfy a more likely than not recognition threshold, assuming that the position will
be examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information.
Commitments and Contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Registrants are confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent
liability. These generally relate to lawsuits or claims made by third parties, including governmental agencies. When appropriate,
management consults with legal counsel and other experts to assess the claim. If, in management's opinion, the Registrants have
incurred a probable loss as set forth by GAAP, an estimate is made of the loss, and the appropriate accounting entries are
reflected in the financial statements.
Asset Retirement Obligations
OG&E has recorded asset retirement obligations that are being accreted over their respective lives ranging from five to
68 years. The inputs used in the valuation of asset retirement obligations include the assumed life of the asset placed into
service, the average inflation rate, market risk premium, the credit-adjusted risk free interest rate and the timing of incurring
costs related to the retirement of the asset.
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to accounting principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities, which
provide that certain incurred costs that would otherwise be charged to expense can be deferred as regulatory assets, based on the
expected recovery from customers in future rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce
expense can be deferred as regulatory liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management's
expected recovery of deferred costs and flowback of deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators
granting such ratemaking treatment.
OG&E records certain incurred costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, it is probable that the costs or obligations will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund
in future rates. Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory assets. When in management's
judgement future recovery becomes impaired, the amount of the regulatory asset is adjusted, as appropriate.
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Unbilled Revenues
OG&E recognizes revenue from electric sales when power is delivered to customers. OG&E measures its customers'
metered usage and sends bills to its customers throughout each month. As a result, there is a significant amount of customers'
electricity consumption that has not been billed at the end of each month. OG&E accrues an estimate of the revenues for
electric sales delivered since the latest billings. Unbilled revenue is presented in Accrued Unbilled Revenues in the balance
sheets and in Operating Revenues in the statements of income based on estimates of usage and prices during the period. At
December 31, 2020, if the estimated usage or price used in the unbilled revenue calculation were to increase or decrease by one
percent, this would cause a change in the unbilled revenues recognized of $0.5 million. At December 31, 2020 and 2019,
Accrued Unbilled Revenues were $68.0 million and $64.7 million, respectively. The estimates that management uses in this
calculation could vary from the actual amounts to be paid by customers.
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable
Customer balances are generally written off if not collected within six months after the final billing date. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for OG&E is generally calculated by multiplying the last six months of electric
revenue by the provision rate, which is based on a 12-month historical average of actual balances written off and is adjusted for
current conditions and supportable forecasts as necessary. To the extent the historical collection rates, when incorporating
forecasted conditions, are not representative of future collections, there could be an effect on the amount of uncollectible
expense recognized. Also, a portion of the uncollectible provision related to fuel within the Oklahoma jurisdiction is being
recovered through the fuel adjustment clause. At December 31, 2020, if the provision rate were to increase or decrease by 10
percent, this would cause a change in the uncollectible expense recognized of $0.3 million. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable is a reduction to Accounts Receivable in the balance sheets and is included in Other Operation and
Maintenance Expense in the statements of income. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was $2.6 million and
$1.5 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
OG&E adjusted its reserve on accounts receivable as of December 31, 2020 in light of COVID-19 pandemic impacts
and deferred this credit reserve adjustment to a regulatory asset, as both the OCC and the APSC issued accounting orders
allowing OG&E to seek recovery of incremental bad debt resulting from COVID-19, as further discussed in Note 16 within
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Impairment of Equity Method Investments
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method are assessed for impairment when there
are indicators of a loss in value, such as a lack of sustained earnings capacity or a current fair value less than the investment's
carrying amount. When it is determined that an indicated impairment is other than temporary, an impairment charge is
recognized for the difference between the investment's carrying value and its estimated fair value.
When determining whether a decline in value is other than temporary, management considers factors such as the
duration and extent of the decline, the investee's financial condition and near-term prospects, and management's ability and
intention to retain the investment for a period that allows for recovery. When estimating an investment's fair value, quoted
market prices are utilized, as available, and other rights and privileges that are a feature or attribute of the investment security
are considered, as appropriate. Different assumptions could affect the timing and the amount of an impairment of an investment
in any period.
Effective March 31, 2020, OGE Energy estimated the fair value of its investment in Enable was below the book value
and concluded the decline in value was not temporary due to the severity of the decline and the recent rapid deterioration, as
well as the near term future outlook, of the midstream oil and gas industry. Accordingly, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0
million impairment on its investment in Enable in March 2020, which is included in Equity in Earnings (Losses) of
Unconsolidated Affiliates in OGE Energy's 2020 income statement. Further discussion can be found in Notes 5 and 7 within
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for discussion of current accounting
pronouncements that are applicable to the Registrants.
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Commitments and Contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Registrants are confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent
liability. These generally relate to lawsuits or claims made by third parties, including governmental agencies. When appropriate,
management consults with legal counsel and other experts to assess the claim. If, in management's opinion, the Registrants have
incurred a probable loss as set forth by GAAP, an estimate is made of the loss, and the appropriate accounting entries are
reflected in the financial statements. At the present time, based on available information, the Registrants believe that any
reasonably possible losses in excess of accrued amounts arising out of pending or threatened lawsuits or claims would not be
quantitatively material to their financial statements and would not have a material adverse effect on their financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. See Notes 15 and 16 within "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" and
"Item 3. Legal Proceedings" for further discussion of the Registrants' commitments and contingencies.
Environmental Laws and Regulations
The activities of OG&E are subject to numerous stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and regulations
governing environmental protection. These laws and regulations can change, restrict or otherwise impact OG&E's business
activities in many ways, including the handling or disposal of waste material, planning for future construction activities to avoid
or mitigate harm to threatened or endangered species and requiring the installation and operation of emissions or pollution
control equipment. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result in the assessment of administrative, civil and
criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining future operations. Management
believes that all of the Registrants' operations are in substantial compliance with current federal, state and local environmental
standards.
President Biden has taken a number of actions that affect environmental regulations adopted by the Trump
administration, including issuance of an executive order that instructs the EPA and other executive agencies to review certain
rules that affect OG&E. OG&E is monitoring these actions which are in the preliminary stages of being implemented. At this
point in time, the impacts of these actions on the Registrants' results of operations, if any, cannot be determined with any
certainty.
Environmental regulation can increase the cost of planning, design, initial installation and operation of OG&E's
facilities. Management continues to evaluate its compliance with existing and proposed environmental legislation and
regulations and implement appropriate environmental programs in a competitive market.
Air
Federal Clean Air Act Overview
OG&E's operations are subject to the Federal Clean Air Act as amended and comparable state laws and regulations.
These laws and regulations regulate emissions of air pollutants from various industrial sources, including electric generating
units and also impose various monitoring and reporting requirements. Such laws and regulations may require that OG&E obtain
pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain projects or facilities expected to produce air emissions or result in
the increase of existing air emissions, obtain and strictly comply with air permits containing various emissions and operational
limitations or install emission control equipment. OG&E likely will be required to incur certain capital expenditures in the
future for air pollution control equipment and technology in connection with obtaining and maintaining operating permits and
approvals for air emissions.
Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
On September 7, 2016, the EPA finalized an update to the 2011 Cross-State Air Pollution Rule. The new rule applies
to ozone-season NOX emissions from power plants in 22 eastern states (including Oklahoma). The rule utilizes a cap and trade
program for NOX emissions and went into effect on May 1, 2017 in Oklahoma. The 2016 rule reduces the 2011 Cross-State Air
Pollution Rule emissions cap for all of OG&E's coal and gas facilities (except the River Valley and Frontier facilities which
were not owned by OG&E until 2019) by 47 percent combined. OG&E and numerous other parties filed petitions for judicial
and administrative review of the 2016 rule. On September 13, 2019, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
Circuit issued an opinion that partially remanded the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule update and also deferred a decision on our
challenges to the rule pending an EPA review and decision on a separate administrative petition that we filed. Subsequently, all
of OG&E's judicial challenges were voluntarily dismissed, but the administrative petitions for reconsideration remain pending
at the EPA. On October 30, 2020, the EPA published a proposed rule to revise the 2016 update rule and address the 2019
remand. The EPA did not propose any additional reductions in the emissions budget for Oklahoma based on a preliminary
68

determination that the state does not cause or contribute to nonattainment of the ambient air quality standards in the relevant
downwind areas. OG&E subsequently filed comments to the proposal.
OG&E continues to monitor these processes and their possible impact on its operations but, at this time, cannot
determine with any certainty whether they will cause a material impact to OG&E's financial results. OG&E is in compliance
with the 2016 rule requirements which remain in effect. OG&E does not anticipate, at this time, additional capital expenditures
for compliance with the 2016 rule.
Hazardous Air Pollutants Emission Standards
On February 16, 2012, the EPA published the final MATS rule regulating the emissions of certain hazardous air
pollutants from electric generating units. OG&E complied with the MATS rule by the April 16, 2016 deadline that applied to
OG&E's coal units. On April 16, 2020, the EPA released a final rule which reconsidered certain elements of the 2012 rule in
response to litigation in the D.C. Circuit Court. In the final rule, the EPA concluded that it is not "appropriate and necessary" to
regulate MATS-related emissions from coal-fired units. Nonetheless, the EPA retained the emissions limits that were
established in the 2012 rule, which remains in effect today. Petitions for judicial review of the final May 2020 rule have been
filed at the D.C. Circuit Court.
National Ambient Air Quality Standards
The EPA is required to set NAAQS for certain pollutants considered to be harmful to public health or the environment.
The Clean Air Act requires the EPA to review each NAAQS every five years. As a result of these reviews, the EPA periodically
has taken action to adopt more stringent NAAQS for those pollutants. If any areas of Oklahoma were to be designated as not
attaining the NAAQS for a particular pollutant, OG&E could be required to install additional emission controls on its facilities
to help the state achieve attainment with the NAAQS. As of December 31, 2020, no areas of Oklahoma had been designated as
non-attainment for pollutants that are likely to affect OG&E's operations.
The EPA proposed to designate part of Muskogee County, in which OG&E's Muskogee Power Plant is located, as
non-attainment for the 2010 SO2 NAAQS on March 1, 2016, even though nearby monitors indicated compliance with the
NAAQS. The proposed designation was based on modeling that did not reflect the conversion of two of the coal units at
Muskogee to natural gas. The State of Oklahoma's monitoring from 2017-2019 indicated that ambient SO2 emissions in the area
are well within the NAAQS. On December 21, 2020, the EPA published in the Federal Register its final designation of the
relevant area in Muskogee County as attainment/unclassifiable.
Climate Change and Greenhouse Gas Emissions
There is continuing discussion and evaluation of possible global climate change in certain regulatory and legislative
arenas. The focus is generally on emissions of greenhouse gases, including CO2, sulfur hexafluoride and methane, and whether
these emissions are contributing to the warming of the earth's atmosphere. On November 4, 2020, the U.S. officially withdrew
from the United Nations' "Paris Agreement" on climate change. Newly elected President Biden announced on January 20, 2021
that the U.S. would rejoin the agreement. In addition, President Biden has recently stated that a goal of his administration is to
see the electric power industry fully decarbonized by 2035, although details of the goal are not available. Such decisions may
result in future additional greenhouse gas emissions reductions in the U.S.; however, it is not possible to determine what the
U.S. standards for greenhouse gas emissions will be in the future or the extent to which these commitments will be
implemented through the Clean Air Act or any other existing statutes and new legislation.
If legislation or regulations are passed at the federal or state levels in the future requiring mandatory reductions of CO2
and other greenhouse gases on OG&E's facilities, this could result in significant additional compliance costs that would affect
OG&E's future financial position, results of operations and cash flows if such costs are not recovered through regulated rates.
Several states outside the area where OG&E operates have passed laws, adopted regulations or undertaken regulatory initiatives
to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases, primarily through the planned development of greenhouse gas emission inventories
and/or regional greenhouse gas cap and trade programs.
OG&E's current business strategy has resulted in reduced carbon dioxide emissions by over 40 percent compared to
2005 levels, and during the same period, emissions of ozone-forming NOx have been reduced by approximately 75 percent and
emissions of SO2 have been reduced by approximately 90 percent. OG&E expects to further reduce carbon dioxide emissions to
50 percent of 2005 levels by 2030. To comply with the EPA's MATS rule and Regional Haze Rule FIP, OG&E converted two
coal-fired generating units at the Muskogee Station to natural gas, among other measures. OG&E's deployment of Smart Grid
technology helps to reduce the peak load demand. OG&E is also deploying more renewable energy sources that do not emit
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greenhouse gases. OG&E's service territory borders one of the nation's best wind resource areas, and OG&E has leveraged its
geographic position to develop renewable energy resources and completed transmission investments to deliver the renewable
energy. The SPP has authorized the construction of transmission lines capable of bringing renewable energy out of the wind
resource areas in western Oklahoma, the Texas Panhandle and western Kansas to load centers by planning for more
transmission to be built in the area. In addition to increasing overall system reliability, these new transmission resources should
provide greater access to additional wind resources that are currently constrained due to existing transmission delivery
limitations.
Regional Haze Regulation - Second Planning Period
In January 2017, the EPA finalized a rule that would revise certain provisions of the Regional Haze Rule. Notably, the
EPA extended the SIP deadline for the second Regional Haze implementation period by three years to 2021 and made changes
to the provisions for impacts to national parks and other protected wilderness areas. Petitions for Reconsideration to the EPA
were filed by industry groups. While not acting on the petitions, the EPA announced on January 17, 2018 that it intends to
commence a notice-and-comment rulemaking revisiting certain aspects of the rule. During 2019, the EPA released technical
resources to assist states in developing SIPs, including a significant non-binding guidance document and updated atmospheric
modeling which will allow states to better account for international emissions affecting regional haze in the U.S. On July 1,
2020, the ODEQ notified OG&E that the Horseshoe Lake generating units are to be included in the state's evaluation of
visibility impairment impacts to the Wichita Mountains. OG&E conducted an analysis of all potential control measures for NOx
on these units and submitted it to the ODEQ on September 15, 2020. The ODEQ will identify any cost-effective control
measures in a Regional Haze SIP, to be submitted to the EPA for approval by July 31, 2021. It is unknown at this time what the
outcome, or any potential material impacts, will be from the evaluations by OG&E, the ODEQ and the EPA.
Endangered Species
Certain federal laws, including the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and the
Endangered Species Act, provide special protection to certain designated species. These laws and any state equivalents provide
for significant civil and criminal penalties for unpermitted activities that result in harm to or harassment of certain protected
animals and plants, including damage to their habitats. If such species are located in an area in which OG&E conducts
operations, or if additional species in those areas become subject to protection, OG&E's operations and development projects,
particularly transmission, wind or pipeline projects, could be restricted or delayed, or OG&E could be required to implement
expensive mitigation measures.
Vegetation Management
On July 10, 2020, the U.S. Department of Agriculture – Forest Service published a final rule which updates procedures
for creating operating plans and agreements for powerline facility maintenance and vegetation management within and abutting
the linear boundary of a special use authorization for a powerline facility within Forest Service lands. This rule codifies the
memorandum of understanding between utilities such as OG&E and the Forest Service regarding vegetation management best
practices. All companies will be required to have an approved operating plan or agreement with the Forest Service. OG&E will
be required to submit a draft operating plan to the Forest Service by August 10, 2023 for ongoing maintenance and vegetation
management activities located within the Ozark National Forest in Arkansas.
Waste
OG&E's operations generate wastes that are subject to the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976
as well as comparable state laws which impose detailed requirements for the handling, storage, treatment and disposal of waste.
In 2015, the EPA finalized a rule under the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act for the handling and
disposal of coal combustion residuals or coal ash. The rule regulates coal ash as a solid waste rather than a hazardous waste,
which would have made the management of coal ash more costly. In August 2019, the EPA proposed revisions to the 2015 coal
ash rule in response to the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issuing a decision regarding the ongoing Coal Combustion Residuals
litigation. The proposed changes do not appear to be material to OG&E at this time. OG&E completed the clean closure of one
regulated inactive coal ash impoundment in August 2019.
On June 28, 2018, the EPA approved the State of Oklahoma's application for a state coal ash permitting program that
will operate in lieu of the federal coal ash program promulgated under the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.
On September 26, 2018, a citizen suit was filed against the EPA in the U.S. District Court in the District of Columbia
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concerning the final approval, which was decided upon in the EPA's favor on April 15, 2020 and has subsequently been
appealed.
OG&E currently recycles and provides approximately 97 percent of its ash to the concrete and cement industries for
use as a component within their products and, in the last five years, has diverted more than 1.3 million tons of ash from
landfills. Using fly ash in this way enables aggregate manufacturers to minimize their impact on the environment by avoiding
the need to extract and process other natural resources.
OG&E has sought and will continue to seek pollution prevention opportunities and to evaluate the effectiveness of its
waste reduction, reuse and recycling efforts. In 2020, OG&E obtained refunds of $2.6 million from the recycling of scrap metal,
salvaged transformers and used transformer oil. This figure does not include the additional savings gained through the reduction
and/or avoidance of disposal costs and the reduction in material purchases due to the reuse of existing materials. Similar savings
are anticipated in future years.
Water
OG&E's operations are subject to the Federal Clean Water Act and comparable state laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations impose detailed requirements and strict controls regarding the discharge of pollutants into state and federal
waters.
The EPA issued a final rule on May 19, 2014 to implement Section 316(b) of the Federal Clean Water Act, which
requires that power plant cooling water intake structure location, design, construction and capacity reflect the best available
technology for minimizing their adverse environmental impact via the impingement and entrainment of aquatic organisms. The
ODEQ issued final permits on December 22, 2017 and August 22, 2018 for Muskogee Power Plant and Seminole Power Plant,
respectively, in compliance with the final 316(b) rule, and OG&E did not incur any material costs associated with the rule's
implementation at either location. OG&E expects to be able to provide a reasonable estimate of any material costs associated
with the rule's implementation at other facilities following the future issuance of permits from the State of Oklahoma.
In 2015, the EPA issued a final rule addressing the effluent limitation guidelines for power plants under the Federal
Clean Water Act. The final rule establishes technology- and performance-based standards that may apply to discharges of six
waste streams including bottom ash transport water. Compliance with this rule will occur by 2023; however, on April 12, 2017,
the EPA granted a Petition for Reconsideration of the 2015 Rule. On October 13, 2020, the EPA published a final rule to revise
the technology-based effluent limitations for flue gas desulfurization waste water and bottom ash transport water. OG&E is
evaluating what, if any, compliance actions are needed but is not able to quantify with any certainty what costs may be incurred.
OG&E expects to be able to provide a reasonable estimate of any material costs associated with the rule's implementation
following issuance of the permits from the State of Oklahoma.
On April 21, 2020, the EPA and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers published a rule to define the scope of federal
jurisdiction over wetlands. This final rule replaces the repealed definition of waters of the U.S. from 2015. The rule became
effective on June 22, 2020, and OG&E does not expect any material impacts as a result.
Since the purchase of the Redbud facility in 2008, OG&E's average use of treated municipal effluent for all of the
needed cooling water at Redbud and McClain is approximately 2.5 billion gallons per year. This use of treated municipal
effluent offsets the need for fresh water as cooling water, making fresh water available for other beneficial uses like drinking
water, irrigation and recreation.
Site Remediation
The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 and comparable state laws
impose liability, without regard to the legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons responsible for the release
of hazardous substances into the environment. Because OG&E utilizes various products and generates wastes that are
considered hazardous substances for purposes of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
of 1980, OG&E could be subject to liability for the costs of cleaning up and restoring sites where those substances have been
released to the environment. At this time, it is not anticipated that any associated liability will cause a significant impact to
OG&E.
For further discussion regarding contingencies relating to environmental laws and regulations, see Note 15 within
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Market risks are, in most cases, risks that are actively traded in a marketplace and have been well studied in regards to
quantification. Market risks include, but are not limited to, changes in interest rates and commodity prices. The Registrants'
exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to short-term variable-rate debt and commercial paper. The Registrants
are exposed to commodity prices in their operations to the extent any fuel price changes are not recovered in customer rates
and, for OGE Energy, through its equity investment in Enable.
Risk Oversight Committee
Management monitors market risks using a risk committee structure. OGE Energy's Risk Oversight Committee, which
consists primarily of corporate officers, is responsible for the overall development, implementation and enforcement of
strategies and policies for all market risk management activities of the Registrants. This committee's emphasis is a holistic
perspective of risk measurement and policies targeting the Registrants' overall financial performance. On a quarterly basis, the
Risk Oversight Committee reports to the Audit Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors on OGE Energy's risk profile
affecting anticipated financial results, including any significant risk issues.
OGE Energy also has a Corporate Risk Management function which, in conjunction with the aforementioned
committees, is responsible for establishing and enforcing the Registrants' risk policies.
Risk Policies
Management utilizes risk policies to control the amount of market risk exposure. These policies are designed to
provide the Audit Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors and senior executives of the Registrants with confidence that
the risks taken on by the Registrants' business activities are in accordance with their expectations for financial returns and that
the approved policies and controls related to market risk management are being followed.
Interest Rate Risk
The Registrants' exposure to changes in interest rates primarily relates to variable-rate debt and commercial paper. The
Registrants manage their interest rate exposure by monitoring and limiting the effects of market changes in interest rates. The
Registrants may utilize interest rate derivatives to alter interest rate exposure in an attempt to reduce the effects of these
changes. Interest rate derivatives would be used solely to modify interest rate exposure and not to modify the overall leverage
of the debt portfolio, but the Registrants have no intent at this time to utilize interest rate derivatives.
The fair value of OG&E's long-term debt is based on quoted market prices and estimates of current rates available for
similar issues with similar maturities or by calculating the net present value of the monthly payments discounted by OG&E's
current borrowing rate. The following table presents OG&E's long-term debt maturities and the weighted-average interest rates
by maturity date. OGE Energy currently has no long-term debt outstanding.
Year Ended December 31
12/31/20
(Dollars in millions)
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total
Fair Value
Fixed-rate debt (A):
Principal amount................... $ —
$ —
$ —
$ —
$ —
$ 3,394.4
$3,394.4
$ 4,192.8
Weighted-average interest
rate.........................................
—%
—%
—%
—%
—%
4.48 %
4.48 %
Variable-rate debt (B):
Principal amount................... $ —
$ —
$ —
$ —
$ 79.4
$
56.0
$ 135.4
$
135.4
Weighted-average interest
rate.........................................
—%
—%
—%
—%
0.30 %
0.28 %
0.29 %
(A) Prior to or when these debt obligations mature, OG&E may refinance all or a portion of such debt at then-existing market
interest rates which may be more or less than the interest rates on the maturing debt.
(B) A hypothetical change of 100 basis points in the underlying variable interest rate incurred by OG&E would change interest
expense by $1.4 million annually.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31 (In millions except per share data)
OPERATING REVENUES
Revenues from contracts with customers.........................................................................
Other revenues.................................................................................................................
Operating revenues.....................................................................................................
COST OF SALES.................................................................................................................
OPERATING EXPENSES
Other operation and maintenance.....................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization.........................................................................................
Taxes other than income..................................................................................................
Operating expenses.....................................................................................................
OPERATING INCOME.......................................................................................................
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates...................................................
Allowance for equity funds used during construction.....................................................
Other net periodic benefit expense...................................................................................
Other income....................................................................................................................
Other expense...................................................................................................................
Net other income (expense)........................................................................................
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on long-term debt................................................................................................
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction................................................
Interest on short-term debt and other interest charges.....................................................
Interest expense...........................................................................................................
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES...................................................................................
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)...............................................................................
NET INCOME (LOSS)........................................................................................................
BASIC AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING.............................................
DILUTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING.......................................
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER AVERAGE COMMON SHARE..................................
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER AVERAGE COMMON SHARE............................

2020

2019

$ 2,069.8 $ 2,175.5 $ 2,211.7
52.5
56.1
58.6
2,122.3
2,231.6
2,270.3
644.6
786.9
892.5

$

$
$

462.8
391.3
101.4
955.5
522.2

491.8
355.0
93.6
940.4
504.3

474.6
321.6
92.0
888.2
489.6

(668.0)
4.8
(3.9)
37.5
(35.2)
(664.8)

113.9
4.5
(9.8)
21.9
(23.5)
107.0

152.8
23.8
(10.8)
21.7
(23.4)
164.1

152.8
(1.9)
7.6
158.5
(301.1)
(127.4)
(173.7) $
200.1
200.1

138.3
(2.8)
12.4
147.9
463.4
29.8
433.6 $
200.1
200.7
2.17 $
2.16 $

157.4
(11.7)
10.3
156.0
497.7
72.2
425.5
199.7
200.5
2.13
2.12

(0.87) $
(0.87) $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2018

OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2020
2019
2018
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
Net income (loss)..................................................................................................................... $ (173.7) $ 433.6 $ 425.5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan:
Amortization of deferred net loss, net of tax of $1.2, $1.1 and $1.1, respectively...........
3.9
3.4
3.3
Net loss arising during the period, net of tax of ($1.7), ($2.6) and ($4.7), respectively...
(5.1)
(8.3)
(14.1)
Settlement cost, net of tax of $0.7, $2.7 and $1.6, respectively........................................
2.2
8.6
4.7
Postretirement benefit plans:
Amortization of prior service credit, net of tax of ($0.6), ($0.6) and ($0.6), respectively
(1.7)
(1.7)
(1.7)
Amortization of deferred net gain, net of tax of $0.0, $0.0 and $0.0, respectively...........
(0.1)
(0.2)
—
Net gain (loss) arising during the period, net of tax of ($0.8), ($0.1) and $0.7,
respectively........................................................................................................................
(2.4)
(0.2)
2.1
Curtailment cost, net of tax of ($0.1), $0.0 and $0.0, respectively...................................
(0.3)
—
—
Other comprehensive loss from unconsolidated affiliates, net of tax ($0.2), ($0.2) and
$0.0, respectively...................................................................................................................
(0.7)
(0.6)
—
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax..............................................................
(4.2)
1.0
(5.7)
Comprehensive income (loss).................................................................................... $ (177.9) $ 434.6 $ 419.8

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
2019
2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss)................................................................................................................................. $ (173.7) $
433.6 $
425.5
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.......................................................................................................
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net.................................................................
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated affiliates................................................................

391.3
(134.5)
668.0

355.0
27.6
(113.9)

321.6
78.5
(152.8)

Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates.................................................................................

91.7

125.5

141.2

Allowance for equity funds used during construction...................................................................

(4.8)

Stock-based compensation expense...............................................................................................

9.8

(4.5)

(23.8)

13.9

13.4

Regulatory assets...........................................................................................................................

(112.0)

(47.1)

(10.8)

Regulatory liabilities......................................................................................................................

(64.0)

(45.6)

(16.5)

Other assets....................................................................................................................................

(9.2)

(3.8)

6.2

Other liabilities..............................................................................................................................

(26.3)

19.2

1.0

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues, net.........................................................

3.1

18.8

19.8

Income taxes receivable............................................................................................................

2.8

(1.0)

(4.1)

Fuel, materials and supplies inventories...................................................................................

(8.9)

4.2

27.3

Fuel recoveries..........................................................................................................................

63.3

(33.0)

(3.4)

Other current assets..................................................................................................................

(16.8)

5.1

25.1

Accounts payable......................................................................................................................

59.8

(34.5)

29.7

Other current liabilities.............................................................................................................

(26.8)

(38.0)

73.2

Change in certain current assets and liabilities:

712.8

681.5

951.1

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (less allowance for equity funds used during construction)........................

(650.5)

(635.5)

(573.6)

Investment in unconsolidated affiliates.........................................................................................

(4.4)

(7.7)

(2.5)

Return of capital - unconsolidated affiliates..................................................................................

—

18.5

—

Proceeds from sale of assets..........................................................................................................
Net cash used in investing activities....................................................................................

—

—

0.1

(654.9)

(624.7)

(576.0)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt...........................................................................................

(17.0)

112.0

(168.4)

Net cash provided from operating activities........................................................................

Proceeds from long-term debt.......................................................................................................

297.1

296.5

396.0

Payment of long-term debt............................................................................................................

(0.1)

(250.1)

(250.1)

Dividends paid on common stock.................................................................................................

(314.9)

(299.2)

(272.2)

Cash paid for employee equity-based compensation and expense of common stock...................

(7.1)

(10.3)

(0.5)

Purchase of treasury stock.............................................................................................................
Other..............................................................................................................................................
Net cash used in financing activities...................................................................................

(14.7)
(0.1)
(56.8)

—
—
(151.1)

—
—
(295.2)

1.1

(94.3)
94.3

79.9
14.4

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS......................................................................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......................................................

—

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.................................................................... $

1.1 $

— $

94.3

Interest (net of interest capitalized of $1.9, $2.8 and $11.7, respectively) ................................... $

153.4 $

152.2 $

153.8

Income taxes (net of income tax refunds)...................................................................................... $

3.9 $

5.5 $

2.8

6.8 $

28.9 $

(9.2)

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for:

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Power plant long-term service agreement...................................................................................... $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

75

OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31 (In millions)
2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
1.1 $
Cash and cash equivalents.................................................................................................................... $
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $2.6 and $1.5, respectively........................................................
157.8
67.6
Accrued unbilled revenues...................................................................................................................
8.1
Income taxes receivable.......................................................................................................................
36.5
Fuel inventories....................................................................................................................................
116.2
Materials and supplies, at average cost................................................................................................
—
Fuel clause under recoveries................................................................................................................
41.2
Other....................................................................................................................................................
428.5
Total current assets.........................................................................................................................
OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
397.4
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates................................................................................................
86.7
Other....................................................................................................................................................
484.1
Total other property and investments.............................................................................................
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
In service.............................................................................................................................................. 13,296.7
145.5
Construction work in progress.............................................................................................................
Total property, plant and equipment............................................................................................... 13,442.2
4,067.6
Less: accumulated depreciation.................................................................................................
9,374.6
Net property, plant and equipment.................................................................................................
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS
415.6
Regulatory assets..................................................................................................................................
16.0
Other....................................................................................................................................................
431.6
Total deferred charges and other assets..........................................................................................
TOTAL ASSETS...................................................................................................................................... $ 10,718.8 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2019

—
153.8
64.7
10.9
46.3
90.6
39.5
24.4
430.2
1,151.5
82.7
1,234.2
12,771.1
141.6
12,912.7
3,868.1
9,044.6
306.0
9.3
315.3
11,024.3

OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
December 31 (In millions)
2020
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
95.0 $
Short-term debt.................................................................................................................................... $
251.5
Accounts payable.................................................................................................................................
80.5
Dividends payable................................................................................................................................
81.1
Customer deposits................................................................................................................................
55.7
Accrued taxes.......................................................................................................................................
40.2
Accrued interest...................................................................................................................................
31.1
Accrued compensation.........................................................................................................................
28.6
Fuel clause over recoveries..................................................................................................................
33.7
Other....................................................................................................................................................
697.4
Total current liabilities....................................................................................................................
3,494.4
LONG-TERM DEBT...............................................................................................................................
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
231.4
Accrued benefit obligations.................................................................................................................
1,268.6
Deferred income taxes.........................................................................................................................
10.9
Deferred investment tax credits...........................................................................................................
1,188.9
Regulatory liabilities............................................................................................................................
195.4
Other....................................................................................................................................................
2,895.2
Total deferred credits and other liabilities......................................................................................
7,087.0
Total liabilities................................................................................................................................
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
1,124.6
Common stockholders' equity..............................................................................................................
2,544.6
Retained earnings.................................................................................................................................
(32.1)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax..............................................................................
(5.3)
Treasury stock, at cost..........................................................................................................................
3,631.8
Total stockholders' equity...............................................................................................................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY.................................................................. $ 10,718.8 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2019

112.0
194.9
77.6
83.0
41.9
37.9
40.6
4.8
65.2
657.9
3,195.2
225.0
1,375.8
7.1
1,223.5
200.3
3,031.7
6,884.8

1,131.3
3,036.1
(27.9)
—
4,139.5
11,024.3

OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION
December 31 (In millions except per share data)
2020
2019
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; authorized 450.0 shares; and outstanding 200.1 shares
and 200.1 shares, respectively.............................................................................................................. $
2.0 $
2.0
Premium on common stock..................................................................................................................
1,122.6 $ 1,129.3
Retained earnings.................................................................................................................................
2,544.6
3,036.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax..............................................................................
(32.1)
(27.9)
Treasury stock, at cost, 0.1 and 0.0 shares, respectively......................................................................
(5.3)
—
Total stockholders' equity...............................................................................................................
3,631.8
4,139.5
LONG-TERM DEBT
DUE DATE
SERIES
Senior Notes - OG&E
6.65%
Senior Notes, Series Due July 15, 2027............................................................
6.50%
Senior Notes, Series Due April 15, 2028..........................................................
3.80%
Senior Notes, Series Due August 15, 2028.......................................................
3.30%
Senior Notes, Series Due March 15, 2030........................................................
3.25%
Senior Notes, Series Due April 1, 2030............................................................
5.75%
Senior Notes, Series Due January 15, 2036......................................................
6.45%
Senior Notes, Series Due February 1, 2038......................................................
5.85%
Senior Notes, Series Due June 1, 2040..............................................................
5.25%
Senior Notes, Series Due May 15, 2041............................................................
3.90%
Senior Notes, Series Due May 1, 2043..............................................................
4.55%
Senior Notes, Series Due March 15, 2044........................................................
4.00%
Senior Notes, Series Due December 15, 2044..................................................
4.15%
Senior Notes, Series Due April 1, 2047............................................................
3.85%
Senior Notes, Series Due August 15, 2047.......................................................
3.80%
Tinker Debt, Due August 31, 2062...................................................................

125.0
100.0
400.0
300.0
300.0
110.0
200.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
300.0
300.0
9.4

125.0
100.0
400.0
300.0
—
110.0
200.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
300.0
300.0
9.5

Other Bonds - OG&E
0.28% - 5.35%
Garfield Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025.................................................
47.0
47.0
0.33% - 4.31%
Muskogee Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025..............................................
32.4
32.4
0.28% - 5.35%
Muskogee Industrial Authority, June 1, 2027...................................................
56.0
56.0
Unamortized debt expense.................................................................................................................
(25.3)
(24.2)
Unamortized discount.........................................................................................................................
(10.1)
(10.5)
Total long-term debt.......................................................................................................................
3,494.4
3,195.2
Less: long-term debt due within one year..................................................................................
—
—
Total long-term debt (excluding long-term debt due within one year)...........................................
3,494.4
3,195.2
Total capitalization (including long-term debt due within one year)....................................................... $ 7,126.2 $ 7,334.7

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

(In millions)
Balance at December 31, 2017................
Net income..............................................
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax......
Dividends declared on common stock
($1.3950 per share)..................................
Expense of common stock.......................
Stock-based compensation......................
Balance at December 31, 2018................
Net income..............................................
Other comprehensive income, net of tax.
Dividends declared on common stock
($1.5050 per share)..................................
Stock-based compensation......................
Balance at December 31, 2019................
Net loss....................................................
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax......
Dividends declared on common stock
($1.5800 per share)..................................
Purchase of treasury stock.......................
Stock-based compensation......................
Balance at December 31, 2020................

Shares
Value
199.7 $
2.0
—
—

Treasury Stock
Accumulated
Premium on
Other
Common
Retained Comprehensive
Shares
Value
Stock
Earnings
(Loss) Income
Total
— $
— $
1,112.8 $ 2,759.5 $
(23.2) $ 3,851.1
—
—
—
425.5
—
425.5

—

—

—

—

—
—
—
199.7 $
—

—
—
—
2.0
—

—
—
—
— $
—

—
—
—
— $
—

—

—

—

—

—
0.4
200.1 $
—

—
—
2.0
—

—
—
— $
—

—
—
— $
—

—

—

—

—

—
—
—
200.1 $

—
—
—
2.0

—
—
0.4
(14.7)
(0.3)
9.4
0.1 $ (5.3) $

—
—
(0.1)
13.0
1,125.7 $
—
—
—
3.6
1,129.3 $
—
—
—
—
(6.7)
1,122.6 $

—
(278.7)
—
—
2,906.3 $
433.6
—
(303.8)
—
3,036.1 $
(173.7)
—
(317.8)
—
—
2,544.6 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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(5.7)

(5.7)

—
(278.7)
—
(0.1)
—
13.0
(28.9) $ 4,005.1
—
433.6
1.0

1.0

—
(303.8)
—
3.6
(27.9) $ 4,139.5
—
(173.7)
(4.2)

(4.2)

—
(317.8)
(14.7)
—
—
2.7
(32.1) $ 3,631.8

OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
2019
2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Revenues from contracts with customers......................................................................... $ 2,069.8 $ 2,175.5 $ 2,211.7
52.5
Other revenues.................................................................................................................
56.1
58.6
Operating revenues........................................................................................................
2,122.3
2,231.6
2,270.3
COST OF SALES.................................................................................................................
644.6
786.9
892.5
OPERATING EXPENSES
464.4
492.5
473.8
Other operation and maintenance.....................................................................................
391.3
Depreciation and amortization.........................................................................................
355.0
321.6
97.2
Taxes other than income..................................................................................................
89.5
88.2
952.9
Operating expenses.....................................................................................................
937.0
883.6
524.8
OPERATING INCOME.......................................................................................................
507.7
494.2
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction.....................................................
4.8
4.5
23.8
(3.1)
Other net periodic benefit expense...................................................................................
(1.2)
(8.9)
5.0
Other income....................................................................................................................
6.7
14.1
(2.6)
Other expense...................................................................................................................
(6.9)
(3.4)
4.1
Net other income.........................................................................................................
3.1
25.6
INTEREST EXPENSE
152.8
Interest on long-term debt................................................................................................
138.3
157.4
(1.9)
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction................................................
(2.8)
(11.7)
3.9
Interest on short-term debt and other interest charges.....................................................
5.0
6.1
154.8
Interest expense...........................................................................................................
140.5
151.8
374.1
INCOME BEFORE TAXES................................................................................................
370.3
368.0
34.7
INCOME TAX EXPENSE...................................................................................................
20.1
40.0
339.4
NET INCOME......................................................................................................................
350.2
328.0
—
Other comprehensive income, net of tax..........................................................................
—
—
339.4 $
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME............................................................................................ $
350.2 $
328.0

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
2020
2019
2018
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
339.4 $
350.2 $
328.0
Net income......................................................................................................................... $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operating activities:
391.3
Depreciation and amortization....................................................................................
355.0
321.6
40.9
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net...............................................
20.4
56.6
(4.8)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction................................................
(4.5)
(23.8)
3.0
Stock-based compensation expense............................................................................
4.9
4.6
(112.0)
Regulatory assets........................................................................................................
(47.1)
(10.8)
(64.0)
Regulatory liabilities...................................................................................................
(45.6)
(16.5)
(3.4)
Other assets.................................................................................................................
3.8
1.9
(24.3)
Other liabilities...........................................................................................................
8.4
—
Change in certain current assets and liabilities:
4.5
Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues, net.......................................
17.0
19.5
(8.9)
Fuel, materials and supplies inventories.................................................................
4.2
27.3
63.3
Fuel recoveries.......................................................................................................
(33.0)
(3.4)
(17.3)
Other current assets................................................................................................
5.9
23.1
64.8
Accounts payable...................................................................................................
(30.0)
19.0
(5.3)
Income taxes payable - parent................................................................................
(0.7)
(15.6)
(26.8)
Other current liabilities...........................................................................................
(35.1)
72.5
640.4
Net cash provided from operating activities......................................................
573.8
804.0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(650.5)
Capital expenditures (less allowance for equity funds used during construction)......
(635.5)
(573.6)
—
Proceeds from sale of assets.......................................................................................
—
0.1
(650.5)
Net cash used in investing activities..................................................................
(635.5)
(573.5)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
297.1
Proceeds from long-term debt.....................................................................................
296.5
396.0
(0.1)
Payment of long-term debt.........................................................................................
(250.1)
(250.1)
(325.0)
Dividends paid on common stock...............................................................................
—
(185.0)
38.1
Changes in advances with parent................................................................................
15.3
(191.4)
10.1
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities.......................................
61.7
(230.5)
—
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..................................................
—
—
—
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..................................
—
—
— $
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR................................................ $
— $
—
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest (net of interest capitalized of $1.9, $2.8 and $11.7, respectively) ........................ $
Income taxes (net of income tax refunds).......................................................................... $
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Power plant long-term service agreement............................................................................ $

150.2 $
(0.2) $

144.6 $
1.3 $

6.8 $

28.9 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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149.7
0.9
(9.2)

OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31 (In millions)
2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
156.3 $
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $2.6 and $1.5, respectively........................................................ $
67.7
Accrued unbilled revenues..................................................................................................................
272.0
Advances to parent..............................................................................................................................
36.5
Fuel inventories...................................................................................................................................
116.2
Materials and supplies, at average cost...............................................................................................
—
Fuel clause under recoveries...............................................................................................................
36.9
Other....................................................................................................................................................
685.6
Total current assets.........................................................................................................................
4.1
OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS.........................................................................................
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
13,290.6
In service.............................................................................................................................................
145.5
Construction work in progress............................................................................................................
Total property, plant and equipment............................................................................................... 13,436.1
4,067.6
Less: accumulated depreciation...............................................................................................
9,368.5
Net property, plant and equipment..................................................................................................
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS
415.6
Regulatory assets.................................................................................................................................
15.2
Other....................................................................................................................................................
430.8
Total deferred charges and other assets..........................................................................................
TOTAL ASSETS...................................................................................................................................... $ 10,489.0 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2019

153.8
64.7
304.8
46.3
90.6
39.5
19.6
719.3
4.7
12,765.0
141.6
12,906.6
3,868.1
9,038.5
306.0
8.1
314.1
10,076.6

OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
December 31 (In millions)
2020
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
236.7 $
Accounts payable................................................................................................................................. $
81.1
Customer deposits................................................................................................................................
53.3
Accrued taxes.......................................................................................................................................
40.2
Accrued interest...................................................................................................................................
22.5
Accrued compensation.........................................................................................................................
28.6
Fuel clause over recoveries..................................................................................................................
33.5
Other....................................................................................................................................................
495.9
Total current liabilities....................................................................................................................
3,494.4
LONG-TERM DEBT...............................................................................................................................
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
135.4
Accrued benefit obligations.................................................................................................................
1,020.8
Deferred income taxes.........................................................................................................................
10.9
Deferred investment tax credits...........................................................................................................
1,188.9
Regulatory liabilities............................................................................................................................
167.1
Other....................................................................................................................................................
2,523.1
Total deferred credits and other liabilities......................................................................................
6,513.4
Total liabilities................................................................................................................................
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
1,039.5
Common stockholder's equity..............................................................................................................
2,936.1
Retained earnings.................................................................................................................................
3,975.6
Total stockholder's equity...............................................................................................................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY.................................................................. $ 10,489.0 $

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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2019

175.0
83.0
41.9
37.9
29.5
4.8
65.1
437.2
3,195.2
133.3
951.4
7.1
1,223.5
170.6
2,485.9
6,118.3

1,036.6
2,921.7
3,958.3
10,076.6

OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION
December 31 (In millions except per share data)
2020
2019
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock, par value $2.50 per share; authorized 100.0 shares; and outstanding 40.4 shares
and 40.4 shares, respectively................................................................................................................ $
100.9 $
100.9
Premium on common stock..................................................................................................................
938.6
935.7
Retained earnings.................................................................................................................................
2,936.1
2,921.7
Total stockholder's equity...............................................................................................................
3,975.6
3,958.3
LONG-TERM DEBT
SERIES
Senior Notes
6.65%
6.50%
3.80%
3.30%
3.25%
5.75%
6.45%
5.85%
5.25%
3.90%
4.55%
4.00%
4.15%
3.85%
3.80%

DUE DATE
Senior Notes, Series Due July 15, 2027............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due April 15, 2028..........................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due August 15, 2028.......................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due March 15, 2030........................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due April 1, 2030............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due January 15, 2036......................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due February 1, 2038......................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due June 1, 2040..............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due May 15, 2041............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due May 1, 2043..............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due March 15, 2044........................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due December 15, 2044..................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due April 1, 2047............................................................
Senior Notes, Series Due August 15, 2047.......................................................
Tinker Debt, Due August 31, 2062...................................................................

125.0
100.0
400.0
300.0
300.0
110.0
200.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
300.0
300.0
9.4

125.0
100.0
400.0
300.0
—
110.0
200.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
250.0
300.0
300.0
9.5

Other Bonds
0.28% - 5.35%
Garfield Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025.................................................
47.0
47.0
0.33% - 4.31%
Muskogee Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025..............................................
32.4
32.4
0.28% - 5.35%
Muskogee Industrial Authority, June 1, 2027...................................................
56.0
56.0
Unamortized debt expense...................................................................................................................
(25.3)
(24.2)
Unamortized discount..........................................................................................................................
(10.1)
(10.5)
Total long-term debt.......................................................................................................................
3,494.4
3,195.2
Less: long-term debt due within one year..................................................................................
—
—
Total long-term debt (excluding long-term debt due within one year)...........................................
3,494.4
3,195.2
Total capitalization (including long-term debt due within one year)....................................................... $ 7,470.0 $ 7,153.5

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
(In millions)
Balance at December 31, 2017..............
Net income.............................................
Dividends declared on common stock...
Stock-based compensation....................
Balance at December 31, 2018..............
Net income.............................................
Stock-based compensation....................
Balance at December 31, 2019..............
Net income.............................................
Dividends declared on common stock...
Stock-based compensation....................
Balance at December 31, 2020..............

Shares
Premium on
Retained
Outstanding Common Stock Common Stock
Earnings
40.4 $
100.9 $
926.3 $
2,428.5 $
—
—
—
328.0

Total
3,455.7
328.0

—
—
40.4 $

—
—
100.9 $

—
4.6
930.9 $

(185.0)
—
2,571.5 $

—
—
40.4 $
—

—
—
100.9 $
—

—
4.8
935.7 $
—

350.2
—
2,921.7 $
339.4

(185.0)
4.6
3,603.3
350.2
4.8
3,958.3
339.4

—
—
40.4 $

—
—
100.9 $

—
2.9
938.6 $

(325.0)
—
2,936.1 $

(325.0)
2.9
3,975.6

The accompanying Combined Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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COMBINED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Index of Combined Notes to Financial Statements
The Combined Notes to the Financial Statements are a combined presentation for OGE Energy and OG&E. The
following table indicates the Registrant(s) to which each Note applies.
OGE Energy

OG&E

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.....................................

X

X

Note 2. Accounting Pronouncements..............................................................

X

X

Note 3. Revenue Recognition..........................................................................

X

X

Note 4. Leases.................................................................................................

X

X

Note 5. Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates............................................

X

Note 6. Related Party Transactions.................................................................

X

X

Note 7. Fair Value Measurements...................................................................

X

X

Note 8. Stock-Based Compensation................................................................

X

X

Note 9. Income Taxes......................................................................................

X

X

Note 10. Common Equity................................................................................

X

X

Note 11. Long-Term Debt...............................................................................

X

X

Note 12. Short-Term Debt and Credit Facilities.............................................

X

X

Note 13. Retirement Plans and Postretirement Benefit Plans.........................

X

X

Note 14. Report of Business Segments...........................................................

X

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies.....................................................

X

X

Note 16. Rate Matters and Regulation............................................................

X

X

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization
OGE Energy is a holding company with investments in energy and energy services providers offering physical
delivery and related services for both electricity and natural gas primarily in the south central U.S. OGE Energy conducts these
activities through two business segments: (i) electric utility and (ii) natural gas midstream operations. The accounts of OGE
Energy and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including OG&E, are included in OGE Energy's consolidated financial statements.
All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in such consolidation. OGE Energy generally uses the equity method
of accounting for investments where its ownership interest is between 20 percent and 50 percent and it lacks the power to direct
activities that most significantly impact economic performance.
OG&E. OGE Energy's electric utility operations are conducted through OG&E, which generates, transmits, distributes
and sells electric energy in Oklahoma and western Arkansas. OG&E's rates are subject to regulation by the OCC, the APSC and
the FERC. OG&E was incorporated in 1902 under the laws of the Oklahoma Territory and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OGE Energy. OG&E is the largest electric utility in Oklahoma, and its franchised service territory includes Fort Smith,
Arkansas and the surrounding communities. OG&E sold its retail natural gas business in 1928 and is no longer engaged in the
natural gas distribution business.
Enable. OGE Energy's natural gas midstream operations segment represents OGE Energy's investment in Enable. The
investment in Enable is held through wholly-owned subsidiaries and ultimately OGE Holdings. Enable is primarily engaged in
the business of gathering, processing, transporting and storing natural gas. Enable's natural gas gathering and processing assets
are strategically located in four states and serve natural gas production in the Anadarko, Arkoma and Ark-La-Tex Basins.
Enable also owns crude oil gathering assets in the Anadarko and Williston Basins. Enable has intrastate natural gas
transportation and storage assets that are located in Oklahoma as well as interstate assets that extend from western Oklahoma
and the Texas Panhandle to Louisiana, from Louisiana to Illinois and from Louisiana to Alabama. Enable's general partner is
equally controlled by OGE Energy and CenterPoint, who each have 50 percent management ownership. Based on the 50/50
management ownership, with neither company having control, OGE Energy accounts for its interest in Enable using the equity
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method of accounting. In February 2021, Enable entered into a definitive merger agreement with Energy Transfer. For further
discussion, see Note 5.
OGE Energy charges operating costs to OG&E and Enable based on several factors. Operating costs directly related to
OG&E and Enable are assigned as such. Operating costs incurred for the benefit of OG&E and Enable are allocated either as
overhead based primarily on labor costs or using the "Distrigas" method. The "Distrigas" method is a three-factor formula that
uses an equal weighting of payroll, net operating revenues and gross property, plant and equipment. OGE Energy adopted this
method as a result of a recommendation by the OCC Staff. OGE Energy believes this method provides a reasonable basis for
allocating common expenses.
Accounting Records
The accounting records of OG&E are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by
the FERC and adopted by the OCC and the APSC. Additionally, OG&E, as a regulated utility, is subject to accounting
principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities, which provide that certain incurred costs that would otherwise be
charged to expense can be deferred as regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future
rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce expense can be deferred as regulatory
liabilities, based on the expected flowback to customers in future rates. Management's expected recovery of deferred costs and
flowback of deferred credits generally results from specific decisions by regulators granting such ratemaking treatment.
OG&E records certain incurred costs and obligations as regulatory assets or liabilities if, based on regulatory orders or
other available evidence, it is probable that the costs or obligations will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund
in future rates.
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The following table presents a summary of OG&E's regulatory assets and liabilities.
December 31 (In millions)
REGULATORY ASSETS
Current:
SPP cost tracker under recovery (A)....................................................................................................
Generation Capacity Replacement rider under recovery (A)...............................................................
Fuel clause under recoveries................................................................................................................
Other (A)..............................................................................................................................................
Total current regulatory assets..........................................................................................................
Non-current:
Benefit obligations regulatory asset.....................................................................................................
Deferred storm expenses......................................................................................................................
Sooner Dry Scrubbers..........................................................................................................................
Pension tracker.....................................................................................................................................
Smart Grid............................................................................................................................................
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt...................................................................................................
Arkansas deferred pension expenses....................................................................................................
Frontier Plant deferred expenses
COVID-19 impacts..............................................................................................................................
Other....................................................................................................................................................
Total non-current regulatory assets...................................................................................................
REGULATORY LIABILITIES
Current:
Fuel clause over recoveries..................................................................................................................
Oklahoma demand program rider over recovery (B)...........................................................................
Reserve for tax refund and interim surcharge (B)................................................................................
SPP cost tracker over recovery (B)......................................................................................................
Other (B)..............................................................................................................................................
Total current regulatory liabilities.....................................................................................................

2020

$

$
$

$

$

$

2019

7.0 $
4.4
—
8.4
19.8 $

—
3.7
39.5
5.5
48.7

164.9 $
158.8
19.7
18.1
11.2
9.7
9.3
6.4
6.4
11.1
415.6 $

167.2
65.5
20.6
2.3
18.4
10.6
8.0
—
—
13.4
306.0

28.6 $
1.5
0.8
—
4.2
35.1 $

4.8
2.0
12.7
2.6
6.9
29.0

Non-current:
Income taxes refundable to customers, net.......................................................................................... $
867.4 $
899.2
Accrued removal obligations, net........................................................................................................
316.8
318.5
Other....................................................................................................................................................
4.7
5.8
Total non-current regulatory liabilities.............................................................................................. $ 1,188.9 $ 1,223.5
(A) Included in Other Current Assets in the balance sheets.
(B) Included in Other Current Liabilities in the balance sheets.
OG&E recovers certain SPP costs related to base plan charges from its customers and refunds certain SPP revenues
received to its customers in Oklahoma through the SPP cost tracker and in Arkansas through the transmission cost recovery
rider.
OG&E recovers the Oklahoma jurisdictional portion of costs, including non-fuel operation and maintenance expenses,
depreciation, taxes other than income taxes and a return on capital, for its investment in the River Valley plant through the
Generation Capacity Replacement Rider. The OCC also authorized OG&E to defer the same costs related to its investment in
the Frontier plant to a regulatory asset, and recovery of these costs will be considered in future rate proceedings.
Fuel clause under and over recoveries are generated from OG&E's customers when OG&E's cost of fuel either exceeds
or is less than the amount billed to its customers, respectively. OG&E's fuel recovery clauses are designed to smooth the impact
of fuel price volatility on customers' bills. As a result, OG&E under recovers fuel costs in periods of rising fuel prices above the
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baseline charge for fuel and over recovers fuel costs when prices decline below the baseline charge for fuel. Provisions in the
fuel clauses are intended to allow OG&E to amortize under and over recovery balances.
The benefit obligations regulatory asset is comprised of expenses recorded which are probable of future recovery and
that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost, including net loss and prior service cost. These
expenses are recorded as a regulatory asset as OG&E historically has recovered and currently recovers pension and
postretirement benefit plan expense in its electric rates. If, in the future, the regulatory bodies indicate a change in policy related
to the recovery of pension and postretirement benefit plan expenses, this could cause the benefit obligations regulatory asset
balance to be reclassified to accumulated other comprehensive income.
The following table presents a summary of the components of the benefit obligations regulatory asset.
2020
2019
December 31 (In millions)
Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan:
147.3 $
Net loss.................................................................................................................................................. $
160.5
Postretirement Benefit Plans:
26.2
Net loss..................................................................................................................................................
23.3
(8.6)
Prior service cost....................................................................................................................................
(16.6)
164.9 $
Total.................................................................................................................................................. $
167.2
OG&E includes in expense any Oklahoma storm-related operation and maintenance expenses up to $2.7 million
annually and defers to a regulatory asset any additional expenses incurred over $2.7 million. OG&E expects to recover the
amounts deferred each year over a five-year period in accordance with historical practice.
As approved by the OCC, OG&E deferred the non-fuel incremental operation and maintenance expenses, depreciation,
debt cost associated with the capital investment and related ad valorem taxes for the Dry Scrubbers at Sooner Units 1 and 2 as a
regulatory asset, and these costs are being recovered over 25 years.
OG&E recovers specific amounts of pension and postretirement medical costs in rates approved in its Oklahoma rate
reviews. In accordance with approved orders, OG&E defers the difference between actual pension and postretirement medical
expenses and the amount approved in its last Oklahoma rate review as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability. These amounts
have been recorded in the Pension tracker regulatory asset in the table above.
OG&E deferred to a regulatory asset the incremental and stranded costs that were accumulated during Smart Grid
deployment, including (i) costs for web portal access, (ii) costs for education and home energy reports and (iii) stranded costs
associated with OG&E's analog electric meters, which have been replaced by smart meters. As approved by the OCC and
APSC, these costs are being recovered over a six-year period ending in 2022 in Oklahoma and 2023 in Arkansas.
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt is comprised of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the early retirement of
OG&E's long-term debt. These amounts are recorded in interest expense and are being amortized over the term of the long-term
debt which replaced the previous long-term debt. The unamortized loss on reacquired debt is recovered as a part of OG&E's
cost of capital.
Arkansas includes a certain level of pension expense in base rates. When the Pension Plan experiences a settlement,
which represents an acceleration of future pension costs, OG&E defers to a regulatory asset the Arkansas jurisdictional portion
of each settlement, which historically has been recovered from customers over the average life of the remaining plan
participants. A portion of these settlements is being recovered in current rates, and recovery of additional amounts will be
requested as additional settlements occur. For additional information related to settlements, see Note 13.
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the OCC and APSC issued orders allowing OG&E to defer certain expenses
related to its COVID-19 response. For additional information about these orders, see Note 16 and "Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Recent Developments."
OG&E recovers program costs related to the Demand and Energy Efficiency Program in Oklahoma through the
Demand Program Rider, which operates on a three-year program cycle. The current program cycle, which runs through 2021,
includes recovery of (i) energy efficiency program costs, (ii) lost revenues associated with certain achieved energy efficiency
and demand savings, (iii) performance-based incentives and (iv) costs associated with research and development investments.
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As a result of filings with the OCC, APSC and FERC, OG&E established mechanisms to refund to customers the
amount of excess taxes received through rates, with an ongoing adjustment for any excess accumulated deferred income taxes
resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. Additional amounts due to customers will be refunded in accordance with
agreements in each jurisdiction.
Income taxes refundable to customers, net, represents the reduction in accumulated deferred income taxes resulting
from the reduction in the federal income tax rate as part of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 and includes income taxes
recoverable from customers that represent income tax benefits previously used to reduce OG&E's revenues (treated as
regulatory assets). These liabilities will be returned to customers in varying amounts over approximately 80 years, and the
assets will be amortized over the estimated remaining life of the assets to which they relate, as the temporary differences that
generated the income tax benefits turn around.
Accrued removal obligations, net represents asset retirement costs previously recovered from ratepayers for other than
legal obligations.
Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory assets. When in management's judgment
future recovery becomes impaired, the amount of the regulatory asset is adjusted, as appropriate. If OG&E were required to
discontinue the application of accounting principles for certain types of rate-regulated activities for some or all of its operations,
it could result in writing off the related regulatory assets or liabilities, which could have significant financial effects.
Use of Estimates
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Changes to these assumptions and estimates could have a material effect on the Registrants' financial
statements. However, the Registrants believe they have taken reasonable positions where assumptions and estimates are used in
order to minimize the negative financial impact to the Registrants that could result if actual results vary from the assumptions
and estimates. In management's opinion, the areas where the most significant judgment is exercised include the determination
of Pension Plan assumptions, income taxes, contingency reserves, asset retirement obligations, regulatory assets and liabilities,
unbilled revenues and the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable. For OGE Energy, significant judgment is also
exercised in the determination of any impairment of equity method investments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the financial statements, the Registrants consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair
value.
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable
Customer balances are generally written off if not collected within six months after the final billing date. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for OG&E is generally calculated by multiplying the last six months of electric
revenue by the provision rate, which is based on a 12-month historical average of actual balances written off and is adjusted for
current conditions and supportable forecasts as necessary. To the extent the historical collection rates, when incorporating
forecasted conditions, are not representative of future collections, there could be an effect on the amount of uncollectible
expense recognized, such as in response to COVID-19 impacts. Also, a portion of the uncollectible provision related to fuel
within the Oklahoma jurisdiction is being recovered through the fuel adjustment clause. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable is a reduction to Accounts Receivable in the balance sheets and is included in Other Operation and
Maintenance Expense in the statements of income. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable was $2.6 million and
$1.5 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
New business customers are required to provide a security deposit in the form of cash, bond or irrevocable letter of
credit that is refunded when the account is closed. New residential customers whose outside credit scores indicate an elevated
risk are required to provide a security deposit that is refunded based on customer protection rules defined by the OCC and the
APSC. The payment behavior of all existing customers is continuously monitored, and, if the payment behavior indicates
sufficient risk within the meaning of the applicable utility regulation, customers will be required to provide a security deposit.
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The Registrants considered COVID-19 pandemic impacts when calculating their reserve on accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2020, as further discussed within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations - Recent Developments."
Fuel Inventories
Fuel inventories for the generation of electricity consist of coal, natural gas and oil. OG&E uses the weighted-average
cost method of accounting for inventory that is physically added to or withdrawn from storage or stockpiles. The amount of fuel
inventory was $36.5 million and $46.3 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment
All property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Newly constructed plant is added to plant balances at cost which
includes contracted services, direct labor, materials, overhead, transportation costs and the allowance for funds used during
construction. Replacements of units of property are capitalized as plant. For assets that belong to a common plant account, the
replaced plant is removed from plant balances, and the cost of such property net of any salvage proceeds is charged to
Accumulated Depreciation. For assets that do not belong to a common plant account, the replaced plant is removed from plant
balances with the related accumulated depreciation, and the remaining balance net of any salvage proceeds is recorded as a loss
in the statements of income as Other Expense. Repair and replacement of minor items of property are included in the statements
of income as Other Operation and Maintenance Expense.
The following tables present OG&E's ownership interest in the jointly-owned McClain Plant and the jointly-owned
Redbud Plant, and, as disclosed below, only OG&E's ownership interest is reflected in the property, plant and equipment and
accumulated depreciation balances in these tables. The owners of the remaining interests in the McClain Plant and the Redbud
Plant are responsible for providing their own financing of capital expenditures. Also, only OG&E's proportionate interests of
any direct expenses of the McClain Plant and the Redbud Plant, such as fuel, maintenance expense and other operating
expenses, are included in the applicable financial statement captions in the statements of income.
Total Property,
Percentage
Plant and
December 31, 2020 (In millions)
Ownership
Equipment
77 % $
257.1
McClain Plant (A).....................................................................
51 % $
531.8
Redbud Plant (A)(B).................................................................

Net Property,
Accumulated
Plant and
Depreciation Equipment
$
96.0 $
161.1
$
181.9 $
349.9

(A) Construction work in progress was $0.1 million and $1.8 million for the McClain and Redbud Plants, respectively.
(B) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $148.3 million and accumulated amortization of $67.3 million.
Total Property,
Net Property,
Percentage
Plant and
Accumulated
Plant and
December 31, 2019 (In millions)
Ownership
Equipment
Depreciation
Equipment
McClain Plant (A).....................................................................
77 % $
254.4 $
83.5 $
170.9
Redbud Plant (A)(B).................................................................
51 % $
529.9 $
159.0 $
370.9
(A) Construction work in progress was $0.2 million and $1.4 million for the McClain and Redbud Plants, respectively.
(B) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $148.3 million and accumulated amortization of $61.8 million.

91

The following tables present the Registrants' major classes of property, plant and equipment and related accumulated
depreciation.
Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

December 31, 2020 (In millions)
OG&E:
Distribution assets.................................................................................... $
Electric generation assets (A)..................................................................
Transmission assets (B)...........................................................................
Intangible plant........................................................................................
Other property and equipment.................................................................
OG&E property, plant and equipment...................................................
Non-OG&E property, plant and equipment...............................................
Total OGE Energy property, plant and equipment........................... $

Accumulated
Depreciation

4,809.9 $
4,932.2
2,944.6
254.1
495.3
13,436.1
6.1
13,442.2 $

Net Property,
Plant and
Equipment

1,422.1 $
1,713.6
591.7
153.9
186.3
4,067.6
—
4,067.6 $

3,387.8
3,218.6
2,352.9
100.2
309.0
9,368.5
6.1
9,374.6

(A) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $148.3 million and accumulated amortization of $67.3 million.
(B) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $3.3 million and accumulated amortization of $0.9 million.
Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

December 31, 2019 (In millions)
OG&E:
Distribution assets...................................................................................... $
Electric generation assets (A)....................................................................
Transmission assets (B).............................................................................
Intangible plant..........................................................................................
Other property and equipment...................................................................
OG&E property, plant and equipment.....................................................
Non-OG&E property, plant and equipment.................................................
Total OGE Energy property, plant and equipment............................. $

4,468.6 $
4,838.6
2,901.1
225.2
473.1
12,906.6
6.1
12,912.7 $

Accumulated
Depreciation
1,381.1 $
1,601.0
565.5
145.4
175.1
3,868.1
—
3,868.1 $

Net Property,
Plant and
Equipment
3,087.5
3,237.6
2,335.6
79.8
298.0
9,038.5
6.1
9,044.6

(A) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $148.3 million and accumulated amortization of $61.8 million.
(B) This amount includes a plant acquisition adjustment of $3.3 million and accumulated amortization of $0.8 million.
OG&E's unamortized computer software costs, included in intangible plant above, were $89.7 million and $71.3
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. OG&E's amortization expense for computer software costs was $14.9
million, $11.0 million and $9.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Depreciation and Amortization
The provision for depreciation, which was 2.6 percent and 2.7 percent of the average depreciable utility plant for 2020
and 2019, respectively, is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated service life of the utility
assets. Depreciation is provided at the unit level for production plant and at the account or sub-account level for all other plant
and is based on the average life group method. In 2021, the provision for depreciation is projected to be 2.6 percent of the
average depreciable utility plant.
Amortization of intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line method. Of the remaining amortizable intangible
plant balance at December 31, 2020, 99.0 percent will be amortized over 10.4 years with the remaining 1.0 percent of the
intangible plant balance at December 31, 2020 being amortized over 23.7 years.
Amortization of plant acquisition adjustments is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated remaining service
life of the acquired assets. Plant acquisition adjustments include $148.3 million for the Redbud Plant, which is being amortized
over a 27 year life, and $3.3 million for certain transmission substation facilities in OG&E's service territory, which is being
amortized over a 37 to 59 year period.
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Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates
OGE Energy's investment in Enable is considered to be a variable interest entity because the owners of the equity at
risk in this entity have disproportionate voting rights in relation to their obligations to absorb the entity's expected losses or to
receive its expected residual returns. However, OGE Energy is not considered the primary beneficiary of Enable since it does
not have the power to direct the activities of Enable that are considered most significant to the economic performance of
Enable; therefore, OGE Energy accounts for its investment in Enable using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment will be adjusted each period for contributions made, distributions received and OGE Energy's share of
the investee's comprehensive income as adjusted for basis differences. OGE Energy's maximum exposure to loss related to
Enable is limited to its equity investment in Enable at December 31, 2020 as presented in Note 14. OGE Energy evaluates its
equity method investments for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate there is a loss in value of the
investment that is other than a temporary decline. When indicators exist, the fair value is estimated and compared to the
investment carrying value, and if any impairment is judgmentally determined to be other than temporary, the carrying value of
the investment is written down to fair value.
OGE Energy determined, effective March 31, 2020, that an other than temporary decline in the value of OGE Energy's
investment in Enable had occurred. Further information detailing the results of OGE Energy's impairment analysis and fair
value measurement can be found in Notes 5 and 7, respectively.
OGE Energy considers distributions received from Enable which do not exceed cumulative equity in earnings
subsequent to the date of investment to be a return on investment and are classified as operating activities in the statements of
cash flows. OGE Energy considers distributions received from Enable in excess of cumulative equity in earnings subsequent to
the date of investment to be a return of investment and are classified as investing activities in the statements of cash flows.
Asset Retirement Obligations
OG&E has asset retirement obligations primarily associated with the removal of company-owned wind turbines on
leased land, as well as the removal of asbestos from certain power generating stations. OG&E has recorded asset retirement
obligations that are being accreted over their respective lives ranging from five to 68 years. Asset retirement obligations are
included in Other Deferred Credits in the Registrants' balance sheets.
The following table presents changes to OG&E's asset retirement obligations during the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019.
(In millions)
2020
2019
Balance at January 1................................................................................................................................. $
73.5 $
83.9
Accretion expense................................................................................................................................
0.5
1.0
Revisions in estimated cash flows (A).................................................................................................
5.8
(2.4)
Liabilities settled (B)............................................................................................................................
(0.2)
(9.0)
Balance at December 31........................................................................................................................... $
79.6 $
73.5
(A) Assumptions changed related to the estimated timing and estimated cost of the removal of asbestos at OG&E's generating
facilities.
(B) Asset retirement obligations were settled for asbestos removal at one of OG&E's generating facilities.
Accruals for environmental costs are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount
of the liability can be reasonably estimated. Costs are charged to expense or deferred as a regulatory asset based on expected
recovery from customers in future rates, if they relate to the remediation of conditions caused by past operations or if they are
not expected to mitigate or prevent contamination from future operations. Where environmental expenditures relate to facilities
currently in use, such as pollution control equipment, the costs may be capitalized and depreciated over the future service
periods. Estimated remediation costs are recorded at undiscounted amounts, independent of any insurance or rate recovery,
based on prior experience, assessments and current technology. Accrued obligations are regularly adjusted as environmental
assessments and estimates are revised and remediation efforts proceed. For sites where OG&E has been designated as one of
several potentially responsible parties, the amount accrued represents OG&E's estimated share of the cost. OG&E had $25.0
million and $18.7 million in accrued environmental liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are included
in OG&E's asset retirement obligations.
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Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
Allowance for funds used during construction, a non-cash item, is reflected as an increase to Net Other Income and a
reduction to Interest Expense in the statements of income and as an increase to Construction Work in Progress in the balance
sheets. Allowance for funds used during construction is calculated according to the FERC requirements for the imputed cost of
equity and borrowed funds. Allowance for funds used during construction rates, compounded semi-annually, were 7.3 percent,
7.6 percent and 7.6 percent for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Collection of Sales Tax
In the normal course of its operations, OG&E collects sales tax from its customers. OG&E records a current liability
for sales taxes when it bills its customers and eliminates this liability when the taxes are remitted to the appropriate
governmental authorities. OG&E excludes the sales tax collected from its operating revenues.
Revenue Recognition
General
OG&E recognizes revenue from electric sales when power is delivered to customers. The performance obligation to
deliver electricity is generally created and satisfied simultaneously, and the provisions of the regulatory-approved tariff
determine the charges OG&E may bill the customer, payment due date and other pertinent rights and obligations of both
parties. OG&E measures its customers' metered usage and sends bills to its customers throughout each month. As a result, there
is a significant amount of customers' electricity consumption that has not been billed at the end of each month. OG&E accrues
an estimate of the revenues for electric sales delivered since the latest billings. Unbilled revenue is presented in Accrued
Unbilled Revenues in the balance sheets and in Revenues from Contracts with Customers in the statements of income based on
estimates of usage and prices during the period. The estimates that management uses in this calculation could vary from the
actual amounts to be paid by customers.
Integrated Market and Transmission
OG&E currently owns and operates transmission and generation facilities as part of a vertically integrated utility.
OG&E is a member of the SPP regional transmission organization and has transferred operational authority, but not ownership,
of OG&E's transmission facilities to the SPP. The SPP has implemented FERC-approved regional day-ahead and real-time
markets for energy and operating services, as well as associated transmission congestion rights. Collectively, the three markets
operate together under the global name, SPP Integrated Marketplace. OG&E represents owned and contracted generation assets
and customer load in the SPP Integrated Marketplace for the sole benefit of its customers. OG&E has not participated in the
SPP Integrated Marketplace for any speculative trading activities.
OG&E records the SPP Integrated Marketplace transactions as sales or purchases per FERC Order 668, which requires
that purchases and sales be recorded on a net basis for each settlement period of the SPP Integrated Marketplace. Purchases and
sales are based on the fixed transaction price determined by the market at the time of the purchase or sale and the MWh quantity
purchased or sold. These results are reported as Revenues from Contracts with Customers or Cost of Sales in the statements of
income. OG&E revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities may be adversely affected by changes in the organization, operating
and regulation by the FERC or the SPP.
OG&E's transmission revenues are generated by the use of OG&E's transmission network by the SPP, which operates
the network, on behalf of other transmission owners. OG&E recognizes revenue on the sale of transmission service to its
customers over time as the service is provided in the amount OG&E has a right to invoice. Transmission service to the SPP is
billed monthly based on a fixed transaction price determined by OG&E's FERC-approved formula transmission rates along with
other SPP-specific charges and the megawatt quantity reserved.
Other Revenues
Other Revenues in the statements of income is comprised of certain rider revenue that includes alternative revenue
measures as defined in ASC 980, "Regulated Operations," which details two types of alternative revenue programs. The first
type adjusts billings for the effects of weather abnormalities or broad external factors or to compensate OG&E for demand-side
management initiatives (i.e., no-growth plans and similar conservation efforts). The second type provides for additional billings
(i.e., incentive awards) for the achievement of certain objectives, such as reducing costs, reaching specified milestones or
demonstratively improving customer service. Once the specific events permitting billing of the additional revenues under either
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program type have been completed, OG&E recognizes the additional revenues if (i) the program is established by an order from
OG&E's regulatory commission that allows for automatic adjustment of future rates; (ii) the amount of additional revenues for
the period is objectively determinable and is probable of recovery; and (iii) the additional revenues will be collected within 24
months following the end of the annual period in which they are recognized.
Fuel Adjustment Clauses
The actual cost of fuel used in electric generation and certain purchased power costs are passed through to OG&E's
customers through fuel adjustment clauses. The fuel adjustment clauses are subject to periodic review by the OCC and the
APSC.
Leases
The Registrants evaluate all contracts under ASC 842 to determine if the contract is or contains a lease and to
determine classification as an operating or finance lease. If a lease is identified, the Registrants recognize a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability in their balance sheets. The Registrants recognize and measure a lease liability when they conclude the
contract contains an identified asset that the Registrants control through having the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The liability is equal to the present value of lease
payments, and the asset is based on the liability, subject to adjustment, such as for initial direct costs. Further, the Registrants
utilize an incremental borrowing rate for purposes of measuring lease liabilities, if the discount rate is not implicit in the lease.
To calculate the incremental borrowing rate, the Registrants start with a current pricing report for their senior unsecured notes,
which indicates rates for periods reflective of the lease term, and adjust for the effects of collateral to arrive at the secured
incremental borrowing rate. As permitted by ASC 842, the Registrants made an accounting policy election to not apply the
balance sheet recognition requirements to short-term leases and to not separate lease components from non-lease components
when recognizing and measuring lease liabilities. For income statement purposes, the Registrants record operating lease
expense on a straight-line basis.
Income Taxes
OGE Energy files consolidated income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.
OG&E is a part of the consolidated tax return of OGE Energy. Income taxes are generally allocated to each company in the
affiliated group, including OG&E, based on its stand-alone taxable income or loss. Federal investment tax credits previously
claimed on electric utility property have been deferred and will be amortized to income over the life of the related property. The
Registrants use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, a deferred tax asset or liability
is recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement basis and
the tax basis of assets and liabilities as well as tax credit carry forwards and net operating loss carry forwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in the period of the change. The Registrants recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in Interest
Expense and recognize penalties in Other Expense in the statements of income.
Accrued Vacation
The Registrants accrue vacation pay monthly by establishing a liability for vacation earned. Vacation may be taken as
earned and is charged against the liability. At the end of each year, the liability represents the amount of vacation earned but not
taken.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The following table presents changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to OGE Energy during 2019 and 2020. All amounts below are presented net of tax.
Pension Plan and
Restoration of
Retirement
Income Plan

(In millions)
Balance at December 31, 2018.................................... $
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications...
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)....................................
Settlement cost..........................................................
Net current period other comprehensive income
(loss)........................................................................
Balance at December 31, 2019....................................
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications.........................................................
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)....................................
Curtailment cost........................................................
Settlement cost..........................................................
Net current period other comprehensive income
(loss)........................................................................
Balance at December 31, 2020.................................... $

Postretirement
Benefit Plans

Other
Prior
Comprehensive
Service
Loss from
Net Gain
Net Gain
Cost
Unconsolidated
(Loss)
(Loss) (Credit)
Affiliates
Total
(38.8) $
4.6 $
5.3 $
— $ (28.9)
(8.3)
(0.2)
—
(0.6)
(9.1)
3.4
8.6

(0.2)
—

(1.7)
—

—
—

1.5
8.6

3.7
(35.1)

(0.4)
4.2

(1.7)
3.6

(0.6)
(0.6)

1.0
(27.9)

(5.1)

(2.4)

—

(0.7)

(8.2)

3.9
—
2.2

(0.1)
(0.3)
—

(1.7)
—
—

—
—
—

2.1
(0.3)
2.2

(2.8)
1.4 $

(1.7)
1.9 $

(0.7)
(1.3) $

(4.2)
(32.1)

1.0
(34.1) $
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The following table presents significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
by the respective line items in net income (loss) during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Components
(In millions)
Amortization of Pension Plan and Restoration of
Retirement Income Plan items:
Actuarial losses............................................................ $
Settlement cost.............................................................

Amount Reclassified from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019

(5.1) $
(2.9)
(8.0)
(1.9)
(6.1) $

$
Amortization of postretirement benefit plans items:
Prior service credit....................................................... $
Curtailment cost...........................................................
Actuarial gains.............................................................

2.3 $
0.4
0.1
2.8

$

0.7
2.1 $

Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax............... $

(4.0) $

Affected Line Item in
OGE Energy's Statements
of Income

(4.5) (A)
(11.3) (A)
(15.8) Income (Loss) Before Taxes
Income Tax Expense
(3.8) (Benefit)
(12.0) Net Income (Loss)

2.3 (A)
— (A)
0.2 (A)
2.5 Income (Loss) Before Taxes
Income Tax Expense
0.6 (Benefit)
1.9 Net Income (Loss)
(10.1) Net Income (Loss)

(A) These accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) components are included in the computation of net periodic benefit
cost (see Note 13 for additional information).
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
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2.

Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
The following table presents an overview of recently adopted accounting standards and their impacts on the
Registrants.

ASU Number and Name
ASU 2016-13, "Financial
Instruments - Credit Losses:
Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Information"

ASU 2018-15, "Intangibles Goodwill and Other - InternalUse
Software
(Subtopic
350-40)"

Date of
Description
Adoption
This standard requires entities to January 1, 2020
measure all expected credit losses of
financial assets held at a reporting
date based on historical experience,
current conditions and reasonable
and supportable forecasts in order to
record credit losses in a more timely
manner.

Financial Statements and
Disclosures Impact
Utilizing a modified-retrospective
approach, the Registrants determined
their only financial instrument
requiring measurement under ASU
2016-13 is trade receivables. The
Registrants consider both future
economic conditions and historical
data to measure their reserves for
trade receivables under this standard
and determined no adjustments to
their reserves were necessary upon
adoption.

The standard aligns requirements for January 1, 2020
capitalizing implementation costs
incurred in a hosting arrangement
that is a service contract with the
requirements
for
capitalizing
implementation costs incurred to
develop or obtain internal-use
software.

ASU 2018-13, "Fair Value The standard removes, adds or
Measurement (Topic 820): modifies disclosure requirements
Disclosure Framework"
that impact all levels of the fair
value hierarchy, as well as
investments measured using the net
asset value practical expedient.
ASU 2018-14, "Compensation
- Retirement Benefits Defined Benefit Plans General (Subtopic 715-20)"

The new standard did not have a
material effect on the Registrants'
financial statements upon adoption.
Prospectively, the Registrants record
applicable capitalized implementation
costs in Other Current Assets in the
balance
sheets
and
related
amortization expense in Other
Operation and Maintenance in the
statements of income.
January 1, 2020 The Registrants applied the guidance
on a retrospective or prospective
basis, depending on the requirement,
and did not experience a significant
impact on their financial statement
disclosures.

The standard removes, adds or January 1, 2020
clarifies disclosure requirements for
employers that sponsor defined
benefit
pension
or
other
postretirement plans.
ASU 2020-04, "Reference This standard provides optional January 1, 2020
expedients and exceptions, if certain
Rate Reform (Topic 848)"
criteria are met, for applying GAAP
to contracts, hedging relationships
and other transactions that reference
LIBOR or another reference rate
expected to be discontinued because
of reference rate reform.

The Registrants applied the guidance
on a retrospective basis and did not
experience a significant impact on
their financial statement disclosures.
The guidance did not have a material
impact upon adoption, nor do the
Registrants expect a material impact
in the future, on their financial
statements.

The Registrants believe that other recently adopted and recently issued accounting standards that are not yet effective
do not appear to have a material impact on the Registrants' financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
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3.

Revenue Recognition

The following table presents OG&E's revenues from contracts with customers disaggregated by customer
classification. OG&E's operating revenues disaggregated by customer classification can be found in "OG&E (Electric Utility)
Results of Operations" within "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations."
(In millions)
Residential................................................................................................................. $
Commercial...............................................................................................................
Industrial...................................................................................................................
Oilfield......................................................................................................................
Public authorities and street light..............................................................................
System sales revenues............................................................................................
Provision for rate refund...........................................................................................
Integrated market......................................................................................................
Transmission.............................................................................................................
Other.........................................................................................................................
Revenues from contracts with customers............................................................... $
4.

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
842.7 $
865.8 $
877.8
465.6
486.6
500.0
192.6
169.2
172.3
1,842.4

217.8
200.4
190.3
1,960.9

3.8
49.6

(0.9)
38.4

143.3
30.7
2,069.8 $

148.0
29.1
2,175.5 $

228.9
190.4
197.4
1,994.5
(6.0)
48.7
147.4
27.1
2,211.7

Leases

Based on their evaluation of all contracts under ASC 842, as described in Note 1, the Registrants concluded they have
operating lease obligations for OG&E's railcar leases, testing equipment and wind farm land leases. OGE Energy also has an
operating lease obligation for its office space lease.
Operating Leases
OG&E Railcar Lease Agreement
Effective February 1, 2019, OG&E renewed a railcar lease agreement for 780 rotary gondola railcars to transport coal
from Wyoming to OG&E's coal-fired generation units. Rental payments are charged to fuel expense and are recovered through
OG&E's fuel adjustment clauses. On February 1, 2024, OG&E has the option to either purchase the railcars at a stipulated fair
market value or renew the lease. If OG&E chooses not to purchase the railcars or renew the lease agreement and the actual fair
value of the railcars is less than the stipulated fair market value, OG&E would be responsible for the difference in those values
up to a maximum of $6.8 million.
OG&E Testing Equipment Lease Agreement
Effective January 1, 2020, OG&E entered into a noncancellable engineering testing equipment lease agreement, with a
term of January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2022.
OG&E Wind Farm Land Lease Agreements
OG&E has operating leases related to land for OG&E's Centennial, OU Spirit and Crossroads wind farms with terms
of 25 to 30 years. The Centennial lease has rent escalations which increase annually based on the Consumer Price Index. While
lease liabilities are not remeasured as a result of changes to the Consumer Price Index, changes to the Consumer Price Index are
treated as variable lease payments and recognized in the period in which the obligation for those payments was incurred. The
OU Spirit and Crossroads leases have rent escalations which increase after five and 10 years. Although the leases are
cancellable, OG&E is required to make annual lease payments as long as the wind turbines are located on the land. OG&E does
not expect to terminate the leases until the wind turbines reach the end of their useful life.
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OGE Energy Office Space Lease
OGE Energy has a noncancellable office space lease agreement, with a term from September 1, 2018 to August 31,
2021, that allows for leasehold improvements.
Financial Statement Information and Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities
OGE Energy's operating lease cost was $6.4 million, $6.0 million and $4.9 million for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. OG&E's operating lease cost was $5.5 million, $5.1 million and $4.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The following table presents amounts recognized for operating leases in the Registrants' cash flow statements and
balance sheets and supplemental information related to those amounts recognized.

(In millions)
Cash paid for amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows for operating
leases................................................... $
Right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for new operating lease
liabilities................................................. $

OGE Energy
Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019

OG&E
Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019

6.4 $

5.6

$

5.5 $

4.8

1.4 $

10.7

$

1.4 $

10.7

(Dollars in millions)
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Right-of-use assets at period end (A).... $
37.6 $
40.9 $
37.0 $
39.6
Operating lease liabilities at period end
(B).......................................................... $
42.3 $
45.8 $
41.7 $
44.3
Operating lease weighted-average
remaining lease term (in years).............
12.5
13.1
12.7
13.5
Operating lease weighted-average
discount rate...........................................
3.9 %
3.9 %
3.9 %
3.9 %
(A) Included in Property, Plant and Equipment in the Registrants' balance sheets.
(B) Included in Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in the Registrants' balance sheets.
The following table presents a maturity analysis of the Registrants' operating lease liabilities.
Future minimum operating lease payments as of December 31:

OGE Energy

OG&E

(In millions)
2021............................................................................................................................ $

6.3 $

5.7

2022............................................................................................................................

5.7

5.7

2023............................................................................................................................

5.1

5.1

2024............................................................................................................................

3.2

3.2

2025............................................................................................................................

3.0

3.0

Thereafter....................................................................................................................

31.7

31.7

Total future minimum lease payments.....................................................................

55.0

54.4

12.7
42.3 $

12.7
41.7

Less: Imputed interest.................................................................................................
Present value of net minimum lease payments........................................................ $

100

5.

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

In 2013, OGE Energy, CenterPoint and the ArcLight group formed Enable as a private limited partnership, and OGE
Energy and the ArcLight group indirectly contributed 100 percent of the equity interests in Enogex LLC to Enable. OGE
Energy determined that its contribution of Enogex LLC to Enable met the requirements of being in substance real estate and
recorded the contribution at historical cost. The formation of Enable was considered a business combination, and CenterPoint
was the acquirer of Enogex Holdings for accounting purposes. Under this method, the fair value of the consideration paid by
CenterPoint for Enogex Holdings was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair value. Enogex
Holdings' assets, liabilities and equity were accordingly adjusted to estimated fair value, resulting in an increase to Enable's
equity of $2.2 billion. Since the contribution of Enogex LLC to Enable was recorded at historical cost, the effects of the
amortization and depreciation expense associated with the fair value adjustments on Enable's results of operations have been
eliminated in OGE Energy's recording of its equity in earnings of Enable. As prior real estate sales accounting guidance was
superseded by ASU 2017-05, "Other Income - Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets," OGE Energy
recognizes gains or losses on sales or dilution events in its investment in Enable within OGE Energy's earnings, net of
proportional basis difference recognition.
At December 31, 2020, OGE Energy owned 111.0 million common units, or 25.5 percent, of Enable's outstanding
common units. On December 31, 2020, Enable's common unit price closed at $5.26. OGE Energy recorded equity in losses of
unconsolidated affiliates of $668.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliates of $113.9 million and $152.8 million for the years ended 2019 and 2018, respectively. Equity in
earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates includes OGE Energy's share of Enable's earnings adjusted for the amortization of
the basis difference of OGE Energy's original investment in Enogex LLC and its underlying equity in the net assets of Enable,
as well as any impairment OGE Energy records on its investment in Enable. Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated
affiliates is also adjusted for the elimination of the Enogex Holdings fair value adjustments, as described above. These
amortizations may also include gain or loss on dilution, net of proportional basis difference recognition.
OGE Energy evaluates its equity method investment for impairment when factors indicate that a decline in the value of
its investment has occurred and the carrying amount of its investment may not be recoverable. An impairment loss, based on the
excess of the carrying value over estimated fair value of the investment, is recognized in earnings when an impairment is
deemed to be other than temporary. Considerable judgment is used in determining if an impairment loss is other than temporary
and the amount of any impairment. Effective March 31, 2020, OGE Energy estimated the fair value of its investment in Enable
was below the book value and concluded the decline in value was not temporary due to the severity of the decline and the recent
rapid deterioration, as well as the near term future outlook, of the midstream oil and gas industry. Accordingly, OGE Energy
recorded a $780.0 million impairment on its investment in Enable in March 2020, which is included in Equity in Earnings
(Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates in OGE Energy's 2020 income statement. Further information concerning the fair value
method used to measure the impairment on OGE Energy's investment in Enable can be found in Note 7.
The following tables present summarized unaudited financial information for 100 percent of Enable as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
December 31,
2020
2019

Balance Sheet
(In millions)
Current assets...........................................................................................................................................
Non-current assets....................................................................................................................................
Current liabilities.....................................................................................................................................
Non-current liabilities..............................................................................................................................

$
$
$
$

381
11,348
582
4,052

$
$
$
$

389
11,877
780
4,077

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018

Income Statement
(In millions)
Total revenues.......................................................................................................................
Cost of natural gas and NGLs...............................................................................................
Operating income..................................................................................................................
Net income............................................................................................................................

101

$
$
$
$

2,463
965
465
52

$
$
$
$

2,960
1,279
569
360

$
$
$
$

3,431
1,819
648
485

The following table presents a reconciliation of OGE Energy's equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates
for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. For further discussion of Enable's net income, see "Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of Operations - OGE Holdings
(Natural Gas Midstream Operations)."
(In millions)
Enable net income.................................................................................................................
OGE Energy's percent ownership at period end...................................................................
OGE Energy's portion of Enable net income.....................................................................
Amortization of basis difference and dilution recognition (A).............................................
Impairment of OGE Energy's equity method investment in Enable.....................................
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates (B)..............................................

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
$ 52.0
$ 360.0
$ 485.3
25.5 %
25.5 %
25.6 %
$ 13.2
$ 91.8
$ 124.4
98.8
22.1
28.4
(780.0)
—
—
$ (668.0) $ 113.9
$ 152.8

(A) Includes loss on dilution, net of proportional basis difference recognition.
(B) For the year ended December 31, 2020, Enable recorded a $225.0 million impairment on its SESH equity method
investment. Enable estimated the fair value of this equity method investment was below the carrying value at September
30, 2020 and concluded the decline in value was other than temporary due to the expiration of a transportation contract and
the current status of renewal negotiations. The impairment ran through OGE Energy's portion of Enable net income and
was offset by basis differences that flow through the amortization of basis difference and dilution recognition line item
above.
The following table presents a reconciliation of the difference between OGE Energy's investment in Enable and its
underlying equity in the net assets of Enable (basis difference) from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020. The basis
difference is being amortized over approximately 30 years.
(In millions)
Basis difference at December 31, 2019........................................................................................................................ $
652.5
Amortization of basis difference (A)............................................................................................................................
(100.2)
Impairment of OGE Energy's equity method investment in Enable............................................................................
780.0
Basis difference at December 31, 2020..................................................................................................................... $ 1,332.3
(A) Includes proportional basis difference recognition due to dilution.
On April 1, 2020, Enable announced a 50 percent reduction to its quarterly distribution in order to strengthen its
balance sheet and increase its annualized retained cash flow. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Recent Developments" for further discussion of OGE Energy's response.
On February 12, 2021, Enable announced a quarterly dividend distribution of $0.16525 per unit on its outstanding
common units, which is unchanged from the previous quarter. If cash distributions to Enable's unitholders exceed $0.330625
per unit in any quarter, the general partner will receive increasing percentages, up to 50 percent, of the cash Enable distributes
in excess of that amount. OGE Energy is entitled to 60 percent of those "incentive distributions." In certain circumstances, the
general partner has the right to reset the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels at which the incentive
distributions receive increasing percentages to higher levels based on Enable's cash distributions at the time of the exercise of
this reset election.
Distributions received from Enable were $91.7 million, $144.0 million and $141.2 million during the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
On February 16, 2021, Enable entered into a definitive merger agreement with Energy Transfer, pursuant to which,
and subject to the conditions of the merger agreement, all outstanding common units of Enable will be acquired by Energy
Transfer in an all-equity transaction. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Enable's common unitholders, including OGE
Energy, will receive 0.8595 of one common unit representing limited partner interests in Energy Transfer for each common unit
of Enable. The transaction is anticipated to close in 2021. The transaction is subject to the receipt of the required approvals from
the holders of a majority of Enable's common units, anti-trust approvals and other customary closing conditions. Assuming the
transaction closes, OGE Energy will own approximately three percent of Energy Transfer's outstanding limited partner units in
lieu of the 25.5 percent interest in Enable that it currently owns.
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Contemporaneously with the execution of the merger agreement, OGE Energy entered into a support agreement with
Enable and Energy Transfer in which OGE Energy has agreed to vote its common units in favor of the merger. In addition, the
merger agreement contemplates a registration rights agreement with Energy Transfer to be executed at the closing of the merger
that provides for customary resale registration, demand registration and piggy-back registration rights with respect to Energy
Transfer common units issued to OGE Energy in the merger.
6.

Related Party Transactions

OGE Energy charges operating costs to OG&E and Enable based on several factors, and operating costs directly
related to OG&E and/or Enable are assigned as such. Operating costs incurred for the benefit of OG&E are allocated either as
overhead based primarily on labor costs or using the "Distrigas" method, which is a three-factor formula that uses an equal
weighting of payroll, net operating revenues and gross property, plant and equipment.
OGE Energy and OG&E
OGE Energy charged operating costs to OG&E of $140.6 million, $149.8 million and $140.9 million during the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. In 2020 and 2018, OG&E declared dividends to OGE Energy of
$325.0 million and $185.0 million, respectively. In 2019, no dividends were declared from OG&E to OGE Energy.
OGE Energy and Enable
OGE Energy and Enable are currently parties to several agreements whereby OGE Energy provides specified support
services to Enable, such as certain information technology, payroll and benefits administration. Under these agreements, OGE
Energy charged operating costs to Enable of $0.4 million, $0.5 million and $0.6 million for December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
Pursuant to a seconding agreement, OGE Energy provides seconded employees to Enable to support Enable's
operations. As of December 31, 2020, 76 employees that participate in OGE Energy's defined benefit and retirement plans are
seconded to Enable. OGE Energy billed Enable for reimbursement of $17.3 million, $23.2 million and $27.5 million in 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively, under the seconding agreement for employment costs. If the seconding agreement were
terminated, and those employees were no longer employed by OGE Energy, and lump sum payments were made to those
employees, OGE Energy would recognize a settlement or curtailment of the pension/retiree health care charges, which would
increase expense at OGE Energy by $19.0 million. Settlement and curtailment charges associated with the Enable seconded
employees are not reimbursable to OGE Energy by Enable. The seconding agreement can be terminated by mutual agreement
of OGE Energy and Enable or solely by OGE Energy upon 120 days' notice.
OGE Energy had accounts receivable from Enable for amounts billed for support services, including the cost of
seconded employees, of $2.0 million and $0.8 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, which are included in Accounts
Receivable in OGE Energy's balance sheets.
Assuming the pending merger between Enable and Energy Transfer is completed, these agreements between OGE
Energy and Enable pursuant to which OGE Energy provides support services and seconded employees will be terminated.
OG&E and Enable
Enable provides gas transportation services to OG&E pursuant to agreements, which expire in May 2024 and
December 2038, that grant Enable the responsibility of delivering natural gas to OG&E's generating facilities and performing an
imbalance service. With this imbalance service, in accordance with the cash-out provision of the contract, OG&E purchases gas
from Enable when Enable's deliveries exceed OG&E's pipeline receipts. Enable purchases gas from OG&E when OG&E's
pipeline receipts exceed Enable's deliveries. Further, an additional gas transportation services contract with Enable became
effective in December 2018 related to the project to convert Muskogee Units 4 and 5 from coal to natural gas. The following
table presents summarized related party transactions between OG&E and Enable during the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018.
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(In millions)
Operating revenues:
Electricity to power electric compression assets.............................................................. $
Cost of sales:
Natural gas transportation services.................................................................................. $
Natural gas purchases (sales)........................................................................................... $
7.

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
15.1 $

15.9 $

16.3

32.8 $
2.7 $

41.2 $
(6.0) $

37.9
(3.2)

Fair Value Measurements

The classification of the Registrants' fair value measurements requires judgment regarding the degree to which market
data is observable or corroborated by observable market data. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
used to measure fair value based on observable and unobservable data. The hierarchy categorizes the inputs into three levels,
with the highest priority given to quoted prices in active markets for identical unrestricted assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority given to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels defined in the fair value hierarchy are as
follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical unrestricted assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included within Level 1 that are either directly or
indirectly observable at the reporting date for the asset or liability for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Level 2
inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active.
Level 3 inputs are prices or valuation techniques for the asset or liability that require inputs that are both significant to
the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity). Unobservable inputs reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
(including assumptions about risk).
The Registrants had no financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2020 and
2019. The following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of the Registrants' financial instruments at December 31,
2020 and 2019, as well as the classification level within the fair value hierarchy.
2020
2019
Carrying
Fair
Carrying
Fair
December 31 (In millions)
Amount
Value Amount
Value Classification
Long-term Debt (including Long-term Debt due within one year):
OG&E Senior Notes.................................................................... $ 3,349.6 $ 4,182.1 $ 3,050.3 $ 3,500.4
Level 2
OG&E Industrial Authority Bonds............................................. $ 135.4 $ 135.4 $ 135.4 $ 135.4
Level 2
Tinker Debt................................................................................. $
9.4 $
10.7 $
9.5 $
10.0
Level 3
Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements
As further discussed in Note 5, OGE Energy recorded an impairment on its investment in Enable in March 2020. The
nonrecurring fair value measurement consisted of calculating a 20-trading day volume weighted average price for Enable's
common units through March 31, 2020. This method of valuation was determined to be representative of the fair value of
Enable's common units as it incorporated market prices during the period and reduced the impact of volatility that a single day
could represent. OGE Energy concluded that this valuation method resulted in a Level 3 nonrecurring fair value measurement.
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8.

Stock-Based Compensation

In 2013, OGE Energy adopted, and its shareholders approved, the Stock Incentive Plan. Under the Stock Incentive
Plan, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options, stock appreciation rights and performance units may be granted to
officers, directors and other key employees of OGE Energy and its subsidiaries, including OG&E. OGE Energy has authorized
the issuance of up to 7,400,000 shares under the Stock Incentive Plan.
The following table presents the Registrants' pre-tax compensation expense and related income tax benefit for the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 related to performance units and restricted stock units for the Registrants'
employees.
OGE Energy

OG&E

2020
2020
2019
2018
2019
2018
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
Performance units:
7.9 $
2.3 $
Total shareholder return........................................ $
8.7 $
8.2 $
3.0 $
2.8
1.0
0.3
Earnings per share.................................................
4.3
5.1
1.5
1.8
8.9
2.6
Total performance units....................................
13.0
13.3
4.5
4.6
0.9
0.4
Restricted stock units...............................................
0.9
0.1
0.4
—
3.0 $
Total compensation expense............................ $
13.9 $
13.4 $
4.9 $
4.6
9.8 $
2.5 $
0.8 $
Income tax benefit................................................... $
3.6 $
3.4 $
1.3 $
1.2
During the year ended December 31, 2020, OGE Energy purchased 405,000 shares of its common stock, and 247,252
of these shares were used during the same period to satisfy payouts of earned performance units and restricted stock unit grants
to the Registrants' employees pursuant to OGE Energy's Stock Incentive Plan. OGE Energy intends to use the remaining shares
to satisfy payouts of earned performance units and restricted stock unit grants to employees pursuant to its Stock Incentive Plan.
The shares were purchased at an average cost of $38.04 and $33.14 per share on the open market during March 2020 and
August 2020, respectively. OGE Energy records treasury stock purchases at cost. Treasury stock is presented as a reduction of
stockholders' equity in OGE Energy's 2020 balance sheet.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, there was an immaterial number of shares of new common stock issued
pursuant to OGE Energy's Stock Incentive Plan to satisfy restricted stock unit grants to employees.
Performance Units
Under the Stock Incentive Plan, OGE Energy has issued performance units which represent the value of one share of
OGE Energy's common stock. The performance units provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as defined
in the Stock Incentive Plan). Each performance unit is subject to forfeiture if the recipient terminates employment with OGE
Energy or a subsidiary prior to the end of the primarily three-year award cycle for any reason other than death, disability or
retirement. In the event of death, disability or retirement, a participant will receive a prorated payment based on such
participant's number of full months of service during the award cycle, further adjusted based on the achievement of the
performance goals during the award cycle. The Registrants estimate expected forfeitures in accounting for performance unit
compensation expense.
The performance units granted based on total shareholder return are contingently awarded and will be payable in
shares of OGE Energy's common stock subject to the condition that the number of performance units, if any, earned by the
employees upon the expiration of a primarily three-year award cycle (i.e., three-year cliff vesting period) is dependent on OGE
Energy's total shareholder return ranking relative to a peer group of companies. The performance units granted based on
earnings per share are contingently awarded and will be payable in shares of OGE Energy's common stock based on OGE
Energy's earnings per share growth over a primarily three-year award cycle (i.e., three-year cliff vesting period) compared to a
target set at the time of the grant by the Compensation Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors. All of these
performance units are classified as equity in the balance sheets. If there is no or only a partial payout for the performance units
at the end of the award cycle, the unearned performance units are cancelled. Payout requires approval of the Compensation
Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors. Payouts, if any, are all made in common stock and are considered made when
the payout is approved by the Compensation Committee.
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Performance Units – Total Shareholder Return
The fair value of the performance units based on total shareholder return was estimated on the grant date using a
lattice-based valuation model that factors in information, including the expected dividend yield, expected price volatility, riskfree interest rate and the probable outcome of the market condition, over the expected life of the performance
units. Compensation expense for the performance units is a fixed amount determined at the grant date fair value and is
recognized over the primarily three-year award cycle regardless of whether performance units are awarded at the end of the
award cycle. Dividends are accrued on a quarterly basis pending achievement of payout criteria and are included in the fair
value calculations. Expected price volatility is based on the historical volatility of OGE Energy's common stock for the past
three years and is simulated using the Geometric Brownian Motion process. The risk-free interest rate for the performance unit
grants is based on the three-year U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The expected life of the units is
based on the non-vested period since inception of the award cycle. There are no post-vesting restrictions related to OGE
Energy's performance units based on total shareholder return. The following table presents the number of performance units
granted based on total shareholder return and the assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of the performance
units based on total shareholder return.
OGE Energy

OG&E

2020
2020
2019
2018
2019
2018
67,975
Number of units granted.......................................... 201,552
208,647
261,916
68,396
91,940
Fair value of units granted....................................... $ 38.03 $ 47.00 $ 36.86 $ 38.03 $ 47.00 $ 36.86
Expected dividend yield..........................................
3.5 %
4.0 %
3.6 %
3.5 %
4.0 %
3.6 %
Expected price volatility..........................................
15.0 %
17.0 %
19.0 %
15.0 %
17.0 %
19.0 %
Risk-free interest rate..............................................
1.17 %
2.47 %
2.38 %
1.17 %
2.47 %
2.38 %
2.85
2.85
2.86
2.86
2.86
2.86
Expected life of units (in years)..............................
Performance Units – Earnings Per Share
The fair value of the performance units based on earnings per share is based on grant date fair value which is
equivalent to the price of one share of OGE Energy's common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of performance units
based on earnings per share varies as the number of performance units that will vest is based on the grant date fair value of the
units and the probable outcome of the performance condition. OGE Energy reassesses at each reporting date whether
achievement of the performance condition is probable and accrues compensation expense if and when achievement of the
performance condition is probable. As a result, the compensation expense recognized for these performance units can vary from
period to period. There are no post-vesting restrictions related to OGE Energy's performance units based on earnings per share.
In 2019, the Compensation Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors voted to grant restricted stock units in lieu of
performance units based on earnings per share. For 2018, 87,308 and 30,649 performance units based on earnings per share
were granted to OGE Energy and OG&E employees, respectively, and the grant date fair value for such units granted was
$31.03.
Restricted Stock Units
Under the Stock Incentive Plan, OGE Energy has issued restricted stock units to certain existing non-officer employees
as well as other executives upon hire to attract and retain individuals to be competitive in the marketplace, and as of the 2019
grant cycle, restricted stock units are granted in lieu of performance units based on earnings per share. The restricted stock units
vest primarily in a three-year award cycle (i.e., three-year cliff vesting period). Prior to vesting, each restricted stock unit is
subject to forfeiture if the recipient ceases to render substantial services to OGE Energy or a subsidiary. These restricted stock
units may not be sold, assigned, transferred or pledged and are subject to a risk of forfeiture.
The fair value of the restricted stock units was based on the closing market price of OGE Energy's common stock on
the grant date. Compensation expense for the restricted stock units is a fixed amount determined at the grant date fair value and
is recognized as services are rendered by employees over a primarily three-year vesting period. Also, for those restricted stock
units that vest in one-third annual increments over a three-year cycle, OGE Energy treats its restricted stock units as multiple
separate awards by recording compensation expense separately for each tranche whereby a substantial portion of the expense is
recognized in the earlier years in the requisite service period.
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Dividends will only be paid on restricted stock unit awards that vest; therefore, only the present value of dividends
expected to vest are included in the fair value calculations. The expected life of the restricted stock units is based on the nonvested period since inception of the primarily three-year award cycle. There are no post-vesting restrictions related to OGE
Energy's restricted stock units. The following table presents the number of restricted stock units granted and the grant date fair
value.
OGE Energy
OG&E
2020
2019
2018
2020
2019
2018
67,193
22,665
—
Restricted stock units granted..................................
75,929
826
26,141
43.69 $
43.69 $
Fair value of restricted stock units granted.............. $
41.71 $
36.28 $
41.63 $
—
Performance Units and Restricted Stock Units Activity
The following tables present a summary of the activity for the Registrants' performance units and restricted stock units
for the year ended December 31, 2020.
OGE Energy

Performance Units
Total Shareholder Return
Earnings Per Share

Aggregate
Number
Intrinsic
(Dollars in millions)
of Units
Value
Units/shares outstanding at 12/31/19......
664,817
201,552 (A)
Granted.................................................
11.5
Converted............................................. (222,163) (B) $
N/A
Vested...................................................
(31,944)
Forfeited...............................................
612,262
$
5.4
Units/shares outstanding at 12/31/20......
236,990
$
5.4
Units/shares fully vested at 12/31/20......
OG&E

Restricted
Stock Units

Aggregate
Aggregate
Number
Intrinsic Number
Intrinsic
of Units
Value
of Shares
Value
155,171
72,880
—
67,193
(74,053) (B) $
6.6
N/A
N/A
(2,608) $
(0.1)
(2,116)
(12,546)
79,002
$
2.7
124,919 $
4.0
79,002
$
2.7
1,752 $
0.1

Performance Units
Total Shareholder Return
Earnings Per Share

Restricted
Stock Units

Aggregate
Aggregate
Aggregate
Number
Intrinsic Number
Intrinsic Number
Intrinsic
(Dollars in millions)
of Units
Value
of Units
Value
of Shares
Value
Units/shares outstanding at 12/31/19
227,679
53,977
25,005
67,975
(A)
—
22,665
Granted...........................................
(77,799) (B) $
4.0
(25,931) (B) $
2.3
N/A
Converted.......................................
N/A
N/A
(1,113)
$
—
Vested.............................................
(28,985)
(1,969)
(11,100)
Forfeited.........................................
(6,507)
(C)
(842)
(C)
(1,327) (C)
Employee migration.......................
182,363
$
1.7
25,235
$
0.8
34,130
$
1.1
Units/shares outstanding at 12/31/20
75,693
$
1.7
25,235
$
0.8
1,114
$
—
Units/shares fully vested at 12/31/20
(A) For performance units, this represents the target number of performance units granted. Actual number of performance units
earned, if any, is dependent upon performance and may range from zero percent to 200 percent of the target.
(B) These amounts represent performance units that vested at December 31, 2019 which were settled in March 2020.
(C) Due to certain employees transferring between OG&E and OGE Energy.
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The following tables present a summary of the activity for the Registrants' non-vested performance units and restricted
stock units for the year ended December 31, 2020.
OGE Energy

Units/shares non-vested at 12/31/19..
Granted...........................................
Vested.............................................
Forfeited..........................................
Units/shares non-vested at 12/31/20..
OG&E

Units/shares non-vested at 12/31/19..
Granted............................................
Vested.............................................
Forfeited..........................................
Employee migration........................
Units/shares non-vested at 12/31/20..

Performance Units
Restricted
Total Shareholder Return
Earnings Per Share
Stock Units
WeightedWeightedWeightedAverage
Average
Average
Number
Grant Date Number
Grant Date Number
Grant Date
of Units
Fair Value of Units
Fair Value of Shares
Fair Value
442,654
$
41.43
81,118
$
31.03
72,880
$
41.66
201,552 (A) $
38.03
—
$
—
67,193
$
43.69
(236,990)
$
36.86 (79,002)
$
31.03
(2,608)
$
40.30
(31,944)
$
41.15
(2,116)
$
31.03 (12,546)
$
42.60
375,272
$
42.51
—
$
— 124,919
$
42.69
Performance Units
Restricted
Total Shareholder Return
Earnings Per Share
Stock Units
WeightedWeightedWeightedAverage
Average
Average
Number
Grant Date Number
Grant Date Number
Grant Date
of Units
Fair Value of Units
Fair Value of Shares
Fair Value
149,880
$
41.31
28,046
$
31.03
25,005
$
41.62
67,975 (A) $
38.03
—
$
—
22,665
$
43.69
(75,693)
$
36.86 (25,235)
$
31.03
(1,113)
$
40.59
(28,985)
$
41.12
(1,969)
$
31.03 (11,100)
$
42.60
(6,507) (B) $
40.26
(842) (B) $
31.03
(1,327) (B) $
42.76
106,670
$
42.49
—
$
—
34,130
$
42.67

(A) For performance units, this represents the target number of performance units granted. Actual number of performance units
earned, if any, is dependent upon performance and may range from zero percent to 200 percent of the target.
(B) Due to certain employees transferring between OG&E and OGE Energy.
Fair Value of Vested Performance Units and Restricted Stock Units
The following table presents a summary of the Registrants' fair value for vested performance units and restricted stock
units.
OGE Energy
2019

Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
Performance units:
Total shareholder return........................................ $
8.7 $
Earnings per share................................................. $
2.5 $
Restricted stock units............................................... $
0.1 $
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9.3 $
5.2 $
0.1 $

2018
5.9 $
4.9 $
0.1 $

2020
2.8 $
0.8 $
0.1 $

OG&E
2019
3.2 $
0.9 $
— $

2018
2.1
1.7
—

Unrecognized Compensation Cost
The following table presents a summary of the Registrants' unrecognized compensation cost for non-vested
performance units and restricted stock units and the weighted-average periods over which the compensation cost is expected to
be recognized.
OGE Energy

OG&E

Unrecognized
Weighted Average
Unrecognized
Weighted Average
Compensation Cost to be Recognized Compensation Cost to be Recognized
(In millions)
(In years)
(In millions)
(In years)

December 31, 2020
Performance units - total shareholder
return................................................... $
Restricted stock units..........................
Total unrecognized compensation
cost................................................. $
9.

7.1
1.6

1.62 $
1.65

1.8
0.4

8.7

$

2.2

1.64
1.68

Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
The following table presents the components of income tax expense (benefit).
OGE Energy

OG&E

2020
2019
2018
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
2019
2018
Provision (benefit) for current income taxes:
(3.8) $
(7.9) $ (12.4)
Federal............................................................................... $ 8.4 $
(6.4) $
(1.9) $
0.5
State...................................................................................
5.1
(4.4)
(0.6)
4.1
(4.1)
8.9
(4.4)
Total provision (benefit) for current income taxes ........
(1.3)
(6.3)
(3.8)
(16.5)
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes, net:
Federal............................................................................... (105.2)
48.5
74.7
45.7
37.7
53.7
(31.1)
State...................................................................................
(17.4)
3.7
(6.6)
(13.8)
2.7
Total provision (benefit)
for deferred income taxes, net ....................................... (136.3)
31.1
78.4
39.1
23.9
56.4
—
Deferred federal investment tax credits, net..........................
—
0.1
—
—
0.1
34.7 $
Total income tax expense (benefit).............................. $ (127.4) $
29.8 $
72.2 $
20.1 $
40.0
OGE Energy files consolidated income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.
OG&E is a part of the consolidated income tax return of OGE Energy. With few exceptions, the Registrants are no longer
subject to U.S. federal tax or state and local examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2017. Income taxes are generally
allocated to each company in the affiliated group, including OG&E, based on its stand-alone taxable income or loss. Federal
investment tax credits previously claimed on electric utility property have been deferred and will be amortized to income over
the life of the related property. Additionally, OG&E earns federal tax credits associated with production from its wind facilities.
Oklahoma production and investment state tax credits are also earned on investments in electric and solar generating facilities
which further reduce OG&E's effective tax rate.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to the effective income tax rate.
Year Ended December 31
Statutory federal tax rate.........................................
Impairment of OGE Energy's investment in
Enable (A)...............................................................
Remeasurement of state deferred tax liabilities.......
Executive compensation limitation.........................
Other........................................................................
Federal renewable energy credit (B).......................
Amortization of net unfunded deferred taxes..........
State income taxes, net of federal income tax
benefit......................................................................
Stock-based compensation......................................
401(k) dividends......................................................
Federal deferred tax revaluation..............................
Effective income tax rate..................................

OGE Energy
2020
2019
21.0 %
21.0 %

2018
21.0 %

2020
21.0 %

OG&E
2019
21.0 %

2018
21.0 %

31.6
0.9
0.2
0.1
(5.0)
(4.4)

—
(0.8)
0.2
(0.7)
(6.0)
(4.5)

—
(0.4)
0.2
0.4
(5.1)
(2.1)

—
—
—
0.1
(5.4)
(4.8)

—
—
—
(0.6)
(7.6)
(5.6)

—
—
—
(0.1)
(6.9)
(2.9)

(1.4)
(0.3)
(0.4)
—
42.3 %

(1.2)
(1.2)
(0.4)
—
6.4 %

0.4
—
(0.3)
0.4
14.5 %

(1.6)
—
—
—
9.3 %

(1.8)
—
—
—
5.4 %

(0.2)
—
—
—
10.9 %

(A) As further discussed in Note 5, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0 million impairment on its investment in Enable in March
2020, which resulted in a tax benefit being recorded that caused a significant variance to the effective tax rate as compared
to the prior year. This variance has been presented in the table as a single line item in order to facilitate comparability of
other components of the effective tax rate.
(B) Represents credits primarily associated with the production from OG&E's wind farms.
The deferred tax provisions are recognized as costs in the ratemaking process by the commissions having jurisdiction
over the rates charged by OG&E. The following table presents the components of Deferred Income Taxes at December 31,
2020 and 2019.
OGE Energy
2020
2019

OG&E
2020
2019

December 31 (In millions)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net:
Accelerated depreciation and other property related differences................. $ 1,721.2 $ 1,656.8 $ 1,721.2 $ 1,656.8
302.6
478.2
—
—
Investment in Enable....................................................................................
52.3
52.3
28.4
28.4
Regulatory assets..........................................................................................
3.9
27.4
24.5
4.1
Pension Plan..................................................................................................
2.0
2.0
2.2
2.2
Bond redemption-unamortized costs............................................................
1.7
1.6
—
—
Derivative instruments..................................................................................
(236.6)
(236.6)
(238.0)
(238.0)
Federal tax credits.........................................................................................
(221.8)
(221.8)
(229.9)
(229.9)
Income taxes recoverable from customers, net.............................................
State tax credits.............................................................................................
(204.4)
(185.8)
(189.0)
(170.8)
Regulatory liabilities.....................................................................................
(81.0)
(68.1)
(81.0)
(68.1)
Postretirement medical and life insurance benefits......................................
(22.4)
(23.3)
(15.3)
(16.0)
Asset retirement obligations.........................................................................
(20.3)
(19.2)
(20.3)
(19.2)
Net operating losses......................................................................................
(12.0)
(16.6)
(1.4)
(5.7)
Accrued liabilities.........................................................................................
(9.6)
(10.7)
(5.2)
(4.3)
(2.7)
(2.7)
(1.8)
(1.8)
Deferred federal investment tax credits........................................................
Accrued vacation..........................................................................................
(2.2)
(2.1)
(1.6)
(1.6)
Other.............................................................................................................
(1.4)
0.4
(6.5)
(4.7)
Uncollectible accounts..................................................................................
(0.7)
(0.4)
(0.7)
(0.4)
$
1,268.6
$
1,020.8
Total deferred income tax liabilities, net.........................................................
$ 1,375.8
$
951.4

110

As of December 31, 2020, the Registrants have classified $17.6 million of unrecognized tax benefits as a reduction of
deferred tax assets recorded. Management is currently unaware of any issues under review that could result in significant
additional payments, accruals or other material deviation from this amount.
The following table presents a reconciliation of the Registrants' total gross unrecognized tax benefits as of the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
(In millions)
2020
2019
2018
Balance at January 1............................................................................................................. $
20.7 $
20.7 $
20.7
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions..........................................................................................................................
1.2
—
—
Balance at December 31....................................................................................................... $
21.9 $
20.7 $
20.7
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, there were $17.6 million, $16.4 million and $16.4 million, respectively, of
unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the annual effective tax rate.
Where applicable, the Registrants classify income tax-related interest and penalties as interest expense and other
expense, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2020, there were no income tax-related interest or penalties
recorded with regard to uncertain tax positions.
The Registrants recognize tax benefits from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not the tax position
will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits in the
financial statements from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent
likelihood of being realized on settlement. As a result of those measurements, in September 2020, the Registrants recorded an
additional reserve for certain federal research and development credits in the amount of $1.2 million.
The Registrants sustained federal and state tax operating losses through 2012 caused primarily by bonus depreciation
and other book versus tax temporary differences. Federal net operating losses generated during those years have been fully
utilized. State operating losses are being carried forward for utilization in future years. In addition to the tax operating losses,
the Registrants were unable to utilize the various tax credits that were generated during those years. These tax losses and credits
are being carried as deferred tax assets and will be utilized in future periods. Under current law, the Registrants anticipate future
taxable income will be sufficient to utilize remaining losses and credits before they begin to expire after 2020. The following
table presents a summary of these carry forwards.
OGE Energy
Carry Forward Deferred
Amount
Tax Asset

(In millions)
State operating loss......................................... $
Federal tax credits.......................................... $
State tax credits:
Oklahoma investment tax credits................
Oklahoma capital investment board credits.
Oklahoma zero emission tax credits............
Louisiana inventory credits.........................
N/A - not applicable
10.

$
$
$
$

OG&E
Carry Forward Deferred
Earliest
Amount
Tax Asset Expiration Date

268.0 $
236.6 $

12.0 $
236.6 $

21.5 $
236.6 $

1.4
236.6

2030
2032

205.6
12.7
37.2
0.2

162.3
12.7
29.3
0.1

186.1
12.7
37.2
—

147.0
12.7
29.3
—

N/A
N/A
2021
2021

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

Common Equity

OGE Energy
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
OGE Energy issued no shares of common stock under its Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
in 2020. OGE Energy may, from time to time, issue shares under its Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase
Plan or purchase shares traded on the open market. At December 31, 2020, there were 4,774,442 shares of unissued common
stock reserved for issuance under OGE Energy's Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan.
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Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) attributable to OGE Energy by the weighted
average number of OGE Energy's common shares outstanding during the period. In the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per
share, weighted average shares outstanding are increased for additional shares that would be outstanding if potentially dilutive
securities were converted to common stock. Potentially dilutive securities for OGE Energy consist of performance units and
restricted stock units. The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for OGE
Energy.
2020
2019
2018
(In millions except per share data)
Net income (loss).................................................................................................................. $ (173.7) $
433.6 $
425.5
Average common shares outstanding:
200.1
200.1
199.7
Basic average common shares outstanding......................................................................
Effect of dilutive securities:
—
0.6
0.8
Contingently issuable shares (performance and restricted stock units)......................
200.1
200.7
200.5
Diluted average common shares outstanding...................................................................
Basic earnings (loss) per average common share................................................................. $
(0.87) $
2.17 $
2.13
Diluted earnings (loss) per average common share.............................................................. $
(0.87) $
2.16 $
2.12
0.3
Anti-dilutive shares excluded from earnings per share calculation.......................................
—
—
Dividend Restrictions
OGE Energy's Certificate of Incorporation places restrictions on the amount of common stock dividends it can pay
when preferred stock is outstanding. Before OGE Energy can pay any dividends on its common stock, the holders of any of its
preferred stock that may be outstanding are entitled to receive their dividends at the respective rates as may be provided for the
shares of their series. As there is no preferred stock outstanding, that restriction did not place any effective limit on OGE
Energy's ability to pay dividends to its shareholders.
OGE Energy utilizes receipts from its equity investment in Enable and dividends from OG&E to pay dividends to its
shareholders. Enable's partnership agreement requires that it distribute all "available cash," as defined as cash on hand at the end
of a quarter after the payment of expenses and the establishment of cash reserves and cash on hand resulting from working
capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter.
Pursuant to the leverage restriction in OGE Energy's revolving credit agreement, OGE Energy must maintain a
percentage of debt to total capitalization at a level that does not exceed 65 percent. The payment of cash dividends indirectly
results in an increase in the percentage of debt to total capitalization, which results in the restriction of approximately $815.0
million of OGE Energy's retained earnings from being paid out in dividends. Accordingly, approximately $1.7 billion of OGE
Energy's retained earnings as of December 31, 2020 are unrestricted for the payment of dividends.
OG&E
There were no new shares of OG&E common stock issued in 2020, 2019 or 2018.
Dividend Restrictions
Pursuant to the Federal Power Act, OG&E is restricted from paying dividends from its capital accounts. Dividends are
paid from retained earnings. Pursuant to the leverage restriction in OG&E's revolving credit agreement, OG&E must also
maintain a percentage of debt to total capitalization at a level that does not exceed 65 percent. The payment of cash dividends
indirectly results in an increase in the percentage of debt to total capitalization, which results in the restriction of approximately
$842.7 million of OG&E's retained earnings from being paid out in dividends. Accordingly, approximately $2.1 billion of
OG&E's retained earnings as of December 31, 2020 are unrestricted for the payment of dividends.
11.

Long-Term Debt

A summary of the Registrants' long-term debt is included in the statements of capitalization. The Registrants have no
long-term debt maturing in the next five years. At December 31, 2020, the Registrants were in compliance with all of their debt
agreements.
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The Registrants have previously incurred costs related to debt refinancing. Unamortized loss on reacquired debt is
classified as a Non-Current Regulatory Asset in the balance sheets. Unamortized debt expense and unamortized premium and
discount on long-term debt are classified as Long-Term Debt in the balance sheets and are being amortized over the life of the
respective debt.
OG&E Industrial Authority Bonds
OG&E has tax-exempt pollution control bonds with optional redemption provisions that allow the holders to request
repayment of the bonds on any business day. The following table presents information about these bonds, which can be
tendered at the option of the holder during the next 12 months.
Series

Date Due

0.28% - 5.35% Garfield Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025.....................................................................
0.33% - 4.31% Muskogee Industrial Authority, January 1, 2025.................................................................
0.28% - 5.35% Muskogee Industrial Authority, June 1, 2027......................................................................
Total (redeemable during next 12 months)..............................................................................................................

Amount
(In millions)
$
47.0
32.4
56.0
$
135.4

All of these bonds are subject to an optional tender at the request of the holders, at 100 percent of the principal amount,
together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase. The bond holders, on any business day, can request
repayment of the bond by delivering an irrevocable notice to the tender agent stating the principal amount of the bond, payment
instructions for the purchase price and the business day the bond is to be purchased. The repayment option may only be
exercised by the holder of a bond for the principal amount. When a tender notice has been received by the trustee, a third-party
remarketing agent for the bonds will attempt to remarket any bonds tendered for purchase. This process occurs once per
week. Since the original issuance of these series of bonds in 1995 and 1997, the remarketing agent has successfully remarketed
all tendered bonds. If the remarketing agent is unable to remarket any such bonds, OG&E is obligated to repurchase such
unremarketed bonds. As OG&E has both the intent and ability to refinance the bonds on a long-term basis and such ability is
supported by an ability to consummate the refinancing, the bonds are classified as Long-Term Debt in the balance sheets.
OG&E believes that it has sufficient liquidity to meet these obligations.
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
In April 2020, OG&E issued $300.0 million of 3.25 percent senior notes due April 1, 2030. The proceeds from the
issuance were added to OG&E's general funds to be used for general corporate purposes, including to fund ongoing capital
expenditures and working capital.
12.

Short-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

The Registrants borrow on a short-term basis, as necessary, by the issuance of commercial paper and by borrowings
under their revolving credit agreements. OGE Energy also borrows under term credit agreements maturing in one year or less,
as necessary. As of December 31, 2020, OGE Energy had $95.0 million short-term debt as compared to $112.0 million shortterm debt at December 31, 2019. At December 31, 2020, OG&E had $272.0 million in advances to OGE Energy compared to
$304.8 million at December 31, 2019.
In April 2020, OGE Energy entered into a $75.0 million floating rate unsecured one-year term credit agreement and
borrowed the full $75.0 million, in order to preserve financial flexibility in response to COVID-19. Advances under this
agreement were used to refinance existing indebtedness and for working capital and general corporate purposes of OGE
Energy. The term credit agreement contained substantially the same covenants as OGE Energy's existing $450.0 million
revolving credit agreement. In September 2020, OGE Energy repaid the $75.0 million borrowed under the term credit
agreement.
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The following table presents information regarding the Registrants' revolving credit agreements at December 31, 2020.
Aggregate
Entity

Amount

Weighted-Average

Commitment Outstanding (A)

Interest Rate

Expiration

(In millions)
OGE Energy (B)...................................... $

450.0 $

OG&E (C)(E)..........................................

450.0

Total........................................................ $

900.0 $

95.0

0.25 % (D)

March 8, 2024

(F)

0.4

1.00 % (D)

March 8, 2024

(F)

95.4

0.25 %

(A) Includes direct borrowings under the revolving credit agreements, commercial paper borrowings and letters of credit at
December 31, 2020.
(B) This bank facility is available to back up OGE Energy's commercial paper borrowings and to provide revolving credit
borrowings. This bank facility can also be used as a letter of credit facility.
(C) This bank facility is available to back up OG&E's commercial paper borrowings and to provide revolving credit
borrowings. This bank facility can also be used as a letter of credit facility.
(D) Represents the weighted-average interest rate for the outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit agreements,
commercial paper borrowings and letters of credit.
(E) OG&E has an intercompany borrowing agreement with OGE Energy whereby OG&E has access to up to $350.0 million of
OGE Energy's revolving credit amount. This agreement has a termination date of March 8, 2024. At December 31, 2020,
there were no intercompany borrowings under this agreement.
(F) In March 2017, the Registrants entered into unsecured five-year revolving credit agreements totaling $900.0 million
($450.0 million for OGE Energy and $450.0 million for OG&E). Each of the revolving credit facilities contained an option,
which could be exercised up to two times, to extend the term of the respective facility for an additional year. In March
2018, the Registrants each utilized one of those extensions to extend the maturity of their respective credit facility from
March 8, 2022 to March 8, 2023. In January 2021, the Registrants each utilized the second of those extensions to extend
the maturity of their respective credit facility from March 8, 2023 to March 8, 2024. Commitments of a single existing
lender with respect to $50.0 million of OGE Energy's credit facility, however, were not extended and, unless the nonextending lender is replaced in accordance with the terms of the credit facility, such commitments will expire March 8,
2023. The non-extending lender is not party to the OG&E facility.
In January 2021, the Registrants each entered into an amendment to their revolving credit facilities which gives each of
the Registrants the option of extending such commitments for up to two additional one-year periods. In addition, the
amendment addresses the establishment of an alternative rate of interest upon the occurrence of certain events related to the
phase out of LIBOR.
On February 24, 2021, OGE Energy entered into a commitment letter with Wells Fargo and certain of its affiliates
whereby Wells Fargo committed to provide an unsecured term loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion.
While borrowing availability still exists within the Registrants' credit facilities, the $1.0 billion commitment in additional shortterm financing is expected to provide additional liquidity to help cover the increased fuel and purchased power costs incurred
by OG&E during the February 2021 unprecedented cold weather event. For further discussion, see "Item 9B. Other
Information."
The Registrants' credit facilities each have a financial covenant requiring that the respective borrower maintain a
maximum debt to capitalization ratio of 65 percent, as defined in each such facility. The Registrants' facilities each also contain
covenants which restrict the respective borrower and certain of its subsidiaries in respect of, among other things, mergers and
consolidations, sales of all or substantially all assets, incurrence of liens and transactions with affiliates. The Registrants'
facilities are each subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of any default, including, among others, payment defaults on such
facilities, breach of representations, warranties and covenants, acceleration of indebtedness (other than intercompany and nonrecourse indebtedness) of $100.0 million or more in the aggregate, change of control (as defined in each such facility),
nonpayment of uninsured judgments in excess of $100.0 million and the occurrence of certain Employee Retirement Income
Security Act and bankruptcy events, subject where applicable to specified cure periods.
The Registrants' ability to access the commercial paper market could be adversely impacted by a credit ratings
downgrade or major market disruptions. Pricing grids associated with the Registrants' credit facilities could cause annual fees
and borrowing rates to increase if an adverse rating impact occurs. The impact of any future downgrade could include an
increase in the costs of the Registrants' short-term borrowings, but a reduction in the Registrants' credit ratings would not result
in any defaults or accelerations. Any future downgrade could also lead to higher long-term borrowing costs and, if below
investment grade, would require the Registrants to post collateral or letters of credit.

114

OG&E must obtain regulatory approval from the FERC in order to borrow on a short-term basis. OG&E has the
necessary regulatory approvals to incur up to $800.0 million in short-term borrowings at any one time for a two-year period
beginning January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2022.
13.

Retirement Plans and Postretirement Benefit Plans

OGE Energy sponsors defined benefit pension plans, 401(k) savings plans and other postretirement plans covering
certain employees of the Registrants.
Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan
It is OGE Energy's policy to fund the Pension Plan on a current basis based on the net periodic pension expense as
determined by OGE Energy's actuarial consultants. Such contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to
service to date but also for those expected to be earned in the future. OGE Energy made a $20.0 million contribution to its
Pension Plan in both 2020 and 2019, of which $10.0 million and $5.0 million was attributed to OG&E in 2020 and 2019,
respectively. In January 2021, OGE Energy made a $40.0 million contribution to its Pension Plan and has not determined
whether it will need to make any additional contributions to the Pension Plan in 2021. Any contribution to the Pension Plan
during 2021 would be a discretionary contribution, anticipated to be in the form of cash, and is not required to satisfy the
minimum regulatory funding requirement specified by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
OGE Energy could be required to make additional contributions if the value of its pension trust and postretirement benefit plan
trust assets are adversely impacted by a major market disruption in the future.
In accordance with ASC Topic 715, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits," a one-time settlement charge is required to
be recorded by an organization when lump sum payments or other settlements that relieve the organization from the
responsibility for the pension benefit obligation during the plan year exceed the service cost and interest cost components of the
organization's net periodic pension cost. During 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Registrants experienced an increase in both the
number of employees electing to retire and the amount of lump sum payments paid to such employees upon retirement, which
resulted in the Registrants recording pension plan settlement charges as presented in the Pension Plan net periodic benefit cost
table. The pension settlement charges did not require a cash outlay by the Registrants and did not increase total pension expense
over time, as the charges were an acceleration of costs that otherwise would be recognized as pension expense in future periods.
OGE Energy provides a Restoration of Retirement Income Plan to those participants in OGE Energy's Pension Plan
whose benefits are subject to certain limitations of the Code. Participants in the Restoration of Retirement Income Plan receive
the same benefits that they would have received under OGE Energy's Pension Plan in the absence of limitations imposed by the
federal tax laws. The Restoration of Retirement Income Plan is intended to be an unfunded plan.
OG&E's employees participate in OGE Energy's Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan.
Obligations and Funded Status
The details of the funded status of OGE Energy's Pension Plan, the Restoration of Retirement Income Plan and the
postretirement benefit plans and the amounts included in the balance sheets for 2020 and 2019 are included in the following
tables. These amounts have been recorded in Accrued Benefit Obligations with the offset in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Loss (except OG&E's portion, which is recorded as a regulatory asset as discussed in Note 1) in the balance sheets. The
amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and those recorded as a regulatory asset represent a net periodic benefit
cost to be recognized in the statements of income in future periods. The benefit obligation for OGE Energy's Pension Plan and
the Restoration of Retirement Income Plan represents the projected benefit obligation, while the benefit obligation for the
postretirement benefit plans represents the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation. The accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation for OGE Energy's Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan differs from the projected benefit
obligation in that the former includes no assumption about future compensation levels.

115

OGE Energy
Pension Plan
2020
2019
December 31 (In millions)
Change in benefit obligation
Beginning obligations................ $ 616.1 $ 615.9 $
13.2
Service cost................................
12.9
17.0
Interest cost................................
20.7
(42.8)
Plan settlements.........................
(83.1)
—
Plan amendments.......................
—
—
—
Plan curtailments........................
7.6
—
Special termination benefits.......
57.7
Actuarial losses..........................
64.3
(14.2)
(14.6)
Benefits paid..............................
$
654.6
Ending obligations..................
$ 616.1 $
Change in plans' assets
Beginning fair value...................
Actual return on plans' assets.....
Employer contributions..............
Plan settlements.........................
Benefits paid..............................
Ending fair value.....................
Funded status at end of year..
Accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation.......................

$

OG&E

Restoration of
Retirement
Income Plan
2020
2019

Pension Plan
2020
2019

Restoration of
Retirement
Income Plan
2020
2019

10.3 $
0.8
0.2
(5.3)
—
0.2
—
1.6
—
7.8 $

9.6 $
0.5
0.4
(1.2)
0.3
—
—
0.7
—
10.3 $

462.0 $
9.2
12.6
(33.5)
—
—
5.1
41.0
(12.3)
484.1 $

453.6 $
9.0
15.6
(45.6)
—
—
—
42.1
(12.7)
462.0 $

6.1 $
0.1
0.1
(4.5)
—
—
—
1.2
—
3.0 $

6.0
0.2
0.2
(0.9)
—
—
—
0.6
—
6.1

$
$

530.3 $
77.0
20.0
(42.8)
(14.2)
570.3 $
(84.3) $

522.8 $
85.2
20.0
(83.1)
(14.6)
530.3 $
(85.8) $

— $
—
5.3
(5.3)
—
— $
(7.8) $

— $
—
1.2
(1.2)
—
— $
(10.3) $

399.1 $
57.0
10.0
(33.5)
(12.3)
420.3 $
(63.8) $

387.6 $
64.8
5.0
(45.6)
(12.7)
399.1 $
(62.9) $

— $
—
4.5
(4.5)
—
— $
(3.0) $

—
—
0.9
(0.9)
—
—
(6.1)

$

610.8 $

563.3 $

6.9 $

8.1 $

454.7 $

425.8 $

2.9 $

4.8

For the year ended December 31, 2020, Pension Plan actuarial losses were primarily due to movement in the discount
rate, special termination benefits due to a voluntary retirement program offered by OGE Energy and more retirements and
terminations than expected which are expected to accelerate lump sum payments in 2021. These losses were partially offset by
gains from lowering the interest crediting rate and plan mortality assumptions.
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December 31 (In millions)
Change in benefit obligation
Beginning obligations.......................................................... $
Service cost..........................................................................
Interest cost..........................................................................
Plan curtailments..................................................................
Participants' contributions....................................................
Actuarial losses....................................................................
Benefits paid........................................................................
Ending obligations............................................................ $

OGE Energy
Postretirement Benefit Plans
2020
2019

Change in plans' assets
Beginning fair value............................................................. $
Actual return on plans' assets...............................................
Employer contributions........................................................
Participants' contributions....................................................
Benefits paid........................................................................
Ending fair value............................................................... $
Funded status at end of year............................................ $

OG&E
Postretirement Benefit Plans
2020
2019

136.5 $
0.2
4.2
4.0
3.3
7.3
(11.0)
144.5 $

135.8 $
0.2
5.6
—
4.1
2.9
(12.1)
136.5 $

104.7 $
0.2
3.2
3.1
2.4
4.5
(8.6)
109.5 $

104.8
0.2
4.3
—
3.0
2.2
(9.8)
104.7

47.0 $
1.2

45.3 $
4.6
5.1
4.1
(12.1)
47.0 $
(89.5) $

41.9 $
1.1

40.6
4.0
4.1
3.0
(9.8)
41.9
(62.8)

7.1
3.3
(11.0)
47.6 $
(96.9) $

5.9
2.4
(8.6)
42.7 $
(66.8) $

Special termination benefits and curtailment loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 are related to a voluntary
retirement program offered by OGE Energy in the fourth quarter of 2020. A curtailment gain or loss is required when the
expected future services or benefits in a benefit plan are significantly reduced or eliminated.
Net Periodic Benefit Cost
The following tables present the net periodic benefit cost components, before consideration of capitalized amounts, of
OGE Energy's Pension Plan, Restoration of Retirement Income Plan and postretirement benefit plans that are included in the
financial statements. Service cost is presented within Other Operation and Maintenance, and the remaining net period benefit
cost components as listed in the following tables are presented within Other Net Periodic Benefit Income (Expense) in the
statements of income. OG&E recovers specific amounts of pension and postretirement medical costs in rates approved in its
Oklahoma rate reviews. In accordance with approved orders, OG&E defers the difference between actual pension and
postretirement medical expenses and the amount approved in its last Oklahoma rate review as a regulatory asset or regulatory
liability. These amounts have been recorded in the Pension tracker in the regulatory assets and liabilities table in Note 1 and
within Other Net Periodic Benefit Income (Expense) in the statements of income.
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OGE Energy
Restoration of
Retirement
Pension Plan
Income Plan

OG&E
Restoration of
Retirement
Income Plan

Pension Plan

Year Ended December 31
(In millions)
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
Service cost........................... $ 13.2 $ 12.9 $ 14.9 $ 0.8 $ 0.5 $ 0.4 $ 9.2 $ 9.0 $ 9.8 $ 0.1 $ 0.2 $ 0.2
0.2
12.6
0.1
Interest cost........................... 17.0
20.7
23.8
0.4
0.3
15.6
17.6
0.2
0.2
Expected
return on plan assets............. (37.6) (36.1) (44.1)
—
—
—
(27.9) (27.6) (33.1)
—
—
—
17.1
0.5
12.1
0.4
Amortization of net loss.......
17.3
16.2
0.5
0.7
12.9
12.1
0.3
0.5
Plan curtailments..................
Special termination benefits.
Amortization of
unrecognized prior
service cost (A).....................
Settlement cost.....................
Total net periodic benefit
cost.....................................
Less: Amount paid by
unconsolidated affiliates (B).
Plus: Amount allocated from
OGE Energy (B)...................
Net periodic benefit cost.... $

—
7.6

—
—

—
—

0.2
—

—
—

—
—

—
5.1

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
14.1

—
27.6

—
25.1

—
2.7

—
0.5

0.1
1.0

—
11.4

—
16.4

—
19.4

—
2.4

—
0.5

—
0.4

31.4

42.4

35.9

4.4

1.9

2.5

22.5

26.3

25.8

3.0

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.9

2.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

5.9
4.5
5.7
1.3
0.5
1.2
29.4 $ 39.5 $ 33.4 $ 4.3 $ 1.8 $ 2.4 $ 28.4 $ 30.8 $ 31.5 $ 4.3 $ 1.7 $ 2.5

(A) Unamortized prior service cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period to the first
eligibility age of participants who are expected to receive a benefit and are active at the date of the plan amendment.
(B) "Amount paid by unconsolidated affiliates" is only applicable to OGE Energy. "Amount allocated from OGE Energy" is
only applicable to OG&E.
In addition to the net periodic benefit cost amounts recognized, as presented in the table above, for the Pension and
Restoration of Retirement Income Plans in 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Registrants recognized the following:
2020

Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
Decrease of pension expense to maintain allowed recoverable amount in Oklahoma
jurisdiction (A)......................................................................................................................... $
Deferral of pension expense related to pension settlement, curtailment and special
termination benefits charges:
Oklahoma jurisdiction (A)..................................................................................................... $

2019

2018

(13.8) $

(16.1) $

(14.1)

21.6 $

17.9 $

22.1

Arkansas jurisdiction (A)....................................................................................................... $
2.0 $
1.7 $
2.1
(A) Included in the pension regulatory asset or liability in each jurisdiction, as indicated in the regulatory assets and liabilities
table in Note 1.
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OGE Energy
OG&E
Postretirement Benefit Plans
Postretirement Benefit Plans
2020
2020
2019
2018
2019
2018
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
0.2 $
0.2 $
Service cost.................................................................. $
0.2 $
0.3 $
0.2 $
0.2
4.2
3.2
Interest cost..................................................................
5.6
5.4
4.3
4.2
(1.8)
(1.7)
Expected return on plan assets.....................................
(1.9)
(2.0)
(1.7)
(1.8)
2.0
2.1
Amortization of net loss...............................................
2.0
3.8
2.1
3.8
Plan curtailments..........................................................
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (A)...
Total net periodic benefit cost...................................
Less: Amount paid by unconsolidated affiliates (B)....
Plus: Amount allocated from OGE Energy (B)............
Net periodic benefit cost............................................ $

1.5
(8.4)
(2.3)
(0.7)
(1.6) $

—
(8.4)
(2.5)
(0.6)
(1.9) $

—
(8.4)
(0.9)
(0.5)
(0.4) $

1.3
(6.1)
(1.0)

—
(6.1)
(1.2)

—
(6.1)
0.3

(0.5)
(1.5) $

(0.6)
(1.8) $

(0.7)
(0.4)

(A) Unamortized prior service cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period to the first
eligibility age of participants who are expected to receive a benefit and are active at the date of the plan amendment.
(B) "Amount paid by unconsolidated affiliates" is only applicable to OGE Energy. "Amount allocated from OGE Energy" is
only applicable to OG&E.
In addition to the net periodic benefit income amounts recognized, as presented in the table above, for the
postretirement benefit plans in 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Registrants recognized the following:
2020

Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
Increase of postretirement expense to maintain allowed recoverable amount in Oklahoma
jurisdiction (A)......................................................................................................................... $
Deferral of postretirement expense related to postretirement plan curtailment charges:
Oklahoma jurisdiction (A)..................................................................................................... $
Arkansas jurisdiction (A)....................................................................................................... $

2019

2018

0.2 $

1.0 $

4.4

1.4 $
0.1 $

— $
— $

—
—

(A) Included in the pension regulatory asset or liability in each jurisdiction, as indicated in the regulatory assets and liabilities
table in Note 1.
OGE Energy
2019

(In millions)
2020
Capitalized portion of net periodic pension benefit
cost.............................................................................. $
3.8 $
Capitalized portion of net periodic postretirement
benefit cost.................................................................. $
0.2 $
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2018

2020

OG&E
2019

2018

3.6 $

3.8 $

3.1 $

3.0 $

3.2

0.2 $

0.2 $

0.1 $

0.1 $

0.1

Rate Assumptions

Year Ended December 31
Assumptions to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate.............................................................
Rate of compensation increase..................................
Interest crediting rate.................................................
Assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate.............................................................
Expected return on plan assets..................................
Rate of compensation increase..................................
Interest crediting rate.................................................

Pension Plan and
Restoration of Retirement
Income Plan
2020
2019
2018

Postretirement
Benefit Plans
2020
2019
2018

2.30 %
4.20 %
3.50 %

3.15 %
4.20 %
4.00 %

4.20 %
4.20 %
4.00 %

2.45 %
N/A
N/A

3.25 %
N/A
N/A

4.30 %
N/A
N/A

2.88
7.50
4.20
4.00

3.63
7.50
4.20
4.00

3.73
7.50
4.20
4.00

3.25 %
4.00 %
N/A
N/A

4.30 %
4.00 %
N/A
N/A

3.70 %
4.00 %
N/A
N/A

%
%
%
%

%
%
%
%

%
%
%
%

N/A - not applicable
The discount rate used to compute the present value of plan liabilities is based generally on rates of high-grade
corporate bonds with maturities similar to the average period over which benefits will be paid. The discount rate used to
determine net benefit cost for the current year is the same discount rate used to determine the benefit obligation as of the
previous year's balance sheet date, unless a plan settlement occurs during the current year that requires an updated discount rate
for net periodic cost measurement. For 2020 and 2019, the Pension Plan discount rates used to determine net periodic benefit
cost are disclosed on a weighted-average basis.
The overall expected rate of return on plan assets assumption is used in determining net periodic benefit cost due to
recent returns on OGE Energy's long-term investment portfolio. The rate of return on plan assets assumption is the average
long-term rate of earnings expected on the funds currently invested and to be invested for the purpose of providing benefits
specified by the Pension Plan or postretirement benefit plans. This assumption is reexamined at least annually and updated as
necessary. The rate of return on plan assets assumption reflects a combination of historical return analysis, forward-looking
return expectations and the plans' current and expected asset allocation.
The assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for postretirement medical
benefit plans. Future health care cost trend rates are assumed to be 6.75 percent in 2021 with the rates trending downward to
4.50 percent by 2030.
Pension Plan
Pension Plan Investments, Policies and Strategies
The Pension Plan assets are held in a trust which follows an investment policy and strategy designed to reduce the
funded status volatility of the Plan by utilizing liability driven investing. The purpose of liability-driven investing is to structure
the asset portfolio to more closely resemble the pension liability and thereby more effectively hedge against changes in the
liability. The investment policy follows a glide path approach that shifts a higher portfolio weighting to fixed income as the
Plan's funded status increases. The following table presents the targeted fixed income and equity allocations at different funded
status levels.
Projected Benefit Obligation Funded
Status Thresholds
Fixed income............................................
Equity.......................................................
Total.........................................................

<90%
50%
50%
100%

95%
58%
42%
100%

120

100%
65%
35%
100%

105%
73%
27%
100%

110%
80%
20%
100%

115%
85%
15%
100%

120%
90%
10%
100%

Within the portfolio's overall allocation to equities, the funds are allocated according to the guidelines in the following
table.
Target Allocation Minimum Maximum
Asset Class
Domestic Large Cap Equity.......................................................................................
40%
35%
60%
Domestic Mid-Cap Equity.........................................................................................
15%
5%
25%
Domestic Small-Cap Equity.......................................................................................
25%
5%
30%
International Equity....................................................................................................
20%
10%
30%
OGE Energy has retained an investment consultant responsible for the general investment oversight, analysis,
monitoring investment guideline compliance and providing quarterly reports to certain of the Registrants' members and OGE
Energy's Investment Committee. The various investment managers used by the trust operate within the general operating
objectives as established in the investment policy and within the specific guidelines established for each investment manager's
respective portfolio.
The portfolio is rebalanced at least on an annual basis to bring the asset allocations of various managers in line with the
target asset allocation listed above. More frequent rebalancing may occur if there are dramatic price movements in the financial
markets which may cause the trust's exposure to any asset class to exceed or fall below the established allowable guidelines.
To evaluate the progress of the portfolio, investment performance is reviewed quarterly. It is, however, expected that
performance goals will be met over a full market cycle, normally defined as a three- to five-year period. Analysis of
performance is within the context of the prevailing investment environment and the advisors' investment style. The goal of the
trust is to provide a rate of return consistently from three percent to five percent over the rate of inflation (as measured by the
national Consumer Price Index) on a fee adjusted basis over a typical market cycle of no less than three years and no more than
five years. Each investment manager is expected to outperform its respective benchmark.
The following table presents a list of each asset class utilized with appropriate comparative benchmark(s) each
manager is evaluated against and the focus of the asset class.
Asset Class

Comparative Benchmark(s)

Active Duration Fixed Income
Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate
(A)(B)................................................

Focus of Asset Class
l

l
l

Long Duration Fixed Income (A)(B) Duration blended Barclays Long
Government/Credit & Barclays
Universal

l
l
l
l

l

Equity Index (B)(C).......................... Standard & Poor's 500 Index
Mid-Cap Equity (B)(C)..................... Russell Midcap Index
Russell Midcap Value Index

l

l

l

Small-Cap Equity (B)(C).................. Russell 2000 Index
Russell 2000 Value Index

121

Maximize risk-adjusted performance while
providing long bond exposure managed according
to the manager's forecast on interest rates.
All invested assets must reach at or above Baa3 or
BBB- investment grade.
Limited five percent exposure to any single issuer,
except the U.S. Government or affiliates.
Maximize risk-adjusted performance.
At least 75 percent of invested assets much reach at
or above Baaa3 or BBB- investment grade.
Limited five percent exposure to any single issuer,
except the U.S. Government or affiliates.
May invest up to 10 percent of the market value in
convertible bonds as long as quality guidelines are
met.
May invest up to 15 percent of the market value in
private placement, including 144A securities with
or without registration rights and allow for futures
to be traded in the portfolio.
Focus on replicating the performance of the S&P
500 Index.
Focus on undervalued stocks expected to earn
average return and pay out higher than average
dividends.
Invest in companies with market capitalizations
lower than average company on public exchanges:
l Price/earnings ratio at or near referenced
index;
l Small dividend yield and return on equity
at or near referenced index; and
l Earnings per share growth rate at or near
referenced index.

International Equity (D).................... Morgan Stanley Capital
International ACWI ex-U.S.

l
l

Invest in non-dollar denominated equity securities.
Diversify the overall trust investments.

(A) Investment grades are by Moody's Investors Service, S&P Global Ratings or Fitch Ratings.
(B) The purchase of any of OGE Energy's equity, debt or other securities is prohibited.
(C) No more than five percent can be invested in any one stock at the time of purchase and no more than 10 percent after
accounting for price appreciation. Options or financial futures may not be purchased unless prior approval from OGE
Energy's Investment Committee is received. The purchase of securities on margin, securities lending, private placement
purchases and venture capital purchases are prohibited. The aggregate positions in any company may not exceed one
percent of the fair market value of its outstanding stock.
(D) The manager of this asset class is required to operate under certain restrictions including regional constraints,
diversification requirements and percentage of U.S. securities. All securities are freely traded on a recognized stock
exchange, and there are no over-the-counter derivatives. The following investment categories are excluded: options (other
than traded currency options), commodities, futures (other than currency futures or currency hedging), short sales/margin
purchases, private placements, unlisted securities and real estate (but not real estate shares).
Pension Plan Investments
The following tables present the Pension Plan's investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. There were no Level 3 investments held by the Pension Plan at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
(In millions)
Common stocks......................................................................
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds (B)........................................
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities...................................
Corporate fixed income and other securities..........................
Commingled fund (C)............................................................
Foreign government bonds.....................................................
U.S. municipal bonds.............................................................
Money market fund ...............................................................
Mutual fund............................................................................
Preferred stocks .....................................................................
U.S. Treasury futures:
Cash collateral.....................................................................
Forward contracts:
Receivable (foreign currency).............................................
Total Pension Plan investments...........................................
Receivable from broker for securities sold............................
Interest and dividends receivable...........................................
Payable to broker for securities purchased.............................
Total OGE Energy Pension Plan assets...............................
Pension Plan investments attributable to affiliates.................
Total OG&E Pension Plan assets.........................................

Net Asset
December 31, 2020
Level 1
Level 2
Value (A)
$
252.3 $
252.3 $
— $
—
134.3
134.3
—
—
29.3
—
29.3
—
116.6
—
116.6
—
25.4
—
—
25.4
4.6
—
4.6
—
1.8
—
1.8
—
8.8
—
—
8.8
9.2
9.2
—
—
0.6
0.6
—
—

$
$

0.7

0.7

—

0.1
583.7 $
0.2
2.2
(15.8)
570.3
(150.0)
420.3

—
397.1 $

0.1
152.4 $

—
—
34.2

(A) GAAP allows the measurement of certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value at the net asset
value. These investments do not consider the observability of inputs; therefore, they are not included within the fair value
hierarchy.
(B) This category represents U.S. Treasury notes and bonds with a Moody's Investors Service rating of Aaa and Government
Agency Bonds with a Moody's Investors Service rating of A1 or higher.
(C) This category represents units of participation in a commingled fund that primarily invested in stocks of international
companies and emerging markets.
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Net Asset
Value (A)
(In millions)
December 31, 2019
Level 1
Level 2
Common stocks...................................................................... $
202.0 $
202.0 $
— $
—
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds (B)........................................
134.8
134.8
—
—
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities...................................
45.8
—
45.8
—
Corporate fixed income and other securities..........................
130.5
—
130.5
—
Commingled fund (C)............................................................
23.9
—
—
23.9
Foreign government bonds.....................................................
3.0
—
3.0
—
1.1
—
1.1
—
U.S. municipal bonds.............................................................
Money market fund ...............................................................
2.4
—
—
2.4
Mutual fund............................................................................
7.5
7.5
—
—
Preferred stocks......................................................................
0.7
0.7
—
—
Futures:
U.S. Treasury futures (receivable).......................................
22.9
—
22.9
—
U.S. Treasury futures (payable)...........................................
(10.9)
—
(10.9)
—
Cash collateral ....................................................................
0.6
0.6
—
—
Forward contracts:
Receivable (foreign currency).............................................
0.1
—
0.1
—
Total Pension Plan investments...........................................
564.4 $
345.6 $
192.5 $
26.3
Interest and dividends receivable...........................................
2.4
Payable to broker for securities purchased.............................
(36.5)
Total OGE Energy Pension Plan assets............................... $
530.3
Pension Plan investments attributable to affiliates.................
(131.2)
Total OG&E Pension Plan assets......................................... $
399.1
(A) GAAP allows the measurement of certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value at the net asset
value. These investments do not consider the observability of inputs; therefore, they are not included within the fair value
hierarchy.
(B) This category represents U.S. Treasury notes and bonds with a Moody's Investors Service rating of Aaa and Government
Agency Bonds with a Moody's Investors Service rating of A1 or higher.
(C) This category represents units of participation in a commingled fund that primarily invested in stocks of international
companies and emerging markets.
As defined in the fair value hierarchy, Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical unrestricted
assets or liabilities that are accessible by the Pension Plan at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted
prices in active markets included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable at the reporting date for the
asset or liability for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active. Level 3
inputs are prices or valuation techniques for the asset or liability that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity). Unobservable inputs reflect the Plan's own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions
about risk).
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Expected Benefit Payments
The following table presents the benefit payments the Registrants expect to pay related to the Pension Plan and
Restoration of Retirement Income Plan. These expected benefits are based on the same assumptions used to measure OGE
Energy's benefit obligation at the end of the year and include benefits attributable to estimated future employee service.
(In millions)
2021.....................................................................................................................................
2022.....................................................................................................................................
2023.....................................................................................................................................
2024.....................................................................................................................................
2025.....................................................................................................................................
After 2025............................................................................................................................

$
$
$
$
$
$

OGE Energy
164.2
43.3
42.5
44.2
41.1
203.6

$
$
$
$
$
$

OG&E
123.9
33.1
31.9
32.3
29.3
141.1

Postretirement Benefit Plans
In addition to providing pension benefits, OGE Energy provides certain medical and life insurance benefits for eligible
retired members. Regular, full-time, active employees hired prior to February 1, 2000 whose age and years of credited service
total or exceed 80 or have attained at least age 55 with 10 or more years of service at the time of retirement are entitled to
postretirement medical benefits, while employees hired on or after February 1, 2000 are not entitled to postretirement medical
benefits. Eligible retirees must contribute such amount as OGE Energy specifies from time to time toward the cost of coverage
for postretirement benefits. The benefits are subject to deductibles, co-payment provisions and other limitations. OG&E charges
postretirement benefit costs to expense and includes an annual amount as a component of the cost-of-service in future
ratemaking proceedings.
OGE Energy's contribution to the medical costs for pre-65 aged eligible retirees are fixed at the 2011 level, and OGE
Energy covers future annual medical inflationary cost increases up to five percent. Increases in excess of five percent annually
are covered by the pre-65 aged retiree in the form of premium increases. OGE Energy provides Medicare-eligible retirees and
their Medicare-eligible spouses an annual fixed contribution to an OGE Energy-sponsored health reimbursement arrangement.
Medicare-eligible retirees are able to purchase individual insurance policies supplemental to Medicare through a third-party
administrator and use their health reimbursement arrangement funds for reimbursement of medical premiums and other eligible
medical expenses.
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Postretirement Plans Investments
The following tables present the postretirement benefit plans' investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis at December 31, 2020 and 2019. There were no Level 2 investments held by the postretirement benefit plans at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.
(In millions)
Group retiree medical insurance contract.................................................................
Mutual fund..............................................................................................................
Money market fund..................................................................................................
Total OGE Energy plan investments.....................................................................
Plan investments attributable to affiliates................................................................
Total OG&E plan investments...............................................................................

December 31, 2020 Level 1
Level 3
$
33.4 $
— $
33.4
10.8
10.8
—
3.4
3.4
—
$
47.6 $
14.2 $
33.4
(4.9)
$
42.7

(In millions)
Group retiree medical insurance contract.................................................................
Mutual funds.............................................................................................................
Money market fund..................................................................................................
Total OGE Energy plan investments.....................................................................
Plan investments attributable to affiliates................................................................
Total OG&E plan investments...............................................................................

December 31, 2019
Level 1
Level 3
$
34.8 $
— $
34.8
10.9
10.9
—
1.2
1.2
—
$
46.9 $
12.1 $
34.8
(5.0)
$
41.9

The group retiree medical insurance contract invests in a pool of common stocks, bonds and money market accounts,
of which a significant portion is comprised of mortgage-backed securities. The unobservable input included in the valuation of
the contract includes the approach for determining the allocation of the postretirement benefit plans' pro-rata share of the total
assets in the contract.
The following table presents a reconciliation of the postretirement benefit plans' investments that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).
2020
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
Group retiree medical insurance contract:
Beginning balance.......................................................................................................................................................... $
34.8
Claims paid....................................................................................................................................................................
(3.7)
Investment fees..............................................................................................................................................................
(0.1)
Interest income...............................................................................................................................................................
0.8
Net unrealized gains related to instruments held at the reporting date..........................................................................
0.6
Dividend income............................................................................................................................................................
0.6
Realized gains................................................................................................................................................................
0.4
Ending balance............................................................................................................................................................. $
33.4
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Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 expanded coverage for prescription
drugs. The following table presents the gross benefit payments the Registrants expect to pay related to the postretirement
benefit plans, including prescription drug benefits.
(In millions)
2021............................................................................................................
2022............................................................................................................
2023............................................................................................................
2024............................................................................................................
2025............................................................................................................
After 2025...................................................................................................

OGE Energy
$
$
$
$
$
$

OG&E
11.9
11.8
11.4
10.0
9.5
40.9

$
$
$
$
$
$

9.4
9.3
8.9
7.7
7.3
31.0

Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Disabled employees receiving benefits from OGE Energy's Group Long-Term Disability Plan are entitled to continue
participating in OGE Energy's Medical Plan along with their dependents. The post-employment benefit obligation represents
the actuarial present value of estimated future medical benefits that are attributed to employee service rendered prior to the date
as of which such information is presented. The obligation also includes future medical benefits expected to be paid to current
employees participating in the Group Long-Term Disability Plan and their dependents, as defined in OGE Energy's Medical
Plan.
The post-employment benefit obligation is determined by an actuary on a basis similar to the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation. The estimated future medical benefits are projected to grow with expected future medical cost
trend rates and are discounted for interest at the discount rate and for the probability that the participant will discontinue
receiving benefits from OGE Energy's Group Long-Term Disability Plan due to death, recovery from disability or eligibility for
retiree medical benefits. OGE Energy's post-employment benefit obligation was $2.2 million and $2.1 million at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively, of which $1.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively, was OG&E's portion of the obligation.
401(k) Plan
OGE Energy provides a 401(k) Plan, and each regular full-time employee of OGE Energy or a participating affiliate is
eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan immediately upon hire. All other employees of OGE Energy or a participating affiliate
are eligible to become participants in the 401(k) Plan after completing one year of service as defined in the 401(k) Plan.
Participants may contribute each pay period any whole percentage between two percent and 19 percent of their compensation,
as defined in the 401(k) Plan, for that pay period. Participants who have reached age 50 before the close of a year are allowed to
make additional contributions referred to as "Catch-Up Contributions," subject to certain limitations of the Code. Participants
may designate, at their discretion, all or any portion of their contributions as: (i) a before-tax contribution under Section 401(k)
of the Code subject to the limitations thereof, (ii) a contribution made on a non-Roth after-tax basis or (iii) a Roth contribution.
The 401(k) Plan also includes an eligible automatic contribution arrangement and provides for a qualified default investment
alternative consistent with the U.S. Department of Labor regulations. Participants may elect, in accordance with the 401(k) Plan
procedures, to have their future salary deferral rate to be automatically increased annually on a date and in an amount as
specified by the participant in such election. For employees hired or rehired on or after December 1, 2009, OGE Energy
contributes to the 401(k) Plan, on behalf of each participant, 200 percent of the participant's contributions up to five percent of
compensation.
No OGE Energy contributions are made with respect to a participant's Catch-Up Contributions, rollover contributions
or with respect to a participant's contributions based on overtime payments, pay-in-lieu of overtime for exempt personnel,
special lump-sum recognition awards and lump-sum merit awards included in compensation for determining the amount of
participant contributions. Once made, OGE Energy's contribution may be directed to any available investment option in the
401(k) Plan. OGE Energy match contributions vest over a three-year period. After two years of service, participants become 20
percent vested in their OGE Energy contribution account and become fully vested on completing three years of service. In
addition, participants fully vest when they are eligible for normal or early retirement under the Pension Plan requirements, in
the event of their termination due to death or permanent disability or upon attainment of age 65 while employed by OGE
Energy or its affiliates. OGE Energy contributed $18.2 million, $14.4 million and $13.2 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, to the 401(k) Plan, of which $14.3 million, $11.0 million and $9.8 million, respectively, related to OG&E.
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Deferred Compensation Plan
OGE Energy provides a nonqualified deferred compensation plan which is intended to be an unfunded plan. The plan's
primary purpose is to provide a tax-deferred capital accumulation vehicle for a select group of management, highly
compensated employees and non-employee members of OGE Energy's Board of Directors and to supplement such employees'
401(k) Plan contributions as well as offering this plan to be competitive in the marketplace.
Eligible employees who enroll in the plan have the following deferral options: (i) eligible employees may elect to defer
up to a maximum of 70 percent of base salary and 100 percent of annual bonus awards or (ii) eligible employees may elect a
deferral percentage of base salary and bonus awards based on the deferral percentage elected for a year under the 401(k) Plan
with such deferrals to start when maximum deferrals to the qualified 401(k) Plan have been made because of limitations in that
plan. Eligible directors who enroll in the plan may elect to defer up to a maximum of 100 percent of directors' meeting fees and
annual retainers. OGE Energy matches employee (but not non-employee director) deferrals to make up for any match lost in the
401(k) Plan because of deferrals to the deferred compensation plan and to allow for a match that would have been made under
the 401(k) Plan on that portion of either the first six percent of total compensation or the first five percent of total
compensation, depending on prior participant elections, deferred that exceeds the limits allowed in the 401(k) Plan. Matching
credits vest based on years of service, with full vesting after three years or, if earlier, on retirement, disability, death, a change
in control of OGE Energy or termination of the plan. Deferrals, plus any OGE Energy match, are credited to a recordkeeping
account in the participant's name. Earnings on the deferrals are indexed to the assumed investment funds selected by the
participant. In 2020, those investment options included an OGE Energy Common Stock fund, whose value was determined
based on the stock price of OGE Energy's Common Stock. OGE Energy accounts for the contributions related to its executive
officers in this plan as Accrued Benefit Obligations and accounts for the contributions related to OGE Energy's directors in this
plan as Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities in the balance sheets. The investment associated with these contributions is
accounted for as Other Property and Investments in the balance sheets. The appreciation of these investments is accounted for
as Other Income, and the increase in the liability under the plan is accounted for as Other Expense in the statements of income.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
OGE Energy provides a supplemental executive retirement plan in order to attract and retain lateral hires or other
executives designated by the Compensation Committee of OGE Energy's Board of Directors who may not otherwise qualify for
a sufficient level of benefits under OGE Energy's Pension Plan and Restoration of Retirement Income Plan. The supplemental
executive retirement plan is intended to be an unfunded plan and not subject to the benefit limitations of the Code. For the
actuarial equivalence calculations, the supplemental executive retirement plan provides that (i) mortality rates shall be based on
the unisex mortality table issued under Internal Revenue Service Notice 2018-02 for purposes of determining the minimum
present value under Code Section 417(e)(3) for distributions with annuity starting dates that occur during stability periods
beginning in the 2019 calendar year and (ii) the interest rate shall be five percent.
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14.

Report of Business Segments

OGE Energy reports its operations in two business segments: (i) the electric utility segment, which is engaged in the
generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electric energy and (ii) natural gas midstream operations segment. Other
operations primarily includes the operations of the holding company. Intersegment revenues are recorded at prices comparable
to those of unaffiliated customers and are affected by regulatory considerations. The following tables present the results of OGE
Energy's business segments for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.
2020

Electric
Utility

(In millions)
Operating revenues......................................................
Cost of sales.................................................................
Other operation and maintenance................................
Depreciation and amortization.....................................
Taxes other than income..............................................
Operating income (loss)............................................
Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates (A).........
Other income (expense)...............................................
Interest expense...........................................................
Income tax expense (benefit).......................................
Net income (loss)....................................................
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates.......................
Total assets...................................................................
Capital expenditures....................................................

$ 2,122.3
644.6
464.4
391.3
97.2
524.8
—
4.1
154.8
34.7
$ 339.4
$
—
$ 10,489.0
$ 650.5

Natural Gas
Midstream
Operations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
1.7
—
0.4
(2.1)
(668.0)
(2.9)
—
(158.0)
(515.0)
374.3
378.1
—

Other
Operations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
(3.3)
—
3.8
(0.5)
—
3.6
5.3
(4.1)
1.9
23.1
116.4
—

Eliminations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(1.6)
(1.6)
—
—
—
(264.7)
—

Total
$ 2,122.3
644.6
462.8
391.3
101.4
522.2
(668.0)
3.2
158.5
(127.4)
$ (173.7)
$ 397.4
$ 10,718.8
$ 650.5

(A) In March 2020, OGE Energy recorded a $780.0 million impairment on its investment in Enable, as further discussed in
Notes 5 and 7.

2019

Electric
Utility

(In millions)
Operating revenues......................................................
Cost of sales.................................................................
Other operation and maintenance................................
Depreciation and amortization.....................................
Taxes other than income..............................................
Operating income (loss)............................................
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates...........
Other income (expense)...............................................
Interest expense...........................................................
Income tax expense (benefit).......................................
Net income..............................................................
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates.......................
Total assets...................................................................
Capital expenditures....................................................

$ 2,231.6
786.9
492.5
355.0
89.5
507.7
—
3.1
140.5
20.1
$ 350.2
$
—
$ 10,076.6
$ 635.5

128

Natural Gas
Midstream
Operations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
2.8
—
0.4
(3.2)
113.9
(8.6)
—
20.7
81.4
1,132.9
1,135.4
—

Other
Operations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
(3.5)
—
3.7
(0.2)
—
2.2
11.0
(11.0)
2.0
18.6
107.0
—

Eliminations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(3.6)
(3.6)
—
—
—
(294.7)
—

Total
$ 2,231.6
786.9
491.8
355.0
93.6
504.3
113.9
(6.9)
147.9
29.8
$ 433.6
$ 1,151.5
$ 11,024.3
$ 635.5

2018

Electric
Utility

(In millions)
Operating revenues...............................................................
Cost of sales..........................................................................
Other operation and maintenance.........................................
Depreciation and amortization..............................................
Taxes other than income.......................................................
Operating income (loss).....................................................
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.....................
Other income (expense)........................................................
Interest expense.....................................................................
Income tax expense (benefit)................................................
Net income (loss)..............................................................
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates.................................
Total assets............................................................................
Capital expenditures..............................................................

$ 2,270.3
892.5
473.8
321.6
88.2
494.2
—
25.6
151.8
40.0
$ 328.0
$
—
$ 9,704.5
$ 573.6

15.

Natural Gas
Midstream
Operations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
1.4
—
0.6
(2.0)
152.8
(4.9)
—
37.1
108.8
1,166.6
1,169.8
—

Other
Operations Eliminations
$

$
$
$
$

—
—
(0.6)
—
3.2
(2.6)
—
(3.4)
10.2
(4.9)
(11.3)
10.9
184.8
—

$

$
$
$
$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(6.0)
(6.0)
—
—
—
(310.5)
—

Total
$ 2,270.3
892.5
474.6
321.6
92.0
489.6
152.8
11.3
156.0
72.2
$ 425.5
$ 1,177.5
$ 10,748.6
$ 573.6

Commitments and Contingencies

Public Utility Regulatory Policy Act of 1978
OG&E had QF contracts with AES-Shady Point, Inc. and Oklahoma Cogeneration LLC, which expired in January and
August 2019, respectively. For the 320 MW AES-Shady Point, Inc. QF contract and the 120 MW Oklahoma Cogeneration LLC
QF contract, OG&E purchased 100 percent of the electricity generated by the qualified cogeneration facilities. In 2019, OG&E
received approval from the OCC and APSC to acquire the plants from AES-Shady Point, Inc. and Oklahoma Cogeneration
LLC.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, OG&E made total payments to cogenerators of $14.7 million and
$112.4 million, respectively, of which $7.4 million and $60.0 million, respectively, represented capacity payments. All
payments for purchased power, including cogeneration, are included in the Registrants' statements of income as Cost of Sales.
Purchase Obligations and Commitments
The following table presents the Registrants' future purchase obligations and commitments estimated for the next five
years.
(In millions)
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total
Purchase obligations and commitments:
Minimum purchase commitments......................................................... $ 72.5 $ 50.4 $ 50.4 $ 36.7 $ 25.9 $ 235.9
Expected wind purchase commitments.................................................
55.2
55.6
56.0
56.6
56.9
280.3
Long-term service agreement commitments.........................................
2.4
2.4
7.9
35.1
31.2
79.0
Total purchase obligations and commitments.................................... $ 130.1 $ 108.4 $ 114.3 $ 128.4 $ 114.0 $ 595.2
OG&E Minimum Purchase Commitments
OG&E has coal contracts for purchases through June 30, 2021, whereby OG&E has the right but not the obligation to
purchase a defined quantity of coal. OG&E may also purchase coal through spot purchases on an as-needed basis. As a
participant in the SPP Integrated Marketplace, OG&E purchases its natural gas supply through short-term agreements. OG&E
relies on a combination of natural gas base load agreements and call agreements, whereby OG&E has the right but not the
obligation to purchase a defined quantity of natural gas, combined with day and intra-day purchases to meet the demands of the
SPP Integrated Marketplace.
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OG&E has natural gas transportation service contracts with Enable, ONEOK, Inc. and Southern Star. The contracts
with Enable end in May 2024 and December 2038; the contracts with ONEOK, Inc. end in March 2024 and August 2037; and
the contract with Southern Star ends in June 2024. These transportation contracts grant Enable, ONEOK, Inc. and Southern Star
the responsibility of delivering natural gas to OG&E's generating facilities.
OG&E Wind Purchase Commitments
The following table presents OG&E's wind power purchase contracts.
Company
CPV Keenan
Edison Mission Energy
NextEra Energy

Location
Woodward County, OK
Dewey County, OK
Blackwell, OK

Original Term of
Contract
20 years
20 years
20 years

Expiration of Contract
2030
2031
2032

MWs
152.0
130.0
60.0

The following table presents a summary of OG&E's wind power purchases for the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018.
Year Ended December 31 (In millions)
2020
2019
2018
CPV Keenan......................................................................................................................... $
27.5 $
27.2 $
27.0
Edison Mission Energy........................................................................................................
22.8
23.1
21.7
NextEra Energy....................................................................................................................
7.0
7.4
6.8
FPL Energy (A)....................................................................................................................
—
—
2.1
Total wind power purchased............................................................................................ $
57.3 $
57.7 $
57.6
(A) OG&E's purchased power contract with FPL Energy for 50 MWs expired in 2018.
OG&E Long-Term Service Agreement Commitments
OG&E has a long-term parts and service maintenance contract for the upkeep of the McClain Plant. In May 2013, a
new contract was signed that is expected to run for the earlier of 128,000 factored-fired hours or 4,800 factored-fired starts. In
December 2015, the McClain Long-Term Service Agreement was amended to define the terms and conditions for the exchange
of spare rotors between OG&E and General Electric International, Inc. Based on historical usage and current expectations for
future usage, this contract is expected to run until 2033. The contract requires payments based on both a fixed and variable cost
component, depending on how much the McClain Plant is used.
OG&E has a long-term parts and service maintenance contract for the upkeep of the Redbud Plant. In March 2013, the
contract was amended to extend the contract coverage for an additional 24,000 factored-fired hours resulting in a maximum of
the earlier of 144,000 factored-fired hours or 4,500 factored-fired starts. Based on historical usage and current expectations for
future usage, this contract is expected to run until 2030. The contract requires payments based on both a fixed and variable cost
component, depending on how much the Redbud Plant is used.
Environmental Laws and Regulations
The activities of the Registrants are subject to numerous stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and
regulations governing environmental protection. These laws and regulations can change, restrict or otherwise impact the
Registrants' business activities in many ways, including the handling or disposal of waste material, planning for future
construction activities to avoid or mitigate harm to threatened or endangered species and requiring the installation and operation
of emissions or pollution control equipment. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result in the assessment of
administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining future
operations. Management believes that all of the Registrants' operations are in substantial compliance with current federal, state
and local environmental standards.
Environmental regulation can increase the cost of planning, design, initial installation and operation of OG&E's
facilities. Management continues to evaluate its compliance with existing and proposed environmental legislation and
regulations and implement appropriate environmental programs in a competitive market.
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CO2 Emission Limits for Existing Generating Units
On January 19, 2021, the U.S. Court of Appeals vacated the EPA's latest effort to adopt CO2 emissions standards for
existing coal-fired electric generating units, and the court remanded the matter to the EPA for further consideration. The
decision was based on the court's conclusion that the Clean Air Act does not require the EPA to limit the standards to measures
that can be applied at and to an existing unit. The time for seeking further judicial review of the decision does not expire until
June 18, 2021, and the EPA has not announced how it plans to respond to the decision. The ultimate timing and impact of these
standards on OG&E's operations cannot be determined with certainty at this time, although a requirement for significant
reduction of CO2 emissions from existing fossil-fuel-fired power plants ultimately could result in significant additional
compliance costs that would affect the Registrants' future financial position, results of operations and cash flows if such costs
are not recovered through regulated rates.
Other
In the normal course of business, the Registrants are confronted with issues or events that may result in a contingent
liability. These generally relate to lawsuits or claims made by third parties, including governmental agencies. When appropriate,
management consults with legal counsel and other experts to assess the claim. If, in management's opinion, the Registrants have
incurred a probable loss as set forth by GAAP, an estimate is made of the loss, and the appropriate accounting entries are
reflected in the financial statements. At the present time, based on currently available information, the Registrants believe that
any reasonably possible losses in excess of accrued amounts arising out of pending or threatened lawsuits or claims would not
be quantitatively material to their financial statements and would not have a material adverse effect on their financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
16.

Rate Matters and Regulation

Regulation and Rates
OG&E's retail electric tariffs are regulated by the OCC in Oklahoma and by the APSC in Arkansas. The issuance of
certain securities by OG&E is also regulated by the OCC and the APSC. OG&E's transmission activities, short-term borrowing
authorization and accounting practices are subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC. The Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Energy has jurisdiction over some of OG&E's facilities and operations. In 2020, 86 percent of OG&E's electric revenue was
subject to the jurisdiction of the OCC, eight percent to the APSC and six percent to the FERC.
The OCC and the APSC require that, among other things, (i) OGE Energy permits the OCC and the APSC access to
the books and records of OGE Energy and its affiliates relating to transactions with OG&E; (ii) OGE Energy employ
accounting and other procedures and controls to protect against subsidization of non-utility activities by OG&E's customers;
and (iii) OGE Energy refrain from pledging OG&E assets or income for affiliate transactions. In addition, the FERC has access
to the books and records of OGE Energy and its affiliates as the FERC deems relevant to costs incurred by OG&E or necessary
or appropriate for the protection of utility customers with respect to the FERC jurisdictional rates.
Completed Regulatory Matters
APSC Proceedings
Arkansas 2019 Formula Rate Plan Filing
OG&E filed its second evaluation report under its Formula Rate Plan in October 2019. On February 28, 2020, the
APSC approved a settlement agreement among OG&E, the General Staff of the APSC and the Office of the Arkansas Attorney
General providing for a $5.2 million revenue increase, with rates effective April 1, 2020. The settling parties agreed that the
Series I grid modernization projects are prudent in both action and cost and that the Series II grid modernization projects are
prudent in action only and the determination of prudence of costs will be reserved until the actual historical costs are reviewed.
The settling parties also agreed that OG&E will no longer use projections for the remaining initial term or extension of its
current Formula Rate Plan and that all costs will be included for recovery for the first time in the historical year.
Order Regarding COVID-19
On April 10, 2020, the APSC issued Order No. 1 related to COVID-19 and the provision of safe, adequate and reliable
utility service at just and reasonable rates. Among other things, the APSC ordered the suspension of customer disconnects for
non-payment during the pendency of the Arkansas Governor's emergency declaration or until the directive is rescinded by the
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APSC, neither of which have occurred yet, although the APSC has requested comments as to whether the moratorium should be
lifted. The order encourages companies to provide reasonable payment arrangements once the suspension is lifted. The APSC
also authorized utilities to establish regulatory assets to record costs resulting from the suspension of disconnections. These
regulatory assets will be reviewed in future proceedings for reasonableness. The APSC ordered the General Staff of the APSC
to consult with utilities to create a quarterly report to be used to report the costs incurred and saved that have been booked to the
regulatory asset. OG&E is monitoring the regulatory activity regarding COVID-19 at the APSC and will consider the request
for additional regulatory action by the APSC as needed.
On May 1, 2020, OG&E filed a Request for Additional Actions and Tariff Deviation seeking relief from the Arkansas
General Service Rules and OG&E's Terms and Conditions under the tariff, in order to allow for: more flexible deferred
payment agreements for all customer classes, suspension of increased deposits due to non-payment and suspension of the
removal of customers from certain billing and extended due date plans for late payments. In addition, OG&E requested that
incremental expenses, such as additional personal protective equipment, increased sanitation efforts at facilities, implementing
health-screening processes and securing temporary facilities for potential sequestration of critical operation personnel, be
tracked in a regulatory asset. OG&E noted that all possible cost categories are not known currently and reserved the right to file
subsequent requests as needed.
On May 27, 2020, the APSC issued an order approving OG&E's request to deviate from the specified terms in the
Arkansas General Service Rules and OG&E's Terms and Conditions to allow deferred payment arrangements to be offered to
all customer classes and have more flexible payment arrangements. OG&E is authorized to record the expenses requested in its
regulatory asset to defer and seek future recovery. The APSC found that because each utility has different cost recovery
mechanisms and the magnitude of the utilities' expenses are unknown at this time, the APSC finds that it is premature to decide
the exact recovery mechanism for any utility for COVID-19 related costs.
Environmental Compliance Plan Rider
In May 2019, OG&E filed an environmental compliance plan rider in Arkansas to recover its investment for the
environmentally mandated costs associated with the Sooner Dry Scrubbers project and the conversion of Muskogee Units 4 and
5 to natural gas. The filing initiated an interim surcharge, subject to refund, that began with the first billing cycle of June 2019.
OG&E had been reserving the amounts collected through the interim surcharge, pending APSC approval of OG&E's filing. A
hearing on the merits was held in December 2019. Parties submitted additional briefs to the APSC in March 2020, which were
requested due to certain intervenors questioning whether a company can utilize an environmental compliance plan rider while
also being regulated under a formula rate plan. The APSC Staff concurred with OG&E that the rider may run concurrently with
a formula rate plan, and the Arkansas Attorney General and other intervenors were in opposition. On July 31, 2020, OG&E's
request to recover its investment for these environmentally mandated costs through the interim surcharge was not approved, as
the APSC indicated OG&E could otherwise recover this investment, such as through the Formula Rate Plan Rider. As of
December 31, 2020, OG&E has returned $5.3 million to customers that had been reserved for refund and has included those
costs for recovery in its 2020 Formula Rate Plan filing.
Arkansas Solar
On July 29, 2020, OG&E submitted its application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to construct
and operate a five MW solar generation facility near Branch, Arkansas. On September 30, 2020, the parties reached a
unanimous settlement agreement relating to the filing, and on November 6, 2020, the APSC issued a final order approving the
settlement agreement. The terms of the settlement are as follows: (i) parties agree that OG&E has complied with Arkansas law
and rules of practice and procedure and recommend granting a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for the
construction, ownership and operation of the project and associated tariffs; (ii) OG&E agrees that it would not seek cost
recovery until its next general rate review or Formula Rate Plan filing; (iii) OG&E agrees to keep detailed records of final cost,
for review at such time that cost recovery is sought, including all cost variance estimates, whereby a determination of prudency
of cost may be made; and (iv) OG&E agrees to reserve 50 percent of the total expected energy produced for residential
customers for the first 90 days of the program's initial subscription period.
Net Metering Order
On June 1, 2020, the APSC revised its net-metering rules. The revised rules retained 1:1 full credit for net excess
generation of residential customers and commercial customers up to 1 MW without demand charges. For larger commercial
customers, 1 MW to 20 MW, the APSC found that some cost shifting to non-net-metering customers may occur. While the
rules retain 1:1 full credit for net excess generation, they allow for a grid charge. The grid charge is initially set at zero;
however, a utility may request approval to revise the grid charge based on evidence that an unreasonable cost shift to non-netmetering customers is occurring. OG&E does not currently have a significant number of net-metering customers in Arkansas.
132

OG&E amended its existing net-metering tariffs considering the new rules. The APSC approved OG&E's revised tariffs on
February 5, 2021.
OCC Proceedings
OCC Public Utility Division Motion Regarding COVID-19
On April 28, 2020, the Director of the Public Utility Division filed an application requesting an order from the OCC
authorizing action in response to COVID-19. The application requested that the OCC authorize the State's utilities to record as a
regulatory asset increased bad debt expenses, costs associated with expanded payment plans, waived fees and incremental
expenses that are directly related to the suspension of or delay in disconnection of service beginning March 15, 2020, which
coincides with the issuance of the Oklahoma Governor's emergency declaration. The application also requested that the OCC
allow utilities to defer additional expenses associated with ensuring the continuity of utility service, such as additional personal
protective equipment, increased sanitation efforts at facilities, implementing heath-screening processes and securing temporary
facilities for potential sequestration of critical operation personnel. The application asked the OCC to consider in future
proceedings whether each utility's request for recovery of these regulatory assets is reasonable and necessary and to consider
issues such as the incremental bad debt experienced over normal periods, the appropriate period of recovery for any approved
amount of regulatory asset, any amount of carrying costs and other related matters.
On May 7, 2020, the OCC ordered that each utility is authorized to record as a regulatory asset any increased bad debt
expense, cost associated with expanded payment plans, waived fees and incremental expenses that are directly related to the
suspension of or delay in disconnection of service beginning March 15, 2020 until September 2020, unless otherwise ordered
by the OCC. The OCC will consider in future proceedings whether each utility's request for recovery of these regulatory assets
is reasonable and necessary. The OCC will also consider issues such as the incremental bad debt experienced over normal
periods, appropriate period of recovery for any approved amount of regulatory assets, any amounts of carrying costs thereon
and other related matters. The OCC also authorized utilities to defer expenses associated with ensuring continuity of service and
protecting utility personnel, customers and the general public.
2019 Oklahoma Fuel Prudency
On June 16, 2020, the Public Utility Division Staff filed their application initiating the review of the 2019 fuel
adjustment clause and prudence review. On December 30, 2020, the OCC issued a final order finding OG&E's 2019 fuel costs
and related practices prudent.
Oklahoma Grid Enhancement Plan
On February 24, 2020, OG&E filed an application with the OCC for approval of a mechanism that allows for interim
recovery of the costs associated with its grid enhancement plan. The plan includes approximately $800.0 million of strategic,
data-driven investments, over five years, covering grid resiliency, grid automation, communication systems and technology
platforms and applications. On May 19, 2020, the OCC temporarily suspended the procedural schedule in light of various
conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty surrounding the method and date in which the hearing on the
merits may occur. On July 9, 2020, a prehearing conference was held before the Administrative Law Judge to establish a
procedural schedule and lift the stay ordered on May 19, 2020. On July 23, 2020, the OCC issued an order approving the
amended procedural schedule and thereby lifting the stay.
On October 5, 2020, OG&E filed a Joint Stipulation and Settlement Agreement that included the following key terms:
(i) cost recovery through a rider mechanism will be limited to projects placed in service in 2020 and 2021, capped at a revenue
requirement of $7.0 million annually and only include communication, automation and technology systems projects; (ii) no
operation and maintenance expense will be included in the rider mechanism; (iii) the rider mechanism will terminate by the
issuance of a final order in OG&E's next general rate review or October 31, 2022, whichever occurs first; (iv) the rider
mechanism rate of return will be capped at OG&E's current cost of capital; and (v) all cost recovery is subject to true-up and
refund in OG&E's next general rate review. On November 5, 2020, the OCC issued a final order approving the Joint Stipulation
and Settlement Agreement. In compliance with the final order, OG&E submitted a final list of projects for inclusion in the rider
mechanism on December 5, 2020 and a revised rider mechanism for initial recovery of costs on December 15, 2020. The rider
mechanism became effective on February 1, 2021.
Any capital investment falling outside the criteria of the rider mechanism will be included in OG&E's next general rate
review for recovery.
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Pending Regulatory Matters
Various proceedings pending before state or federal regulatory agencies are described below. Unless stated otherwise,
the Registrants cannot predict when the regulatory agency will act or what action the regulatory agency will take. The
Registrants' financial results are dependent in part on timely and adequate decisions by the regulatory agencies that set OG&E's
rates.
FERC Proceedings
Order for Sponsored Transmission Upgrades within SPP
Under the SPP Open Access Transmission Tariff, costs of participant-funded, or "sponsored," transmission upgrades
may be recovered from other SPP customers whose transmission service depends on capacity enabled by the upgrade. The SPP
Open Access Transmission Tariff required the SPP to charge for these upgrades beginning in 2008, but the SPP had not been
charging its customers for these upgrades due to information system limitations. However, the SPP had informed participants in
the market that these charges would be forthcoming. In July 2016, the FERC granted the SPP's request to recover the charges
not billed since 2008. The SPP subsequently billed OG&E for these charges and credited OG&E related to transmission
upgrades that OG&E had sponsored, which resulted in OG&E being a net receiver of sponsored upgrade credits. The majority
of these net credits were refunded to customers through OG&E's various rate riders that include SPP activity with the remaining
amounts retained by OG&E.
Several companies that were net payers of Z2 charges sought rehearing of the FERC's July 2016 order; however, in
November 2017, the FERC denied the rehearing requests. In January 2018, one of the impacted companies appealed the
FERC's decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. In July 2018, that court granted a motion
requested by the FERC that the case be remanded back to the FERC for further examination and proceedings. In February 2019,
the FERC reversed its July 2016 order and November 2017 rehearing denial, ruled that the SPP violated its tariff to charge for
the 2008 - 2015 period in 2016, held that the SPP tariff provision that prohibited those charges could not be waived and ordered
the SPP to develop a plan to refund the payments but not to implement the refunds until further ordered to do so. In response, in
April 2019, OG&E filed a request for rehearing with the FERC, and in May 2019, OG&E filed a FERC 206 complaint against
the SPP, alleging that the SPP's forced unwinding of the revenue credit payments to OG&E would violate the provisions of the
Sponsored Upgrade Agreement and of the applicable tariff. OG&E's filing requested that the FERC rule that the SPP is not
entitled to seek refunds or in any other way seek to unwind the revenue credit payments it had paid to OG&E pursuant to the
Sponsored Upgrade Agreement. The SPP's response to OG&E's filing agreed that OG&E should be entitled to keep its Z2
payments and argued that the SPP should not be held responsible for those payments if refunds are ordered. Further, the SPP
has requested the FERC to negotiate a global settlement with all impacted parties, including other project sponsors who, like
OG&E, have also filed complaints at FERC contending that the payments they have received cannot properly be unwound.
On February 20, 2020, the FERC denied OG&E's request for rehearing of its February 2019 order, denying the waiver
and ruling that the SPP must seek refunds from project sponsors for Z2 payments for the 2008 through 2015 period and pay
them back to transmission owners. The FERC also denied the SPP's request for a stay and for institution of settlement
procedures. The FERC stated it would not institute settlement procedures unless parties on both sides of the matter requested
them. The FERC did not rule on OG&E's complaint or the complaints of other project sponsors, or consider the SPP's refund
plan. The FERC thus has not set any date for payment of refunds. On March 2, 2020, OG&E petitioned the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit for review of the FERC's order denying the waiver and requiring refunds. The
appeal will likely be decided by the second quarter of 2021.
The Registrants cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding based on currently available information, and as of
December 31, 2020 and at present time, the Registrants have not reserved an amount for a potential refund. If the reversal of the
July 2016 FERC order remains intact, OG&E estimates it would be required to refund $13.0 million, which is net of amounts
paid to other utilities for upgrades and would be subject to interest at the FERC-approved rate. If refunds were required,
recovery of these upgrade credits would shift to future periods. Of the $13.0 million, the Registrants would be impacted by $5.0
million in expense that initially benefited the Registrants in 2016, and OG&E customers would incur a net impact of $8.0
million in expense through rider mechanisms or the FERC formula rate.
On January 31, 2020, the FERC acted on an SPP proposal to eliminate Attachment Z2 revenue crediting and replace it
with a different rate mechanism that would provide project sponsors, such as OG&E, the same level of recovery, and rejected
the proposal to the extent it would limit recovery to the amount of the upgrade sponsor's directly assigned upgrade costs with
interest. The SPP resubmitted a proposal on April 29, 2020 without this limited recovery, and with the alternative rate
mechanism, and the FERC approved it on June 30, 2020, effective July 1, 2020. No party sought rehearing of the order, and it is
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now final. This order would only prospectively impact OG&E and its recovery of any future upgrade costs that it may incur as a
project sponsor. All of the existing projects that are eligible to receive revenue credits under Attachment Z2, which includes the
$13.0 million at issue in OG&E's appeal as discussed above, will continue to do so.
APSC Proceedings
Arkansas 2020 Formula Rate Plan Filing
On October 1, 2020, OG&E filed its third evaluation report under its Formula Rate Plan, and on January 28, 2021,
OG&E entered into a non-unanimous settlement agreement with the APSC General Staff and the Office of the Arkansas
Attorney General. The only non-signatory to the settlement agreement has agreed not to oppose the settlement. The settlement
agreement includes a revenue increase of $6.7 million, which is the maximum amount statutorily allowed in this filing.
Additionally, the settling parties will not object to OG&E's request for a finding that the Arkansas Series II grid modernization
projects included in this filing are prudent in cost. A final order is requested from the APSC in March 2021, and new rates will
become effective April 1, 2021.
Disconnection Procedures Related to COVID-19
On September 17, 2020, the APSC issued Order No. 9 inviting comments from all jurisdictional utilities and any other
interested stakeholders on specific questions related to whether a moratorium on service terminations should be lifted and if so,
how the resumption of disconnections should occur. The APSC also ordered utilities to submit a detailed "Transitional Plan"
outlining how utilities propose to reinstate routine service disconnection activities and collection of past due amounts once the
moratorium is lifted. OG&E submitted its proposed Transitional Plan on October 14, 2020. The APSC General Staff thereafter
filed reports for utilities that set forth recommendations as to the form of notice that should occur prior to lifting the moratorium
and resuming disconnections, as well as payment arrangements that should be made available to customers.
On February 8, 2021, the APSC issued Order No. 15 announcing a target date of May 3, 2021 to lift the moratorium on
disconnections and requiring certain conditions and requirements that utilities must meet before disconnections may resume.
Such requirements include, among other things, immediate communication to customers, notice periods for disconnections and
deferred payment arrangements. In the interim, the APSC is expected to continue to review all information relevant to a
discontinuation of the moratorium and is expected to issue an order on March 26, 2021, either confirming the lifting of the
moratorium on disconnections, or extending the moratorium.
OCC Proceedings
Oklahoma Retail Electric Supplier Certified Territory Act Causes
Several rural electric cooperative electricity suppliers have filed complaints with the OCC alleging that OG&E has
violated the Oklahoma Retail Electric Supplier Certified Territory Act. OG&E believes it is lawfully serving customers
specifically exempted from this act and has presented evidence and testimony to the OCC supporting its position. There have
been five complaint cases initiated at the OCC, and the OCC has issued decisions on each of them. The OCC ruled in favor of
the electric cooperatives in three of those cases and ruled in favor of OG&E in two of those cases. All five of those cases have
been appealed to the Oklahoma Supreme Court, where they have been made companion cases but will be individually briefed
and have individual final decisions.
If the Oklahoma Supreme Court ultimately were to find that some or all of the customers being served are not
exempted from the Oklahoma Retail Electric Supplier Certified Territory Act, OG&E would have to evaluate the recoverability
of some plant investments made to serve these customers. The total amount of OG&E's plant investments made to serve the
customers in all five cases is approximately $28.0 million, of which $11.7 million applies to the three cases where the OCC
ruled in favor of the electric cooperatives. In addition to the evaluation of the recoverability of the investments, OG&E may
also be required to reimburse certified territory suppliers for an amount of lost revenue. The amount of such lost revenue would
depend on how the OCC calculates the revenue requirement but could range from approximately $14.5 million to $21.7 million
for all five cases, of which $1.4 million to $2.3 million would apply to the three cases where the OCC ruled in favor of the
electric cooperatives.
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October 2020 Storm Examination
In October 2020, a major ice storm moved through OG&E's service territory which caused significant damage to the
system. On November 17, 2020, the Public Utility Division of the OCC initiated an examination and review of all distribution
utilities and cooperatives affected by the storm into the mitigation efforts, restoration processes and proposed improvements for
future related or similar events. Respondents are required to provide certain information related to the examination, and the
OCC may request additional relief as the examination proceeds. No procedural schedule has been proposed currently; however,
OG&E is responding to discovery requests.
February 2021 Extreme Cold Weather Event
In February 2021, OG&E's service territory experienced an unprecedented, prolonged, cold spell that resulted in record
winter peak demand for electricity and extreme natural gas and purchased power prices. OG&E's natural gas costs for the
month of February 2021 exceeded the total cost for all of 2020. Fuel and purchased power costs are recovered through OG&E's
Oklahoma and Arkansas fuel adjustment clauses. Estimates of the total regulatory asset for fuel and purchased power costs that
will be recorded are still under development but are expected to be in the range of $800.0 million to $1.0 billion. For
approximately 58,000 guaranteed flat bill customers, representing approximately three percent of load, OG&E may be unable to
seek recovery for the incremental fuel and purchased power costs that are included in customers' guaranteed flat bill agreements
which would result in a loss to OG&E. Full impacts cannot be determined until all settlements and invoices are received for this
period. While borrowing availability still exists within the Registrants' credit facilities, OGE Energy has secured a commitment
for $1.0 billion in additional short-term financing to provide additional liquidity to help cover these increased fuel and
purchased power costs. On February 24, 2021, OG&E submitted an application to the OCC outlining a two-step approach for
regulatory treatment for the fuel and purchased power costs associated with the unprecedented weather event. The steps
include: (i) an intra-year fuel clause increase to be effective April 1, 2021; and (ii) a request for regulatory asset treatment at
OG&E's weighted average cost of capital for the remaining fuel and purchased power costs. OG&E anticipates making a
similar filing with the APSC.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of OGE Energy Corp.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of OGE Energy
Corp. (the Company) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and
the related notes and financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a) (collectively referred to as the "consolidated
financial statements"). In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.
We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Enable Midstream Partners, LP (Enable), a partnership in which the
Company has a 25.5% interest. In the consolidated financial statements, the Company's investment in Enable is stated at $374.3
million and $1,132.9 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and the Company's equity in the net income of
Enable is stated at $13.2 million in 2020, $91.8 million in 2019 and $124.4 million in 2018. Those statements were audited by
other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Enable, is
based solely on the report of the other auditors.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) and our report dated February 24, 2021, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Critical audit matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The
communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken
as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit
matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Description of As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company conducts its electric utility
the Matter
operations through Oklahoma Gas & Electric Company (OG&E). OG&E is a regulated utility subject to
accounting principles for rate-regulated activities. As such, certain incurred costs that would otherwise be
charged to expense are deferred as regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future
rates. Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce expense are deferred as
regulatory liabilities, based on the expected refund to customers in future rates. OG&E records items as
regulatory assets or liabilities if, based on regulatory orders or other available evidence, it is probable that the
costs or obligations will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund in future rates.
Auditing regulatory assets and liabilities is complex as it requires specialized knowledge of rate-regulated
activities and judgments as to matters that could affect the recording or updating of regulatory assets and
liabilities.
How We
Addressed the
Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of internal
controls over the Company’s accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities, including, among others,
controls over management’s assessment of the likelihood of approval by regulators for new matters and
controls over the evaluation of filings with regulatory bodies on existing regulatory assets and liabilities,
including factors that may affect the timing or nature of recoverability.
We performed audit procedures that included, among others, reviewing evidence of correspondence with
regulatory bodies to test that the Company appropriately evaluated new information obtained from regulatory
rulings. For example, we assessed the recoverability, considering information obtained from regulatory
rulings, of various regulatory assets. In addition, we tested that amortization of regulatory assets and
liabilities corresponded to relevant regulatory rulings. For example, we tested whether the regulatory assets
and liabilities were appropriately amortized through the Company’s rates charged to customers based on
rulings from regulatory bodies.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
February 24, 2021

138

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholder and Board of Directors of Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Oklahoma Gas & Electric Company (the
Company) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related statements of income, changes in stockholder's equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 15(a) (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) and our report dated February 24, 2021, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Critical audit matter
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The
communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole,
and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on
the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Description of As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company is a regulated utility subject to accounting
the Matter
principles for rate-regulated activities. As such, certain incurred costs that would otherwise be charged to
expense are deferred as regulatory assets, based on the expected recovery from customers in future rates.
Likewise, certain actual or anticipated credits that would otherwise reduce expense are deferred as regulatory
liabilities, based on the expected refund to customers in future rates. The Company records items as
regulatory assets or liabilities if, based on regulatory orders or other available evidence, it is probable that the
costs or obligations will be included in amounts allowable for recovery or refund in future rates.
Auditing regulatory assets and liabilities is complex as it requires specialized knowledge of rate-regulated
activities and judgments as to matters that could affect the recording or updating of regulatory assets and
liabilities.
How We
Addressed the
Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of internal
controls over the Company’s accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities, including, among others,
controls over management’s assessment of the likelihood of approval by regulators for new matters and
controls over the evaluation of filings with regulatory bodies on existing regulatory assets and liabilities,
including factors that may affect the timing or nature of recoverability.
We performed audit procedures that included, among others, reviewing evidence of correspondence with
regulatory bodies to test that the Company appropriately evaluated new information obtained from regulatory
rulings. For example, we assessed the recoverability, considering information obtained from regulatory
rulings, of various regulatory assets. In addition, we tested that amortization of regulatory assets and liabilities
corresponded to relevant regulatory rulings. For example, we tested whether the regulatory assets and
liabilities were appropriately amortized through the Company’s rates charged to customers based on rulings
from regulatory bodies.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
February 24, 2021
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
The Registrants maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Registrants in reports that they file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and
forms. In addition, the disclosure controls and procedures ensure that information required to be disclosed is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, allowing timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. As of the end of the period covered by this report, based on an evaluation carried out under the
supervision and with the participation of the Registrants' management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial
officer, of the effectiveness of the Registrants' disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15(d)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), the chief executive officer and chief financial officer have
concluded that the Registrants' disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
No change in the Registrants' internal control over financial reporting has occurred during the most recently completed
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrants' internal control over
financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934).
While remote work arrangements were temporarily implemented in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Registrants believe there have been no material changes to the processes and procedures that impact financial reporting. The
Registrants continue to monitor potential internal control impacts of COVID-19 and plan accordingly to ensure the
effectiveness of the Registrants' internal controls over financial reporting and disclosures.
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The management of the Registrants is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Registrants' internal control systems were designed to provide reasonable assurance to management and
OGE Energy's Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal
control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.
The Registrants' management assessed the effectiveness of their internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013). Based on our assessment, we believe that, as of
December 31, 2020, the Registrants' internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.
The Registrants' independent auditors have issued an attestation report on the Registrants' internal control over
financial reporting. This report appears on the following page.
/s/ Sean Trauschke
Sean Trauschke, Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Sarah R. Stafford
Sarah R. Stafford, Controller
and Chief Accounting Officer

/s/ W. Bryan Buckler
W. Bryan Buckler
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of OGE Energy Corp.
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited OGE Energy Corp.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, OGE Energy Corp. (the Company) maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of OGE Energy Corp. as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a) and our report dated February 24, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Basis for Opinion
The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
February 24, 2021
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholder and the Board of Directors of Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company (the
Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020,
based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Oklahoma Gas & Electric Company as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, the related statements of income, changes in stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a) and
our report dated February 24, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Basis for Opinion
The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
February 24, 2021
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Item 9B. Other Information.
On February 24, 2021, OGE Energy entered into a commitment letter with Wells Fargo and certain of its affiliates
whereby Wells Fargo committed to provide an unsecured term loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of $1.0 billion.
The commitment letter provides that the term loan facility will mature four months from closing, unless Wells Fargo is able to
obtain commitments from other lenders in an amount of $650.0 million or more, in which event the facility will mature on the
date that is 364 days from closing. The commitment letter provides that the term loan facility will includes events of default,
covenants, representations and warranties and other terms and conditions substantially similar to OGE Energy's existing
revolving credit facility.
Wells Fargo's commitment is subject to customary conditions, including negotiation of satisfactory definitive
documentation. The term loan facility is anticipated to close on or about March 5, 2021.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Code of Ethics Policy
OGE Energy maintains a code of ethics for our chief executive officer and senior financial officers, including the chief
financial officer and chief accounting officer, which is available for public viewing on OGE Energy's website address
www.ogeenergy.com under the heading "Investors," "Governance." The code of ethics will be provided, free of charge, upon
request. OGE Energy intends to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Section 5, Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an
amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the code of ethics by posting such information on its website at the location
specified above. OGE Energy will also include in its proxy statement information regarding the Audit Committee financial
experts.
OGE Energy. Item 10 information, other than information regarding the Code of Ethics, is omitted for OGE Energy
pursuant to General Instruction G of Form 10-K, because OGE Energy will file copies of a definitive proxy statement with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2021. Such proxy statement is incorporated herein by reference.
OG&E. Under the reduced disclosure format permitted by General Instruction I(2)(c) of Form 10-K, the information
otherwise required by Item 10 for OG&E has been omitted.
Item 11. Executive Compensation.
OGE Energy. Item 11 is omitted for OGE Energy pursuant to General Instruction G of Form 10-K, because OGE
Energy will file copies of a definitive proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2021.
Such proxy statement is incorporated herein by reference.
OG&E. Under the reduced disclosure format permitted by General Instruction I(2)(c) of Form 10-K, the information
otherwise required by Item 11 for OG&E has been omitted.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
OGE Energy. Item 12 is omitted for OGE Energy pursuant to General Instruction G of Form 10-K, because OGE
Energy will file copies of a definitive proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2021.
Such proxy statement is incorporated herein by reference.
OG&E. Under the reduced disclosure format permitted by General Instruction I(2)(c) of Form 10-K, the information
otherwise required by Item 12 for OG&E has been omitted.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
OGE Energy. Item 13 is omitted for OGE Energy pursuant to General Instruction G of Form 10-K, because OGE
Energy will file copies of a definitive proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2021.
Such proxy statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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OG&E. Under the reduced disclosure format permitted by General Instruction I(2)(c) of Form 10-K, the information
otherwise required by Item 13 for OG&E has been omitted.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
OGE Energy. Item 14 is omitted pursuant to General Instruction G of Form 10-K, because OGE Energy will file
copies of a definitive proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2021. Such proxy
statement is incorporated herein by reference.
OG&E. The following discussion relates to the audit fees paid by OGE Energy to its principal independent accountants
for the services provided to OGE Energy and its subsidiaries, including OG&E.
Fees for Principal Independent Accountants
Year Ended December 31
2020
2019
Integrated audit of OGE Energy and its subsidiaries financial statements and internal control over
financial reporting................................................................................................................................... $1,136,800 $1,171,100
65,000
Services in support of debt and stock offerings......................................................................................
45,000
325,000
Other (A).................................................................................................................................................
319,500
Total audit fees (B).......................................................................................................................... 1,526,800 1,535,600
128,000
Employee benefit plan audits..................................................................................................................
149,000
128,000
Total audit-related fees....................................................................................................................
149,000
65,948
Assistance with examinations and other return issues............................................................................
79,200
32,000
Review of federal and state tax returns...................................................................................................
34,000
97,948
Total tax preparation and compliance fees......................................................................................
113,200
97,948
Total tax fees....................................................................................................................................
113,200
$1,752,748
Total fees................................................................................................................................
$1,797,800
(A) Includes reviews of the financial statements included in the Registrants' Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, audits of OGE
Energy's subsidiaries, preparation for Audit Committee meetings and fees for consulting with the Registrants' executives
regarding accounting issues.
(B) The aggregate audit fees include fees billed for the audit of the Registrants' annual financial statements and for the reviews
of the financial statements included in the Registrants' Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. For 2020, this amount includes
estimated billings for the completion of the 2020 audit, which services were rendered after year-end.
All Other Fees
There were no other fees billed by the principal independent accountants to OGE Energy in 2020 and 2019 for other
services.
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Procedures
Rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission in order to implement requirements of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 require public company audit committees to pre-approve audit and non-audit services. OGE Energy's Audit
Committee follows procedures pursuant to which audit, audit-related and tax services, and all permissible non-audit services are
pre-approved by category of service. The fees are budgeted, and actual fees versus the budget are monitored throughout the
year. During the year, circumstances may arise when it may become necessary to engage the principal independent accountants
for additional services not contemplated in the original pre-approval. In those instances, OGE Energy will obtain the specific
pre-approval of the Audit Committee before engaging the principal independent accountants. The procedures require the Audit
Committee to be informed of each service, and the procedures do not include any delegation of the Audit Committee's
responsibilities to management. The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members. The
member to whom such authority is delegated will report any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next
scheduled meeting.
For 2020, 100 percent of the audit fees, audit-related fees and tax fees were pre-approved by the Audit Committee or
the Chairman of the Audit Committee pursuant to delegated authority.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) 1. Financial Statements
(i) The following financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report:
OGE Energy
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization at December 31, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and
2018
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Audit of Financial Statements)
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Audit of Internal Control over Financial Reporting)

OG&E
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019
Statements of Capitalization at December 31, 2020 and 2019
Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
Notes to Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Audit of Financial Statements)
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Audit of Internal Control over Financial Reporting)

(i) The financial statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of Enable Midstream Partners, LP, required
pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X are filed as Exhibit 99.01.
2. Financial Statement Schedule (included in Part IV)
•

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is not applicable or is not material, or because the
information required is included in the respective financial statements or notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits
Exhibit
No.
2.01

Description

OGE
Energy

Master Formation Agreement dated as of March 14, 2013 by and among CenterPoint
Energy, Inc., OGE Energy Corp., Bronco Midstream Holdings, LLC and Bronco
Midstream Holdings II, LLC. (Filed as Exhibit 2.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed
March 15, 2013 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

3.01

Copy of Restated OGE Energy Corp. Certificate of Incorporation. (Filed as Exhibit 3.01 to
OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 (File No. 1-12579) and
incorporated by reference herein).

X

3.02

Copy of Amended OGE Energy Corp. By-laws dated February 22, 2017. (Filed as Exhibit
3.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed February 23, 2017 (File No. 1-12579) and
incorporated by reference herein).

X

3.03
3.04

OG&E

Copy of Restated Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company Certificate of
Incorporation. (Filed as Exhibit 3.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed May 19, 2011 (File No.
1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

Copy of Amended Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company By-laws dated November 30,
2015. (Filed as Exhibit 3.02 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed November 30, 2015 (File
No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

4.01

Trust Indenture dated October 1, 1995, from OG&E to Boatmen's First National Bank of
Oklahoma, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.29 to OG&E's Registration Statement No.
33-61821 and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.02

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated as of July 1, 1997, being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed July 17, 1997
(File No. 33-1532) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.03

Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated as of April 1, 1998, being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed April 16, 1998
(File No. 33-1532) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

Supplemental Indenture No. 5 dated as of October 24, 2001, being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.06 to OG&E's Registration Statement
No. 333-104615 and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

Supplemental Indenture No. 6 dated as of August 1, 2004, being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.02 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
August 6, 2004 (File No 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.06

Supplemental Indenture No. 7 dated as of January 1, 2006 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.02 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
January 6, 2006 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.07

Supplemental Indenture No. 8 dated as of January 15, 2008 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
January 31, 2008 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.08

Supplemental Indenture No. 9 dated as of September 1, 2008 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
September 9, 2008 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.09

Supplemental Indenture No. 10 dated as of December 1, 2008 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
December 11, 2008 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

Supplemental Indenture No. 11 dated as of June 1, 2010 being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed June 8, 2010 (File
No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

4.04
4.05

4.10
4.11
4.12
4.13

Supplemental Indenture No. 12 dated as of May 15, 2011 being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed May 27, 2011
(File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).
Supplemental Indenture No. 13 dated as of May 1, 2013 being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed May 13, 2013
(File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).
Supplemental Indenture No. 14 dated as of March 15, 2014 being supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed March 25, 2014
(File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).
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4.14

Supplemental Indenture No. 15 dated as of December 1, 2014 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed
December 11, 2014 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

Supplemental Indenture No. 16 dated as of March 15, 2017 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed March
31, 2017 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.16

Supplemental Indenture No. 17 dated as of August 1, 2017 being supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OG&E's Form 8-K filed August 11, 2017
(File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.17

Supplemental Indenture No. 18 dated as of April 26, 2018 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.21 to OGE Energy's Registration
Statement on Form S-3ASR filed May 18, 2018 (File No. 333-225030) and incorporated
by reference herein).

X

X

4.18

Supplemental Indenture No. 19 dated as of August 15, 2018 being a supplemental
instrument to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed
August 17, 2018 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.19

Supplemental Indenture No. 20 dated as of June 1, 2019 being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.01 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed June 7,
2019 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

4.20

Supplemental Indenture No. 21 dated as of April 1, 2020 between OG&E and BOKF, NA,
as trustee (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed April 1, 2020 (File No.
1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

Indenture dated as of November 1, 2004 between OGE Energy Corp. and UMB Bank,
N.A., as trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed November 12,
2004 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

4.22

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 dated as of November 24, 2014 between OGE Energy and
UMB Bank, N.A, as trustee, creating the Senior Notes. (Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to OGE
Energy's Form 8-K filed November 24, 2014 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by
reference herein).

X

4.23

Supplemental Indenture No. 3 dated as of April 26, 2018 being a supplemental instrument
to Exhibit 4.20 hereto. (Filed as Exhibit 4.04 to OGE Energy's Registration Statement on
Form S-3ASR filed May 18, 2018 (File No. 333-225030) and incorporated by reference
herein).
Description of Capital Stock.
Amended and Restated Facility Operating Agreement for the McClain Generating Facility
dated as of July 9, 2004 between OG&E and the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority.
(Filed as Exhibit 10.03 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004
(File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
Amended and Restated Ownership and Operation Agreement for the McClain Generating
Facility dated as of July 9, 2004 between OG&E and the Oklahoma Municipal Power
Authority. (Filed as Exhibit 10.04 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2004 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
Operating and Maintenance Agreement for the Transmission Assets of the McClain
Generating Facility dated as of August 25, 2003 between OG&E and the Oklahoma
Municipal Power Authority. (Filed as Exhibit 10.05 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2004 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
Form of Split Dollar Agreement. (Filed as Exhibit 10.32 to OGE Energy's Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference
herein).

4.15

4.21

4.24+
10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04*
10.05

10.06

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Credit Agreement dated as of March 8, 2017 by and among OGE Energy Corp., the
Lenders thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Mizuho Banks, Ltd., MUFG
Union Bank, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank National Association, as CoDocumentation Agents. (Filed as Exhibit 99.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed March 8,
2017 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

Credit Agreement dated as of March 8, 2017 by and among Oklahoma Gas and Electric
Company, the Lenders thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative
Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Mizuho Banks, Ltd.,
MUFG Union Bank, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Co-Documentation Agents. (Filed as Exhibit 99.02 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed
March 8, 2017 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X
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X

10.07*

OGE Energy Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2019 (File
No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

OGE Energy Restoration of Retirement Income Plan, as amended and restated. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.04 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 (File No.
1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.09*

Form of Employment Agreement for all existing and future officers of OGE Energy
relating to change of control. (Filed as Exhibit 10.28 to OGE Energy's Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.10

Agreement, dated February 17, 2010, between OG&E and Oklahoma Department of
Environmental Quality. (Filed as Exhibit 99.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed February
23, 2010 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.11*

Amendment No. 1 to OGE Energy's Restoration of Retirement Income Plan. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.40 to OGE Energy's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File
No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X
X
X

X
X
X

10.08*

10.12*+
10.13*+
10.14

10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18*
10.19*
10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

OGE Energy's Director Compensation.
OGE Energy's Executive Officer Compensation.
Fifth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Enable Midstream
Partners, LP, dated November 14, 2017. (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Enable Midstream
Partners, LP's Form 8-K filed November 15, 2017 (File No. 1-36413) and incorporated by
reference herein).
Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Enable GP, LLC,
dated June 22, 2016. (Filed as Exhibit 10.02 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed June 28,
2016 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X
X

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 1, 2013 by and among CenterPoint Energy
Field Services LP, CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., OGE Enogex Holdings LLC, and
Enogex Holdings LLC. (Filed as Exhibit 10.03 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed May 7,
2013 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

Omnibus Agreement dated as of May 1, 2013 among CenterPoint Energy, Inc., OGE
Energy Corp., Enogex Holdings LLC and CenterPoint Energy Field Services LP. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.04 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed May 7, 2013 (File No. 1-12579) and
incorporated by reference herein).

X

OGE Energy's 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. (Filed as Annex B to OGE Energy's Proxy
Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareowners (File No. 1-12579) and
incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

X

X

OGE Energy's 2013 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan. (Filed as Annex C to OGE
Energy's Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareowners (File No.
1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
OGE Energy Corp. Involuntary Severance Benefits Plans for Non-Officers (Applicable
only to non-officers of Enogex LLC seconded to Enable Midstream Partners, LP or Enable
GP, LLC or one of its subsidiaries). (Filed as Exhibit 10.02 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by
reference herein).
OGE Energy Corp. Involuntary Severance Benefits Plans for Officers (Applicable only to
officers of Enogex LLC seconded to Enable Midstream Partners, LP or Enable GP, LLC
or one of its subsidiaries). (Filed as Exhibit 10.03 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2013 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference
herein).
Form of Performance Unit Agreement under OGE Energy's 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.
(Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2017
(File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X
X

X

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under OGE Energy's 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.
(Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2019
(File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.24*

OGE Energy Corp. Deferred Compensation Plan (As amended and restated effective
October 1, 2016). (Filed as Exhibit 10.37 to OGE Energy's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.25

Copy of the Settlement Agreement filed with the APSC on April 20, 2017. (Filed as
Exhibit 99.02 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed May 24, 2017 (File No. 1-12579) and
incorporated by reference herein).

X

X

10.23*
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10.26

10.27*+
10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32+
21.01+
23.01+
23.02+
23.03+
24.01+
24.02+
31.01+
31.02+
32.01+
32.02+
99.01+
99.02
99.03

Letter of extension dated as of March 9, 2018 for OGE Energy's and OG&E's credit
agreements dated as March 8, 2017, by and among Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Syndication Agent,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. MUFG Union Bank, N.A. Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Co-Documentation Agents, the Lenders thereto, and OGE Energy
and OG&E, for their respective credit facility. (Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by
reference herein).
Employment Arrangement between OGE Energy and W. Bryan Buckler, OGE Energy's
and OG&E's Chief Financial Officer
Letter of extension dated as of January 12, 2021 for OGE Energy's and OG&E's credit
agreements dated as of March 8, 2017, by and among OGE Energy and OG&E, for their
respective credit facility, the Lenders thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Mizuho
Bank, Ltd., MUFG Union Bank, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Co-Documentation Agents. (Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's Form
8-K filed January 14, 2021 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
First Amendment dated as of January 12, 2021, to Credit Agreement dated as of March 8,
2017, by and among OG&E, the Lenders thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and Mizuho
Bank, Ltd., MUFG Union Bank, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Co-Documentation Agents. (Filed as Exhibit 10.02 to OG&E's Form 8-K
filed January 14, 2021 (File No. 1-1097) and incorporated by reference herein).
First Amendment dated as of January 12, 2021, to Credit Agreement dated as of March 8,
2017, by and among OGE Energy, the Lenders thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent,
and Mizuho Bank, Ltd., MUFG Union Bank, N.A., Royal Bank of Canada and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Co-Documentation Agents. (Filed as Exhibit 10.03 to OGE
Energy's Form 8-K filed January 14, 2021 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by
reference herein).
Support Agreement dated February 16, 2021, by and among Energy Transfer LP, Elk
Merger Sub LLC, Elk GP Merger Sub LLC, Enable Midstream Partners, LP, Enable GP,
LLC and OGE Energy Corp. (Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed on
February 18, 2021 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated by reference herein).
Commitment Letter for a delayed draw term loan facility dated February 24, 2021 by and
between OGE Energy and Wells Fargo Bank, NA.
Subsidiaries of OGE Energy.
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP for the Financial Statements of Enable Midstream
Partners, LP.
Power of Attorney.
Power of Attorney.
Certifications Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certifications Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Financial Statements of Enable Midstream Partners, LP as of and for the three years ended
December 31, 2020.
Copy of the APSC Settlement Agreement approval dated May 18, 2017. (Filed as Exhibit
99.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed May 24, 2017 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated
by reference herein).
Copy of the Settlement Agreement filed with the OCC on May 24, 2019. (Filed as Exhibit
99.01 to OGE Energy's Form 8-K filed May 30, 2019 (File No. 1-12579) and incorporated
by reference herein).
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X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X

X

X

X

101.INS
101.SCH
101.PRE
101.LAB
101.CAL
101.DEF
104

Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the
interactive data file because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

X
X
X
X
X
X

X
X
X
X
X
X

Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the
Inline XBRL document (included in Exhibit 101).

X

X

* Represents executive compensation plans and arrangements.
+ Represents exhibits filed herewith. All exhibits not so designated are incorporated by reference to a
prior filing, as indicated.
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OGE ENERGY CORP.
OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
SCHEDULE II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Additions
Description

Balance at
Beginning of
Period
(In millions)

Balance at December 31, 2018
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts............................................ $
Balance at December 31, 2019
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts............................................ $
Balance at December 31, 2020
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts............................................ $
(A) Uncollectible accounts receivable written off, net of recoveries.
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.
None.
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Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Deductions (A)

Balance at
End of
Period

1.5 $

3.4 $

3.2 $

1.7

1.7 $

2.2 $

2.4 $

1.5

1.5 $

3.0 $

1.9 $

2.6

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Oklahoma City, and State of Oklahoma on February 24th, 2021.
OGE ENERGY CORP.
(Registrant)
By /s/ Sean Trauschke
Sean Trauschke
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Sean Trauschke
Sean Trauschke

Title

Date

Principal Executive
Officer and Director;

February 24, 2021

/s/ W. Bryan Buckler
W. Bryan Buckler

Principal Financial Officer;

February 24, 2021

/s/ Sarah R. Stafford
Sarah R. Stafford

Principal Accounting Officer.

February 24, 2021

Frank A. Bozich
James H. Brandi
Peter D. Clarke
Luke R. Corbett
David L. Hauser
Luther C. Kissam, IV
Judy R. McReynolds
David E. Rainbolt
J. Michael Sanner
Sheila G. Talton

Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;

/s/ Sean Trauschke
By Sean Trauschke (attorney-in-fact)

February 24, 2021
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Oklahoma City, and State of Oklahoma on February 24th, 2021.

OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
(Registrant)
By /s/ Sean Trauschke
Sean Trauschke
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Sean Trauschke
Sean Trauschke

Title

Date

Principal Executive
Officer and Director;

February 24, 2021

/s/ W. Bryan Buckler
W. Bryan Buckler

Principal Financial Officer;

February 24, 2021

/s/ Sarah R. Stafford
Sarah R. Stafford

Principal Accounting Officer.

February 24, 2021

Frank A. Bozich
James H. Brandi
Peter D. Clarke
Luke R. Corbett
David L. Hauser
Luther C. Kissam, IV
Judy R. McReynolds
David E. Rainbolt
J. Michael Sanner
Sheila G. Talton

Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;
Director;

/s/ Sean Trauschke
By Sean Trauschke (attorney-in-fact)

February 24, 2021
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OGE Energy Corp. Leadership
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OFFICERS

Frank A. Bozich

Sean Trauschke

President and CEO att Trinseo, a global
materials companyy and manufacturer of plastics, 

%JCKTOCP2TGUKFGPVCPF%'1 of OGE Energy Corp.,
OG&E

latex binders and synthetic rubber

9 $T[CP$WEMNGT
James H. Brandi
Former Managing Director of BNP Paribas
5GEWTKVKGU%QTRCPKPXGUVOGPVDCPMKPIƂTO

Peter D. Clarke
4GVKTGF2CTVPGTQH,QPGU&C[CNCYƂTO
F

%JKGH(KPCPEKCN1HƂEGTs1)''PGTI[%QTR1)'

William H. Sultemeier
General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer s
1)''PGTI[%QTR 1)'

5EQVV#$TKIIU

Luke R. Corbett

Vice President – *WOCP4GUQWTEGU – OG&E

Forrmer Chairman and CEO of Ke
F
K rr-McGee Corporation,
which engaged in oil and gas exploration and

4QDGTV,$WTEJ

production and chemical operations

8KEG2TGUKFGPVs7VKNKV[6GEJPKECN5GTXKEGUs1)'

David L. Hauser

Andrea M. Dennis

Former Chairman and CEO of FairPoint
Communications, Inc., a provider of
communication services

s1)'
8KEG2TGUKFGPVs6TCPUOKUUKQPCPF&KUVTKDWVKQP
6

Patricia D. Horn
8KEG2TGUKFGPVs)QXGTPCPEGCPF%QTRQTCVG5GETGVCT[s

.WVJGT .WMG %-KUUCO+8

OGE Energy Corp., OG&E

(QTOGT%JCTKOCP2TGUKFGPVCPF%'1QH#NDGTOCTNG
%QTRQTCVKQPCINQDCNURGEKCNV[EJGOKECNUEQORCP[

Donnie O. Jones
Vice President – Utility Operations – OG&E
V

Judy R. McReynolds
Chairman, President and CEO of ArcBest Corporation,
a full-service logistics solutions provider

David E. Rainbolt
Executive Chairman of BancFirst Corporation,
a financial holding company, which provides
retail and commercial banking
ng services

J. Michael Sanner
4GVKTGF
F Partner of Ernst & Y
Young LLP,
CPCEEQWPVKPIƂTO

Cristina FGTPCPFG\
F
McQuistion
8KEG2TGUKFGPVs%QTRQTCVG4GURQPUKDKNKV[CPF
5VGYCTFUJKR s OGE Energy Corp., OG&E

Kenneth A. Miller
Vice President –Regulatory and
Legislative Affairs – OG&E

David A. Parker
Vice President – Technology, Data and Security – OG&E

/CVVJGY,5EJWGTOCPP

Sheila G. Talton

8KEG2TGUKFGPVs2QYGT5WRRN[1RGTCVKQPUs1)'

President and CEO of Gray Matter Analytics,
a consultancy offering data analytics and
predictive modeling services

Sarah R. Stafford

Sean Trauschke

Charles B. Walworth

Chairman, President and CEO of OGE Energy Corp.,
OG&E

6
6TGCUWTGTs1)''PGTI[%QTR1)'

%QPVTQNNGTCPF%JKGH#EEQWPVKPI1HƂEGTs
OGE Energy Corp., OG&E

InvestorInformation
AnnualMeeting

Cumulative Five-Year Total Return

The annual meeting of shareholders is scheduled to be
held virtually via the internet at 10:00 a.m. CDT on Thursday,
May 2, 202. The Board of Directors will request proxies
for this meeting and Proxy materials will be made available
for shareholders on or about April , 202.

This graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative
total returns for the Company’s common stock, the
S&P 500 Index and the S&P 1500 Composite Utilities
Sector Index. The graph assumes that the value of the
investment in the Company’s common stock and each
index was $100 as of Dec. 31, 2015, and that all dividends
were reinvested. As of Dec. 31, 2020, the closing price
of the Company’s common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange was $31.86.

StockExchangeListing
The New York Stock Exchange lists OGE Energy Corp.
commonstockfortradingunderthesymbolOGE.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

Form10-K
AcopyoftheAnnualReporttotheSecuritiesandExchange
Commission,Form10-K,willbefurnishedwithoutchargeto
anyshareholderuponwrittenrequestbycontacting:
OGEEnergyCorp.
InvestorRelations,MC503
P.O.Box321 | OklahomaCity,OK 73101-0321











ShareholderInformation
Shareholderswithquestionsorinneedofassistanceconcerning
theirOGEstockaccountsshouldcontactOGE’sregistrar,stock
planadministrator,transferagentanddividenddisbursingagent:
Computershare
P.O.Box505000 | Louisville,KY 40233-5000
Phonetollfree:1(888)216-8114 Toll:1(201)680-6578
OvernightCourier:Computershare
462South4thStreet,Suite1600 | Louisville,KY 40202
Internetaccountaccess: www.computershare.com/investor
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'HF

'HF

OGE Energy Corp.

S&P 500 Index

'HF

'HF

'HF

S&P 1500 Utilities Sector Index

Source: FactSet

Duplicate Annual Reports
To eliminate duplicate mailings, please contact the registrar.

Corporate Governance

All of OGE Energy Corp.’s corporate governance material,
including codes of conduct, guidelines for corporate governance
Shareholders,analysts,brokersandinstitutionalinvestorswith
and committee charters, is available for public viewing on the
questions or comments may contact +BTPO #BJMFZ, Director,
OGE Energy Corp. website at ogeenergy.com/governance.
InvestorRelationsat(405)553-36.
OGE Energy Corp.’s corporate governance material also is
available upon request sent to OGE Energy Corp.’s Corporate
StockPurchasePlan
Secretary.
Thisplanoffersaconvenientandeconomicalwaytopurchase
OGEEnergyCorp.commonstock.Planmaterialsareavailable
on the internet at ogeenergy.com, or a prospectus and
enrollmentpacketmaybeobtainedbycalling1(888)216-8114.

AdditionalInformation

DividendDirectDeposit
Shareholdersmayhavetheirdividendsdepositeddirectlyinto
theirchecking,savingsormoneymarketaccounts.Totake
advantageofthisservice,pleasecontacttheregistrar.

Shareholders of Record
The number of record holders of the Company’s Common
Stock on Feb. 28, 202, was 13,.

1)''PGTI[%QTR

